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 1  A p p e a r a n c e s:
 2       ELLEN BLASCHINSKI, DPH
 3       DAVID LeVASSEUR, OPM
 4       ERIC LINDQUIST, OPM
 5       MATTHEW PAFFORD, OPM
 6       SAM GOLD, CT River Council of
 7       Governments
 8       VIRGINIA DE LIMA,
 9       USGS & University of Hartford
10       ANDREW LORD, CT Water Pollution
11       Control Authority
12       ROBERT MOORE, Chair policy subcommittee
13       LARRY BINGAMAN, South Central Regional
14       Water Authority
15       MAUREEN WESTBROOK,
16       Connecticut Water Company
17       MARGARET MINER, Rivers Alliance of CT
18       ELIN SWANSON KATZ, OCC
19       ELIZABETH BARTON,
20       Day Pitney, LLP (via telephone)
21       JULIE ZIMMERMAN,
22       Yale University (via telephone)
23       JON MORRISON, USGS
24       MICHAEL J. SULLIVAN, DEEP
25       CORINNE FITTING, DEEP
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 4       GLENN WARNER, CT Water Resources
 5       DAVID RADKA, Connecticut Water
 6       Company
 7       NICHOLAS NEELEY, PURA
 8       GAIL LUCCHINA, PURA
 9       JOHN HUDAK, Regional Water Authority
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12       BETSY GARA, CT Water Works
13       Association
14       ALICEA CHARAMUT, CT River Watershed
15       Council
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 1                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Not
 2  everyone is here yet, but in the interest of
 3  those that are here I believe that we will
 4  bring this meeting of the Steering Committee to
 5  order.  And I believe everyone knows everyone
 6  here.  A couple of things --
 7                 Lisa, who do we have on the
 8  phone?
 9                 THE CLERK:  We have Beth Barton
10  from Day Pitney and Julie Zimmerman from Yale
11  University.
12                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.
13  Welcome and since we just announced, here we're
14  going to start going around the room and saying
15  who's here from the Council.
16                 I'm Jack Betkoski, Chair of the
17  Council.
18                 ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  Ellen
19  Blaschinski with the Department of Public
20  Health.
21                 DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Dave Levasseur
22  with the Office of Policy and Management.
23                 SAM GOLD:  Sam Gold, River COG.
24                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Virgina de
25  Lima, Steering Committee, subgroup of science
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 1  and technical.
 2                 ANDREW LORD:  Andrew Lord,
 3  Connection Association of Water Pollution
 4  Control Authorities and the Connecticut Water
 5  Pollution Abatement Association.
 6                 ROBERT MOORE:  Bob Moore with
 7  the Steering Committee, and Chair of the policy
 8  subcommittee.
 9                 LARRY BINGAMAN:  Larry Bingaman
10  with the regional water authority.
11                 MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  Maureen
12  Westbrook with the Connecticut Water Company,
13  and cochair with my partner in crime there,
14  Margaret Miner for the advisory group.
15                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  And just
16  being joined by Margaret Miner and Elin Katz
17  from the Consumer Counsel for the State of
18  Connecticut.
19                 Why don't we -- people in the
20  room just since, starting with -- here
21  introduce yourself, please.
22                 ERIC LINDQUIST:  I'm Eric
23  Lindquist from the Office of Policy and
24  Management.
25                 JON MORRISON:  Jon Morrison,
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 1  U.S. Geological Survey.
 2                 CORINNE FITTING:  Corinne
 3  Fitting, Connecticut DEEP.
 4                 ROBERT HUST:  Rob Hust,
 5  Connecticut DEEP.
 6                 GLENN WARNER:  Glenn Warner,
 7  Connecticut Still Water Resources.
 8                 DAVID RADKA:  David Radka,
 9  Connecticut Water Company.
10                 NICHOLAS NEELEY:  Nick Neeley,
11  PURA.
12                 GAIL LUCCHINA:  Gail Lucchina,
13  PURA.
14                 JOHN HUDAK:  John Hudak,
15  regional water authority.
16                 ELIZABETH GARA:  Betsy Gara,
17  Connecticut Water Works Association.
18                 LORI VITAGLIANO:  Lori
19  Vitagliano, the regional water authority.
20                 ALICEA CHARAMUT:  Alicea
21  Charamut, Connecticut River Watershed Council.
22                 CHRIS BELLUCCI:  Chris Bellucci,
23  Connecticut DEEP.
24                 MATTHEW PAFFORD:  Matt Pafford,
25  Office of Policy and Management.
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 1                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Very good.
 2  Welcome to everyone, and I appreciate everybody
 3  being here today.  And we have a very extensive
 4  agenda here this afternoon.
 5                 But before we begin, first of
 6  all I want to apologize for rescheduling this,
 7  the meeting that we had scheduled earlier this
 8  month.  And there was good reason for doing
 9  that -- and actually money.  And our money man
10  is sitting next to me here, and he's going to
11  give a little bit of an explanation of that.
12                 And again, I know once you
13  have -- that you're all very busy people and I
14  know when you get things on your schedule you'd
15  like to keep them as they are, but sometimes
16  there are circumstances beyond our control.
17                 And I'm going to turn it over to
18  Dave LeVasseur to give a little bit of an
19  explanation of how we got the money, where the
20  money is at, and where we're going to go moving
21  forward in terms of utilizing these funds.
22                 DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Well, and also
23  I wanted to add onto Jack's comments.  When he
24  talked about the week before, the September 1st
25  meeting there were a number of balls in the
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 1  air.  The bond money was one of them.
 2                 We really didn't feel -- we had
 3  a not a lot of committee reports to bring to
 4  the table.  While we had had a preliminary
 5  discussion with Nyquist, we really didn't feel
 6  we had an opportunity to discuss the various
 7  contracting options going forward.  And quite
 8  frankly, when we looked at the agenda we
 9  realized that basically the only real items
10  that would have been on it would have been the
11  two presentations that you're going to see
12  today.
13                 And quite frankly, in view of
14  the fact that we know that our members are
15  extremely busy and have time commitments
16  elsewhere, and a number of them are, quite
17  frankly, traveling from pretty extensive
18  distances to get here, we felt in the interests
19  of time it was better to reschedule until we
20  had some closure to some of those elements.
21  And we could actually have a meeting that had
22  some meaning and some substance to it, as
23  opposed to just viewing a couple of
24  presentations.
25                 So that sort of was the
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 1  background behind that all.  Since then, of
 2  course, the bond agenda has come out and we now
 3  know that the bond commission has as the first
 4  item, on its agenda next Tuesday, the first
 5  tranche of $500,000 of bond money toward
 6  producing a statewide water plan.  So now that
 7  we've got some money we can actually start
 8  talking about the next steps.
 9                 So our goal is once we make sure
10  that we actually get through the bond
11  commission on Tuesday of next week, is to work
12  internally within OPM to come up with a number
13  of different options around the core functions
14  that we think we're going to need for
15  contracting purposes going forward.
16                 For instance, if you guys focus
17  on my e-mails about the bond money you realize
18  that we've established at least three core
19  functions, which may or may not be done by one
20  or two individuals or entities.  But we figured
21  it was better to knock down the disciplines
22  first, obviously a consultant to actually write
23  the plan.  And we are going to need day-to-day
24  supervision of that consultant to keep them on
25  track.
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 1                 And then of course, quite
 2  frankly, we, as all of you know, we haven't had
 3  a project manager on board since the first of
 4  September, and that's another critical
 5  component.  And I'm not suggesting at the end
 6  of the day that an entity couldn't do more than
 7  one of those functions.  But quite frankly, we
 8  figured they really called for separate
 9  disciplines.
10                 So our hope is that by the next
11  Steering Committee meeting we'll have a number
12  of different recommend -- a number of different
13  options that we can follow and some specific
14  recommendations for the Steering Committee to
15  endorse us going forward in terms of hiring the
16  appropriate consultants.  So that's sort of
17  where we're headed now.
18                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you,
19  David.
20                 Any questions or comments?
21                 Maureen?
22                 MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  Just when
23  you say by the next Steering Committee, you've
24  got a number of options of how you approach it,
25  or of specific firms or entities to use?
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 1                 DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Probably types
 2  of entities in the procurement process, because
 3  it's extremely complicated at the state level
 4  and there are a number of different ways we can
 5  proceed.
 6                 So quite frankly, it's so
 7  complicated that it's going to take us a while
 8  to cut through what happens depending upon who
 9  you hire and in what capacity, and for what
10  purpose.  So that's our game plan for the next
11  Steering Committee meeting.
12                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Margaret?
13                 MARGARET MINER:  So what are we
14  deciding today, and what at the next Steering
15  Committee meeting?
16                 DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Well, I don't
17  think we're deciding anything.
18                 MARGARET MINER:  Nothing today?
19                 DAVID LeVASSEUR:  No.
20                 MARGARET MINER:  And will we get
21  as you -- it does seem that having a project
22  manager and a separate person keeping, holding
23  the reins on the -- are guiding the person
24  who's writing.  That's three people.  It does
25  seem excessive.
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 1                 As you work on it will you keep
 2  the Steering Committee involved in what they
 3  should be seeing and --
 4                 DAVID LeVASSEUR:  The Steering
 5  Committee is going to get to recommend -- what
 6  we've flushed out, the various paths that we
 7  can come to and then our recommendations as to
 8  how to proceed.  So the Steering Committee will
 9  be deciding that at the next Steering Committee
10  meeting.
11                 MARGARET MINER:  But we'll get
12  information well before the meeting.  Am I
13  right?
14                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Oh, yeah.
15  And by the way, Margaret, I'm not sure you
16  described that appropriately in terms of how --
17  we're looking at you might have a project
18  manager.  There might be different paradigms
19  that have got to be set up.  So I mean, we want
20  to come up with the most efficient, effective
21  way of doing this.
22                 You know, Tom Callahan, quite
23  frankly, did a great job to kind of get us off
24  the ground here, but he's kind of in limbo
25  right at UConn.  And we might have more in
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 1  terms of his availability in November as well,
 2  because there's been a transition over in the
 3  management team there.
 4                 DAVID LeVASSEUR:  They're still
 5  in transition.  So --
 6                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  They're
 7  still in transition there.  So if that had not
 8  happened we might have been in a different
 9  place from a project management standpoint.
10                 MARGARET MINER:  Okay.  So all
11  those contracts are coming up.
12                 The SSWUDS.  I forget -- has
13  that been signed?  Are we going to see that
14  today?  Are we seeing a presentation?
15                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yes.
16                 MARGARET MINER:  And has that
17  been signed or is that still pending?
18                 DAVID LeVASSEUR:  I have no idea
19  who's supposed to sign off on it.
20                 ROBERT HUST:  You're talking
21  about the grant?
22                 MARGARET MINER:  Source water
23  site-specific, et cetera, et cetera.  The
24  SSWUDS program --
25                 MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  The
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 1  proposal.
 2                 MARGARET MINER:  The proposal.
 3                 MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  The grant
 4  application that's been submitted to --
 5                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Excuse me.
 6  We have been joined by Deputy Commissioner
 7  Michael Sullivan from the Department of Energy
 8  and Environmental Protection who can shed light
 9  on that wonderful subject.  Michael, good
10  afternoon.
11                 MICHAEL J. SULLIVAN:  Good
12  afternoon.
13                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  By the
14  way, this is all transcribed today.  Those of
15  you up here, you don't have to say your name.
16  Those of you in the audience when you talk,
17  help Rob out here and say your name and who
18  you're with -- at least once, right Rob?
19                 THE REPORTER:  Yes, at least
20  once.  It would be helpful.  There's a lot
21  potential speakers in here.
22                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  We've got
23  one of the best transcribers going by the way.
24  He's really good.  So watch what you say today.
25  It's all going to become a matter of record.
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 1                 MICHAEL J. SULLIVAN:  My name
 2  really is Michael Sullivan.  And Jack was
 3  directing his remarks to me, since I insist on
 4  telling everybody who I am every time I speak.
 5                 We've submitted the application,
 6  Margaret, and as far as I know there's been no
 7  decision on that.  So the application is
 8  pending on the SSWUDS.
 9                 MARGARET MINER:  Okay.  That's
10  what I was wondering.  Thank you.
11                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  And just to
12  clarify, who are you submitting an application
13  to?
14                 MICHAEL J. SULLIVAN:  I believe
15  it's to the Department of Housing, Right?
16                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yeah.
17                 MICHAEL J. SULLIVAN:  Right.
18  The state Department of Housing.
19                 ELIN KATZ:  Margaret, I guess I
20  respectfully disagree.  I think this is an
21  incredibly important project.  We all have
22  other responsibilities.  And jobs in having a
23  team of people, whether it's one or two or
24  three people on such an important document
25  that's going to have a long-standing impact on
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 1  Connecticut is appropriate.  It doesn't feel
 2  overstaffed to me.
 3                 And I, you know, they always
 4  say, if you want a good product from a
 5  consultant you've got to be a good client and I
 6  think we need a good client, because we need to
 7  be a good client who's managing the process,
 8  which is very difficult to do by committee.  So
 9  I think it's a good plan as you guys have laid
10  out.
11                 MARGARET MINER:  It may be.  I
12  think we all agree we're looking for efficiency
13  and a good plan.
14                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Right.
15  Virginia, do you have something to say?  Okay.
16  You look like you're ready to say something.
17  No?  Okay.
18                 Any other questions or comments
19  on this item -- which is good news.  And when
20  you've been reading what's in the newspaper
21  lately in terms of money in the State of
22  Connecticut, we're in a good spot to be getting
23  this money released next week.
24                 So okay.  We're going to move
25  onto a presentation from the U.S. Geological
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 1  Survey.  It will give us a little bit of an
 2  overview of water resources.  SSWUDS,
 3  sustainable yield and stream.
 4                 JON MORRISON:  Yeah, it's kind
 5  of a daunting list of things I have to present
 6  on.
 7                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  There's a
 8  lot on your plate today.
 9                 LARRY BINGAMAN:  Will there be
10  copies of these slides available?
11                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Can we get
12  copies of these slides?
13                 JON MORRISON:  Yeah, it's on the
14  computer here.  So if you want to take the
15  presentation afterwards it's already loaded on
16  this computer.  So if there's another way you
17  want me to get you the slides I can do that as
18  well.  E-mail it?
19                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yeah, if
20  you could e-mail it.  Yeah.
21                 Actually Gail, would you give
22  him your e-mail afterwards so we could get it
23  out to the Steering Committee, please.  Thank
24  you.
25                 JON MORRISON:  So with that long
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 1  list of things that I have to present on, first
 2  of all, my name is Jon Morrison.  I'm with the
 3  U.S. Geological Survey.
 4                 With that long list of things
 5  that I have to present on I'm going to be kind
 6  of brief -- try to be brief since we also have
 7  a very long agenda.
 8                 The first thing I wanted to talk
 9  about is the state of water resources in
10  Connecticut, and in order to do that I think we
11  really need to start with the precipitation
12  data.  Our good friends at the National Weather
13  Service have been keeping precipitation data
14  records since about 1901, at least for
15  Hartford.  And they've had this long record of
16  annual precipitation values up to present.
17                 And if you look at that, that
18  plot, what you can see is that the long-term
19  average that they've calculated out is
20  46.87 inches per year over the period 1901 to
21  2000.  But what's interesting in that plot is
22  that since 1970 to present there seems to be
23  fewer low years than there were in the period
24  prior to that.  So this, there's almost a step
25  trend in increasing precipitation that starts
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 1  around 1970.
 2                 And sorry for you guys that I'm
 3  standing in your way.
 4                 And so that's kind of an
 5  interesting point that happens to coincide with
 6  the streamflow.  And I'll show you that when we
 7  talk about streamflow in just a minute.
 8                 And what you can see in that,
 9  that plot with the precipitation is that here
10  in the 1960s, the middle 1960s we had the
11  longest drought we've had in the state of
12  Connecticut, the historic drought.  And right
13  after that drought we went into this step trend
14  in 1970 with increasing precipitation.
15                 So the USGS has three data
16  collection networks that we use to assess the
17  water resources of Connecticut.  We have the
18  surface water stream gauging network, which is
19  in the upper left-hand side.  We have our
20  groundwater ambient water level monitoring
21  network, which is in the upper right-hand side.
22  And we have a water quality monitoring network
23  that we operate as well.  And all three of
24  these networks we operate with the Connecticut
25  DEEP as a cooperative agency.  And I'll talk
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 1  about the funding on some of these networks as
 2  we go through each one.
 3                 So the real-time streamflow
 4  conditions, this is a product of the USGS
 5  that's off our website.  What you can see is we
 6  have a map that shows the distribution of
 7  stream gauges with some color coding that show
 8  what the current conditions of those streams
 9  are.  And those values range from red, which is
10  on the dry side, to black, blue-black which is
11  on the wet side.
12                 We don't see too many
13  blue-blacks on there right now.  Most of the
14  state is in the red, red condition.  There is
15  one blue one, which means that that station has
16  a higher flow than is typical for this time of
17  year.
18                 So being that it's September
19  it's the typical low period in streamflow in
20  Connecticut.  It's not unusual for a lot of our
21  stations to be in this red condition.  When we
22  get into this bright red condition and we get
23  into the 1 percent flow duration, then things
24  get a little bit more interesting.
25                 And right now the USGS data is
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 1  updated every hour, so that this data continues
 2  to update on the web once an hour with the most
 3  recent data that's available.  And this is as
 4  of yesterday afternoon.
 5                 So if you looked at any one
 6  given site what you can see is the streamflow
 7  record for that site.  The blue line is the
 8  hydrograph of the instantaneous streamflow.
 9  The X axis is the date.  The Y axis is the
10  streamflow.  And this is for a site at Bunnell
11  Brook near Burlington.
12                 And so what you get when you
13  click on one of these sites is you can see just
14  what the streamflow is today, what it's been
15  for the past few days.  It typically comes up
16  with a ten-day plot to let you know what's
17  going on.
18                 The yellow triangles across the
19  plot are the daily mean -- or the median daily
20  flow.  That statistic for this site is based on
21  82 years of record, so each day is a
22  compilation of the 82 September seventeens.  So
23  it's the median value there.  So what you get
24  when you look at that data is, you could say,
25  based on the streamflow we have today we're
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 1  pretty much lower than we have been most of the
 2  time.
 3                 You can also change the
 4  timescale to look at longer periods of time.
 5  If we go back to basically the beginning of
 6  July we can see that we've had a pretty dry
 7  summer when we look at that plot, but yet we're
 8  still below the median flowline for most of the
 9  summer, July, August and September.  Okay?
10                 The streamflow statistics are
11  extremely important when we begin to look at
12  hydrologic resources in the state of
13  Connecticut.  Okay?  Our streams are really
14  valuable to us for a number of uses.
15                 So this long-term record
16  provides us the ability to do statistics and
17  look at flow durations, annual exceedance
18  probabilities for both high and low flows and
19  know what we can expect for streamflows for
20  certain streams throughout the state of
21  Connecticut.
22                 This is for Bunnell Brook again.
23  This is the period of January 10th, through --
24  January of 2010 through January 2012, basically
25  a two-year period.
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 1                 And if you look at high flow
 2  statistics in this period of time, what I've
 3  put up is the two-year recurrence interval for
 4  the annual exceedance probability of a two-year
 5  storm or flood, and the ten-year flood.  And
 6  that's the green and the red lines on that
 7  map -- or on that graph.
 8                 So the green horizontal line
 9  across the top is the two-year recurrence
10  interval.  And if you look at this two-year
11  period you see about ten occurrences of the
12  two-year flood in that period of time.  And you
13  can also see that there's about four to --
14  three to four ten-year recurrence intervals in
15  that two-year period of time as well.
16                 So this reflects a fairly wet
17  year, or a couple of wet years.  Okay?  But it
18  does look at how important these statistics
19  are.  Okay?  And the longer we collect data the
20  more valuable those statistics are.
21                 And we begin to look at
22  long-term datasets and we look at inter-decadal
23  and multi-decadal cycles and streamflow and
24  precipitation.  We have to have long periods of
25  records to be able to do that.  Okay?  These
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 1  are extremely valuable.
 2                 So just because we had those
 3  floods there it doesn't mean that we're going
 4  to have to redo all the statistics -- we
 5  probably should because of that step trend in
 6  1970 that might say we're starting to see
 7  higher flows more frequently.  But it does tell
 8  us that there's certainly an environmental
 9  signal in these years, that these were wet
10  years.  Okay?
11                 This is a plot from 400 sites
12  across the United States, from stream gauges
13  from 400 sites across the United States that
14  was compiled by the USGS.  What this is in the
15  top plot, the A, the maximum, this is
16  departures from average -- or normal, or median
17  of the maximum peak flows.
18                 And what you can see is right
19  around 1970 the bar chart flips and we start to
20  have much more departures for peak flows
21  starting at around 1970.  The middle plot, the
22  B, which is the median flows, also starts to
23  flip over and it's mostly represented by
24  increases in median streamflow.
25                 And then in the bottom in the
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 1  minimum flows as well we see more increases in
 2  minimum streamflow since 1970, and this
 3  coincides to that step trend that we saw in the
 4  precipitation data.  Okay?
 5                 This is a distribution of
 6  reference gauges that we have around the state
 7  of Connecticut.  Not all of them are active.
 8  Some of them have been discontinued already,
 9  but this gives you what the geographic
10  representation is of most of the stream gauges
11  that we used to do these, these statistics on.
12  And as you can see, the southern counties are
13  fairly underrepresented in that, in that
14  distribution.
15                 One of the vulnerabilities that
16  we have is right now with our long-term
17  streamflow records the number of gauges with 50
18  or plus more years is fairly low.  We're at
19  about 15 gauges that have more than 50 years
20  worth of streamflow record.  Okay?  So this
21  does make the network a little bit vulnerable
22  to looking at long-term changes in streamflow.
23                 Shifting gears now, this is our
24  groundwater network.  This is the distribution
25  of groundwater observation wells that we have
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 1  throughout the state of Connecticut.  And you
 2  can see that there's also a little bit of
 3  patchiness in that distribution.  The northeast
 4  corner is somewhat underrepresented.
 5                 But this is a network of 74
 6  stream -- or groundwater wells that we have in
 7  the state of Connecticut.  Of them, ten have
 8  continuous recording data.  The rest are -- the
 9  other 64 are measured once a month.
10                 And just to kind of give you a
11  quick overview of the data that we can get out
12  of some of these groundwater wells, on the
13  left, this is one of our longer-term
14  groundwater observation wells, BU-2 in
15  Burlington.  And what you have there is the
16  distribution of the range that the groundwater
17  wells have been observed.
18                 So those colored bars indicate
19  what percent of time the measurements have been
20  in that range during that month.  And what you
21  can see is the little red triangles are the
22  most recent observation.  So in August we were
23  still in the normal range in Burlington for
24  groundwater levels, even though we've had a
25  fairly dry summer.
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 1                 And that, that illustrates how
 2  there is groundwater storage even though we've
 3  had a precipitation deficit.  We still have
 4  some groundwater storage.  Okay?  It would be
 5  interesting to see what our September
 6  measurement shows since we haven't had any rain
 7  even longer.  So that storage is being used up.
 8                 And on the plot, on the
 9  right-hand side what you can see is the
10  long-term data that goes back to the mid 1940s.
11  And so we have 60 years worth of record for
12  this well.  So we can look at what the annual
13  variation is in water level and we can compare
14  it to long-term periods.
15                 We can compare the groundwater
16  levels to the periods in the sixties when we
17  had those droughts, and we can compare it to
18  the wet years and the dry years.  And so this
19  data is extremely useful in analyzing what the
20  current conditions are.
21                 This is the distribution of our
22  water quality monitoring gauges.  We have 35
23  monitoring sites across the state of
24  Connecticut where we monitor water quality.
25  This network goes back to the 1960s, late 1960s
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 1  pre Clean Water Act.  It has a wealth of
 2  information that we have been mining to look at
 3  long-term trends in water quality.
 4                 1968, we had seven stations that
 5  were operating that we were collecting water
 6  quality data at.  Currently we have 35 stations
 7  and 28 of those are sampled at least monthly.
 8  The network has had it's ups and downs
 9  throughout the years, but right now it's
10  holding on, doing okay.
11                 So some of the information that
12  can come from this is we can look at long-term
13  trends in total nitrogen.  This is one of the
14  assessments that we've been doing for the Long
15  Island Sound program.  And what you can see is
16  the green line is a smooth line that tells you
17  what the actual concentration is in milligrams
18  per liter of total nitrogen in a variety of
19  different sites around the state.
20                 And so right here, this second
21  plot in, this is the Connecticut River at
22  Thompsonville showing a downward trend in total
23  nitrogen concentrations.
24                 This is the Quinebaug River.
25                 This is the Farmington River
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 1  which has had a downward trend, but has
 2  flattened out.
 3                 The Naugatuck River has had a
 4  significant downward trend as well.
 5                 But some of our reference basins
 6  like the Salmon River and the Saugatuck River
 7  and Bunnell Brook are starting to show a
 8  different pattern as far as nitrogen.  And we
 9  believe that these are associated with
10  residential development in these, what we call,
11  reference watersheds.  So some of the places
12  that have historically had some of our best
13  water quality are starting to show the effects
14  of residential development.
15                 Here's a plot of that Bunnell
16  Brook data in Burlington.  The dark black line
17  is total nitrogen from atmospheric deposition.
18  And since the mid-nineties there has been a
19  downward trend in atmospheric nitrogen
20  deposition based on the data that the USGS has
21  collected.
22                 However, even though there's a
23  downward trend in total nitrogen from the
24  atmosphere, that red line, which is the flow
25  normalized load of total nitrogen in the
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 1  stream, is actually showing an upward increase.
 2  And so that upward increase isn't the result of
 3  a wet year or anything like that.  It's
 4  actually the result of probably development
 5  pressures in that watershed.
 6                 The data collection programs are
 7  supported by a number of different agencies.
 8  The stream gauges have a variety of funding
 9  support.  The largest chunks come from the
10  Connecticut DEEP, who we operate most of our
11  networks with cooperatively.  We also get a
12  fair amount of federal funding from the
13  National Streamflow Information Program and the
14  Army Corps, as well as the USGS Cooperative
15  Water Program.
16                 But we have another whole group
17  of funding sources, which is private entities,
18  other state and regional partners, as well as
19  local towns and cities.  The groundwater
20  program is entirely supported by the USGS and
21  the Connecticut DEEP and the water quality
22  program is predominately supported by the USGS
23  and the Connecticut DEEP.  Okay?
24                 Over time these programs have
25  had fairly flat funding.  So that blue line has
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 1  kind of plateaued, which is the funding that's
 2  come in from DEP and the water quality program.
 3  And the red line shows that the number of
 4  samples have actually decreased fairly
 5  substantially since the early nineties.  They
 6  have kind of plateaued right now as well.  So
 7  these networks are kind of holding their own,
 8  but they do have vulnerabilities for funding.
 9                 USGS also, every five years
10  there's a water use compilation.  The most
11  recent compilation was done for 2010 and this
12  is a compilation of estimated use of water in
13  the United States.  And it's done -- it has
14  breakouts by each state.
15                 Those estimated water use
16  categories are listed here.  There are public
17  supply, self supplied domestic, irrigation,
18  livestock, aquaculture, self supplied
19  industrial, mining and thermal electric power.
20  And so estimates of water use are aggregated
21  for these, for these categories and the USGS
22  has been doing this for the state of
23  Connecticut for some time.
24                 But these are only estimates and
25  they're poor estimates, I would say.  They're


BCT Reporting LLC







Page 32


 1  not based on real data, because the data is
 2  hard to get at.  We do the best we can.  We use
 3  population.  We use real data when we can find
 4  it, but there's so many gaps in the dataset
 5  that it's very difficult to compile all that
 6  data and feel that it's a real reasonable
 7  estimate right now.  We do the best we can.
 8                 So that brings us to the water
 9  use program, and what most of you really want
10  to hear about probably, which is SSWUDS.  So
11  Site Specific Water Use Data System.  It's part
12  of our national water information system.  It's
13  linked through our site files, so it's all
14  connected to the other networks that I just
15  described.  And SSWUDS stores data on water
16  users, withdrawals, transfers and returns in a
17  geographic information system.
18                 So it has the ability to store
19  monthly and annual withdrawal and return
20  values.  Okay?  Those, those data can be put in
21  those two timeframes and then it can calculate
22  loss and gain throughout various regions.
23                 SSWUDS can be used to do simple
24  modeling.  The output from SSWUDS is a little
25  bit ugly, so it doesn't fit in a nice, pretty
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 1  PowerPoint slide.  It generates fairly large,
 2  cumbersome spreadsheets.  But those
 3  spreadsheets can be mined using modern computer
 4  programming scripts to get out useful data.
 5                 And what you can do with it is
 6  you can set up models, basically.  And what it
 7  shows in this model is the conveyance.  Water
 8  is extracted at one point, transferred to a
 9  different location.  Multiple sources of water
10  may be extracted from different locations and
11  brought to that point.
12                 That point may go to a
13  distribution system and then come back to a
14  return flow where it's reentered into the
15  stream system.  So these conveyances are
16  tracked in the SSWUDS system so that it can do
17  these mass balance calculations and it can
18  provide that output for the users.  Okay?
19                 Conveyance models can be fairly
20  simple, like the model on the left which has a
21  simple withdrawal point, a use area, some lost
22  to the atmosphere and then a discharge point,
23  which is a fairly linear, simple model.  Or it
24  could be a more complicated model like the one
25  on the right, which shows the public supply and
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 1  wastewater.  You have withdrawals from multiple
 2  points.
 3                 You have drinking water service
 4  areas that may exchange water.  You have
 5  drinking water use areas that may serve
 6  multiple areas and then have multiple discharge
 7  points.  And it can handle all of that
 8  conveyance transfer based on the input data.
 9  Okay?  So if you have good input data you get
10  good output data with most models.
11                 What did Bach say?  All models
12  are bad.  Some are useful.
13                 So the sustainable yield
14  estimate, or the SYE program is another program
15  that was developed by the USGS that's embedded
16  in some of our stream stats applications
17  throughout the United States.  And so what this
18  does is it goes through a series of processes
19  to calculate a stream hydrograph at an ungauged
20  location.  And the way that it does that is
21  that you select the ungauged location and then
22  you get the catchment characteristics.
23                 And based on those
24  characteristics it computes a regression
25  equation which gives you a flow distribution
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 1  curve, which is right here.  And then that flow
 2  distribution curve is interpolated to give you
 3  a nice smooth flow duration curve.
 4                 At the same time you select a
 5  donor stream gauge, or reference gauge that is
 6  going to be matched to that ungauged location.
 7  You actually use the real streamflow
 8  information from the time series data.  Then
 9  you back out from that stream gauge, what its
10  flow distribution -- or flow duration curve
11  would be.
12                 You match the flow duration
13  curves and then you're back out with what would
14  actually be the discharge hydrograph from the
15  ungauged location at that point.  And so now
16  you have a hydrograph for your ungauged stream
17  based on a surrogate stream and the statistical
18  probability.  And so that's a very useful tool
19  if you want to start looking at what kind of
20  water you might have at a point in a stream.
21                 This, this is from work done by
22  Stacey Archfield in the USGS for an unaltered
23  stream.  Okay?  So if there's a lot of
24  diversion this does not handle that very well,
25  however you can add that and couple it with the
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 1  SSWUDS database, or in any other diversion
 2  database, and subtract or add any of those
 3  losses or gains of water based on your water
 4  use information to the hydrograph so that your
 5  hydrograph actually reflects where that water
 6  has gone and how much of that water has gone.
 7  Okay?
 8                 So here is the stream stats
 9  application in the upper picture and what it's
10  showing is that you define your watershed area
11  to a point that you're interested in on the
12  stream segment.  Then you delineate the
13  watershed.
14                 And that based on that watershed
15  delineation it goes through and it computes the
16  basin characteristics.  And then once you have
17  those basin characteristics you can do the
18  regression model to give you the flow duration
19  curve.  Okay?
20                 And it does this all on the fly
21  and it's a pretty cool system when it works.
22  It's being redone right now at the moment.  It
23  had some access issues, so vulnerability.  So
24  the tools are being rebuilt as we speak.  Okay?
25                 So what that does is it allows
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 1  you to produce a series of hydrographs and be
 2  able to look at them.  And so this is the
 3  qualification of that data.  So these are the
 4  gauges that were used throughout the
 5  Connecticut River as part of the Connecticut
 6  River un-impacted use tool.  And what it has
 7  done is it matched up the computed flow from
 8  the observed, versus the estimated streamflow,
 9  and done a statistical analysis to make sure
10  that they were behaving properly.
11                 On this plot the closer you get
12  to one the more perfect you are, so that these
13  are fairly high numbers.  And on these stream
14  hydrographs we have three different streams
15  that we've compared observed data for predicted
16  data for.  The bottom one being Bunnell Brook.
17  And you can see that the blue line is the
18  estimated streamflow from the program and the
19  red line is the observed flow, and that this
20  program does work very, very well.
21                 There's only a few periods of
22  time that there might be some exceedances
23  there.  So it is a robust tool.  It has a lot
24  of quality control built into it.
25                 All right.  And the last topic
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 1  was stream deplete.  So stream deplete is a
 2  tool that was built to look at what the
 3  potential effects on streamflow might be based
 4  on groundwater pumping in the nearby area.  And
 5  so what stream deplete does is it looks at the
 6  cumulative volume of water being pumped in a
 7  well.
 8                 So the image on the right is a
 9  model of the stream, the blue line, and two
10  wells at a distanced location A and B from the
11  stream.  And so based on the pumping volume of
12  those two wells we can calculate out how much
13  of the streamflow would come from those wells
14  based on how many days the wells were on.
15                 Now this, this program you need
16  a lot of input data to be able to do.  You have
17  to have a lot of model geometry about the wells
18  themselves.  This is not something you could
19  say, just run this for the entire state of
20  Connecticut.  This would be a well field by
21  well field specific application.
22                 So that if you used your other
23  tools and came up with a point in the river
24  where you said, there might be some issues with
25  the well possibly drying up the river, then you
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 1  could possibly run stream deplete and look at
 2  how many days if this well was pumped at a
 3  certain volume for a certain number of days,
 4  how much water would come out and what would
 5  happen to the streamflow.
 6                 So the real-world scenario is on
 7  the left.  We have a stream that intersects an
 8  aquifer.  The aquifer is supplying water to the
 9  stream for this scenario.  And the well is
10  located a certain distance away and that well
11  is being pumped at a certain rate.  And so this
12  is the real-world geometry.
13                 What stream deplete does is it
14  simplifies that geometry and really only looks
15  at that distance D, between the well and the
16  stream and it does an approximation for an
17  analytical solution to compute the amount of
18  water that would have come -- that would have
19  gone to the stream over to the well.  Okay?
20                 Factors that affect the
21  streamflow depletion by wells are the distance
22  to the pumping well from the stream, the
23  vertical depth that the pumping is occurring
24  at.  The type of aquifer, whether it's a
25  confined aquifer or a leaky aquifer or an
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 1  unconfined aquifer, the geometry and
 2  three-dimensional distribution of the boundary
 3  conditions for that aquifer, the depth of
 4  penetration of the stream into that aquifer,
 5  and then the hydraulic properties of the
 6  aquifer system, the stream beds and the stream
 7  banks.  How fast does water move through the
 8  stream, or through the materials that provide
 9  water for the stream?
10                 So like I said, this is not
11  something you would have a general application
12  to just run for the whole state, but it would
13  be done on a site-specific operation.
14                 There is a tool already built to
15  be able to do this.  On the left is the input
16  data, so you would provide the distance from --
17  the well is from the stream, what the
18  transmissivity of the material is, the storage
19  coefficient that is in the aquifer, the
20  streambed conductance and the pumping rate.
21  And then the number of days that you're going
22  to pump the well.
23                 And so what it does is it
24  calculates in the upper curve on the right how
25  much of the streamflow, what percent of the
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 1  streamflow it's going to be withdrawing out.
 2  And then you can apply that to the hydrograph,
 3  which is in the bottom example.
 4                 So if you had a small stream and
 5  you applied that level of pumping to it, you
 6  could see that by day 180 you might start to
 7  see some serious drawdown effects from what
 8  would have been the natural streamflow.  And at
 9  day 180 you can start to dewater a stream.
10                 And so it does have a lot of
11  utility for specific applications like this and
12  can help identify where you might have some
13  stressed situations, what would happen under
14  different scenarios.
15                 Okay.  I know I went through
16  that fast.
17                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  A lot of
18  information there.  Thank you very much.
19                 Any questions or follow up?
20                 JON MORRISON:  Margaret?
21                 MARGARET MINER:  Hi.  Thanks.
22  Thank you, USGS.
23                 I have two comments.  One, you
24  lost your independent lines in the Connecticut
25  budget.  There's going to be three USGS lines.
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 1  I think people agree that two were really
 2  important and now they've been subsumed into
 3  DEEP, which I know is trying to maintain
 4  funding.  But I just think it would be so much
 5  easier as we have in the past to support your
 6  monitoring networks, if we could see it in the
 7  budget.
 8                 And then my second -- that's
 9  sort of a plea.  And my second sort of plea is
10  the National Weather Service has just released
11  new estimates for precipitation going forward.
12  So are you planning -- when you say a two-year
13  storm, are you planning to modify that going
14  forward using their or some other updated
15  precipitation statistics?
16                 JON MORRISON:  Yes.  There,
17  those statistics are actually independent.  So
18  you have the frequency and recurrence interval
19  for precipitation events and you have the
20  frequency and recurrence interval for runoff
21  events.  They're not -- they're linked but
22  they're not totally linked.  You know what I
23  mean?
24                 So with those new statistics we
25  will do some runoff analysis and we are
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 1  planning.  We do have a project proposal to
 2  actually do -- recompute our streamflow
 3  statistics since the last time it was done,
 4  because we're only about a third of the way
 5  through that period with that increase in
 6  precipitation that I showed.
 7                 MARGARET MINER:  Okay.  That was
 8  my question.  Thank you.
 9                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Virginia?
10                 JON MORRISON:  You don't get to
11  ask any questions, Virginia.
12                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  The various
13  tools that you've been presenting, do they have
14  the capability to run what-if scenarios in the
15  future?  What if precipitation were different?
16  What if land use had changed?  What if the
17  pumping had changed?  Are there those kinds of
18  capabilities in using those tools?
19                 JON MORRISON:  Yes, they do have
20  the ability to run a simulation.  So you can
21  put -- you can stress your systems in different
22  ways.  You can alter the pumping.  You can
23  alter your water use coefficients.  You can
24  change the streamflow.  You can manipulate that
25  as well, so that you can put in an artificially
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 1  low situation.
 2                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  In which of
 3  those tools?
 4                 JON MORRISON:  So in SYE what
 5  you would do is you would use an artificial
 6  hydrograph that says you have a lower flow
 7  condition.  Okay?  You wouldn't use real
 8  streamflow information.  You would use an
 9  artificially low streamflow situation, and then
10  pair that to it and run the model that way.
11  And that could give you what would happen in
12  that scenario.
13                 So you can use this tool to do
14  scenarios.  You can also alter the water use
15  data by cranking up some of the coefficients or
16  the pumping rates, or the withdrawals to show
17  how far you can go before you really stress a
18  system.
19                 Glenn?
20                 GLENN WARNER:  Glenn Warner,
21  Connecticut Still Water Resources, professor at
22  UConn.
23                 But Jon, the flow duration
24  curves do not really have a land-use factor in
25  them and they actually don't have -- well, they
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 1  have monthly precipitation in some of them, but
 2  not for low flow.
 3                 So they're very limited as far
 4  as the potential land cover, land-use changes
 5  as far as I see, as far as changing your
 6  actual.  So how do you get a new synthetic
 7  hydrograph projected if you have changes in the
 8  watershed, or if you have a difference, real
 9  differences in precip?
10                 In other words, it's not
11  responding to precip itself.  You were kind of
12  artificially changing that, as I understood
13  you.  So how do you address those?
14                 JON MORRISON:  So basically you,
15  you would have to model that in a system
16  outside to get the new hydrograph, the new flow
17  distribution curve that you're doing.  And so
18  there's a variety of different tools.
19                 A precipitation runoff modeling
20  system is certainly one that you can use to
21  derive a new hydrograph as the input dataset
22  that you would run your scenario with.
23                 GLENN WARNER:  If I could
24  follow-up?  I know New Hampshire is doing this
25  PRMS precipitation runoff modeling system for
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 1  both small watersheds and they've done it for
 2  all of New England.  And now they're doing it
 3  for all of New Hampshire on a very detailed
 4  basis.
 5                 And they've got some -- I've
 6  seen presentations and a report out that
 7  they've got some really interesting results to
 8  look at climate change, different scenarios and
 9  generation, generating new flow duration
10  curves.
11                 So do you see a need for, say,
12  application of PRMS or some other dynamic
13  process based on that, rather than a
14  statistical one?
15                 JON MORRISON:  They're all
16  tools.  Everything I've shown you here is a
17  tool.  There PRMS system is a tool.  When it
18  comes to doing these types of analysis, we can
19  use the tools how we need to.
20                 PRMS does allow us to do future
21  casts using different climate scenarios so we
22  can put in low, medium and high-level emission
23  scenarios and project was that's going to do to
24  our environmental forcing conditions that we
25  would use to generate those hydrographs.
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 1                 So we can do those types of
 2  scenario generations and we do have models set
 3  up in Connecticut for that currently, but those
 4  tools can all be used in conjunction with each
 5  other.  There, there's no one, one thing that's
 6  going to do everything for you, but these tools
 7  do work together very well.
 8                 SAM GOLD:  So the precipitation
 9  trends that you showed in the beginning of the
10  presentation, how does Connecticut fare in
11  relation to the rest of New England or other
12  regions of the country?
13                 JON MORRISON:  The step trend
14  that I showed I think is consistent for most of
15  New England.  I'm not sure about the rest of
16  the country.  I think there are differences in
17  the West and Midwest.
18                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Andrew,
19  you had a question?
20                 ANDREW LORD:  Yeah, I had a
21  question.  It's more of a practical, slash,
22  policy question.  It's, do you have the
23  information available to evaluate watersheds
24  that are critically impaired, moderately
25  impaired or not impaired at all so that we can


BCT Reporting LLC







Page 48


 1  make priorities based on that?  And if not,
 2  then what do we need to do to get to that?
 3                 JON MORRISON:  Right now we
 4  don't have any of that information.  We don't
 5  have a SSWUDS database.  We don't have the
 6  water use database that would allow us to do
 7  that.
 8                 And that's one of the things
 9  we're trying to advocate for with this proposal
10  that's going to HUD, is to get and compile that
11  information so that we can use it in a
12  meaningful way to do that type of analysis.
13                 ANDREW LORD:  Okay.
14                 DAVID RADKA:  David Radka,
15  Connecticut Water.  To follow up on Glenn,
16  because we did discuss this yesterday at a
17  science and technical meeting, and that's to
18  take the unregulated site and you apply that to
19  a regulated site and you control for land-use
20  coverage, which we would be discussing the --
21  certainly on low flow.
22                 JON MORRISON:  Uh-huh.
23                 DAVID RADKA:  How would you go
24  about doing that?  And can you do that using
25  some of the tools that you mentioned?
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 1                 JON MORRISON:  Yeah.  So
 2  basically what you're going to do is you're
 3  going to generate.  You're going to use a tool
 4  like PRMS to run a scenario under a bigger
 5  buildout condition with more impervious cover.
 6                 That's going to generate a
 7  hydrograph.  It's going to be a synthetic
 8  hydrograph that you're going to then import
 9  into the SYE tool and use that for your
10  ungauged basin that you're going to compare it
11  to.
12                 DAVID RADKA:  And just a
13  followup.  And the confidence around that is
14  what?
15                 JON MORRISON:  That, that would
16  be, you know, that's kind of a function of the
17  watersheds and the calibration data that you
18  use.  But the PRMS model has very good
19  correlation.  It depends on how much data you
20  use and how much you tweak the system to how
21  close to reality you can be.
22                 You know, if you go to a
23  hundred percent impervious cover scenario, is
24  going to give you anything, you know,
25  reasonable?  And, you know.
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 1                 But I think as you use that tool
 2  you can generate confidence intervals about
 3  what you're doing.  You could get a confidence
 4  interval from the PRMS tool.  And then when you
 5  apply it you run it through the SYE program and
 6  then compare it to observed and see how well it
 7  matches.  And see if it's, you know, does this
 8  make sense?
 9                 DAVID RADKA:  On stream deplete,
10  last time we looked at this, if I recall
11  correctly, the issue we had with it was that --
12  it was continued pumping scenarios.  So it
13  didn't allow for transient simulations.  Is
14  that still true?
15                 JON MORRISON:  Yes.  So that the
16  transient situations, you're going to have to
17  compile those manually, you know, for
18  individual segments.  I don't think we've run
19  that scenario through the tool.  We don't have
20  a way to do that in the tools just yet.
21                 DAVID RADKA:  Thank you.
22                 JON MORRISON:  Yes?
23                 ALICEA CHARAMUT:  Alicea
24  Charamut from the Connecticut River Water
25  Stream Council.
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 1                 For the stream depletion tool,
 2  the information that has to be gathered for it
 3  what are the resources that have to go into it?
 4  Would you consider it cheap and easy?
 5  Expensive and easy?  Cheap and difficult?  Or
 6  expensive and difficult?  Or all of the above?
 7                 JON MORRISON:  It's probably in
 8  the middle.  Most of that information should be
 9  available from the level A work that was done
10  for the well.  It's a production well.  So you
11  should have that information available.
12                 And then it's just putting into
13  the system, running it through and making sure
14  that it makes sense, making sure that you've
15  defined everything that's in the model to the
16  point where it's giving you output that is
17  reasonable.
18                 MARGARET MINER:  So that would
19  only apply in public well fields, public
20  drinking water source well fields, not
21  watersheds with heavy private use.  Is that
22  right?
23                 JON MORRISON:  Yeah.  Unless you
24  have all that information on the aquifer
25  properties, the well construction.  That that's
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 1  the part that could get expensive and
 2  complicated fast, to answer Alicea's -- to put
 3  it in Alicea's terms, not cheap, not easy.
 4                 GLENN WARNER:  Glenn Warner
 5  again.  We have a very detailed, nice study on
 6  the Pomperaug River using PRMS, coupled with
 7  mod-flow from the USGS.  And now I know those
 8  two are -- actually won't get combined into
 9  what they call GS flow for groundwater surface
10  water, but if you were to apply SSWUDS to the
11  Pomperaug, what information would you gain?
12                 JON MORRISON:  What you would
13  gain is the actual water withdrawals and
14  returns that come from the system, that are in
15  the system that aren't built into the other
16  model.
17                 GLENN WARNER:  I thought those
18  were built into the existing?
19                 JON MORRISON:  They're not built
20  into PRMS, I don't believe.  Some of the
21  groundwater withdrawals might be.
22                 GLENN WARNER:  They did
23  groundwater withdrawals, I'm sure, because that
24  was the part of the mod-flow.
25                 JON MORRISON:  Yeah, the surface
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 1  water, any surface water withdrawals would not
 2  be.  And I don't know if the mod-flow handles
 3  the return flow.
 4                 GLENN WARNER:  My understanding
 5  is -- Dave Murphy, who did the study and we
 6  just started -- they adjusted the streamflow to
 7  deal with the diversions from the stream
 8  itself.  So I'd have to go ask David about
 9  that.
10                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  If I may?
11  Because they were working in a fairly small
12  watershed and working very closely with the
13  local folks, they were given the information
14  that we're talking about.  They got it from the
15  water suppliers.  So they wouldn't have gotten
16  anything in that particular study.  They
17  wouldn't have gotten additional stuff from
18  SSWUDS.
19                 But the point of SSWUDS is to
20  collect that kind of data statewide so that it
21  is available for use in any of these, any of
22  these other tools that are used to do the
23  analysis.  Is that fair, Jon?
24                 JON MORRISON:  Yeah.  Thank you.
25                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  For those of
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 1  you who don't realize why we were laughing
 2  earlier, I used to be Jon's boss.
 3                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Any other
 4  questions for Jon?
 5                 (No response.)
 6                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Excellent,
 7  excellent presentation.
 8                 Okay.  We already talked about
 9  the bond committee update, thanks to David
10  LeVasseur.  So we're going to continue on the
11  agenda with the policy subcommittee update.
12                 Mr. Moore?
13                 ROBERT MOORE:  Thank you.
14                 We met, the policy committee met
15  with quite a few people.  I don't know if
16  you -- were you able to get a copy of our
17  minutes or draft minutes?
18                 Anyway?  I have -- Betsy sent
19  them out and I have some more here.  But
20  anyway, we met on August 17th and we talked
21  about the results of the Steering Committee.
22  We talked about a little bit about the SSWUDS
23  and we tried to -- and DEP gave us the
24  fundamental questions that are being handled in
25  the plan, and we discussed those fundamental
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 1  questions, which are here.
 2                 But then we try to focus on some
 3  basic policy issues.  And the basic policy
 4  issues were that, you know, how we're going to
 5  deal with this plan.  And we came to three
 6  issues or three policy proposals for your
 7  consideration, or for the Steering Committee's
 8  consideration.
 9                 One, that the long-term planning
10  horizon for the water plan should be 25 years.
11  The document should be kept current and updated
12  every five years to benchmark any changes.
13  That was the first kind of policy that we kind
14  of coalesced around and had consensus on.
15                 The second is the water planning
16  council is responsible for developing the plan
17  and should be responsible for updating the plan
18  every five years.  We assume that you're not
19  going to go away and that, you know, somebody
20  had to be responsible, and since those were the
21  people that we suggest that you do that.
22                 And finally, the water plan
23  should be generally a guidance document.  And I
24  include recommendations for necessary changes
25  to existing laws and regulation and direction
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 1  where needed.  We had a long discussion about
 2  whether or not the plan should be enforceable
 3  or portions of it would be enforceable or not
 4  enforceable, and came to this conclusion in
 5  that committee.
 6                 So that there was really more of
 7  a recommendation for change and recommendation
 8  for action.  It may be stating some facts, but
 9  as new issues arose it would be an area where
10  that could be looking forward for regulation in
11  the future.  But that, that was generally the
12  consensus of three so-called policy issues that
13  we brought forward.
14                 And then we also discussed one
15  of the issues that we were having trouble,
16  struggled with was, what data is available?
17  Not what does it look like, but what is it?
18  You know, where's -- what's available from
19  health?  What's available?
20                 Where is that data going to be
21  kept and how are we going to look at it?  And
22  how does that, the ability to, you know, if we
23  say we have to do certain things in terms of
24  policy.  If we don't have the data then the
25  policy doesn't mean much anyway.
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 1                 So we wanted to have a
 2  discussion on our next meeting, which is
 3  scheduled for October 1st at DEP at
 4  ten o'clock.  Because basically, kind of, what
 5  is available from health and DEP and DPUC and
 6  others, that what are those types of
 7  information that is available and out there?
 8  And how does that affect where we're going?
 9                 That's basically the summary of
10  what we did at that meeting.  We had several
11  people in attendance.  And so I think we had a
12  good discussion.  And, you know, trying to move
13  forward I committed to coming out of our
14  meeting with some kind of policy recommendation
15  for the next meeting so that we have some level
16  of progress at every meeting and we did it by
17  consensus.  We didn't have votes or anything
18  like that.  So that's where we are.
19                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  We like
20  consensus.  Maybe that will be, you know,
21  contagious.
22                 ROBERT MOORE:  Yeah.  We didn't
23  have any votes on anything, but we just had a
24  general discussion.  I think we had a really
25  in-depth discussion about the enforceability
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 1  issue.  You know, I was being a devil's
 2  advocate, I think it might be characterized.
 3  But since I have both hats I can do both
 4  things.  So that that was kind of the
 5  discussion of where we should be on this issue
 6  and that was basically where we are.
 7                 I have about eight or ten more
 8  copies of our minutes.  They're still marked
 9  "draft" until our next meeting, but I only have
10  about eight copies.
11                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Take a
12  copy of that and put it right in the
13  transcript, the minutes of the meeting.  Thank
14  you.
15                 (August 17, 2015 State Water
16  Plan Subcommittee, draft minutes and questions,
17  2 pages, noted and attached.)
18                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you
19  very much.  Any comments?  It sounds like
20  you've had a great first meeting there with
21  lots of great recommendations.
22                 MICHAEL J. SULLIVAN:  So Bob, on
23  those ones that you outline, like the 25-year
24  planning horizon, 5-year updates, and so this
25  is -- these are not issues that you're really
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 1  trying to revisit.  You've made progress on
 2  these and that you're moving onto other issues.
 3                 ROBERT MOORE:  Yeah.
 4                 MICHAEL J. SULLIVAN:  So the
 5  same things like the guidance versus
 6  enforceability issues?
 7                 ROBERT MOORE:  Yeah, we will
 8  move on to -- and some of the issues that are
 9  coming up are as a result of some of this data
10  today.  How do we, you know, deal with that?
11  We have issues that are critical issues that
12  were identified, you know, registrations.  What
13  do you do when there's not enough water?  You
14  know, how do we react to those things?  In
15  general, not in specifics.
16                 But you know, those are the
17  kinds of things we'll be heading into the
18  next -- they will get a lot more interesting,
19  rather than they were.  Some of those issues
20  get really, really complex as we get going.
21                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Reaction?
22  Comments?
23                 ELIN KATZ:  Just one on, we did
24  have a lot of debate on the enforceability
25  nonenforceability issue.  And I think, at least
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 1  where I landed was, you know, we may end up
 2  with recommendations for statutory changes and
 3  things like that ultimately seeking to create
 4  an enforceable, you know, enforceable parts of
 5  it, but it didn't seem like we had the
 6  authority to create an enforceable document per
 7  se.  But that doesn't mean we weren't -- we
 8  were thinking this is just solely advisory.
 9                 ROBERT MOORE:  I think we were
10  focused on, you know, there are certain things
11  that we could head into with climate change
12  that nobody has addressed, that by the end of
13  this report you might say, well, if X occurs,
14  then we should be doing this.
15                 And then it would be up to, you
16  know, the agencies to take that action.  But it
17  was more of, there will be -- there may be
18  things as we approach them that ought to be
19  fixed.  And especially when you're dealing with
20  over allocated regions and things like that,
21  there's going to be some issues that come out
22  of that will need to be addressed in some
23  manner.
24                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Margaret?
25                 MARGARET MINER:  Yes, I agree
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 1  with Elin.  I think the advisory output was not
 2  necessarily the endpoint because we discussed,
 3  there is a lot of good advisory opinion out
 4  there.  What is this plan going to do that
 5  will, in some way, at some point lead to
 6  implementation of the recommendations, as
 7  opposed to their presentation as
 8  recommendations.
 9                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  I think
10  that that's absolutely correct.  I mean, I
11  think when this whole plan is put together
12  there very well could be some legislative
13  recommendations that come out of the plan in
14  terms of enforceability and depending upon what
15  we come up with through the groups.
16                 I mean, the subgroup's whole
17  idea is that groups make the recommendation.
18  It comes to the Steering Committee and then
19  ultimately to the Water Planning Council before
20  we sign off on the plan to present to the
21  Legislature.  So I think this is a very good
22  beginning.
23                 MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  And I think
24  the piece where we had a robust discussion, and
25  Bob did do a great job of playing devil's
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 1  advocate -- was the concept of, can this
 2  document in and of itself mandate things, and
 3  then that becomes, you shall do something
 4  differently than perhaps today.  But I think we
 5  spoke particularly to maybe experience where
 6  it's been done within one agency.
 7                 This is very different where you
 8  have the overlap of different functions and
 9  things.  So to direct something by virtue of
10  the plan is very different than to, through the
11  plan, make recommendations for legislative
12  changes.  And that I think that's where we
13  ended up, with a consensus that that would be.
14                 ROBERT MOORE:  I use the example
15  of the solid waste plan for Connecticut where
16  it's set up, you know, here XY had to be
17  recycled.  X, another volume had to be
18  incinerated.  Another volume had to be
19  landfill.  And that's a basis for a certificate
20  of need that was then turned into law, but the
21  plan itself set up the numbers.
22                 The enforceability came in
23  another argument through a certificate of need
24  that the plan itself set up.  Here are our
25  numbers that we're looking for, for the goal.
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 1  And I was trying to say, well, we might come up
 2  with a, you know, with a certain river basin.
 3  The Quinnipiac Basin has always been fully
 4  allocated, therefore anything else has to be
 5  withdrawn or taken away, or added to in order
 6  to put any more waste, or doing withdrawing
 7  more water from that basin.
 8                 So it could get out with
 9  situations like that, and where it's been over
10  allocated for waste in the assimilation.  So a
11  new water supply may be damaging unless it's
12  replaced by taking away more wastewater.  And
13  it might set up numbers that would show how to
14  do that, but then it would be up to somebody
15  else to do that.
16                 MICHAEL J. SULLIVAN:  So that's
17  why I was asking the question, because I had
18  the solid waste management plan in mind,
19  because that's right with the numbers.  I mean,
20  it also -- we use that to kind of ripple
21  through permitting decisions as well.  And so
22  that's what I was curious as to whether that
23  was the nature of the kind of debate that we
24  were having.
25                 ROBERT MOORE:  That was what we
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 1  were talking about.  And Maureen is right.  As
 2  we say that, you know, that there's so many
 3  other agencies involved in that decision, and
 4  the solid waste plan was a single entity who
 5  was going to regulate it.
 6                 SAM GOLD:  Was there discussion
 7  about how the water plan could attract other
 8  plans, like the state plan of conservation
 9  development and other land use plans.
10                 ROBERT MOORE:  Yeah, didn't have
11  a, you know, a consistency with the State where
12  all the other plans had to be evaluated.  We
13  didn't establish a policy on it, but our
14  discussion was it had to be consistent with the
15  plan of conservation and development and the
16  water utility, and other state plans.  How did
17  we develop into this process?
18                 LARRY BINGAMAN:  Yeah, we
19  actually felt like we needed to really get a
20  better understanding of what that requires and
21  what the projections are.  Because I don't
22  think anybody around the table really has a
23  good feel for that.
24                 So what is the State thinking
25  about where the development should take place?
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 1  What kind of resources are going to be needed
 2  in order to have that happen?  So somehow we
 3  need to get a handle on that and we had a
 4  rather extensive discussion around that point.
 5                 MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  Including
 6  other types of plans beyond the plan of C and
 7  D.  Are there other development plans or Long
 8  Island Sound plans, or other things that need
 9  to be considered as we try to put these all
10  together?
11                 LARRY BINGAMAN:  So somehow as
12  we look at this plan that needs to be factored
13  into this.  So that's going to take some
14  funding.  It's going to take a resource to do
15  that.
16                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Very good.
17  Any further questions?
18                 (No response.)
19                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you,
20  Bob, and thank you to the committee.
21                 Virginia?
22                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Okay.  Did
23  everybody on the Steering Committee get the two
24  additional handouts that were here as well as
25  the agenda?  One of them is input on water plan
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 1  and planning process.  And the other one is the
 2  State Board or Plan Steering Committee, where
 3  the backside is all red?
 4                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  No.
 5                 ROBERT MOORE:  We were too
 6  early.
 7                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Do we need
 8  copies, Virginia?
 9                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  No, we've got
10  plenty.  They're here.  It's just whether
11  people picked them up.
12                 ELIZABETH BARTON:  This is Beth
13  Barton.  Will they otherwise be available
14  again?  Or will they be sent by e-mail?
15                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  It can be
16  e-mailed.
17                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  We'll
18  e-mail them.  We'll get them to you.
19                 ELIN KATZ:  Will you also e-mail
20  the presentation?
21                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yes.
22                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Okay.  The
23  science and technical subcommittee has met
24  three times, and we're continuing to meet every
25  other Wednesday afternoon.  At the beginning we
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 1  shared skills and interests and concerns in the
 2  group.  And one of the handouts that you have
 3  has interests on one side and concerns on the
 4  other side.
 5                 And why I present this to you is
 6  I think it's important that the Steering
 7  Committee keep these ideas in mind as we go
 8  through the process.  And I'm just going to
 9  pause for a moment and give you folks an
10  opportunity to read through it.
11                 Now it was just a small group of
12  about -- well, it was a fairly large group of
13  folks.  I think these interests and these
14  concerns are probably representative of the
15  general interests and concerns out there, and
16  things that we need to be keeping in mind as we
17  go through the process.
18                 We also took a look at our
19  charge which is the other handout, and made
20  some suggestion edits.  It's the same thing on
21  both sides.  One has the marked up track
22  changes on it and the other one is easier to
23  read.
24                 A couple of things that I want
25  to stress in this.  We want to make sure that
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 1  the Steering Committee understands that we see
 2  our charge as identifying what data need to be
 3  collected or need to be in hand, and not
 4  actually collecting those data.  That would be
 5  a much larger effort and would take more time
 6  than we have in this plan.  So we wanted to
 7  make clear that that was our expectation of
 8  what we're being asked to do.
 9                 The significant edits that we
10  made to this handout was including the idea of
11  an appropriate scale.  We had a lot of
12  discussion of scale, both temporal and spatial.
13  And the group felt -- it was unanimous, that
14  the group felt that the scale that we might be
15  looking at data could very well be different in
16  different parts of the state, both because of
17  different geographies and hydrology, and also
18  because of different problems.
19                 And that the refinement -- the
20  fineness of the data collection could be very
21  different in an area that had a lot of
22  problems, and in an area that didn't.  And one
23  of the things we wanted to have explicit
24  blessing from this group, that we have the
25  prerogative to vary the scale at which we are
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 1  assembling data depending on the issues at
 2  hand.
 3                 Is that something that you guys
 4  are all comfortable with?
 5                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Reaction
 6  to -- I see Margaret smiling.  Does that mean
 7  you're happy with that?
 8                 MARGARET MINER:  I'm thinking
 9  that's a complicated question to shoot right at
10  them -- and get a head nod.  Good work,
11  Virginia.
12                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  As I've said,
13  we put the language into our charge,
14  appropriate scale so that it could vary.
15                 JOE McGEE:  Oh, hi.  Joe McGee
16  joins.
17                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Hello Joe.
18                 JOE McGEE:  Hey, Jack.  Sorry
19  I'm late.
20                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  That's
21  okay.  Glad you're on.
22                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  The other
23  significant thing that we changed --
24                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Joe, we're
25  just getting an update from the science and
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 1  technical committee at this point.
 2                 JOE McGEE:  Great.
 3                 MICHAEL J. SULLIVAN:  And
 4  Virginia, so that that particular issue, is
 5  that the change that you're talking about in
 6  item two?
 7                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Well, it's in
 8  couple of places.  In item one there was an
 9  addition of an appropriate watershed scale.
10  Item two, it has appropriate scales in there,
11  also.  So we've put it in a couple of places.
12                 The other --
13                 MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  And if I
14  could just add, I think that's consistent with
15  even conversations we had at the policy
16  committee, was that the -- even the scale or
17  the level of detail or specificity of policies,
18  or where we're going, would differ on kind of
19  the nature of the problems or circumstances
20  that you're involving -- you're involved with.
21                 So I think that is consistent
22  with conversations we had that you may need
23  more data in some cases to get to that level
24  and the absolute recommendations may differ at
25  the end of today or choices may differ so it
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 1  makes sense.
 2                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  And the other
 3  significant change that we made in our charge
 4  was to add the demand side to the equation and
 5  focused primarily on the water availability
 6  side.  And we wanted to include the demand on
 7  the water resources.
 8                 So the details of this, you can
 9  certainly read at your leisure.  Those are just
10  the two things that -- well, particularly the
11  scale issue that we wanted to get out here as
12  soon as possible.  Because as we go in we
13  didn't want to get too far down the path if we
14  didn't know that that was acceptable to vary
15  our scales.
16                 ROBERT MOORE:  Virginia, the
17  first part of your question was, should the
18  committee only be evaluating the data, but not
19  collecting it.  Right?
20                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Right,
21  identifying what's needed.
22                 ROBERT MOORE:  And I assume that
23  that's consistent?
24                 MARGARET MINER:  What's needed
25  and where it is.
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 1                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  How we might
 2  get it, but not actually go about getting it.
 3                 MARGARET MINER:  So we are
 4  working on where it is.
 5                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  We also
 6  realized in going through the charge that we
 7  needed some clarification on some of the items.
 8  And if we can answer these today, fabulous.  If
 9  we can't, I understand.
10                 One is what the subcommittee's
11  role is going to be vis-a-vis the consultant
12  who is hired actually to write the plan.  I
13  could imagine scenarios across the whole
14  spectrum of, oh, the consultant saying, oh,
15  great this piece is already done for me.
16                 Or saying, wait a minute.
17  That's not the way I'd do it.  I'm not going to
18  even look at that, and any number of areas in
19  between.  So we would appreciate some
20  clarification on how you imagine that dance
21  will be happening.
22                 Also, we wanted to get some
23  input into how much authority we had to set
24  priorities or make recommendations.  Is this
25  something that you're looking to the science
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 1  and technical group to say, we need to do this
 2  before we do that?
 3                 This is higher priority.  This
 4  area is higher priority.  Do we, as a
 5  subcommittee, have the authority to be making
 6  those priorities?  Or do we just have to
 7  recommend something that this group then would
 8  decide on?  And you know, there are going to be
 9  variations of that.
10                 So Maureen is smiling.
11                 MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  I'm always
12  smiling.
13                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  And the third
14  thing that we would like some clarification on
15  is the term "economic benefits" was used in our
16  charge, and we weren't sure exactly what that
17  meant.
18                 Did that mean economic just in
19  the sense of agricultural or industry or power
20  facilities?  Or did it mean determining the
21  impacts of having or not having ample water to
22  develop economically in a particular area in
23  the state?
24                 So we weren't sure that -- the
25  first we're comfortable with.  The second we're
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 1  less comfortable with.  So again, that's very
 2  closely related to what some of the policy
 3  group might be talking about, but we'd
 4  appreciate input from the Steering Committee on
 5  those three points.  And I can share it --
 6  well, we have them in the transcript, but I can
 7  certainly share those with you as well.
 8                 And then the large question that
 9  I've heard a lot of people ask, what problem is
10  the plan attempting to address?  What questions
11  are we looking for answers to?  Because to a
12  certain extent what data are needed depends on
13  what questions are being asked.
14                 So personally my feeling is that
15  if we're only identifying data sources and
16  where we might find them we could go into the
17  overkill, because we haven't wasted much time
18  or energy.  If we identify some kind of data
19  that doesn't get used, well, we just, you know,
20  it's on the list.
21                 We just strike it off the list,
22  which is very different than if we were
23  actually collecting it.  So that would be
24  helpful to understand what people think the
25  problems are that the plan, and therefore the
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 1  data necessary will be addressing.
 2                 We have also started taking
 3  advantage of some of the expertise in the group
 4  and sharing information.  We had a presentation
 5  by David Murphy of Milone & MacBroom on the
 6  information that goes into the diversion plans.
 7  We're going to have a similar presentation of
 8  the data that goes in the water supply plans.
 9  So that we know where data have been assembled
10  and could be rolled into a larger plan.
11                 And then we spent some time
12  looking at the actual charge, what information
13  is needed.  And we have put together a draft
14  template of a table, a spreadsheet for
15  summarizing the data.  Obviously the data is
16  listed in one column, but some of the other
17  columns are, why do we need these data?
18                 How are they going to be used?
19  What is their priority?  Where they from?  Are
20  they available?  Are they not available?  Where
21  are the gaps?  How much would it cost in very
22  round, you know, high, medium and low to get
23  that information if it didn't exist?  And
24  comments, those types that we're going to try
25  to capture that in a fashion that would be very
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 1  useful.
 2                 We started the brainstorming
 3  activity and came up with a whole long list of
 4  things.  And one of the things that came out of
 5  that discussion was somebody said, okay.  Well,
 6  if the data exists and here's where they exist,
 7  but we're not sure that the data have the
 8  appropriate level of -- what's the word?  The
 9  refinement to actually be useful in this, in
10  this process.  So as we fill out the table
11  hopefully those kinds of questions, those kinds
12  of concerns will pop out of the process.
13                 So at this point after starting
14  the brainstorming of data necessary, we
15  assigned some homework that we would try to
16  organize the list of data that we were
17  creating.  And we decided to organize it
18  following the proposed table of contents for
19  the plan that was coming out of the other
20  states workgroup.  And that was just a format
21  that we wanted to see if that would work just
22  to help organize the types of data.
23                 And then also some of the
24  homework was for people to fill out as many of
25  the other columns as they could for whatever
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 1  data they were familiar with.  Some people were
 2  going to be more familiar with one type of data
 3  than another type of data.  And so as I said,
 4  we just got really the first column of what
 5  data we were looking at and assigned some
 6  homework assignments.
 7                 Another piece that we've been
 8  talking about is not the straight data, but the
 9  tools, the models that might be necessary to
10  help inform a water plan, recognizing that
11  those tools change over time.  And so I think
12  that our first task would be to identify what
13  type of model we would need.  And then perhaps,
14  say, examples of this type of model are PRMS or
15  whatever.
16                 But by the time somebody is
17  actually going to implement this, those might
18  change.  So we're not going to lock anybody
19  into, you've got to use these particular
20  models, but for what types of things.  So we
21  want to make sure that we're covering the
22  analytical piece of science and techno group
23  and not just the straight data piece.  And
24  that's where we're at.
25                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  A lot of
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 1  work.  A lot of things to digest.  Any
 2  reaction?
 3                 ROBERT MOORE:  I think we would
 4  all like to see that list of the data.  Then we
 5  might help put in some of the blanks on the
 6  other side, too.
 7                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  In another
 8  couple meetings we might be ready to share
 9  that.  We pretty much just started that process
10  of actually concretely writing things down
11  yesterday.  And so we need to live with it a
12  lot more.  But certainly it would be both
13  beneficial for your policy group, but also some
14  of you folks -- all of you folks could be --
15  could identify whole areas of things that we've
16  forgotten.
17                 Sam was at our first meeting,
18  and the very first piece of data that got
19  thrown out there.  You know, I come from the
20  technology side.  It never would have occurred
21  to me to say it was, what?  Demographics or
22  there was something like that.
23                 SAM GOLD:  Population
24  projections.
25                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Yeah, and
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 1  there's been some concerns expressed with how
 2  accurate are those population projections,
 3  which every -- all the water supply plans are
 4  dependent on.  So there could be other things
 5  that --
 6                 Oh, and then I should say one of
 7  the things that came up yesterday was
 8  collecting data of a whole different sort that
 9  isn't numbers so much, but areas, for instance,
10  of private wells that had been identified as
11  having either a contamination problem or a
12  whole area of the state.
13                 Well drillers now getting
14  requests to deepen wells, that those kinds of
15  identifying where the problems are could be a
16  layer that, overlaid with some of the other
17  things, could help set priorities in the
18  future, and so to make sure that that ancillary
19  kind of data are looked at as a valuable ways
20  of informing that whole process and not locking
21  ourselves just into numbers.
22                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Did you
23  want, like, a blessing today in terms of --
24                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  If you could
25  bless us today, that's fine.
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 1                 ANDREW LORD:  The Pope is in
 2  town.
 3                 MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  The Pope is
 4  around.
 5                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  A remote
 6  feed for the Pope, I'm sure he'd be glad to --
 7                 ROBERT MOORE:  He did ask us to
 8  solve climate change.
 9                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  That's
10  right.  But in terms of you wanted to look at
11  the items that you were working on and then
12  come up with your own goals.  Is that it?
13                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  No, we were
14  just -- we were suggesting changes to our
15  charge.
16                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.
17                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  The question
18  that I posed to the group is, do you understand
19  it?  And are you comfortable with it?  And as
20  we had that discussion there were some things
21  that people didn't understand and there were
22  some things that people weren't comfortable
23  with.  And so we've suggested some changes.
24                 So we would like you to take the
25  time to look at this and then tell us if our
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 1  edits are acceptable.  And as I said, the red
 2  is just the track changes and the other side is
 3  without the track changes.  It's the same.
 4  It's the same thing.
 5                 ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  And
 6  Virginia, it's your thought that this guidance
 7  of what the charge is to the group, that as we
 8  get closer to defining what the problem is we
 9  want the plan to solve, that this could evolve
10  again.
11                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Sure.
12                 ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  Because I
13  wouldn't want us to get so tied to subcommittee
14  charges to only find out they're solving a
15  different problem than we thought the statewide
16  water plan was going to solve.
17                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  I feel that
18  this whole process is evolving and that we're
19  all going to learn as we go and we might find,
20  you know, that we, not just my subcommittee,
21  but perhaps the whole process needs to take a
22  little bit of a different direction, and I
23  think that that's healthy.  I would not want us
24  to be locked into something if the
25  investigations that we do start telling us
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 1  something else.
 2                 DAVID LeVASSEUR:  And I agree.
 3  And Virginia, you know, that's sort of a good
 4  segue into your first question which is how
 5  would you see the consultant interacting with
 6  various groups.
 7                 I mean, I would think it would
 8  be absolutely necessary.  That they would be
 9  meeting with both workgroups and with the
10  Steering Committee on a regular basis, if no
11  other reason so that we can make sure that they
12  don't drift off course from what we envision as
13  being the ultimate goal of the plan.
14                 And quite frankly, that was kind
15  of the determining factor in me suggesting that
16  a function we needed was someone to ride hard
17  on them on a daily basis, because I think
18  that's above and beyond the project management
19  piece we've had before, which has pretty much
20  kept us on task, as opposed to a consultant.
21                 And so I would hope that
22  ultimately the consultant's charge would
23  include that level of interplay with both
24  workgroups as well as the Steering Committee as
25  a whole.
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 1                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Yeah.
 2                 LARRY BINGAMAN:  Virginia, can
 3  you give us a little bit of a flavor on your
 4  debate about economic benefits and where that
 5  discussion ranged, what the range of that
 6  discussion was?
 7                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  It started
 8  with a, what's this mean?  And as I said, some
 9  people interpreted that as just the commercial
10  industrial agricultural side of water use.
11  Obviously we have the water suppliers as a big
12  water use and that's got an economic component
13  to it, but the other, the other sectors where
14  there's money associated with water.
15                 And then we wondered whether it
16  really meant more the broader picture of how
17  would water availability in a particular area
18  affect the local economy, and whether there
19  wasn't enough water.  Would that constrain the
20  economic development in that part of the state?
21                 And so that's a very different
22  interpretation of economic benefits.  So we
23  just didn't understand what the word meant and
24  it became a question.
25                 LARRY BINGAMAN:  Because in the
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 1  bill it speaks to economic development.  It
 2  just says, economic development, which you know
 3  as you point out, can have all kinds of
 4  interpretations.  So did you come to a
 5  conclusion on that?  Or is that --
 6                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Nobody posed
 7  the question.
 8                 MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  And economic
 9  development benefits are referenced a couple
10  times in the bill.  And the other one talks
11  about -- and it's almost a sentence, but it's
12  worded a little bit differently.  So maybe it's
13  looking at what the underlying statute said and
14  see if that gives any direction, which
15  obviously is fairly subjective as that process
16  goes about.
17                 But you know, it talks about the
18  quantity and qualities available for public
19  water supply, health, economic, recreation and
20  environmental benefits on an regional scale.
21  Blah, blah, blah.
22                 So to me, that is the broader
23  economic benefits, health benefits, public
24  health benefits and whether that carries
25  through to the next session when it referred to
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 1  take into account the impacts of the plan,
 2  implementation of the plan, the public health,
 3  economic, public safety, environmental,
 4  ecological.  So makes me think it is a broader
 5  analysis than just --
 6                 DAVID LeVASSEUR:  I think it has
 7  to be broader because, quite frankly, it could
 8  have a negative economic development impact in
 9  certain regions of the state.
10                 If you wanted to introduce a
11  level of economic development and the scale
12  wasn't there to match and you had to bring in
13  infrastructure to that area you could actually
14  degrade the natural quality and might have an
15  impact on the recreational, on the water
16  quality and some of the other aspects.  So I
17  really think we've got to look at it in the
18  broadest of terms.
19                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  And looking
20  at it that way, what would you anticipate the
21  science and technical committee giving you to
22  inform that process?  What type of information?
23                 DAVID LeVASSEUR:  I will have to
24  chew on that.
25                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  We also had a
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 1  brief discussion yesterday about social
 2  engineering, which is a science in itself.  How
 3  do you get people to change habits?  Which I
 4  think if we started talking about conservation,
 5  which comes up many times in the bill, a lot of
 6  that may be people changing their habits.  How
 7  does that work?
 8                 And that's something that nobody
 9  that was there yesterday felt comfortable
10  addressing that, though I know there are people
11  doing research in that area.  So that's a
12  science.  Does that come under the -- under
13  this committee?
14                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.
15  Margaret and then Sam.
16                 MARGARET MINER:  Yes.  Real
17  quick.  There's practically no -- there's no
18  environmental concern here on this list?
19                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  You mentioned
20  that.  I'm sorry.
21                 MARGARET MINER:  Yeah, I've been
22  mentioning it.
23                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  I'm sorry.
24  Yes.
25                 MARGARET MINER:  There are lots
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 1  of environmental concerns, obviously, that this
 2  committee wants to address and is addressing,
 3  and will address.  And partly it's that I've
 4  had difficulty.  The nature conservancy thought
 5  they could help us, and then they can only
 6  maybe loan us someone for occasional
 7  consultation, or a scientist.
 8                 Just in the last few days Eileen
 9  Fielding at FRWA, and she's offered us -- and
10  she actually has a doctorate in fish biology.
11  So we are thinking that she, with the people --
12  oh, and a lot of people work for state
13  agencies.  And I'll say some of our best
14  biologists are working for different government
15  agencies and can't really, you know, come here.
16                 So I hope that will be better,
17  but we have a number of environmental concerns.
18  It's pretty obvious here, not from hostility,
19  but that there just weren't enough voices for
20  the fish and the turtles and the blue herons
21  and the canoeing -- just weren't there.  So
22  that I'm hoping that's something that will be
23  added in, and I'm sure it will be.
24                 Last point, we talk about what
25  data will we get and show you, water supply
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 1  plan data.  Yes, I used to get that and be able
 2  to work from it.  I went and checked.  Not only
 3  have I old un-redacted plans, but new heavily
 4  reacted plans.  But I looked at the work plans,
 5  the regional plans which are the old ones.
 6                 Most -- much to most of the key
 7  data you would need for planning is blacked
 8  out.  So I am hoping that -- Virginia has said,
 9  well, when we show that we could really need it
10  maybe people will change their mind.  Well, I
11  think the point is coming up that you have to
12  decide.
13                 Most of the people in this room
14  are the public.  You know, and it is the public
15  that cannot see that data.  So it's a critical
16  point.  What do we want to do about that?  I
17  know what I want to do, but what do you want to
18  do?
19                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Andrew?
20                 ANDREW LORD:  It might be
21  simplistic and premature, but I'm sort of
22  looking down the road at, you know, what is
23  this plan going to look like?  And I think that
24  we have to start putting some structure to it.
25                 And I'm not saying that people
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 1  aren't doing good work in evaluating all the
 2  issues, but it seems to me that we need to
 3  figure out, what the problems are that we need
 4  to solve right way?  And what are the problems
 5  that we need to serve midterm?  And what are
 6  the long-term things?  And I think each of
 7  those different situations have different data
 8  requirements, different science requirements.
 9                 Let's solve the real problems
10  first.  So I think that I'm looking forward to
11  the actual product and I think we should be
12  discussing about, how do we get there?  And you
13  know, I think that there really needs to be a
14  tiered structure on how we approach this stuff.
15  So that that's just my thoughts, for what
16  they're worth.
17                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  I would
18  agree with that.
19                 SAM GOLD:  Going back to that
20  economic development discussion and the sort of
21  lack of clarity as to exactly what's meant.  I
22  think it goes back to the policy subcommittee
23  as to, what are the priorities for economic
24  development in -- from the State's perspective?
25                 And should we be pursuing, let's
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 1  say, if there's assessment that finds that
 2  Connecticut is a relatively water-rich place,
 3  should our economic developments efforts be
 4  towards attracting businesses from places like
 5  California, which are not water-rich?  And
 6  trying to pursue economic development to take
 7  advantage of those opportunities?
 8                 Or should it be more about
 9  policies on what is compatible in different
10  parts of our state and what isn't compatible,
11  and leaving this general, larger economic
12  development strategy and priorities for the
13  state to sort of, you know, on its own, and
14  just keep this as a much more general level.  I
15  guess that's where the direction needs to come
16  from, I guess, somewhere else.
17                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Well, Joe
18  McGee, are you on the line?
19                 JOE McGEE:  I am.  I was going
20  to interrupt there, if I could say something?
21                 You know, the new state
22  commission, the permanent commission espoused
23  by the Legislature on economic competitiveness
24  has just had its first meeting.  I'm on it, and
25  in fact, cochairing it.
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 1                 And the critical piece that's
 2  come out of this commission I think is aligning
 3  state policy with economic growth and
 4  competitiveness.  So the question in my mind
 5  with water policy, both the supply of water,
 6  but also the voiding of water, sewage.  Does it
 7  impact economic growth in the state and in what
 8  way?
 9                 And that's a very broad
10  conception of the issue.  And I'm not saying
11  that economic growth trumps environmental
12  quality, but just what's the impact of state
13  water policy on the issue of growing either the
14  population of the state or the commercial base
15  of the state?  And I think that's a very
16  important question.
17                 You know, then going back to the
18  data issue.  How much water do we have?  How
19  water rich are we?  How accessible is it, but
20  are there impediments to its use that would
21  really slow, either slow population,
22  residential growth, or commercial growth?  I
23  think it would be good to know that.
24                 And we may say, we want to do
25  that for a different -- for another reason.
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 1  You know, I mean, there may be reasons in
 2  there.  But I think this issue of Connecticut's
 3  slow growth, the data again, you know, we're
 4  just are really growing very slowly.
 5                 And the Legislature has
 6  basically said to this new permanent commission
 7  on economic competitiveness, we want to look at
 8  a growth strategy.  How do we grow the
 9  Connecticut economy?  What state policies are
10  preventing that from happening?  And that's a
11  critical question I think that the water policy
12  side also has to address.
13                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Sam?
14                 JOE McGEE:  And I think just to
15  add the conservation issue in.  On water
16  conservation, my own view on this is -- we're
17  looking in Stamford.  The cost of water here is
18  going to increase.  We're going to have to pump
19  more of it from Bridgeport into Stamford.  So
20  the cost of pumping, piping, all of that will
21  grow.
22                 And then the question is, for
23  instance, on cooling towers, just basic data.
24  How much water is being -- pristine water is
25  being run through cooling towers in the city of
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 1  Stamford?  That's a really important question.
 2  And if that was reduced dramatically would you
 3  have to increase the infrastructure to pipe and
 4  pump water to Stamford?  I'd like to know the
 5  answer to that.  I think that's a really
 6  important thing for us to understand.
 7                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Excellent
 8  points.
 9                 Sam?
10                 SAM GOLD:  And Joe McGee just
11  touched upon the other observation of economic
12  development, is that how much does the
13  conservation of our aquifers, of our state
14  lands, but also the water company lands, add to
15  the quality of life to Connecticut that makes
16  us economically competitive?  So I think the
17  conservation side needs to be considered as
18  having economic development value as well.
19                 JOE McGEE:  Yeah.  And Jack, let
20  me throw a really wild one out, just to be wild
21  for a second to see water as a resource, like
22  Texas has oil.
23                 If we were to supply Suffolk
24  County with 50 percent of its water could we do
25  that over an extended period of time?  And
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 1  would that be an economic resource to the
 2  taxpayers of the State of Connecticut, just
 3  like oil is to Texas?
 4                 I don't think we answered that
 5  question.  I don't know how much.  Do we really
 6  know how much water we have?  How would we
 7  replenish it?  And could we make that kind of
 8  commitment to a water -- to an economy, Suffolk
 9  County, Long Island, that has a water problem,
10  a water supply, water quality problem?  And
11  that may sound like a wild idea, but I think we
12  need to know that, because then we know more
13  about our own water supply and how we want to
14  use it.
15                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Margaret.
16                 MARGARET MINER:  Hello.  Hi.
17  It's Margaret Miner.
18                 A quick observation.  I don't
19  know how much water we could give away out of
20  state, but I'm pretty sure that we would fairly
21  quickly reach the point that we could not hold
22  onto our current standard for potable water.
23                 So -- which is, you know, we
24  don't use any of our large rivers.  Our
25  groundwater is somewhat compromised in too many
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 1  places.  And so a lot would depend -- I
 2  understand what you mean.  Is it the kind of
 3  resource we could use like oil and have some
 4  revenue?
 5                 And so I think we would have to
 6  give up something.  We would have to give up
 7  some of our standards for upland streams and
 8  probably our standard -- I'm looking at Ellen
 9  to see if she agrees.  I think it would put at
10  risk our standard for potable water if we're
11  looking at large-scale water exports.
12                 JOE McGEE:  Right.  Now,
13  Margaret if that's true then we probably
14  wouldn't want to do it.  But where is the data
15  on that?
16                 ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  And so
17  just to -- Joe, I really kind of like your
18  creative thinking.  I think that there's a lot
19  of -- to me, this is kind of where the heart of
20  the water plan should get to.
21                 So there's, you know, out of all
22  the water supply that our public water
23  utilities move throughout the state of
24  Connecticut every day, how much of that is
25  being used for humans to consume?  And I think
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 1  that's a fairly low percentage.
 2                 So if we look at all the other
 3  uses -- I've heard vaguely, like, 80 percent of
 4  the rest of the water is for other things,
 5  industrial use, wastewater generation.  Could
 6  we create some opportunities to protect for the
 7  public consuming only the highest water
 8  quality, when we're actually talking about
 9  consuming it, drinking it, bathing in it,
10  preparing food in it?
11                 But then are there other
12  categories of water that that high-quality
13  water doesn't need to be used for?  And what is
14  the opportunity for Connecticut?
15                 MARGARET MINER:  And we want to
16  send that bad water to Suffolk County.
17                 JOE McGEE:  Right.  But I'm just
18  using Suffolk County, you know, it's kind of a
19  crazy example, but just to make a point.  But
20  the way you just described it, exactly.
21                 ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  Right.
22                 JOE McGEE:  That then becomes an
23  interesting thing to understand about choices
24  we can make.
25                 ROBERT MOORE:  But we've been
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 1  faced with that issue before, Joe, in terms of
 2  whether or not the Connecticut River should
 3  supply more water to Boston.  And you know,
 4  their general public reaction was no.
 5                 And you know, if we were going
 6  to look at Suffolk County, you would look at
 7  the Connecticut River, but they could also look
 8  at the Hudson.  And you know, the Hudson has a
 9  little bit more PCBs than the Connecticut.  But
10  you know, it's not a, you know, why wouldn't
11  they -- New York would tend to look to New
12  York, I would think, before they would look to
13  Connecticut.  But there's other political
14  issues and policy issues.
15                 ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  But could we
16  look at Long Island Sound for power generation?
17                 ROBERT MOORE:  We do.
18                 ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  Could we do
19  more of that?  I think we don't always know
20  when we talk about data and data needs.  We can
21  talk about water supply as a big umbrella, but
22  we don't really break out where does that water
23  supply go.  Who uses it?
24                 JOE McGEE:  Yeah.  That's what
25  I'm after.  In other words, let's not say we
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 1  sell it to Suffolk.  Let's say we become the
 2  water bottling capital of America.
 3                 Let me just use another crazy
 4  example.  Do we encourage the growth of water
 5  bottling and supply?  What would that look
 6  like?  Is that something that would be part of
 7  an economic development strategy.  Do we want
 8  bottling companies that use our water to locate
 9  in Connecticut because we have an abundance of
10  a natural resources?  I don't know how to
11  answer that question right now.
12                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Virginia?
13                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  If we were to
14  move forward with adopting the SSWUDS database
15  and if it were used to its fullest extent we
16  could get the answers to some of the questions
17  that Joe is asking.
18                 For example, if a water supplier
19  entered into the system, the volume of water
20  being sold to the Southington ski area to make
21  snow, or to this industry that has a cooling
22  tower, then those data could be pulled out of
23  the system summed up by basin or however you
24  want to do it.
25                 And you would have the numbers
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 1  of how much of our water is going to these
 2  other uses that might be able to use reclaimed
 3  water, or class B water, or something else.  So
 4  you would have to fully populate the database,
 5  but those answers are in those water use data.
 6                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Maureen?
 7                 MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  But I think
 8  even when you have those answers then you have
 9  a whole other layer of questions about how do
10  provide for those uses given the infrastructure
11  needs and all the other things that are there?
12  And is the cost of doing that greater, or does
13  it create other problems than we're solving by
14  it?
15                 And the ability to separate out
16  those big ones?  Yeah, you could do it, but day
17  to day, do I even know within a facility what
18  those people use the water for, what's, quote,
19  potable and what's not?  I couldn't even tell
20  you that and I don't think we expect our
21  customers to tell us that.
22                 But I think, well, it always
23  sounds like a great idea.  Only use public, you
24  know, the potable water, the highest quality
25  water is for drinking water purposes.  To
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 1  actually do that is a very challenging -- both
 2  to quantify it and then how to implement it, it
 3  creates a whole other set of issues.
 4                 LARRY BINGAMAN:  You're talking
 5  about shipping water.  We actually have a
 6  problem in Southeast Connecticut which has
 7  annual shortages of water.  And it would take a
 8  huge pipeline in order to ship water from the
 9  western part of the state to the eastern part
10  of the state to satisfy their water needs that
11  they have, and have every summer.
12                 So we have issues within the
13  state that we need to solve that a lot of money
14  would have to be dedicated to in order to build
15  the pipeline and the infrastructure in order to
16  make that happen along the shoreline.  And I
17  know the federal government was looking at how
18  you steel up the coast of Connecticut and
19  provide for some redundancy in water supplies,
20  and those funds I think dried up.
21                 But those are the kind of issues
22  we need to be looking at as well before we
23  start thinking about shipping it to -- out of
24  state, for instance, because I think we have
25  needs inside the state in order to balance that
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 1  supply and demand, which goes back to the
 2  problem that we're trying to solve.
 3                 I'd also like to comment on
 4  Sam's population issue.  We had a consultant
 5  work on a water supply plan, and interestingly
 6  they had the population increasing out 10, 15
 7  years.  And I said, where did that come from?
 8  I said, we're not the Florida of the Northeast
 9  here.
10                 So let's make sure if we're
11  looking at population data that we have a
12  consultant that really looks at this
13  realistically and challenges some of the
14  assumptions.  Because the response was, well,
15  gee, we got that from some of the government
16  agencies here in the state.  Okay.  Fine.
17  Let's question it and make sure it makes sense,
18  because that's a key component to this planning
19  process.
20                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  We
21  initiated a lot of dialogue and conversation
22  here.  Do you want us to take action or do you
23  want us to digest what we said today?
24                 Because actually I'm going to
25  take a five-minute break and give our
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 1  transcriber a little break -- if anybody needs
 2  a break.
 3                 And then we'll come back and
 4  we're going to the stream flow, Chris Bellucci.
 5  Chris, you're going to do the streamflow
 6  update.  And then we're going to have
 7  out-of-state's group update and a state water
 8  plan website update and then a couple other
 9  things.
10                 So why don't we just digest and
11  kind of keep under consideration what Virginia
12  has proposed today.  And then what we can do,
13  if you have any thoughts, if you could get them
14  to myself or Gail, and we can get that over to
15  you and we can move forward.  But I think we
16  have, again both committees did some great work
17  already.
18                 So let's take a five-minute
19  break.
20                 (Whereupon, a recess was taken
21  from 2:47 p.m. to 3:05 p.m.)
22                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.
23  Come back to order, please.
24                 So the next item on the agenda
25  this afternoon is an update on the streamflow
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 1  classification.  And we have Chris Bellucci
 2  from DEEP with us.  Thank you for being with
 3  us.  Appreciate it.
 4                 CHRIS BELLUCCI:  Thanks for
 5  having us.  So I am Chris Bellucci.  I work
 6  with DEEP and I'm in the water monitoring
 7  assessment program at DEEP.  And I was involved
 8  with the science and technical workgroup,
 9  similar to what you guys have here for the
10  development of the streamflow regulations.  So
11  I'll talk to you a little bit about that this
12  afternoon.
13                 So a little bit about what I
14  have here on the slides for you, a little bit
15  of brief history and background about the
16  development of the reg itself.  I'll talk about
17  the classes and standard, which is really
18  critical, sort of, for moving the regulation
19  forward.
20                 I'll talk a little bit about the
21  process and schedule that we've been going
22  through and how we've been working through
23  that.  I'll talk a little bit about the release
24  rules and what the releases are required
25  downstream of reservoirs.  And then kind of put
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 1  our thoughts in how this might relate to what
 2  you all are working here on the state water
 3  plan.  And then finally if we have time we'll
 4  entertain some questions.
 5                 So this process really started
 6  in 2005 with Public Act 05-142.  It basically
 7  directed the then DEP Commissioner to adopt
 8  regulations for steamflows that apply to all
 9  rivers and streams, be based on the best
10  available science, and balance human and
11  ecological needs.
12                 That process, as I mentioned, it
13  started in 2005.  And basically the way it went
14  was we had three work groups, a science and
15  tech workgroup, a policy workgroup and then,
16  sort of, a workgroup that oversaw that.  And it
17  took a number of years to sort of work that
18  process.
19                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Chris, not
20  to interrupt you.  I was just was whispering in
21  Elin's ear here.  I can remember being at
22  the -- this is ten years ago, we're talking
23  folks.
24                 CHRIS BELLUCCI:  Yeah.
25                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  And I can
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 1  remember being at the first meeting in December
 2  of 2005 in Gina McCarthy's office, now the EPA
 3  administrator.  So you know, we're getting
 4  frustrated with this process, but this has also
 5  taken a very long time.  So --
 6                 CHRIS BELLUCCI:  Yeah, and
 7  there's a lot of talk about when it comes to
 8  water.  Right?  And it's funny you say that
 9  because I had -- I was looking at some of the
10  slides that I had and I had a picture of my son
11  who was -- I used in one of the graphics and he
12  was -- that was a long time ago.  Now he's,
13  like, 16.
14                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Right.  So
15  sorry to interrupt.
16                 CHRIS BELLUCCI:  No, that's
17  fine.  And actually that's the picture right
18  there down in the corner.
19                 So -- and really when we talk
20  about, you know, how long it takes to kind of
21  discuss these things and talk about it, it's
22  really all about the balance.  Right?  You
23  know, there's lots of different uses of water.
24  We all have our heart in this and so our
25  discussions become vigorous, shall I say?  We
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 1  have -- water is very important to the state
 2  and you know, that's the reason why these
 3  things take so long.
 4                 But one of the things I wanted
 5  to talk about is sort of some of the
 6  foundational material that became part of the
 7  regulation and how we went about defining
 8  important stream flows for Connecticut and what
 9  became what's contained in the regulation.  And
10  a lot of it goes back to the science that Jon
11  gave us a really good overview on earlier this
12  afternoon.
13                 You know, basically if we didn't
14  have that type of information it would have
15  been very hard to get to this process, because
16  as you'll see here on the bullets that I have,
17  the natural hydrograph, you know, that, that
18  natural flow, it was an important concept.  And
19  we always wanted to strive for what would be
20  natural, but we recognize that, you know,
21  obviously the more water we use for humans the
22  more we alter that hydrograph.  And then as
23  that hydrograph gets altered we affect the
24  aquatic life in the rivers and streams.
25                 And there was also a recognition
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 1  that, you know, this seasonal flow variation
 2  that you've seen in some of Jon's slides,
 3  that's very important to biological processes
 4  and what happens to critters.  So those, those
 5  two sort of concepts became a critical part of
 6  the development of the reg.
 7                 And this is touching upon again
 8  some of what Jon showed, and hopefully set me
 9  up nicely.  And this is a flow duration curve.
10  And it basically shows you that, you know, high
11  flows occur on sort of this left-hand part of
12  the curve.  And then low flows are down there.
13  And that it became, like I said, a really
14  important concept.  We wanted to sort of mimic
15  that in streams, because that's what occurs
16  naturally.
17                 And what's really sort of neat
18  is that, you know, we could -- if you take a
19  location and kind of just observe it through
20  pictures you can kind of get a flavor for
21  what's going on.  And I'll show you a bunch of
22  pictures, and these are all from the same
23  location.
24                 So you know, that's a picture
25  of, obviously, a high flow.  And then we can


BCT Reporting LLC







Page 108


 1  take the same location and kind of look at it
 2  under sort of at median or sort of average type
 3  flow.  And then you could take that same
 4  location and look at under a lower.  Obviously
 5  very different, very different to the organisms
 6  and very important for a sort of foundational
 7  idea in the regulation.
 8                 So that kind of brought the
 9  working group to the idea of a bio period.  And
10  simply what that means is coupled with the
11  variation in flow there are these biological
12  processes that sort of occur in streams.  And
13  this is sort of a schematic of what eventually
14  became the bio periods in the reg.
15                 And it kind of shows you during
16  higher flows we kind of broke it up into
17  chunks, into months.  December through March is
18  sort of the overwintering period.  And a lot of
19  this had to do with -- we coined, sort of, fish
20  as the surrogate to the organisms that we
21  represented.  So a lot of these terms sort of
22  refer to what fish do in streams, but it's sort
23  of a surrogate for the aquatic life in general.
24                 We know that in the spring and
25  in the period March to May, you know, that the
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 1  flows get high.  And that's natural for the
 2  flows to get high.  We get snow melt and the
 3  flows get naturally high and that's an
 4  important process for streams to process.  And
 5  then as we sort of head into the summer months
 6  we have important biological processes with
 7  fish spawning.
 8                 Clupeid just refers to a type of
 9  fish.  It's the herring.  And then other fish
10  that are resident fish and they start to spawn.
11  And then we sort of get to sort of crunch time
12  in the summer when the flows in the streams get
13  low and -- but it's sort of an important time
14  because that's when the critters are getting
15  big and growing.  And then for some of the fish
16  in the fall is an important time.  So you know
17  again, recognizing that there's different flows
18  and different things that happen that affect
19  the organisms in the streams.
20                 So that sort of became the
21  baseline, if you will, for developing the
22  streamflow classes and the standards that go
23  with the classes.  So here again, you see the
24  natural -- the hydrograph represented on the Y
25  axis.  And very similar to sort of conceptually
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 1  up, up in the upper left-hand corner is sort of
 2  the natural flow condition.  And as you get
 3  down to the lower right you see things get
 4  altered as habitat gets altered.
 5                 So class one is sort of the
 6  natural condition, as natural as we get.  And
 7  we kind of try to focus that in simply that's
 8  rivers for river fish.  And as we go down you
 9  see there's alteration as we start to
10  incorporate human uses to the streamflow
11  classes.
12                 So how do we integrate all this
13  information together?  It's sort of the key,
14  sort of I think, foundational things that came
15  out of it.  That because there is this
16  variation in flow and the organisms need
17  different things, and human uses vary over
18  time, not all streams and rivers in the state
19  are the same.
20                 So it may seem obvious, but you
21  know, it took us a number of years to get down
22  to that and kind of all agree on sort that
23  important point.  It's not possible to take all
24  the rivers back to pristine.  We are sort of
25  part of the system and, you know, where we have
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 1  a role in altering it.
 2                 You need the variability to
 3  incorporate the seasonal flows and patterns and
 4  incorporate that with human needs.  And I think
 5  the stream needs the variability and obviously
 6  we have different demands as humans, that we
 7  have different needs at different times of the
 8  year.
 9                 So what the standards and
10  classes do is they sort of define who needs to
11  comply and what is needed.  And then it sort of
12  has a schedule on when the compliance comes
13  into play, and sort of describes that
14  variability that's needed through the different
15  release rules.
16                 I talk a little bit about the
17  procedures that we used to go about
18  classifying, so now we have the classes one,
19  two, three, four.  And the regulation spells
20  out the factors that we use to go about and
21  classify the streams.  And there's 18 factors,
22  and I'll talk a little bit more about that in a
23  bit, but basically it's we assembled GIS
24  layers.
25                 Some of the important ones that
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 1  really affect flow are diversions, dams,
 2  impervious cover, and returns flow.  And then
 3  there's a bunch of other factors and I'll show
 4  that in a bit.  And we build this big GIS, put
 5  the proposed streamflow classes up on a map and
 6  consult with the State Department of Public
 7  Health.
 8                 And after doing that we go to a
 9  public participation process.  It's A 90-day
10  process that's spelled out in the reg, take
11  comments and then develop a decision there.
12  And then finally that final classification
13  becomes adopted by DEEP.
14                 A little bit about the factors.
15  I mentioned the hydrologic stressors in the
16  previous slide, the impervious land covered
17  dams, diversions and return flow.  There are
18  also what we call, certainty factors, or what I
19  refer to as, certainty factors.  They are
20  related to public water supply, so downstream
21  of existing water supply reservoirs.
22                 The way the regulation reads, it
23  says they cannot be a class one or a class two,
24  as it does for intersection of level A aquifers
25  and those proposed public water supply with
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 1  significant investment.  So those are sort of
 2  certainty factors because it's really spelled
 3  out on the reg on what they can and can't be.
 4                 And then there's additional
 5  factors that relate to a variety of things,
 6  potential water supply needs, planned land use,
 7  plants and animals, a bunch of different for
 8  fish things for fish.  Wild and scenic areas,
 9  reference USGS gauges, and then sort of any
10  other additional factors that might be relevant
11  to the process.
12                 So here's a little snapshot of
13  where we are.  You see the Thames, Pawcatuck
14  and southeast coastal that has been completed
15  and our streamflow classes have been adopted.
16  The south-central coast, we're in the process.
17  We just got through with our public process for
18  that and we are in the process of evaluating
19  the comments that we got on that.
20                 So we hope to be done with that
21  soon, hopefully by the end of the year.  And
22  then we'll move on to the other bases, the
23  Connecticut Housatonic, Hudson and southwest
24  coast.  So we're sort of taking a watershed
25  approach to it.
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 1                 A little bit about
 2  applicability, what is regulated.  The
 3  regulation really speaks to dams that impound
 4  or divert water, or stream systems that affects
 5  the flow of water in such a system.  And what
 6  that means is it's basically we're not talking
 7  about groundwater.  It's really streams below
 8  dams that impound or divert water.
 9                 There are a bunch of exemptions
10  that are spelled out in the regulation.  A few
11  of them are listed here, or some of the key
12  ones are listed here.  Permitted diversions,
13  dams regulated by FERC, flood control dams,
14  recreational impoundments.  So your everyday
15  run of river recreational impoundment is not
16  regulated.
17                 Dams discharging to tidal
18  streams and dams with small watersheds.  You
19  know, if it has a very small watershed and
20  naturally yields very low water, then it's
21  exempt from the regulation.
22                 And then there are a bunch of,
23  sort of, offramps that are incorporated into
24  the regulation such as drought, public water
25  supply margin and safety.  Other considerations
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 1  that say, like, if these things happen and it
 2  gets really critical we can -- we have other
 3  options and decisions to make under the
 4  regulation.
 5                 And there are provisions also
 6  for ultimate releases, variance and
 7  site-specific plans if folks choose to go down
 8  that route.  And those are very explicitly
 9  stated in the reg as to what information is
10  needed to sort of go down that route to have a
11  variance for a site-specific plan.
12                 So this is kind of what the
13  release looks like.  Class one is essentially
14  free flowing.  A class two release, you have to
15  have 75 percent of what the natural inflow is.
16  And then class three is where it starts to get
17  a little bit more complicated and incorporates
18  the ideas that I was talking about earlier of
19  different releases during different periods of
20  time to sort of match up with the bio period
21  and what's going on with the aquatic organisms
22  in the stream.
23                 So here you'll see different
24  releases and the queue just refers to different
25  flows on the flow duration curve, what I
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 1  mentioned earlier.  And thanks to our good
 2  partners at USGS we have a computer application
 3  through thier steam stats website where for any
 4  location in the state you can go in and
 5  calculate what these queue flows are so people
 6  can actually comply with the reg and understand
 7  what the release actually is.
 8                 And then class four is basically
 9  to release the maximum extent practicable and
10  it's sort of a site-specific evaluation.
11                 So the universe of -- we took a
12  look at sort of what's regulated under on the
13  regulation and then we kind of evaluated that
14  in our databases.  We have 181 reservoirs.
15  Some of them are active.  Some of them are
16  inactive, and the inactive ones are exempt
17  until they become active.
18                 And then you, kind of, if you
19  follow the left-hand side there's a bunch that
20  are exempt under the reg for the reasons, some
21  of the reasons I stated earlier.  And then
22  there's 23 that have to make that more complex
23  class three level bio period type release.  And
24  then there's 37 that have to sort of do what
25  we're referring to as the minimal rearing and
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 1  growth release.  So that's sort of to the de
 2  minimus release.  And the reasons for that are
 3  sort of spelled out in the reg.
 4                 So some thoughts on how this
 5  sort of relates to, you know, what this
 6  workgroup is working on, the state water plan.
 7  I think when we -- as we go down this road
 8  we're developing with GIS and a map with
 9  underlying data that identifies, you know,
10  streamflow goals that reflect human use and
11  ecological goals.  It's sort of the charge of
12  what this regulation process was.
13                 It integrates existing water
14  uses, existing stream conditions and it also
15  accounts in a bunch of ways for future areas
16  targeted for water supply development.  So
17  we're down this road a little bit.
18  Approximately 40 percent of the state has been
19  classified already.
20                 We're well underway to try to,
21  you know, our technology is getting a little
22  bit better so we're getting a little bit
23  quicker at it in the GIS processing of it.  So
24  we're hoping to speed it along a little bit, if
25  we can.  You know, this provides sort of future
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 1  releases for these streams and with firm
 2  planning targets for water suppliers using, you
 3  know, these water registrations.
 4                 And finally, it also identifies
 5  through the classification -- because remember
 6  that class ones are some of the highest quality
 7  streams and the more naturally flowing ones.
 8  That identifies that on the map probably for
 9  the first time.  We've never had it on a
10  statewide basis where can look at this and say,
11  okay, these are the highest quality naturally
12  flowing waters.
13                 So I wanted to sort of bring in
14  this concept.  It's sort of -- this process
15  mimics somewhat of the water quality
16  classifications, and I know many of you are
17  familiar with the water quality classifications
18  that we have for the state.  And it breaks it
19  up into different categories and in this case
20  we use A, AA and B.  And where we can go ahead
21  and map the water quality classifications and
22  different things you can and can't do to the
23  different classes of water quality.
24                 And I think that most of us
25  would agree that this system has sort of
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 1  brought us a long way in making the water
 2  quality better in the state.  It's been used
 3  to, I mean, you could think back to how the
 4  water was in the sixties and look at it now.
 5  And I think everyone would agree that, as a
 6  whole, the water quality in the state is much
 7  better.
 8                 So we can use sort of that
 9  parallel and say that we're kind of on a path
10  to do that for water quantity.  And we're only
11  a portion done with the state of that.  As you
12  see, this is what's been done so far and gone
13  through the process.  You know, and we will --
14  the south-central costal will have another
15  chunk over here that will be done.  And then
16  we'll have the remaining part of the state
17  done.
18                 But you know, having seen the
19  water quality map you can sort of visualize how
20  this might look with water -- with the
21  streamflow classifications.  And it seems like
22  this is a logical piece of information that you
23  could use for your planning and discussions
24  here with your groups.
25                 So with that, there is a link
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 1  through, or at least a link to the website that
 2  has everything you wanted to know about the
 3  streamflow process including the regulation
 4  development and a lot of the comments that have
 5  come in over those number of years.
 6                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  A long
 7  process.
 8                 CHRIS BELLUCCI:  There's a lot
 9  of information on there.  And you know, I
10  encourage, if you want to find out more about
11  it, to go there.  And I would be happy to take
12  questions if there are questions.
13                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thanks
14  Chris.  Excellent overview.  It's been a lot of
15  work and you've done a great job.  A lot of
16  emotion attached to streamflow as well.
17                 Yes?
18                 SAM GOLD:  When will the south
19  central be completed?  I know you just started
20  the process.
21                 CHRIS BELLUCCI:  So we are
22  almost done.  We are through the process of --
23  we headed out for public notice.  We took
24  comment.  The comment period is over, so we're
25  in the process now of looking at it, evaluating
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 1  the comments and, you know, respond to the
 2  comments.  And like we've told people all
 3  along, we welcome comments.
 4                 You know, the initial
 5  classification is largely a GIS exercise, but
 6  we need people, you know, out there in the
 7  trenches to tell us when we're not right on
 8  some of this.  And we have, you know, we get
 9  really good comments in and we're willing to
10  correct it when we're not, and that's sort of
11  what we're doing now.
12                 And I was just having a
13  conversation with Jon in the back that, you
14  know, a couple of things where, you know, the
15  GIS is off a little and we've got to go back
16  and correct it.  So that's sort of where we're
17  at, and hopefully by the end of the year the
18  south-central coastal will be done.
19                 SAM GOLD:  And just a follow-up
20  on that.  Since you have eastern, the eastern
21  portion of Connecticut done and you have south
22  central done, will the completion of the other
23  regions in Connecticut be faster of other
24  watersheds?
25                 CHRIS BELLUCCI:  I think so.  I
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 1  mean, I can say that, from a, at least the
 2  technology standpoint, we're getting better at
 3  it.  We have a really great person working on
 4  this, Mary Becker.  She's fantastic at GIS.
 5  And as we go through this she's doing all kinds
 6  of neat tricks to make this better, a better
 7  process and, like, automating a lot of the
 8  steps that go.
 9                 Because as you've seen, there's
10  18 factors.  That's a lot to incorporate into
11  sort of a spatial analysis.  And we're getting
12  better at it and I think we can probably speed
13  it up a little bit.
14                 SAM GOLD:  What might be done
15  during the time horizon of this planning
16  process?  And so south central will be done at
17  the end of this year.
18                 CHRIS BELLUCCI:  Right.
19                 SAM GOLD:  What is up next?
20                 CHRIS BELLUCCI:  So I will just
21  give you my thoughts.  I think we could
22  probably perhaps try to tackle the rest of the
23  three basins together.  I'm just saying this
24  sort of off the cuff.
25                 I guess, I think the technology
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 1  is sort of there that we can do that.  We'll
 2  have to have discussions as to, you know, if
 3  that's the best thing, you know, workload-wise
 4  for the department to do that.  But I think
 5  we're getting to the point where we might be
 6  able to do that.
 7                 So you know, and if we were to
 8  do that it would take a little bit longer than
 9  if we just did one basin.  But if I had to
10  guess, you know, I would say a year and a half,
11  maybe two, and then we'd be done within the
12  state.
13                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Margaret?
14                 MARGARET MINER:  By the way,
15  it's a fabulously sophisticated map.  It's
16  really fun to use.  However, what we like to do
17  is to tell local people, here's what DEEP has
18  done.  Go out and check it and if you see
19  something wrong, right them.
20                 Our people, you know, that are
21  members or in our network, there was only one
22  person I think who really knew the watershed,
23  you know, up and down well enough to actually
24  verify what was in the map.  And I think she
25  had a couple of corrections for you.
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 1                 And I was just talking to Rob.
 2  The three areas where I had difficulty and I
 3  just didn't know what to tell people is, on key
 4  points can you get the exact location?  And
 5  that frequently is where a stream either abuts
 6  or crosses into either a level A aquifer area,
 7  or a proposed well field.
 8                 I asked on my own.  I said,
 9  well, Tony, who does our mapping, tell me, you
10  know, how can I tell our members where they can
11  click on and then they can walk out, you know,
12  and take a look and see is this right?  So
13  that's where he couldn't come up with it.
14                 The next verify, you know,
15  verifiability problem was some of your factors.
16  And I think you really did a good job, but
17  factors like impervious surface.  I frequently
18  heard this, people say they've got the
19  impervious surface wrong for my town.  Not just
20  you, many times different groups.  Okay?
21                 So they see a certain impervious
22  surface thing on your map, a grading.  Where
23  can they go?  And I think it might be clear,
24  but can you tell people where they can go to
25  see where this came from?  And then if they
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 1  feel it's wrong they can speak to clear who,
 2  you know, or whoever.
 3                 And the third thing where we
 4  couldn't verify is, are areas where water
 5  companies said they had an interest, maybe had
 6  made a significant investment.  So I said, do
 7  you have records of what those significant
 8  investments were.  Have they bought the land?
 9  Have they surveyed it?  Are the talking about a
10  lease with the owner or what?  And we couldn't.
11  That was another area where verifiability
12  didn't go very far.
13                 So it's a real problem for us.
14  We can't go out and verify much.  We really
15  need to be able to tell people what's that last
16  layer they can go to and find out what the
17  facts are, what documents were used, or what
18  other databases or GIS layers were used.
19                 So I just have to emphasize it's
20  a very interesting map.  You can play with it
21  for days, but it's really good.  But I think it
22  could be made better so people could verify and
23  question and make corrections in their own
24  towns, their own little streams, and on their
25  own watersheds.
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 1                 CHRIS BELLUCCI:  That's a good
 2  point, Margaret.  If you, especially if you
 3  have comments like that and as long as
 4  technologically we can do it we're more than
 5  happy to try to make it better.  I think it's
 6  gotten a little better from the last basin.
 7                 You know, we're happy to work
 8  with you to try to make better for the next
 9  basin, especially if you have specific comments
10  on things that you might like to see, you know.
11  Let's get together and talk about it.
12                 MARGARET MINER:  Okay.  Thank
13  you.
14                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Any
15  further questions?
16                 (No response.)
17                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Great.
18  Thank you very much, Chris.  Appreciate you
19  being with us.
20                 Okay.  Two more items we have,
21  just a very brief update on the website.
22                 ERIC LINDQUIST:  Yeah, Eric
23  Lindquist From OPM.
24                 Right now I'm currently in the
25  design phase for the website, which will be
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 1  dedicated specifically for the Water Planning
 2  Council.  I have a current first draft that
 3  actually some of you have seen already.  It's
 4  been circulated to one of the workgroups, the
 5  state's plan workgroup.
 6                 You know, as I continue to
 7  refine the design, you know, the main question
 8  that I keep wrangling is really what level of
 9  information should the website encompass?
10  Should it be specifically focused on the water
11  planning process?  Or should it go further than
12  that?  Should it go to, you know, water
13  management and data?
14                 So you know, that's something
15  that I'm interested in getting feedback on,
16  thoughts from anyone who might be interested in
17  providing any creative ideas on what we'll see.
18  I plan to go ahead and start the buildout phase
19  next month.  That would be my goal.
20                 When it's launched it will be a
21  pretty simplistic website and it will take some
22  time to build up the content.  So it will
23  probably start with a focus on the water
24  planning process and then maybe evolve from
25  there, but it's easier to design it right up
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 1  front and change it down the road.  So that's
 2  why I'm trying to get a good handle on it now.
 3                 So feel free to contact me if
 4  you have any creative thoughts or ideas or
 5  concerns.  My e-mail is
 6  eric.k.lindquist@CT.gov.  You can come see me
 7  after the meeting here, but that's where I'm at
 8  right now.
 9                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you
10  very much.  Any questions?
11                 Yes, Virginia?
12                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Eric, my beef
13  with many websites is that they aren't kept up
14  to date.  And the easiest way to have an
15  up-to-date website is have it be just a series
16  of links and have the responsibility for
17  updating stuff in the other places.
18                 Is that the approach you're
19  using?  Or is this something that you're being
20  allowed the time to dedicate to make sure that
21  it doesn't say, as the website said several
22  years ago, maybe two years later the website
23  said the drought will be lifted on June 7th,
24  you know, of 2012, and it's now 2014?  That
25  kind of thing.
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 1                 MARGARET MINER:  You've been
 2  reading our website.
 3                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yes.
 4  Point well taken.
 5                 ERIC LINDQUIST:  Yeah.  The way
 6  I see it, the website would probably have two
 7  different uses.  One will be probably more of
 8  an educational and information providing use.
 9  The kind of static stuff that stays mostly
10  static, needs to be updated occasionally.
11                 The other use would be more of a
12  coordinating thing and you know, update
13  providing service.  You know, a calendar
14  service, scheduling meetings, uploading
15  materials, minutes, agendas, whatnot.  That
16  will be more time consuming.
17                 You know, one thought I had to
18  go through and I have to talk with management
19  about this as far as I'm not sure how much time
20  of my schedule can be allotted to it, but one
21  possibility is it might be something that an
22  intern -- you could grab an intern and they
23  could be trained on how to maintain the website
24  on behalf of the Water Planning Council.
25                 Just an idea, but that's
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 1  something I will have to talk with my
 2  management at OPM about down the road on how we
 3  want to approach who's going to take on the
 4  responsibility for keeping it going.
 5                 DAVID LeVASSEUR:  And having
 6  said that, Eric and I, we've discussed this
 7  internally as we expect there to be a number of
 8  links to other sites.  So that those individual
 9  sites would have to be maintained by obviously
10  their main master server.  So it's a
11  combination.  It's going to be a hybrid.
12                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Any
13  further comments?
14                 (No response.)
15                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.
16  Keep me up to date on that.
17                 Yes, Maureen?
18                 MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  A couple of
19  things.  I think again the advisory group has
20  had, you know, had ideas of the outreach and
21  stuff.  And to the extent we can coordinate
22  with you, maybe if you came to an advisory
23  group meeting and used that as a place to
24  brainstorm on it, it might be a way to help.
25                 And we've done something at
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 1  Connecticut Water where we actually -- people
 2  can go in and sign up and you get e-mails, or
 3  text alerts, or something like that.  And
 4  there's a fair amount behind the scenes which I
 5  can't begin to explain, but that may be
 6  something that may be level of information
 7  outreach that we could add here that would
 8  be -- help that longer term.
 9                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you
10  for that.  Great.
11                 Okay.  Other states workgroup
12  report.  A lot of time and effort has gone into
13  this, I know.
14                 MATTHEW PAFFORD:  I will try to
15  be brief.  My name is Matt Pafford.  I'm with
16  the Office of Policy and Management.  I am
17  cochair with the other states plans workgroup.
18                 If you recall back at the
19  Steering Committee workshop we had submitted,
20  our group had submitted a report of basically a
21  compilation of the research we had done into
22  what other states had done regarding their
23  water plans.
24                 A topic of conversation, a focus
25  of that meeting is what we were calling a model
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 1  table of contents, which was included in our
 2  report.  The Steering Committee asked our group
 3  to go back and revise the table of contents to
 4  include several items that came up that you all
 5  felt should be included in that table of
 6  contents.  That was distributed by e-mail last
 7  week.  I have a couple of paper copies here.  I
 8  don't know if anyone needs any.
 9                 And so what our group has is
10  done is we've taken the original model table of
11  contents, we've gone back and added content
12  that was identified by the Steering Committee
13  at the workshop.  And then we've also
14  crosschecked the new document against Public
15  Act 14-163 and the elements, the key elements
16  that we had identified in our initial report.
17                 So we had a lot of discussion
18  lately within our own group as far as which
19  category this falls into.  Is it here?  Is it
20  there?  We feel that we have covered everything
21  in this document.  As the planning process
22  evolves some of those things may shift into
23  different departments.  They may change
24  slightly, but I think we've got everything in
25  here, but are certainly open to, you know,
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 1  communication as far as what goes where.
 2                 But I think at this point that's
 3  up to the Steering Committee to take those
 4  recommendations and to kind of take this as a
 5  starting point.  And as the process evolves
 6  fill in any gaps that may be, or alter things
 7  that may, you know, may not fit in the coming
 8  months.
 9                 I just want to take you through
10  real quickly this has two main parts to it.
11  The first part, which is the actual table of
12  contents.  It's a very simplified version, a
13  high-level version of what you expect to see.
14  When you open the document you look at the
15  table of contents.
16                 The second section, which we're
17  calling appendix A, is the annotated table of
18  contents.  What that does is takes the main
19  sections and adds what we have determined to be
20  some suggested content that could be in there.
21  This is not the end-all be-all.  It's not
22  intended to be all inclusive.  It's really
23  based on the research that we have done and
24  said -- and that's based on the sections we've
25  identified, the important elements that we've
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 1  identified and the research that we've done.
 2  Here's what we think could or should be
 3  included in there.
 4                 And again, as this process
 5  evolves that may change, but we're hoping that
 6  this will be a good starting point for the
 7  process from here on out.
 8                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  This is an
 9  incredible amount of work that this group has
10  done and I thank you and commend you for it.  I
11  mean, you sift through these plans and you were
12  given to look over them and I think you came up
13  with a great product here.
14                 Larry?
15                 LARRY BINGAMAN:  I would echo
16  that.  I think that's terrific job.  And I was
17  just wondering, how this is going to play into
18  the consultant that we ultimately retain to
19  help us with the project?
20                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  I think
21  this would be a great outline for that
22  consultant.
23                 LARRY BINGAMAN:  This would be a
24  great outline.  It strikes me as a -- for a
25  project.  So here's your RFP.  Tell us what
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 1  it's going to cost.
 2                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  This
 3  really -- this and some of the information we
 4  got out of the workgroups today is going to be
 5  really a good foundation for that.
 6                 ROBERT MOORE:  I just would say
 7  that you did an excellent job on this and the
 8  issues are really good.  I think the only thing
 9  I saw that was missing was some commitment on
10  agricultural uses under economic development,
11  or one of those other areas.  But that was kind
12  of the only thing I saw that was kind of
13  missing from that.  But --
14                 MATTHEW PAFFORD:  Yeah, we do
15  identify agriculture in 4-B, understanding
16  Connecticut's water demands.
17                 ROBERT MOORE:  Yeah, but I was
18  thinking in terms of the economic development
19  and land use in the future, the future part of
20  it.  That's all.
21                 MATT BAFFERT:  And it certainly
22  could be added kind of as the process moves
23  along.
24                 Any other questions?
25                 ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  Just a
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 1  question.  So preparing for change would be
 2  technology and consumer behavior.  I'm guessing
 3  that includes things like water reuse,
 4  recycling, conservation.
 5                 MATT BAFFERT:  Yeah.  All of
 6  those things can fall under that category, as
 7  well as, obviously you know, other categories.
 8  There was a lot of overlap in dealing with
 9  this.  So they certainly can fall into more
10  than one category.
11                 ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  Thank you.
12                 DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Thank you,
13  Matt.  And thank your committee.
14                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Matt, and
15  thank your committee.  Virginia, you were part
16  of this process.
17                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  I was part of
18  this process with Matt.
19                 I wanted to remind the Steering
20  Committee that the group, one of the things
21  that the group did was develop this, this model
22  table of contents.  The major part of what we
23  did was going through and identifying key
24  elements that needed to be in a water plan and
25  using the 19 states that we used as examples.
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 1                 We did a fairly exhaustive look
 2  at the different elements and how they were
 3  addressed, complete with references to what
 4  states have done them.  To me, that is the more
 5  important document.  That was distributed via
 6  e-mail before the Steering Committee workshop.
 7  I don't believe -- it was not available as a
 8  handout at that workshop because it's quite
 9  humongous.
10                 But I would encourage all of us
11  to focus on that document because that's where
12  you're really going to find the interesting
13  details that we as the Steering Committee need
14  to assess whether they should be in our water
15  plan.  So perhaps we can resend that so that
16  it's not lost in a four-months-ago e-mail, and
17  have people take a good look at that.  That's
18  the meat of the work that we did.
19                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Good
20  recommendation.
21                 Any other questions or comments
22  for Matt?
23                 (No response.)
24                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you
25  very much.
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 1                 Let's have round of applause.
 2                 Is there any other business?
 3  I've got a couple of things I wanted to bring
 4  up, and then I'll open up for comments.  One is
 5  that the American Water Resource Association,
 6  an interesting -- I got a call from Brenda
 7  Bateman who is their chair of their board of
 8  directors.  And they're having -- she went to
 9  every state's website.  They're having an
10  inaugural workshop for state officials.
11                 And the purpose of this is for
12  officials who are responsible for developing
13  state water plans.  And it's going to be held
14  in Denver, Colorado, from the 11th to the 13th.
15  Unfortunately I have a conflict.
16                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Of what
17  month?
18                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  November
19  of this year, November 11th.
20                 And -- but our Chairman has
21  authorized us to send Jim Voccolina.  Some of
22  you know Jim Voccolina is our subject matter
23  water expert here at PURA.  And he's going to
24  be -- we just signed off on his travel
25  authorization.  He's going to be traveling out
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 1  to Denver to represent the State of Connecticut
 2  at this.  And this is the first of many,
 3  evidently.  So I'm kind of excited about this,
 4  because it ties beautifully into obviously what
 5  we're doing.  So Jim will be going to that.
 6                 The other thing is that Monday
 7  and Tuesday of this week I was in Denver,
 8  Colorado at the Water Research Foundation,
 9  Public Council on Water Research.  I'm on the
10  public council.
11                 Larry, were you on that ever?
12                 LARRY BINGAMAN:  No.
13                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  It's the
14  science of water and the people are there from
15  the top public councils, very similar to this
16  Steering Committee in terms of who's there.
17  But we talked about -- I told them and they
18  were very interested in our water plan.
19                 Not unique to Connecticut,
20  people debate -- they may say, argue -- but
21  debate water from around the United States.
22  It's not just us.  It was a huge issue and
23  Maryland, Delaware and Washington D.C. over the
24  Potomac River ended up going to the Supreme
25  Court.
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 1                 But there's a lot of things the
 2  foundation -- and we look at the website, the
 3  committee chairs -- there's a lot of
 4  information that they have done, research upon
 5  research upon research.  This is all they do,
 6  is research -- is that we can, I think, tap
 7  into.
 8                 So I'm not going to read it this
 9  afternoon, but there was one page here that was
10  almost like describing what we're trying to do
11  on the Water Planning Council.  So I think it's
12  important that we utilize that as much as we
13  can.  And I'm actually going to send their
14  executive director an outline of what you're
15  looking for and see how they might be able to
16  assist us.
17                 Virginia?
18                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Your first
19  comment about the conference in November.  When
20  earlier this meeting when we were talking about
21  the project management schedule, getting a
22  project manager on, I'm still not clear what
23  would happen at that November meeting.
24                 But is there any hope that we
25  would have identified project management that
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 1  could attend this conference?  Because I think
 2  that would be very valuable, the person to go
 3  and information to bring back, in addition to
 4  Jim.
 5                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  I'm going
 6  to defer to my resident --
 7                 DAVID LeVASSEUR:  As much as I
 8  think we could probably do something like that,
 9  I really want that decision about project
10  management being to be made at the November
11  meeting of this group.
12                 I really want to have this group
13  to be able to give its input and its blessing
14  to whatever course of action we go with.  All
15  of the various pieces of what we view as the
16  consultant pieces that we need, whether it's
17  project management for this group, project
18  management for the consultant and the
19  consultant process.
20                 One of the things that's been
21  driven home since we began is we need to be
22  open, we need to be transparent and we need to
23  have input from everybody.  So I just don't see
24  the timing coming together for that, Virginia,
25  because I think, quite frankly, that I don't
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 1  want to jeopardize the integrity of the process
 2  just to facilitate getting a warm body out
 3  there for a couple of weeks after we made the
 4  decision.  So --
 5                 MARGARET MINER:  Maybe it will
 6  be available on streaming or some downloadable
 7  thing that we could see.
 8                 DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Or it might be
 9  available after the fact.
10                 MARGARET MINER:  Yeah, that's
11  what I mean.
12                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  And again,
13  as I said in the letter, it's the inaugural so
14  there's going to be other meetings.  I think
15  this is really kind of looking at what's going
16  around, but I think there's definitely -- the
17  way I understand from my conversation with
18  Brenda -- was this was going to be the first of
19  many.  So --
20                 Oh, is that the Gene Likens
21  letter?  Does anybody want to comment?  Gene
22  Likens sent a letter to people.  He was upset
23  about the scheduling that -- rescheduling the
24  meeting.  He's made some recommendations here
25  in the letter.  I was going to have a
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 1  conversation with Gene.
 2                 Have you talked to Gene?
 3                 MICHAEL J. SULLIVAN:  I have
 4  not.
 5                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  So when he
 6  says, can we identify a Steering Committee
 7  Chair?  Well, he's sitting right here.  That's
 8  me.  So I'm the Steering Committee Chair, and
 9  that was made quite apparent to everybody at
10  the retreat in June, that that's the way the
11  structure has been set up here.
12                 I know you responded.  Have you
13  talked to him?  I know you sent an e-mail back
14  to him.
15                 MARGARET MINER:  I did and I
16  will be seeing him, but I haven't gone into any
17  detail.  I hope to show him some of the things
18  here today that maybe haven't gotten to his
19  e-mail.
20                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  And I
21  would be more than happy to take it to him.
22                 MARGARET MINER:  Talk to him.
23  Right?
24                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yeah,
25  absolutely.  I mean, I think it's okay with the
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 1  Steering Committee, the way I'd like to have a
 2  conversation with him and give him a followup
 3  to today's meeting, and let him know what we've
 4  done and where we're going.  And if that's okay
 5  with everybody?
 6                 MICHAEL J. SULLIVAN:  I'll say
 7  something about that.  I mean, I was -- and
 8  this is just like a personal observation.  I'm
 9  very happy with this meeting today.  I thought
10  this was very useful.  And I just want to make
11  sure that these kind of meetings, I mean, it
12  sounds like we're on a regular schedule now.
13                 And I just want to make sure
14  that we're doing enough work so that when you
15  people invoke the time to come in and meet and
16  do these things, that we have a substantive
17  discussion about whatever that issue might be.
18  And that people have things in advance so that
19  they could come in and have a useful,
20  productive discussion about whatever it might
21  be.
22                 And I just want to make sure
23  that we're not wasting your time when you, you
24  know, you're basically volunteering to do this
25  kind of thing.  So I think when I -- I just did
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 1  a quick read on Gene's letter and I think
 2  that's part of what I was reading on that.  And
 3  I think if this meeting is any indication, I
 4  think we're well on our way to addressing some
 5  of the things that he was kind of raising.
 6  So --
 7                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you
 8  for that, Mike.
 9                 Virginia?
10                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  We only got
11  it and I thought he was --
12                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  No, I
13  appreciate you.  I appreciate you doing that.
14                 For the record, I was going to
15  say we had 99 percent attendance between people
16  here on the phone, except for Gene.  Okay.  So
17  Gene couldn't be here today, so that's
18  understood.  Okay?
19                 MARGARET MINER:  On this comment
20  from Gene.  You know, he's very concerned about
21  what he sees as an environmental catastrophe
22  that we may be heading toward.  And he wants to
23  be sure, as I understand it, that we're doing
24  things in the most efficient and rapid means
25  possible.
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 1                 So I'm sure he does become
 2  impatient, but his level of concern is
 3  commensurate with that of the Pope, and I think
 4  with a lot of the rest of us, that we can't
 5  waste time coming up with some answers.
 6                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  And you
 7  know what?  We would have wasted time if we had
 8  the meeting early on this month, quite frankly.
 9  And that's why we --
10                 MARGARET MINER:  I'm not
11  debating that.  But that's his --
12                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  That why
13  we don't want to drag up here.  Okay.  Let's go
14  home and watch the Pope.  Okay?
15                 Motion to adjourn?
16                 DAVID LeVASSEUR:  So moved.
17                 ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  Second.
18                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  All those
19  in favor?
20                 THE COMMITTEE:  Aye.
21                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you
22  very much for your time.  Appreciate it.
23                 (Whereupon, the above
24  proceedings were concluded at 3:57 p.m.)
25


BCT Reporting LLC







Page 147


 1                   CERTIFICATE
 2
 3            I hereby certify that the foregoing
 4  146 pages are a complete and accurate
 5  computer-aided transcription of my original
 6  verbatim notes taken of the WATER PLANNING
 7  COUNCIL STEERING COMMITTEE, which was held
 8  before JOHN W. BETKOSKI, III, HEARING
 9  OFFICER, PURA VICE CHAIRMAN, at the Public
10  Utilities Regulatory Authority, 10 Franklin
11  Square, New Britain, Connecticut, on
12  September 24, 2015.
13
14
15
16
17                 ____________________________
18                 Robert G. Dixon, CVR-M 857
19                 Notary Public, Court Reporter
20                 BCT Reporting, LLC
21                 PO Box 1774
22                 Bristol, Connecticut  06011
23
24       My Commission Expires:  6/30/2020
25


BCT Reporting LLC





		Index

		 Number Index

		0

		05-142 (1)



		1

		1 (1)

		10 (1)

		10th (1)

		11th (2)

		13th (1)

		14-163 (1)

		15 (2)

		16 (1)

		17 (1)

		17th (1)

		18 (2)

		180 (2)

		181 (1)

		19 (1)

		1901 (2)

		1940s (1)

		1960s (4)

		1968 (1)

		1970 (7)

		1st (2)



		2

		2 (1)

		2000 (1)

		2005 (3)

		2010 (2)

		2012 (2)

		2014 (1)

		2015 (1)

		23 (1)

		25 (1)

		25-year (1)

		28 (1)

		2:47 (1)



		3

		35 (2)

		37 (1)

		3:05 (1)

		3:57 (1)



		4

		4-B (1)

		40 (1)

		400 (2)

		46.87 (1)



		5

		5-year (1)

		50 (3)



		6

		60 (1)

		64 (1)



		7

		74 (1)

		75 (1)

		7th (1)



		8

		80 (1)

		82 (2)



		9

		90-day (1)

		99(1)





		$

		$500,000 (1)



		A

		AA (1)

		Abatement (1)

		ability (5)

		able (11)

		above (3)

		absolute (1)

		absolutely (3)

		abundance (1)

		abuts (1)

		acceptable (2)

		access (1)

		accessible (1)

		account (1)

		accounts (1)

		accurate (1)

		across (6)

		Act (3)

		action (4)

		active (3)

		activity (1)

		actual (6)

		actually (37)

		add (8)

		added (4)

		addition (2)

		additional (4)

		address (5)

		addressed (3)

		addressing (4)

		adds (1)

		adjourn (1)

		adjusted (1)

		administrator (1)

		adopt (1)

		adopted (2)

		adopting (1)

		advance (1)

		advantage (2)

		advisory (6)

		advocate (3)

		affect (6)

		affects (1)

		afternoon (9)

		afterwards (2)

		again (14)

		against (1)

		agencies (6)

		agency (2)

		agenda (8)

		agendas (1)

		aggregated (1)

		ago (3)

		agree (8)

		agrees (1)

		agricultural (3)

		agriculture (1)

		ahead (2)

		air (1)

		alerts (1)

		ALICEA (4)

		Alicea's (2)

		aligning (1)

		allocated (3)

		allotted (1)

		allow (3)

		allowed (1)

		allows (1)

		almost (4)

		along (4)

		alter (5)

		alteration (1)

		altered (3)

		altering (1)

		always (6)

		ambient (1)

		America (1)

		American (1)

		amount (4)

		ample (1)

		analysis (7)

		analytical (2)

		analyzing (1)

		ancillary (1)

		ANDREW (8)

		animals (1)

		annotated (1)

		announced (1)

		annual (6)

		answered (1)

		anticipate (1)

		apologize (1)

		apparent (1)

		appendix (1)

		applause (1)

		applicability (1)

		application (9)

		applications (2)

		applied (1)

		apply (6)

		appreciate (8)

		approach (6)

		appropriate (7)

		appropriately (1)

		Approximately (1)

		approximation (1)

		aquaculture (1)

		aquatic (3)

		aquifer (12)

		aquifers (2)

		Archfield (1)

		area (15)

		areas (11)

		argue (1)

		argument (1)

		Army (1)

		arose (1)

		around (14)

		artificial (1)

		artificially (3)

		aspects (1)

		assembled (2)

		assembling (1)

		assess (2)

		assessment (2)

		assessments (1)

		assigned (2)

		assignments (1)

		assimilation (1)

		assist (1)

		associated (2)

		Association (4)

		assume (2)

		assumptions (1)

		atmosphere (2)

		atmospheric (2)

		attached (2)

		attempting (1)

		attend (1)

		attendance (2)

		attract (1)

		attracting (1)

		audience (1)

		August (4)

		Authorities (1)

		authority (6)

		authorization (1)

		authorized (1)

		automating (1)

		availability (3)

		available (19)

		average (3)

		away (5)

		axis (3)

		Aye (1)



		B

		Bach (1)

		back (22)

		background (2)

		backside (1)

		bad (2)

		BAFFERT (2)

		balance (4)

		balls (1)

		banks (1)

		bar (1)

		bars (1)

		Barton (3)

		base (1)

		based (17)

		baseline (1)

		bases (1)

		basic (3)

		basically (19)

		basin (10)

		basins (2)

		basis (5)

		Bateman (1)

		bathing (1)

		be-all (1)

		beautifully (1)

		became (7)

		Becker (1)

		become (5)

		becomes (3)

		beds (1)

		beef (1)

		began (1)

		begin (4)

		beginning (4)

		behalf (1)

		behaving (1)

		behavior (1)

		behind (2)

		Bellucci (15)

		below (2)

		benchmark (1)

		beneficial (1)

		benefits (8)

		best (7)

		Beth (2)

		Betkoski (1)

		Betsy (2)

		better (15)

		beyond (3)

		big (5)

		bigger (1)

		bill (3)

		Bingaman (11)

		bio (4)

		biological (3)

		biologists (1)

		biology (1)

		bit (30)

		black (2)

		blacked (1)

		blah (3)

		blanks (1)

		BLASCHINSKI (11)

		bless (1)

		blessing (3)

		blue (6)

		blue-black (1)

		blue-blacks (1)

		board (3)

		Bob (4)

		body (1)

		bond (7)

		boss (1)

		Boston (1)

		both (13)

		bottling (3)

		bottom (3)

		bought (1)

		boundary (1)

		brainstorm (1)

		brainstorming (2)

		break (5)

		breakouts (1)

		breaks (1)

		Brenda (2)

		Bridgeport (1)

		brief (6)

		bright (1)

		bring (6)

		brings (1)

		broad (1)

		broader (4)

		broadest (1)

		broke (1)

		Brook (5)

		brought (4)

		BU-2 (1)

		budget (2)

		build (3)

		buildout (2)

		built (6)

		bullets (1)

		bunch (7)

		Bunnell (5)

		Burlington (4)

		business (1)

		businesses (1)

		busy (2)



		C

		calculate (4)

		calculated (1)

		calculates (1)

		calculations (1)

		calendar (1)

		calibration (1)

		California (1)

		call (4)

		Callahan (1)

		called (1)

		calling (2)

		came (12)

		can (123)

		canoeing (1)

		capabilities (1)

		capability (1)

		capacity (1)

		capital (1)

		capture (1)

		carries (1)

		case (1)

		cases (1)

		casts (1)

		catastrophe (1)

		catchment (1)

		categories (5)

		category (3)

		central (3)

		certain (11)

		certainly (9)

		certainty (3)

		certificate (2)

		cetera (2)

		Chair (5)

		Chairman (1)

		chairs (1)

		challenges (1)

		challenging (1)

		change (16)

		changed (3)

		changes (12)

		changing (3)

		characteristics (4)

		characterized (1)

		CHARAMUT (4)

		charge (11)

		charges (1)

		chart (1)

		cheap (3)

		check (1)

		checked (1)

		chew (1)

		choices (2)

		choose (1)

		Chris (19)

		chunk (1)

		chunks (2)

		circulated (1)

		circumstances (2)

		cities (1)

		city (1)

		clarification (3)

		clarify (1)

		clarity (1)

		class (10)

		classes (9)

		classification (4)

		classifications (4)

		classified (1)

		classify (1)

		classifying (1)

		Clean (1)

		clear (4)

		CLERK (1)

		click (2)

		client (3)

		climate (4)

		close (1)

		closely (2)

		closer (2)

		closure (1)

		Clupeid (1)

		coalesced (1)

		coast (3)

		coastal (2)

		cochair (2)

		cochairing (1)

		coding (1)

		coefficient (1)

		coefficients (2)

		COG (1)

		coincide (1)

		coincides (1)

		coined (1)

		collect (2)

		collected (2)

		collecting (5)

		collection (3)

		color (1)

		Colorado (2)

		colored (1)

		column (2)

		columns (2)

		combination (1)

		combined (1)

		comfortable (6)

		coming (8)

		commend (1)

		commensurate (1)

		comment (6)

		comments (19)

		commercial (3)

		commission (6)

		Commissioner (2)

		commitment (2)

		commitments (1)

		committed (1)

		Committee (49)

		Committee's (1)

		committees (1)

		communication (1)

		companies (2)

		Company (3)

		compare (5)

		compared (1)

		compatible (2)

		competitive (1)

		competitiveness (3)

		compilation (5)

		compile (3)

		compiled (1)

		complete (1)

		completed (2)

		completion (1)

		complex (2)

		compliance (1)

		complicated (6)

		comply (2)

		component (3)

		compromised (1)

		compute (1)

		computed (1)

		computer (4)

		computes (2)

		concentration (1)

		concentrations (1)

		concept (4)

		conception (1)

		concepts (1)

		conceptually (1)

		concern (2)

		concerned (1)

		concerns (9)

		concluded (1)

		conclusion (2)

		concretely (1)

		condition (7)

		conditions (6)

		conductance (1)

		conference (2)

		confidence (3)

		confined (1)

		conflict (1)

		conjunction (1)

		connected (1)

		Connecticut (58)

		Connecticut's (2)

		Connection (1)

		consensus (5)

		conservancy (1)

		conservation (8)

		consider (1)

		consideration (3)

		considerations (1)

		considered (2)

		consistency (1)

		consistent (5)

		constrain (1)

		construction (1)

		consult (1)

		consultant (14)

		consultant's (1)

		consultants (1)

		consultation (1)

		consume (1)

		Consumer (2)

		consuming (3)

		contact (1)

		contagious (1)

		contained (1)

		contamination (1)

		content (3)

		contents (9)

		continue (2)

		continued (1)

		continues (1)

		continuing (1)

		continuous (1)

		contracting (2)

		contracts (1)

		Control (5)

		conversation (6)

		conversations (2)

		conveyance (3)

		conveyances (1)

		cool (1)

		cooling (3)

		cooperative (2)

		cooperatively (1)

		coordinate (1)

		coordinating (1)

		copies (6)

		copy (2)

		core (2)

		Corinne (2)

		corner (3)

		Corps (1)

		corrections (2)

		correctly (1)

		correlation (1)

		cost (5)

		costal (1)

		Council (11)

		councils (1)

		Counsel (1)

		counties (1)

		country (2)

		County (5)

		couple (16)

		coupled (2)

		course (4)

		Court (1)

		cover (4)

		coverage (1)

		covered (2)

		covering (1)

		cranking (1)

		crazy (2)

		create (4)

		creates (1)

		creating (1)

		creative (3)

		crime (1)

		critical (8)

		critically (1)

		critters (2)

		crosschecked (1)

		crosses (1)

		crunch (1)

		cuff (1)

		cumbersome (1)

		cumulative (1)

		curious (1)

		current (5)

		Currently (3)

		curve (10)

		curves (3)

		customers (1)

		cut (1)

		cycles (1)



		D

		daily (3)

		damaging (1)

		dams (8)

		dance (1)

		dark (1)

		data (89)

		database (6)

		databases (2)

		dataset (2)

		datasets (1)

		date (3)

		daunting (1)

		Dave (3)

		DAVID (28)

		Day (8)

		day-to-day (1)

		days (7)

		DC (1)

		de (40)

		deal (3)

		dealing (2)

		debate (5)

		debating (1)

		December (2)

		decide (2)

		decided (1)

		deciding (3)

		decision (5)

		decisions (2)

		decreased (1)

		dedicate (1)

		dedicated (2)

		DEEP (13)

		deepen (1)

		defer (1)

		deficit (1)

		define (2)

		defined (1)

		defining (2)

		definitely (1)

		degrade (1)

		Delaware (1)

		delineate (1)

		delineation (1)

		demand (3)

		demands (2)

		Demographics (1)

		Denver (3)

		DEP (5)

		Department (6)

		departments (1)

		departures (2)

		depend (1)

		dependent (1)

		depending (3)

		depends (2)

		deplete (6)

		depletion (2)

		deposition (2)

		depth (2)

		Deputy (1)

		derive (1)

		described (3)

		describes (1)

		describing (1)

		design (3)

		detail (2)

		detailed (2)

		details (2)

		determined (1)

		determining (2)

		develop (4)

		developed (1)

		developing (4)

		development (27)

		developments (1)

		devil's (2)

		dewater (1)

		dialogue (1)

		differ (3)

		difference (1)

		differences (2)

		different (59)

		differently (2)

		difficult (4)

		difficulty (2)

		digest (3)

		direct (1)

		directed (1)

		directing (1)

		direction (4)

		director (1)

		directors (1)

		disagree (1)

		discharge (3)

		discharging (1)

		disciplines (2)

		discontinued (1)

		discuss (3)

		discussed (4)

		discussing (2)

		discussion (21)

		discussions (3)

		distance (4)

		distanced (1)

		distances (1)

		distributed (2)

		distribution (13)

		diversion (3)

		diversions (4)

		divert (2)

		doctorate (1)

		document (10)

		documents (1)

		domestic (1)

		done (36)

		donor (1)

		down (16)

		downloadable (1)

		downs (1)

		downstream (2)

		downward (5)

		DPUC (1)

		draft (5)

		drag (1)

		dramatically (1)

		drawdown (1)

		dried (1)

		drift (1)

		drillers (1)

		drinking (5)

		driven (1)

		drought (5)

		droughts (1)

		dry (4)

		drying (1)

		duration (9)

		durations (1)

		during (4)

		dynamic (1)



		E

		E-mail (12)

		e-mailed (1)

		e-mails (2)

		ear (1)

		earlier (7)

		early (3)

		easier (3)

		easiest (1)

		eastern (3)

		easy (3)

		echo (1)

		ecological (3)

		economic (30)

		economically (2)

		economy (3)

		edits (3)

		educational (1)

		effective (1)

		effects (3)

		efficiency (1)

		efficient (2)

		effort (2)

		efforts (1)

		eight (2)

		Eileen (1)

		either (5)

		electric (1)

		elements (6)

		Elin (5)

		Elin's (1)

		ELIZABETH (2)

		ELLEN (12)

		else (5)

		elsewhere (1)

		embedded (1)

		emission (1)

		emotion (1)

		emphasize (1)

		encompass (1)

		encourage (3)

		end (7)

		end-all (1)

		ended (2)

		endorse (1)

		endpoint (1)

		Energy (2)

		enforceability (5)

		enforceable (6)

		engineering (1)

		England (3)

		enough (5)

		entered (1)

		entertain (1)

		entire (1)

		entirely (1)

		entities (4)

		entity (2)

		Environmental (10)

		envision (1)

		EPA (1)

		equation (2)

		ERIC (7)

		ericklindquist@CTgov (1)

		especially (3)

		espoused (1)

		essentially (1)

		establish (1)

		established (1)

		estimate (2)

		estimated (4)

		estimates (4)

		et (2)

		evaluate (1)

		evaluated (2)

		evaluating (4)

		evaluation (1)

		even (10)

		events (2)

		eventually (1)

		everybody (6)

		everyday (1)

		everyone (5)

		evidently (1)

		evolve (2)

		evolves (3)

		evolving (1)

		exact (1)

		exactly (3)

		example (5)

		examples (2)

		exceedance (2)

		exceedances (1)

		Excellent (5)

		except (1)

		excessive (1)

		exchange (1)

		excited (1)

		Excuse (1)

		executive (1)

		exempt (3)

		exemptions (1)

		exercise (1)

		exhaustive (1)

		exist (2)

		existing (5)

		exists (1)

		expect (4)

		expectation (1)

		Expensive (3)

		experience (1)

		expert (1)

		expertise (1)

		explain (1)

		explanation (2)

		explicit (1)

		explicitly (1)

		exports (1)

		expressed (1)

		extended (1)

		extensive (3)

		extent (4)

		extracted (2)

		extremely (5)



		F

		fabulous (1)

		fabulously (1)

		faced (1)

		facilitate (1)

		facilities (1)

		facility (1)

		fact (3)

		factor (2)

		factored (1)

		Factors (13)

		facts (2)

		fair (3)

		fairly (16)

		fall (3)

		falls (1)

		familiar (3)

		fantastic (1)

		far (12)

		fare (1)

		Farmington (1)

		fashion (1)

		fast (3)

		faster (1)

		favor (1)

		federal (2)

		feed (1)

		feedback (1)

		feel (9)

		feeling (1)

		felt (6)

		FERC (1)

		few (5)

		fewer (1)

		field (3)

		Fielding (1)

		fields (2)

		figure (1)

		figured (2)

		files (1)

		fill (3)

		final (1)

		finally (4)

		find (7)

		finds (1)

		fine (3)

		fineness (1)

		firm (1)

		firms (1)

		first (25)

		fish (12)

		fit (2)

		FITTING (2)

		five (3)

		five-minute (2)

		fixed (1)

		flat (1)

		flattened (1)

		flavor (2)

		flip (1)

		flips (1)

		flood (4)

		floods (1)

		Florida (1)

		flow (38)

		flowing (3)

		flowline (1)

		flows (18)

		flushed (1)

		fly (1)

		focus (6)

		focused (3)

		folks (7)

		follow (4)

		follow-up (2)

		following (1)

		followup (2)

		food (1)

		forcing (1)

		forget (1)

		forgotten (1)

		format (1)

		forward (13)

		foundation (3)

		foundational (3)

		four (4)

		four-months-ago (1)

		frankly (11)

		free (2)

		frequency (2)

		frequently (3)

		friends (1)

		front (1)

		frustrated (1)

		FRWA (1)

		fullest (1)

		fully (2)

		fun (1)

		function (2)

		functions (4)

		fundamental (2)

		funding (9)

		funds (2)

		funny (1)

		further (4)

		future (8)



		G

		GAIL (4)

		gain (3)

		gains (1)

		game (1)

		gaps (3)

		GARA (2)

		gathered (1)

		gauge (3)

		gauges (10)

		gauging (1)

		gave (2)

		gears (1)

		gee (1)

		Gene (7)

		Gene's (1)

		general (8)

		generally (2)

		generate (4)

		generates (1)

		generating (1)

		generation (3)

		generations (1)

		geographic (2)

		geographies (1)

		Geological (3)

		geometry (4)

		gets (3)

		Gina (1)

		GIS (8)

		given (4)

		gives (3)

		giving (2)

		Glad (2)

		GLENN (12)

		goal (4)

		goals (3)

		goes (11)

		GOLD (11)

		good (38)

		government (3)

		grab (1)

		grading (1)

		grant (2)

		graph (1)

		graphics (1)

		great (15)

		greater (1)

		green (3)

		ground (1)

		groundwater (18)

		group (30)

		groups (6)

		grow (2)

		growing (3)

		growth (9)

		GS (1)

		guess (5)

		guessing (1)

		guidance (3)

		guiding (1)

		guys (5)



		H

		habitat (1)

		habits (2)

		half (1)

		Hampshire (2)

		hand (2)

		handle (4)

		handled (1)

		handles (1)

		handout (3)

		handouts (2)

		happen (8)

		happened (1)

		happening (2)

		happens (3)

		happy (6)

		hard (3)

		Hartford (1)

		hats (1)

		head (3)

		headed (2)

		heading (2)

		Health (8)

		healthy (1)

		hear (1)

		heard (3)

		HEARING (86)

		heart (2)

		heavily (1)

		heavy (1)

		held (1)

		Hello (2)

		help (10)

		helpful (2)

		Here's (6)

		herons (1)

		herring (1)

		Hey (1)

		Hi (3)

		high (9)

		high-level (2)

		high-quality (1)

		higher (5)

		highest (4)

		hire (1)

		hired (1)

		hiring (1)

		historic (1)

		historically (1)

		history (1)

		hold (1)

		holding (3)

		home (2)

		homework (3)

		hope (6)

		hopefully (4)

		hoping (4)

		horizon (3)

		horizontal (1)

		hostility (1)

		hour (2)

		Housatonic (1)

		Housing (2)

		HUD (1)

		HUDAK (2)

		Hudson (3)

		huge (2)

		human (5)

		humans (3)

		humongous (1)

		hundred (1)

		HUST (3)

		hybrid (1)

		hydraulic (1)

		hydrograph (17)

		hydrographs (3)

		hydrologic (2)

		hydrology (1)



		I

		idea (8)

		ideas (5)

		identified (7)

		identifies (3)

		identify (6)

		identifying (5)

		illustrates (1)

		image (1)

		imagine (2)

		impact (5)

		impacts (2)

		impaired (3)

		impatient (1)

		impediments (1)

		impervious (7)

		implement (2)

		implementation (2)

		import (1)

		important (24)

		impound (2)

		impoundment (1)

		impoundments (1)

		in-depth (1)

		inactive (2)

		inaugural (2)

		inches (1)

		incinerated (1)

		include (4)

		included (3)

		includes (1)

		Including (3)

		inclusive (1)

		incorporate (4)

		incorporated (1)

		incorporates (1)

		increase (5)

		increases (2)

		increasing (3)

		incredible (1)

		incredibly (1)

		independent (2)

		indicate (1)

		indication (1)

		individual (2)

		individuals (1)

		industrial (3)

		industry (2)

		inflow (1)

		inform (2)

		information (36)

		informing (1)

		infrastructure (4)

		initial (2)

		initiated (1)

		input (10)

		inside (1)

		insist (1)

		instance (4)

		instantaneous (1)

		integrate (1)

		integrates (1)

		integrity (1)

		intended (1)

		inter-decadal (1)

		interacting (1)

		interest (2)

		interested (4)

		interesting (10)

		interestingly (1)

		interests (5)

		intern (2)

		internally (2)

		interplay (1)

		interpolated (1)

		interpretation (1)

		interpretations (1)

		interpreted (1)

		interrupt (3)

		intersection (1)

		intersects (1)

		interval (5)

		intervals (2)

		into (48)

		introduce (2)

		investigations (1)

		investment (2)

		investments (1)

		invoke (1)

		involved (4)

		involving (1)

		irrigation (1)

		Island (4)

		issue (15)

		issues (24)

		item (6)

		items (5)



		J

		Jack (4)

		Jack's (1)

		January (3)

		jeopardize (1)

		Jim (4)

		job (6)

		jobs (1)

		JOE (18)

		JOHN (2)

		joined (2)

		joins (1)

		JON (32)

		Jon's (2)

		Julie (1)

		July (2)

		June (2)



		K

		Katz (4)

		keep (8)

		keeping (4)

		kept (4)

		key (7)

		kind (57)

		kinds (7)

		knew (1)

		knock (1)

		knows (1)



		L

		lack (1)

		laid (1)

		land (7)

		land-use (3)

		landed (1)

		landfill (1)

		lands (2)

		language (1)

		large (4)

		large-scale (1)

		largely (1)

		larger (3)

		largest (1)

		LARRY (13)

		last (8)

		late (2)

		lately (2)

		later (1)

		laughing (1)

		launched (1)

		law (1)

		laws (1)

		layer (3)

		layers (2)

		lead (1)

		leaky (1)

		learn (1)

		lease (1)

		least (8)

		leaving (1)

		left (4)

		left-hand (4)

		legislative (2)

		Legislature (3)

		leisure (1)

		less (1)

		letter (5)

		LeVASSEUR (19)

		level (18)

		levels (2)

		life (3)

		lifted (1)

		light (1)

		Likens (2)

		LIMA (39)

		limbo (1)

		limited (1)

		LINDQUIST (5)

		line (12)

		linear (1)

		lines (3)

		link (2)

		linked (3)

		links (2)

		Lisa (1)

		list (9)

		listed (4)

		liter (1)

		little (34)

		live (1)

		livestock (1)

		load (1)

		loaded (1)

		loan (1)

		local (4)

		locate (1)

		located (1)

		location (12)

		locations (1)

		lock (1)

		locked (1)

		locking (1)

		logical (1)

		long (18)

		long-standing (1)

		long-term (11)

		longer (5)

		longer-term (1)

		longest (1)

		look (49)

		looked (5)

		looking (25)

		looks (4)

		Lord (6)

		LORI (2)

		loss (1)

		losses (1)

		lost (3)

		lot (41)

		lots (3)

		low (14)

		lower (4)

		LUCCHINA (2)



		M

		MacBroom (1)

		main (4)

		maintain (2)

		maintained (1)

		major (1)

		makes (5)

		making (4)

		man (1)

		Management (16)

		manager (4)

		managing (1)

		mandate (1)

		manipulate (1)

		manner (1)

		manually (1)

		many (13)

		map (11)

		mapping (1)

		March (2)

		Margaret (46)

		margin (1)

		marked (2)

		Mary (1)

		Maryland (1)

		mass (1)

		master (1)

		match (3)

		matched (2)

		matches (1)

		material (2)

		materials (2)

		Matt (8)

		matter (2)

		MATTHEW (3)

		MAUREEN (18)

		maximum (3)

		may (31)

		Maybe (12)

		McCarthy's (1)

		McGEE (13)

		mean (23)

		meaning (1)

		meaningful (1)

		means (4)

		meant (4)

		measured (1)

		measurement (1)

		measurements (1)

		meat (1)

		median (7)

		medium (2)

		meet (2)

		meeting (33)

		meetings (4)

		melt (1)

		members (3)

		mentioned (5)

		mentioning (1)

		met (4)

		Michael (13)

		mid (1)

		mid-nineties (1)

		middle (3)

		midterm (1)

		Midwest (1)

		might (42)

		Mike (1)

		milligrams (1)

		Milone (1)

		mimic (1)

		mimics (1)

		mind (5)

		mined (1)

		Miner (34)

		minimal (1)

		minimum (2)

		minimus (1)

		mining (2)

		minute (2)

		minutes (6)

		missing (2)

		mod-flow (3)

		model (17)

		modeling (3)

		models (7)

		moderately (1)

		modern (1)

		modify (1)

		moment (2)

		Monday (1)

		money (12)

		monitor (1)

		monitoring (6)

		month (6)

		monthly (3)

		months (3)

		MOORE (20)

		more (48)

		MORRISON (26)

		most (18)

		mostly (2)

		Motion (1)

		move (8)

		moved (1)

		moves (1)

		moving (3)

		much (38)

		multi-decadal (1)

		Multiple (4)

		Murphy (2)

		myself (1)



		N

		name (5)

		National (4)

		natural (12)

		naturally (5)

		nature (3)

		Naugatuck (1)

		near (1)

		nearby (1)

		neat (2)

		necessarily (1)

		necessary (5)

		need (41)

		needed (13)

		needs (18)

		NEELEY (2)

		negative (1)

		network (9)

		networks (7)

		new (20)

		news (1)

		newspaper (1)

		next (20)

		nice (3)

		nicely (1)

		NICHOLAS (1)

		Nick (1)

		nineties (1)

		nitrogen (8)

		nobody (3)

		nod (1)

		nonenforceability (1)

		normal (2)

		normalized (1)

		northeast (2)

		noted (1)

		notice (1)

		November (6)

		number (19)

		numbers (8)

		Nyquist (1)



		O

		o'clock (1)

		observation (6)

		observe (1)

		observed (5)

		obvious (2)

		obviously (12)

		occasional (1)

		occasionally (1)

		occur (2)

		occurred (1)

		occurrences (1)

		occurring (1)

		occurs (2)

		October (1)

		off (9)

		offered (1)

		Office (5)

		OFFICER (86)

		officials (2)

		offramps (1)

		oil (3)

		old (2)

		once (7)

		one (60)

		ones (8)

		only (19)

		onto (4)

		open (4)

		operate (3)

		operating (1)

		operation (1)

		opinion (1)

		OPM (3)

		opportunities (2)

		opportunity (3)

		opposed (3)

		options (5)

		order (9)

		organisms (5)

		organize (3)

		original (1)

		others (1)

		otherwise (1)

		ought (1)

		ourselves (1)

		out (60)

		out-of-state's (1)

		outline (4)

		output (5)

		outreach (2)

		outside (1)

		over (17)

		overkill (1)

		overlaid (1)

		overlap (2)

		oversaw (1)

		overstaffed (1)

		overview (4)

		overwintering (1)

		own (10)

		owner (1)



		P

		PAFFORD (5)

		page (1)

		pages (1)

		pair (1)

		paper (1)

		paradigms (1)

		parallel (1)

		part (20)

		participation (1)

		particular (5)

		particularly (2)

		partly (1)

		partner (1)

		partners (2)

		parts (4)

		past (2)

		patchiness (1)

		path (2)

		paths (1)

		pattern (1)

		patterns (1)

		pause (1)

		Pawcatuck (1)

		PCBs (1)

		peak (2)

		pending (2)

		penetration (1)

		people (44)

		per (3)

		percent (9)

		percentage (1)

		perfect (1)

		perhaps (5)

		period (17)

		periods (7)

		permanent (2)

		Permitted (1)

		permitting (1)

		person (5)

		personal (1)

		personally (1)

		perspective (1)

		phase (2)

		phone (2)

		picked (1)

		picture (5)

		pictures (2)

		piece (9)

		pieces (2)

		pipe (1)

		pipeline (2)

		piping (1)

		Pitney (1)

		place (4)

		places (6)

		plan (56)

		planned (1)

		planning (19)

		plans (19)

		plants (1)

		plate (1)

		plateaued (2)

		play (3)

		playing (1)

		plea (2)

		please (3)

		plenty (1)

		plot (13)

		plus (1)

		pm (3)

		point (29)

		points (5)

		policies (3)

		Policy (27)

		political (1)

		Pollution (2)

		Pomperaug (2)

		poor (1)

		pop (1)

		Pope (5)

		populate (1)

		population (8)

		portion (2)

		portions (1)

		posed (2)

		possibility (1)

		possible (3)

		possibly (2)

		potable (4)

		potential (4)

		Potomac (1)

		power (3)

		PowerPoint (1)

		practicable (1)

		practical (1)

		practically (1)

		pre (1)

		precip (2)

		precipitation (18)

		predicted (1)

		predominately (1)

		preliminary (1)

		premature (1)

		preparing (2)

		prerogative (1)

		present (7)

		presentation (9)

		presentations (3)

		presenting (1)

		pressures (1)

		pretty (10)

		preventing (1)

		previous (1)

		primarily (1)

		prior (1)

		priorities (6)

		priority (3)

		pristine (2)

		private (3)

		PRMS (10)

		probabilities (1)

		probability (2)

		Probably (15)

		problem (10)

		problems (9)

		procedures (1)

		proceed (2)

		proceedings (1)

		process (51)

		processes (4)

		processing (1)

		procurement (1)

		produce (1)

		producing (1)

		product (4)

		production (1)

		productive (1)

		professor (1)

		program (15)

		programming (1)

		programs (2)

		progress (2)

		project (16)

		projected (1)

		projections (3)

		properly (1)

		properties (2)

		proposal (4)

		proposals (1)

		proposed (5)

		protect (1)

		Protection (1)

		provide (5)

		provides (2)

		providing (3)

		provisions (1)

		Public (27)

		pulled (1)

		pump (3)

		pumped (3)

		pumping (11)

		PURA (3)

		purpose (2)

		purposes (2)

		pursue (1)

		pursuing (1)

		put (17)

		putting (2)



		Q

		qualification (1)

		qualities (1)

		quality (25)

		quantify (1)

		quantity (2)

		queue (2)

		quick (4)

		quicker (1)

		quickly (2)

		Quinebaug (1)

		Quinnipiac (1)

		quite (14)

		quote (1)



		R

		RADKA (8)

		rain (1)

		raising (1)

		range (5)

		ranged (1)

		rapid (1)

		rate (2)

		rates (1)

		rather (3)

		reach (1)

		react (1)

		reacted (1)

		Reaction (4)

		read (5)

		reading (3)

		reads (1)

		ready (2)

		real (11)

		real-time (1)

		real-world (2)

		realistically (1)

		reality (1)

		realize (2)

		realized (2)

		really (63)

		rearing (1)

		reason (4)

		reasonable (3)

		reasons (4)

		rebuilt (1)

		recall (2)

		recent (3)

		recess (1)

		reclaimed (1)

		recognition (1)

		recognize (1)

		recognizing (2)

		recommend (3)

		recommendation (5)

		recommendations (13)

		recompute (1)

		record (8)

		recording (1)

		records (4)

		recreation (1)

		recreational (3)

		recurrence (5)

		recycled (1)

		recycling (1)

		red (12)

		redo (1)

		redone (1)

		reduced (1)

		redundancy (1)

		reentered (1)

		refer (2)

		reference (5)

		referenced (1)

		references (1)

		referred (1)

		referring (1)

		refers (2)

		refine (1)

		refinement (2)

		reflect (1)

		reflects (2)

		reg (9)

		regarding (1)

		regional (6)

		regions (5)

		registrations (2)

		regression (2)

		regular (2)

		regulate (1)

		regulated (5)

		regulation (16)

		regulations (2)

		reins (1)

		relate (2)

		related (2)

		relates (1)

		relation (1)

		relatively (1)

		release (9)

		released (2)

		releases (5)

		relevant (1)

		remaining (1)

		remarks (1)

		remember (3)

		remind (1)

		remote (1)

		replaced (1)

		replenish (1)

		report (6)

		REPORTER (1)

		reports (1)

		represent (1)

		representation (1)

		representative (1)

		represented (3)

		requests (1)

		required (1)

		requirements (2)

		requires (1)

		reschedule (1)

		rescheduling (2)

		research (10)

		resend (1)

		reservoirs (3)

		resident (2)

		residential (3)

		resource (5)

		Resources (10)

		respectfully (1)

		respond (1)

		responded (1)

		responding (1)

		response (6)

		responsibilities (1)

		responsibility (2)

		responsible (4)

		rest (6)

		result (3)

		results (2)

		retain (1)

		retreat (1)

		return (4)

		returns (3)

		reuse (1)

		revenue (1)

		revise (1)

		revisit (1)

		RFP (1)

		rich (1)

		ride (1)

		right (49)

		right-hand (2)

		ripple (1)

		risk (1)

		River (20)

		rivers (6)

		road (5)

		Rob (4)

		ROBERT (20)

		robust (2)

		role (2)

		rolled (1)

		room (3)

		round (2)

		route (2)

		rules (2)

		run (12)

		running (1)

		runoff (4)



		S

		safety (2)

		Salmon (1)

		SAM (15)

		Sam's (1)

		same (9)

		sampled (1)

		samples (1)

		satisfy (1)

		Saugatuck (1)

		saw (3)

		saying (6)

		scale (10)

		scales (2)

		scenario (8)

		scenarios (8)

		scenes (1)

		scenic (1)

		schedule (6)

		scheduled (2)

		scheduling (2)

		schematic (1)

		science (15)

		scientist (1)

		scripts (1)

		se (1)

		seasonal (2)

		second (8)

		section (1)

		sections (2)

		sectors (1)

		seeing (3)

		seeking (1)

		seem (4)

		seems (3)

		sees (1)

		segment (1)

		segments (1)

		segue (1)

		select (2)

		self (2)

		sell (1)

		send (3)

		sense (5)

		sent (4)

		sentence (1)

		separate (3)

		September (6)

		series (4)

		serious (1)

		serve (2)

		server (1)

		Service (5)

		session (1)

		set (12)

		seven (1)

		seventeens (1)

		several (3)

		sewage (1)

		shall (2)

		share (3)

		shared (1)

		sharing (1)

		shed (1)

		shift (1)

		Shifting (1)

		ship (1)

		shipping (2)

		shoot (1)

		shoreline (1)

		shortages (1)

		show (11)

		showed (4)

		showing (3)

		shown (1)

		shows (7)

		side (16)

		sides (1)

		sift (1)

		sign (3)

		signal (1)

		signed (3)

		significant (7)

		similar (4)

		simple (4)

		simplified (1)

		simplifies (1)

		simplistic (2)

		simply (2)

		simulation (1)

		simulations (1)

		single (1)

		site (8)

		site-specific (5)

		sites (7)

		sitting (2)

		situation (2)

		situations (4)

		sixties (2)

		ski (1)

		skills (1)

		slash (1)

		slide (2)

		slides (6)

		slightly (1)

		slow (3)

		slowly (1)

		small (6)

		smiling (3)

		smooth (2)

		snapshot (1)

		snow (2)

		so-called (1)

		social (1)

		sold (1)

		solely (1)

		solid (3)

		solution (1)

		solve (7)

		solving (2)

		somebody (4)

		somehow (2)

		someone (2)

		sometimes (1)

		somewhat (3)

		somewhere (1)

		son (1)

		soon (2)

		sophisticated (1)

		sorry (5)

		sort (65)

		Sound (4)

		sounds (3)

		Source (2)

		sources (3)

		south (3)

		south-central (3)

		Southeast (2)

		southern (1)

		Southington (1)

		southwest (1)

		spatial (2)

		spawn (1)

		spawning (1)

		speak (3)

		speakers (1)

		speaks (2)

		specific (6)

		specifically (2)

		specificity (1)

		specifics (1)

		spectrum (1)

		speed (2)

		spelled (4)

		spells (1)

		spent (1)

		spoke (1)

		spot (1)

		spreadsheet (1)

		spreadsheets (2)

		spring (1)

		SSWUDS (16)

		Stacey (1)

		Stamford (4)

		standard (4)

		standards (3)

		standing (1)

		standpoint (2)

		start (14)

		started (9)

		starting (8)

		starts (3)

		State (67)

		State's (3)

		stated (2)

		States (11)

		statewide (4)

		static (2)

		stating (1)

		station (1)

		stations (3)

		statistic (1)

		statistical (3)

		statistics (11)

		stats (3)

		statute (1)

		statutory (1)

		stays (1)

		steam (1)

		steamflows (1)

		steel (1)

		Steering (34)

		step (5)

		steps (2)

		Still (11)

		storage (4)

		store (1)

		stores (1)

		storm (2)

		straight (2)

		strategy (3)

		stream (51)

		streambed (1)

		streamflow (43)

		streamflows (1)

		streaming (1)

		streams (20)

		stress (3)

		stressed (1)

		stressors (1)

		strike (1)

		strikes (1)

		strive (1)

		structure (3)

		struggled (1)

		study (3)

		stuff (5)

		subcommittee (8)

		subcommittee's (1)

		subgroup (1)

		subgroup's (1)

		subject (2)

		subjective (1)

		submitted (4)

		submitting (1)

		substance (1)

		substantially (1)

		substantive (1)

		subsumed (1)

		subtract (1)

		Suffolk (6)

		suggest (1)

		suggested (2)

		suggesting (3)

		suggestion (1)

		Sullivan (12)

		summarizing (1)

		summary (1)

		summed (1)

		summer (6)

		supervision (1)

		supplied (2)

		supplier (1)

		suppliers (3)

		supplies (1)

		supply (24)

		supplying (1)

		support (2)

		supported (3)

		supposed (1)

		Supreme (1)

		sure (27)

		surface (7)

		surrogate (3)

		Survey (3)

		surveyed (1)

		sustainable (2)

		SYE (4)

		synthetic (2)

		System (22)

		systems (2)



		T

		table (13)

		tackle (1)

		talk (21)

		talked (7)

		talking (16)

		talks (2)

		tap (1)

		targeted (1)

		targets (1)

		task (2)

		taxpayers (1)

		team (2)

		tech (1)

		technical (7)

		techno (1)

		technologically (1)

		technology (5)

		telling (2)

		tells (1)

		template (1)

		temporal (1)

		ten (5)

		ten-day (1)

		ten-year (2)

		tend (1)

		term (2)

		terms (15)

		terrific (1)

		Texas (2)

		Thames (1)

		Thanks (5)

		therefore (2)

		thermal (1)

		thier (1)

		thinking (7)

		third (3)

		Thompsonville (1)

		though (4)

		thought (7)

		thoughts (7)

		three (19)

		three-dimensional (1)

		throughout (7)

		throw (1)

		thrown (1)

		tidal (1)

		tied (1)

		tiered (1)

		ties (1)

		timeframes (1)

		times (5)

		timescale (1)

		timing (1)

		today (22)

		today's (1)

		together (8)

		told (2)

		Tom (1)

		Tony (1)

		took (5)

		tool (14)

		tools (15)

		top (3)

		topic (2)

		total (6)

		totally (1)

		touched (1)

		touching (1)

		toward (2)

		towards (1)

		tower (1)

		towers (2)

		town (2)

		towns (2)

		track (4)

		tracked (1)

		trained (1)

		tranche (1)

		transcribed (1)

		transcriber (1)

		transcribers (1)

		transcript (2)

		transfer (1)

		transferred (1)

		transfers (1)

		transient (2)

		transition (3)

		transmissivity (1)

		transparent (1)

		travel (1)

		traveling (2)

		trenches (1)

		trend (10)

		trends (3)

		triangles (2)

		tricks (1)

		tried (1)

		trouble (1)

		true (2)

		trumps (1)

		try (11)

		trying (9)

		Tuesday (3)

		turn (1)

		turned (1)

		turtles (1)

		tweak (1)

		two (22)

		two-year (8)

		type (11)

		types (8)

		typical (2)

		typically (1)



		U

		UConn (2)

		ugly (1)

		ultimate (2)

		ultimately (4)

		umbrella (1)

		un-impacted (1)

		un-redacted (1)

		unaltered (1)

		unanimous (1)

		unconfined (1)

		under (12)

		underlying (2)

		underrepresented (2)

		understands (1)

		understood (2)

		underway (1)

		Unfortunately (1)

		ungauged (6)

		unique (1)

		United (5)

		universe (1)

		University (1)

		Unless (2)

		unregulated (1)

		unusual (1)

		up (65)

		up-to-date (1)

		update (10)

		updated (4)

		updates (1)

		updating (2)

		upland (1)

		uploading (1)

		upon (6)

		upper (5)

		ups (1)

		upset (1)

		upward (2)

		use (62)

		used (22)

		useful (8)

		users (2)

		uses (11)

		USGS (17)

		using (10)

		utilities (1)

		utility (2)

		utilize (1)

		utilizing (1)



		V

		vaguely (1)

		valuable (5)

		value (2)

		values (3)

		variability (3)

		variance (2)

		variation (4)

		variations (1)

		variety (4)

		various (6)

		vary (4)

		verifiability (2)

		verify (5)

		version (2)

		versus (2)

		vertical (1)

		via (1)

		view (3)

		viewing (1)

		vigorous (1)

		Virgina (1)

		VIRGINIA (57)

		virtue (1)

		vis-a-vis (1)

		visualize (1)

		VITAGLIANO (2)

		Voccolina (2)

		voices (1)

		voiding (1)

		volume (6)

		volunteering (1)

		votes (2)

		vulnerabilities (2)

		vulnerability (1)

		vulnerable (1)



		W

		wait (1)

		walk (1)

		wants (2)

		warm (1)

		WARNER (10)

		Washington (1)

		waste (6)

		wasted (2)

		wastewater (3)

		wasting (1)

		watch (2)

		Water (197)

		water-rich (2)

		waters (1)

		Watershed (11)

		watersheds (8)

		way (28)

		ways (4)

		wealth (1)

		Weather (2)

		web (1)

		website (16)

		websites (1)

		Wednesday (1)

		week (5)

		weeks (1)

		Welcome (3)

		wells (13)

		weren't (6)

		West (1)

		WESTBROOK (13)

		western (1)

		wet (6)

		what's (21)

		what-if (1)

		whatnot (1)

		where's (1)

		Whereupon (2)

		whispering (1)

		who's (6)

		whole (16)

		wild (4)

		willing (1)

		withdrawal (2)

		withdrawals (7)

		withdrawing (2)

		withdrawn (1)

		within (6)

		without (1)

		wondered (1)

		wonderful (1)

		wondering (2)

		word (2)

		worded (1)

		words (2)

		work (24)

		workgroup (9)

		workgroups (4)

		working (10)

		workload-wise (1)

		Works (2)

		workshop (5)

		worth (3)

		wrangling (1)

		write (2)

		writing (2)

		wrong (3)



		X

		XY (1)



		Y

		Yale (1)

		year (10)

		years (22)

		yellow (1)

		yesterday (6)

		yield (2)

		yields (1)

		York (2)



		Z

		Zimmerman (1)










In The Matter Of:
WATER PLANNING COUNCIL STEERING COMMITTEE


Hearing


September 24, 2015


BCT Reporting LLC


PO Box 1774


Bristol, CT 06010


860.302.1876


Original File 24Sept2015 PURA-Water Planning.txt


Min-U-Script®







1


 1
  


 2
  


 3
  


 4                STATE OF CONNECTICUT
  


 5             DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY AND
  


 6              ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
  


 7       PUBLIC UTILITIES REGULATORY AUTHORITY
  


 8
  


 9     WATER PLANNING COUNCIL STEERING COMMITTEE
  


10
  


11
  


12          Meeting held at the State of
  


13   Connecticut, Department of Energy and
  


14   Environmental Protection, Public Utilities
  


15   Regulatory Authority, 10 Franklin Square, New
  


16   Britain, Connecticut, on September 24, 2015,
  


17   beginning at 1 p.m.
  


18   H e l d   B e f o r e:
  


19    JOHN W. BETKOSKI, III, THE HEARING OFFICER,
  


20                 PURA VICE CHAIRMAN
  


21
  


22
  


23
  


24
  


25
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 1   A p p e a r a n c e s:
  


 2        ELLEN BLASCHINSKI, DPH
  


 3        DAVID LeVASSEUR, OPM
  


 4        ERIC LINDQUIST, OPM
  


 5        MATTHEW PAFFORD, OPM
  


 6        SAM GOLD, CT River Council of
  


 7        Governments
  


 8        VIRGINIA DE LIMA,
  


 9        USGS & University of Hartford
  


10        ANDREW LORD, CT Water Pollution
  


11        Control Authority
  


12        ROBERT MOORE, Chair policy subcommittee
  


13        LARRY BINGAMAN, South Central Regional
  


14        Water Authority
  


15        MAUREEN WESTBROOK,
  


16        Connecticut Water Company
  


17        MARGARET MINER, Rivers Alliance of CT
  


18        ELIN SWANSON KATZ, OCC
  


19        ELIZABETH BARTON,
  


20        Day Pitney, LLP (via telephone)
  


21        JULIE ZIMMERMAN,
  


22        Yale University (via telephone)
  


23        JON MORRISON, USGS
  


24        MICHAEL J. SULLIVAN, DEEP
  


25        CORINNE FITTING, DEEP
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 1   A p p e a r a n c e s:(cont'd)
  


 2        CHRIS BELLUCCI, DEEP
  


 3        ROBERT HUST, DEEP
  


 4        GLENN WARNER, CT Water Resources
  


 5        DAVID RADKA, Connecticut Water
  


 6        Company
  


 7        NICHOLAS NEELEY, PURA
  


 8        GAIL LUCCHINA, PURA
  


 9        JOHN HUDAK, Regional Water Authority
  


10        LORI VITAGLIANO, Regional Water
  


11        Authority
  


12        BETSY GARA, CT Water Works
  


13        Association
  


14        ALICEA CHARAMUT, CT River Watershed
  


15        Council
  


16        JOE McGEE, Business Council of Fairfield
  


17        County (via telephone)
  


18
  


19
  


20
  


21
  


22
  


23
  


24
  


25
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 1                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Not
  


 2   everyone is here yet, but in the interest of
  


 3   those that are here I believe that we will
  


 4   bring this meeting of the Steering Committee to
  


 5   order.  And I believe everyone knows everyone
  


 6   here.  A couple of things --
  


 7                  Lisa, who do we have on the
  


 8   phone?
  


 9                  THE CLERK:  We have Beth Barton
  


10   from Day Pitney and Julie Zimmerman from Yale
  


11   University.
  


12                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.
  


13   Welcome and since we just announced, here we're
  


14   going to start going around the room and saying
  


15   who's here from the Council.
  


16                  I'm Jack Betkoski, Chair of the
  


17   Council.
  


18                  ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  Ellen
  


19   Blaschinski with the Department of Public
  


20   Health.
  


21                  DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Dave Levasseur
  


22   with the Office of Policy and Management.
  


23                  SAM GOLD:  Sam Gold, River COG.
  


24                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Virgina de
  


25   Lima, Steering Committee, subgroup of science
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 1   and technical.
  


 2                  ANDREW LORD:  Andrew Lord,
  


 3   Connection Association of Water Pollution
  


 4   Control Authorities and the Connecticut Water
  


 5   Pollution Abatement Association.
  


 6                  ROBERT MOORE:  Bob Moore with
  


 7   the Steering Committee, and Chair of the policy
  


 8   subcommittee.
  


 9                  LARRY BINGAMAN:  Larry Bingaman
  


10   with the regional water authority.
  


11                  MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  Maureen
  


12   Westbrook with the Connecticut Water Company,
  


13   and cochair with my partner in crime there,
  


14   Margaret Miner for the advisory group.
  


15                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  And just
  


16   being joined by Margaret Miner and Elin Katz
  


17   from the Consumer Counsel for the State of
  


18   Connecticut.
  


19                  Why don't we -- people in the
  


20   room just since, starting with -- here
  


21   introduce yourself, please.
  


22                  ERIC LINDQUIST:  I'm Eric
  


23   Lindquist from the Office of Policy and
  


24   Management.
  


25                  JON MORRISON:  Jon Morrison,
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 1   U.S. Geological Survey.
  


 2                  CORINNE FITTING:  Corinne
  


 3   Fitting, Connecticut DEEP.
  


 4                  ROBERT HUST:  Rob Hust,
  


 5   Connecticut DEEP.
  


 6                  GLENN WARNER:  Glenn Warner,
  


 7   Connecticut Still Water Resources.
  


 8                  DAVID RADKA:  David Radka,
  


 9   Connecticut Water Company.
  


10                  NICHOLAS NEELEY:  Nick Neeley,
  


11   PURA.
  


12                  GAIL LUCCHINA:  Gail Lucchina,
  


13   PURA.
  


14                  JOHN HUDAK:  John Hudak,
  


15   regional water authority.
  


16                  ELIZABETH GARA:  Betsy Gara,
  


17   Connecticut Water Works Association.
  


18                  LORI VITAGLIANO:  Lori
  


19   Vitagliano, the regional water authority.
  


20                  ALICEA CHARAMUT:  Alicea
  


21   Charamut, Connecticut River Watershed Council.
  


22                  CHRIS BELLUCCI:  Chris Bellucci,
  


23   Connecticut DEEP.
  


24                  MATTHEW PAFFORD:  Matt Pafford,
  


25   Office of Policy and Management.
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 1                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Very good.
  


 2   Welcome to everyone, and I appreciate everybody
  


 3   being here today.  And we have a very extensive
  


 4   agenda here this afternoon.
  


 5                  But before we begin, first of
  


 6   all I want to apologize for rescheduling this,
  


 7   the meeting that we had scheduled earlier this
  


 8   month.  And there was good reason for doing
  


 9   that -- and actually money.  And our money man
  


10   is sitting next to me here, and he's going to
  


11   give a little bit of an explanation of that.
  


12                  And again, I know once you
  


13   have -- that you're all very busy people and I
  


14   know when you get things on your schedule you'd
  


15   like to keep them as they are, but sometimes
  


16   there are circumstances beyond our control.
  


17                  And I'm going to turn it over to
  


18   Dave LeVasseur to give a little bit of an
  


19   explanation of how we got the money, where the
  


20   money is at, and where we're going to go moving
  


21   forward in terms of utilizing these funds.
  


22                  DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Well, and also
  


23   I wanted to add onto Jack's comments.  When he
  


24   talked about the week before, the September 1st
  


25   meeting there were a number of balls in the
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 1   air.  The bond money was one of them.
  


 2                  We really didn't feel -- we had
  


 3   a not a lot of committee reports to bring to
  


 4   the table.  While we had had a preliminary
  


 5   discussion with Nyquist, we really didn't feel
  


 6   we had an opportunity to discuss the various
  


 7   contracting options going forward.  And quite
  


 8   frankly, when we looked at the agenda we
  


 9   realized that basically the only real items
  


10   that would have been on it would have been the
  


11   two presentations that you're going to see
  


12   today.
  


13                  And quite frankly, in view of
  


14   the fact that we know that our members are
  


15   extremely busy and have time commitments
  


16   elsewhere, and a number of them are, quite
  


17   frankly, traveling from pretty extensive
  


18   distances to get here, we felt in the interests
  


19   of time it was better to reschedule until we
  


20   had some closure to some of those elements.
  


21   And we could actually have a meeting that had
  


22   some meaning and some substance to it, as
  


23   opposed to just viewing a couple of
  


24   presentations.
  


25                  So that sort of was the
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 1   background behind that all.  Since then, of
  


 2   course, the bond agenda has come out and we now
  


 3   know that the bond commission has as the first
  


 4   item, on its agenda next Tuesday, the first
  


 5   tranche of $500,000 of bond money toward
  


 6   producing a statewide water plan.  So now that
  


 7   we've got some money we can actually start
  


 8   talking about the next steps.
  


 9                  So our goal is once we make sure
  


10   that we actually get through the bond
  


11   commission on Tuesday of next week, is to work
  


12   internally within OPM to come up with a number
  


13   of different options around the core functions
  


14   that we think we're going to need for
  


15   contracting purposes going forward.
  


16                  For instance, if you guys focus
  


17   on my e-mails about the bond money you realize
  


18   that we've established at least three core
  


19   functions, which may or may not be done by one
  


20   or two individuals or entities.  But we figured
  


21   it was better to knock down the disciplines
  


22   first, obviously a consultant to actually write
  


23   the plan.  And we are going to need day-to-day
  


24   supervision of that consultant to keep them on
  


25   track.
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 1                  And then of course, quite
  


 2   frankly, we, as all of you know, we haven't had
  


 3   a project manager on board since the first of
  


 4   September, and that's another critical
  


 5   component.  And I'm not suggesting at the end
  


 6   of the day that an entity couldn't do more than
  


 7   one of those functions.  But quite frankly, we
  


 8   figured they really called for separate
  


 9   disciplines.
  


10                  So our hope is that by the next
  


11   Steering Committee meeting we'll have a number
  


12   of different recommend -- a number of different
  


13   options that we can follow and some specific
  


14   recommendations for the Steering Committee to
  


15   endorse us going forward in terms of hiring the
  


16   appropriate consultants.  So that's sort of
  


17   where we're headed now.
  


18                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you,
  


19   David.
  


20                  Any questions or comments?
  


21                  Maureen?
  


22                  MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  Just when
  


23   you say by the next Steering Committee, you've
  


24   got a number of options of how you approach it,
  


25   or of specific firms or entities to use?
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 1                  DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Probably types
  


 2   of entities in the procurement process, because
  


 3   it's extremely complicated at the state level
  


 4   and there are a number of different ways we can
  


 5   proceed.
  


 6                  So quite frankly, it's so
  


 7   complicated that it's going to take us a while
  


 8   to cut through what happens depending upon who
  


 9   you hire and in what capacity, and for what
  


10   purpose.  So that's our game plan for the next
  


11   Steering Committee meeting.
  


12                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Margaret?
  


13                  MARGARET MINER:  So what are we
  


14   deciding today, and what at the next Steering
  


15   Committee meeting?
  


16                  DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Well, I don't
  


17   think we're deciding anything.
  


18                  MARGARET MINER:  Nothing today?
  


19                  DAVID LeVASSEUR:  No.
  


20                  MARGARET MINER:  And will we get
  


21   as you -- it does seem that having a project
  


22   manager and a separate person keeping, holding
  


23   the reins on the -- are guiding the person
  


24   who's writing.  That's three people.  It does
  


25   seem excessive.
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 1                  As you work on it will you keep
  


 2   the Steering Committee involved in what they
  


 3   should be seeing and --
  


 4                  DAVID LeVASSEUR:  The Steering
  


 5   Committee is going to get to recommend -- what
  


 6   we've flushed out, the various paths that we
  


 7   can come to and then our recommendations as to
  


 8   how to proceed.  So the Steering Committee will
  


 9   be deciding that at the next Steering Committee
  


10   meeting.
  


11                  MARGARET MINER:  But we'll get
  


12   information well before the meeting.  Am I
  


13   right?
  


14                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Oh, yeah.
  


15   And by the way, Margaret, I'm not sure you
  


16   described that appropriately in terms of how --
  


17   we're looking at you might have a project
  


18   manager.  There might be different paradigms
  


19   that have got to be set up.  So I mean, we want
  


20   to come up with the most efficient, effective
  


21   way of doing this.
  


22                  You know, Tom Callahan, quite
  


23   frankly, did a great job to kind of get us off
  


24   the ground here, but he's kind of in limbo
  


25   right at UConn.  And we might have more in
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 1   terms of his availability in November as well,
  


 2   because there's been a transition over in the
  


 3   management team there.
  


 4                  DAVID LeVASSEUR:  They're still
  


 5   in transition.  So --
  


 6                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  They're
  


 7   still in transition there.  So if that had not
  


 8   happened we might have been in a different
  


 9   place from a project management standpoint.
  


10                  MARGARET MINER:  Okay.  So all
  


11   those contracts are coming up.
  


12                  The SSWUDS.  I forget -- has
  


13   that been signed?  Are we going to see that
  


14   today?  Are we seeing a presentation?
  


15                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yes.
  


16                  MARGARET MINER:  And has that
  


17   been signed or is that still pending?
  


18                  DAVID LeVASSEUR:  I have no idea
  


19   who's supposed to sign off on it.
  


20                  ROBERT HUST:  You're talking
  


21   about the grant?
  


22                  MARGARET MINER:  Source water
  


23   site-specific, et cetera, et cetera.  The
  


24   SSWUDS program --
  


25                  MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  The
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 1   proposal.
  


 2                  MARGARET MINER:  The proposal.
  


 3                  MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  The grant
  


 4   application that's been submitted to --
  


 5                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Excuse me.
  


 6   We have been joined by Deputy Commissioner
  


 7   Michael Sullivan from the Department of Energy
  


 8   and Environmental Protection who can shed light
  


 9   on that wonderful subject.  Michael, good
  


10   afternoon.
  


11                  MICHAEL J. SULLIVAN:  Good
  


12   afternoon.
  


13                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  By the
  


14   way, this is all transcribed today.  Those of
  


15   you up here, you don't have to say your name.
  


16   Those of you in the audience when you talk,
  


17   help Rob out here and say your name and who
  


18   you're with -- at least once, right Rob?
  


19                  THE REPORTER:  Yes, at least
  


20   once.  It would be helpful.  There's a lot
  


21   potential speakers in here.
  


22                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  We've got
  


23   one of the best transcribers going by the way.
  


24   He's really good.  So watch what you say today.
  


25   It's all going to become a matter of record.







15


 1                  MICHAEL J. SULLIVAN:  My name
  


 2   really is Michael Sullivan.  And Jack was
  


 3   directing his remarks to me, since I insist on
  


 4   telling everybody who I am every time I speak.
  


 5                  We've submitted the application,
  


 6   Margaret, and as far as I know there's been no
  


 7   decision on that.  So the application is
  


 8   pending on the SSWUDS.
  


 9                  MARGARET MINER:  Okay.  That's
  


10   what I was wondering.  Thank you.
  


11                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  And just to
  


12   clarify, who are you submitting an application
  


13   to?
  


14                  MICHAEL J. SULLIVAN:  I believe
  


15   it's to the Department of Housing, Right?
  


16                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yeah.
  


17                  MICHAEL J. SULLIVAN:  Right.
  


18   The state Department of Housing.
  


19                  ELIN KATZ:  Margaret, I guess I
  


20   respectfully disagree.  I think this is an
  


21   incredibly important project.  We all have
  


22   other responsibilities.  And jobs in having a
  


23   team of people, whether it's one or two or
  


24   three people on such an important document
  


25   that's going to have a long-standing impact on







16


 1   Connecticut is appropriate.  It doesn't feel
  


 2   overstaffed to me.
  


 3                  And I, you know, they always
  


 4   say, if you want a good product from a
  


 5   consultant you've got to be a good client and I
  


 6   think we need a good client, because we need to
  


 7   be a good client who's managing the process,
  


 8   which is very difficult to do by committee.  So
  


 9   I think it's a good plan as you guys have laid
  


10   out.
  


11                  MARGARET MINER:  It may be.  I
  


12   think we all agree we're looking for efficiency
  


13   and a good plan.
  


14                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Right.
  


15   Virginia, do you have something to say?  Okay.
  


16   You look like you're ready to say something.
  


17   No?  Okay.
  


18                  Any other questions or comments
  


19   on this item -- which is good news.  And when
  


20   you've been reading what's in the newspaper
  


21   lately in terms of money in the State of
  


22   Connecticut, we're in a good spot to be getting
  


23   this money released next week.
  


24                  So okay.  We're going to move
  


25   onto a presentation from the U.S. Geological
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 1   Survey.  It will give us a little bit of an
  


 2   overview of water resources.  SSWUDS,
  


 3   sustainable yield and stream.
  


 4                  JON MORRISON:  Yeah, it's kind
  


 5   of a daunting list of things I have to present
  


 6   on.
  


 7                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  There's a
  


 8   lot on your plate today.
  


 9                  LARRY BINGAMAN:  Will there be
  


10   copies of these slides available?
  


11                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Can we get
  


12   copies of these slides?
  


13                  JON MORRISON:  Yeah, it's on the
  


14   computer here.  So if you want to take the
  


15   presentation afterwards it's already loaded on
  


16   this computer.  So if there's another way you
  


17   want me to get you the slides I can do that as
  


18   well.  E-mail it?
  


19                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yeah, if
  


20   you could e-mail it.  Yeah.
  


21                  Actually Gail, would you give
  


22   him your e-mail afterwards so we could get it
  


23   out to the Steering Committee, please.  Thank
  


24   you.
  


25                  JON MORRISON:  So with that long
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 1   list of things that I have to present on, first
  


 2   of all, my name is Jon Morrison.  I'm with the
  


 3   U.S. Geological Survey.
  


 4                  With that long list of things
  


 5   that I have to present on I'm going to be kind
  


 6   of brief -- try to be brief since we also have
  


 7   a very long agenda.
  


 8                  The first thing I wanted to talk
  


 9   about is the state of water resources in
  


10   Connecticut, and in order to do that I think we
  


11   really need to start with the precipitation
  


12   data.  Our good friends at the National Weather
  


13   Service have been keeping precipitation data
  


14   records since about 1901, at least for
  


15   Hartford.  And they've had this long record of
  


16   annual precipitation values up to present.
  


17                  And if you look at that, that
  


18   plot, what you can see is that the long-term
  


19   average that they've calculated out is
  


20   46.87 inches per year over the period 1901 to
  


21   2000.  But what's interesting in that plot is
  


22   that since 1970 to present there seems to be
  


23   fewer low years than there were in the period
  


24   prior to that.  So this, there's almost a step
  


25   trend in increasing precipitation that starts
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 1   around 1970.
  


 2                  And sorry for you guys that I'm
  


 3   standing in your way.
  


 4                  And so that's kind of an
  


 5   interesting point that happens to coincide with
  


 6   the streamflow.  And I'll show you that when we
  


 7   talk about streamflow in just a minute.
  


 8                  And what you can see in that,
  


 9   that plot with the precipitation is that here
  


10   in the 1960s, the middle 1960s we had the
  


11   longest drought we've had in the state of
  


12   Connecticut, the historic drought.  And right
  


13   after that drought we went into this step trend
  


14   in 1970 with increasing precipitation.
  


15                  So the USGS has three data
  


16   collection networks that we use to assess the
  


17   water resources of Connecticut.  We have the
  


18   surface water stream gauging network, which is
  


19   in the upper left-hand side.  We have our
  


20   groundwater ambient water level monitoring
  


21   network, which is in the upper right-hand side.
  


22   And we have a water quality monitoring network
  


23   that we operate as well.  And all three of
  


24   these networks we operate with the Connecticut
  


25   DEEP as a cooperative agency.  And I'll talk
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 1   about the funding on some of these networks as
  


 2   we go through each one.
  


 3                  So the real-time streamflow
  


 4   conditions, this is a product of the USGS
  


 5   that's off our website.  What you can see is we
  


 6   have a map that shows the distribution of
  


 7   stream gauges with some color coding that show
  


 8   what the current conditions of those streams
  


 9   are.  And those values range from red, which is
  


10   on the dry side, to black, blue-black which is
  


11   on the wet side.
  


12                  We don't see too many
  


13   blue-blacks on there right now.  Most of the
  


14   state is in the red, red condition.  There is
  


15   one blue one, which means that that station has
  


16   a higher flow than is typical for this time of
  


17   year.
  


18                  So being that it's September
  


19   it's the typical low period in streamflow in
  


20   Connecticut.  It's not unusual for a lot of our
  


21   stations to be in this red condition.  When we
  


22   get into this bright red condition and we get
  


23   into the 1 percent flow duration, then things
  


24   get a little bit more interesting.
  


25                  And right now the USGS data is
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 1   updated every hour, so that this data continues
  


 2   to update on the web once an hour with the most
  


 3   recent data that's available.  And this is as
  


 4   of yesterday afternoon.
  


 5                  So if you looked at any one
  


 6   given site what you can see is the streamflow
  


 7   record for that site.  The blue line is the
  


 8   hydrograph of the instantaneous streamflow.
  


 9   The X axis is the date.  The Y axis is the
  


10   streamflow.  And this is for a site at Bunnell
  


11   Brook near Burlington.
  


12                  And so what you get when you
  


13   click on one of these sites is you can see just
  


14   what the streamflow is today, what it's been
  


15   for the past few days.  It typically comes up
  


16   with a ten-day plot to let you know what's
  


17   going on.
  


18                  The yellow triangles across the
  


19   plot are the daily mean -- or the median daily
  


20   flow.  That statistic for this site is based on
  


21   82 years of record, so each day is a
  


22   compilation of the 82 September seventeens.  So
  


23   it's the median value there.  So what you get
  


24   when you look at that data is, you could say,
  


25   based on the streamflow we have today we're
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 1   pretty much lower than we have been most of the
  


 2   time.
  


 3                  You can also change the
  


 4   timescale to look at longer periods of time.
  


 5   If we go back to basically the beginning of
  


 6   July we can see that we've had a pretty dry
  


 7   summer when we look at that plot, but yet we're
  


 8   still below the median flowline for most of the
  


 9   summer, July, August and September.  Okay?
  


10                  The streamflow statistics are
  


11   extremely important when we begin to look at
  


12   hydrologic resources in the state of
  


13   Connecticut.  Okay?  Our streams are really
  


14   valuable to us for a number of uses.
  


15                  So this long-term record
  


16   provides us the ability to do statistics and
  


17   look at flow durations, annual exceedance
  


18   probabilities for both high and low flows and
  


19   know what we can expect for streamflows for
  


20   certain streams throughout the state of
  


21   Connecticut.
  


22                  This is for Bunnell Brook again.
  


23   This is the period of January 10th, through --
  


24   January of 2010 through January 2012, basically
  


25   a two-year period.
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 1                  And if you look at high flow
  


 2   statistics in this period of time, what I've
  


 3   put up is the two-year recurrence interval for
  


 4   the annual exceedance probability of a two-year
  


 5   storm or flood, and the ten-year flood.  And
  


 6   that's the green and the red lines on that
  


 7   map -- or on that graph.
  


 8                  So the green horizontal line
  


 9   across the top is the two-year recurrence
  


10   interval.  And if you look at this two-year
  


11   period you see about ten occurrences of the
  


12   two-year flood in that period of time.  And you
  


13   can also see that there's about four to --
  


14   three to four ten-year recurrence intervals in
  


15   that two-year period of time as well.
  


16                  So this reflects a fairly wet
  


17   year, or a couple of wet years.  Okay?  But it
  


18   does look at how important these statistics
  


19   are.  Okay?  And the longer we collect data the
  


20   more valuable those statistics are.
  


21                  And we begin to look at
  


22   long-term datasets and we look at inter-decadal
  


23   and multi-decadal cycles and streamflow and
  


24   precipitation.  We have to have long periods of
  


25   records to be able to do that.  Okay?  These
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 1   are extremely valuable.
  


 2                  So just because we had those
  


 3   floods there it doesn't mean that we're going
  


 4   to have to redo all the statistics -- we
  


 5   probably should because of that step trend in
  


 6   1970 that might say we're starting to see
  


 7   higher flows more frequently.  But it does tell
  


 8   us that there's certainly an environmental
  


 9   signal in these years, that these were wet
  


10   years.  Okay?
  


11                  This is a plot from 400 sites
  


12   across the United States, from stream gauges
  


13   from 400 sites across the United States that
  


14   was compiled by the USGS.  What this is in the
  


15   top plot, the A, the maximum, this is
  


16   departures from average -- or normal, or median
  


17   of the maximum peak flows.
  


18                  And what you can see is right
  


19   around 1970 the bar chart flips and we start to
  


20   have much more departures for peak flows
  


21   starting at around 1970.  The middle plot, the
  


22   B, which is the median flows, also starts to
  


23   flip over and it's mostly represented by
  


24   increases in median streamflow.
  


25                  And then in the bottom in the
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 1   minimum flows as well we see more increases in
  


 2   minimum streamflow since 1970, and this
  


 3   coincides to that step trend that we saw in the
  


 4   precipitation data.  Okay?
  


 5                  This is a distribution of
  


 6   reference gauges that we have around the state
  


 7   of Connecticut.  Not all of them are active.
  


 8   Some of them have been discontinued already,
  


 9   but this gives you what the geographic
  


10   representation is of most of the stream gauges
  


11   that we used to do these, these statistics on.
  


12   And as you can see, the southern counties are
  


13   fairly underrepresented in that, in that
  


14   distribution.
  


15                  One of the vulnerabilities that
  


16   we have is right now with our long-term
  


17   streamflow records the number of gauges with 50
  


18   or plus more years is fairly low.  We're at
  


19   about 15 gauges that have more than 50 years
  


20   worth of streamflow record.  Okay?  So this
  


21   does make the network a little bit vulnerable
  


22   to looking at long-term changes in streamflow.
  


23                  Shifting gears now, this is our
  


24   groundwater network.  This is the distribution
  


25   of groundwater observation wells that we have
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 1   throughout the state of Connecticut.  And you
  


 2   can see that there's also a little bit of
  


 3   patchiness in that distribution.  The northeast
  


 4   corner is somewhat underrepresented.
  


 5                  But this is a network of 74
  


 6   stream -- or groundwater wells that we have in
  


 7   the state of Connecticut.  Of them, ten have
  


 8   continuous recording data.  The rest are -- the
  


 9   other 64 are measured once a month.
  


10                  And just to kind of give you a
  


11   quick overview of the data that we can get out
  


12   of some of these groundwater wells, on the
  


13   left, this is one of our longer-term
  


14   groundwater observation wells, BU-2 in
  


15   Burlington.  And what you have there is the
  


16   distribution of the range that the groundwater
  


17   wells have been observed.
  


18                  So those colored bars indicate
  


19   what percent of time the measurements have been
  


20   in that range during that month.  And what you
  


21   can see is the little red triangles are the
  


22   most recent observation.  So in August we were
  


23   still in the normal range in Burlington for
  


24   groundwater levels, even though we've had a
  


25   fairly dry summer.
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 1                  And that, that illustrates how
  


 2   there is groundwater storage even though we've
  


 3   had a precipitation deficit.  We still have
  


 4   some groundwater storage.  Okay?  It would be
  


 5   interesting to see what our September
  


 6   measurement shows since we haven't had any rain
  


 7   even longer.  So that storage is being used up.
  


 8                  And on the plot, on the
  


 9   right-hand side what you can see is the
  


10   long-term data that goes back to the mid 1940s.
  


11   And so we have 60 years worth of record for
  


12   this well.  So we can look at what the annual
  


13   variation is in water level and we can compare
  


14   it to long-term periods.
  


15                  We can compare the groundwater
  


16   levels to the periods in the sixties when we
  


17   had those droughts, and we can compare it to
  


18   the wet years and the dry years.  And so this
  


19   data is extremely useful in analyzing what the
  


20   current conditions are.
  


21                  This is the distribution of our
  


22   water quality monitoring gauges.  We have 35
  


23   monitoring sites across the state of
  


24   Connecticut where we monitor water quality.
  


25   This network goes back to the 1960s, late 1960s
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 1   pre Clean Water Act.  It has a wealth of
  


 2   information that we have been mining to look at
  


 3   long-term trends in water quality.
  


 4                  1968, we had seven stations that
  


 5   were operating that we were collecting water
  


 6   quality data at.  Currently we have 35 stations
  


 7   and 28 of those are sampled at least monthly.
  


 8   The network has had it's ups and downs
  


 9   throughout the years, but right now it's
  


10   holding on, doing okay.
  


11                  So some of the information that
  


12   can come from this is we can look at long-term
  


13   trends in total nitrogen.  This is one of the
  


14   assessments that we've been doing for the Long
  


15   Island Sound program.  And what you can see is
  


16   the green line is a smooth line that tells you
  


17   what the actual concentration is in milligrams
  


18   per liter of total nitrogen in a variety of
  


19   different sites around the state.
  


20                  And so right here, this second
  


21   plot in, this is the Connecticut River at
  


22   Thompsonville showing a downward trend in total
  


23   nitrogen concentrations.
  


24                  This is the Quinebaug River.
  


25                  This is the Farmington River
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 1   which has had a downward trend, but has
  


 2   flattened out.
  


 3                  The Naugatuck River has had a
  


 4   significant downward trend as well.
  


 5                  But some of our reference basins
  


 6   like the Salmon River and the Saugatuck River
  


 7   and Bunnell Brook are starting to show a
  


 8   different pattern as far as nitrogen.  And we
  


 9   believe that these are associated with
  


10   residential development in these, what we call,
  


11   reference watersheds.  So some of the places
  


12   that have historically had some of our best
  


13   water quality are starting to show the effects
  


14   of residential development.
  


15                  Here's a plot of that Bunnell
  


16   Brook data in Burlington.  The dark black line
  


17   is total nitrogen from atmospheric deposition.
  


18   And since the mid-nineties there has been a
  


19   downward trend in atmospheric nitrogen
  


20   deposition based on the data that the USGS has
  


21   collected.
  


22                  However, even though there's a
  


23   downward trend in total nitrogen from the
  


24   atmosphere, that red line, which is the flow
  


25   normalized load of total nitrogen in the
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 1   stream, is actually showing an upward increase.
  


 2   And so that upward increase isn't the result of
  


 3   a wet year or anything like that.  It's
  


 4   actually the result of probably development
  


 5   pressures in that watershed.
  


 6                  The data collection programs are
  


 7   supported by a number of different agencies.
  


 8   The stream gauges have a variety of funding
  


 9   support.  The largest chunks come from the
  


10   Connecticut DEEP, who we operate most of our
  


11   networks with cooperatively.  We also get a
  


12   fair amount of federal funding from the
  


13   National Streamflow Information Program and the
  


14   Army Corps, as well as the USGS Cooperative
  


15   Water Program.
  


16                  But we have another whole group
  


17   of funding sources, which is private entities,
  


18   other state and regional partners, as well as
  


19   local towns and cities.  The groundwater
  


20   program is entirely supported by the USGS and
  


21   the Connecticut DEEP and the water quality
  


22   program is predominately supported by the USGS
  


23   and the Connecticut DEEP.  Okay?
  


24                  Over time these programs have
  


25   had fairly flat funding.  So that blue line has







31


 1   kind of plateaued, which is the funding that's
  


 2   come in from DEP and the water quality program.
  


 3   And the red line shows that the number of
  


 4   samples have actually decreased fairly
  


 5   substantially since the early nineties.  They
  


 6   have kind of plateaued right now as well.  So
  


 7   these networks are kind of holding their own,
  


 8   but they do have vulnerabilities for funding.
  


 9                  USGS also, every five years
  


10   there's a water use compilation.  The most
  


11   recent compilation was done for 2010 and this
  


12   is a compilation of estimated use of water in
  


13   the United States.  And it's done -- it has
  


14   breakouts by each state.
  


15                  Those estimated water use
  


16   categories are listed here.  There are public
  


17   supply, self supplied domestic, irrigation,
  


18   livestock, aquaculture, self supplied
  


19   industrial, mining and thermal electric power.
  


20   And so estimates of water use are aggregated
  


21   for these, for these categories and the USGS
  


22   has been doing this for the state of
  


23   Connecticut for some time.
  


24                  But these are only estimates and
  


25   they're poor estimates, I would say.  They're







32


 1   not based on real data, because the data is
  


 2   hard to get at.  We do the best we can.  We use
  


 3   population.  We use real data when we can find
  


 4   it, but there's so many gaps in the dataset
  


 5   that it's very difficult to compile all that
  


 6   data and feel that it's a real reasonable
  


 7   estimate right now.  We do the best we can.
  


 8                  So that brings us to the water
  


 9   use program, and what most of you really want
  


10   to hear about probably, which is SSWUDS.  So
  


11   Site Specific Water Use Data System.  It's part
  


12   of our national water information system.  It's
  


13   linked through our site files, so it's all
  


14   connected to the other networks that I just
  


15   described.  And SSWUDS stores data on water
  


16   users, withdrawals, transfers and returns in a
  


17   geographic information system.
  


18                  So it has the ability to store
  


19   monthly and annual withdrawal and return
  


20   values.  Okay?  Those, those data can be put in
  


21   those two timeframes and then it can calculate
  


22   loss and gain throughout various regions.
  


23                  SSWUDS can be used to do simple
  


24   modeling.  The output from SSWUDS is a little
  


25   bit ugly, so it doesn't fit in a nice, pretty
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 1   PowerPoint slide.  It generates fairly large,
  


 2   cumbersome spreadsheets.  But those
  


 3   spreadsheets can be mined using modern computer
  


 4   programming scripts to get out useful data.
  


 5                  And what you can do with it is
  


 6   you can set up models, basically.  And what it
  


 7   shows in this model is the conveyance.  Water
  


 8   is extracted at one point, transferred to a
  


 9   different location.  Multiple sources of water
  


10   may be extracted from different locations and
  


11   brought to that point.
  


12                  That point may go to a
  


13   distribution system and then come back to a
  


14   return flow where it's reentered into the
  


15   stream system.  So these conveyances are
  


16   tracked in the SSWUDS system so that it can do
  


17   these mass balance calculations and it can
  


18   provide that output for the users.  Okay?
  


19                  Conveyance models can be fairly
  


20   simple, like the model on the left which has a
  


21   simple withdrawal point, a use area, some lost
  


22   to the atmosphere and then a discharge point,
  


23   which is a fairly linear, simple model.  Or it
  


24   could be a more complicated model like the one
  


25   on the right, which shows the public supply and
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 1   wastewater.  You have withdrawals from multiple
  


 2   points.
  


 3                  You have drinking water service
  


 4   areas that may exchange water.  You have
  


 5   drinking water use areas that may serve
  


 6   multiple areas and then have multiple discharge
  


 7   points.  And it can handle all of that
  


 8   conveyance transfer based on the input data.
  


 9   Okay?  So if you have good input data you get
  


10   good output data with most models.
  


11                  What did Bach say?  All models
  


12   are bad.  Some are useful.
  


13                  So the sustainable yield
  


14   estimate, or the SYE program is another program
  


15   that was developed by the USGS that's embedded
  


16   in some of our stream stats applications
  


17   throughout the United States.  And so what this
  


18   does is it goes through a series of processes
  


19   to calculate a stream hydrograph at an ungauged
  


20   location.  And the way that it does that is
  


21   that you select the ungauged location and then
  


22   you get the catchment characteristics.
  


23                  And based on those
  


24   characteristics it computes a regression
  


25   equation which gives you a flow distribution
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 1   curve, which is right here.  And then that flow
  


 2   distribution curve is interpolated to give you
  


 3   a nice smooth flow duration curve.
  


 4                  At the same time you select a
  


 5   donor stream gauge, or reference gauge that is
  


 6   going to be matched to that ungauged location.
  


 7   You actually use the real streamflow
  


 8   information from the time series data.  Then
  


 9   you back out from that stream gauge, what its
  


10   flow distribution -- or flow duration curve
  


11   would be.
  


12                  You match the flow duration
  


13   curves and then you're back out with what would
  


14   actually be the discharge hydrograph from the
  


15   ungauged location at that point.  And so now
  


16   you have a hydrograph for your ungauged stream
  


17   based on a surrogate stream and the statistical
  


18   probability.  And so that's a very useful tool
  


19   if you want to start looking at what kind of
  


20   water you might have at a point in a stream.
  


21                  This, this is from work done by
  


22   Stacey Archfield in the USGS for an unaltered
  


23   stream.  Okay?  So if there's a lot of
  


24   diversion this does not handle that very well,
  


25   however you can add that and couple it with the
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 1   SSWUDS database, or in any other diversion
  


 2   database, and subtract or add any of those
  


 3   losses or gains of water based on your water
  


 4   use information to the hydrograph so that your
  


 5   hydrograph actually reflects where that water
  


 6   has gone and how much of that water has gone.
  


 7   Okay?
  


 8                  So here is the stream stats
  


 9   application in the upper picture and what it's
  


10   showing is that you define your watershed area
  


11   to a point that you're interested in on the
  


12   stream segment.  Then you delineate the
  


13   watershed.
  


14                  And that based on that watershed
  


15   delineation it goes through and it computes the
  


16   basin characteristics.  And then once you have
  


17   those basin characteristics you can do the
  


18   regression model to give you the flow duration
  


19   curve.  Okay?
  


20                  And it does this all on the fly
  


21   and it's a pretty cool system when it works.
  


22   It's being redone right now at the moment.  It
  


23   had some access issues, so vulnerability.  So
  


24   the tools are being rebuilt as we speak.  Okay?
  


25                  So what that does is it allows
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 1   you to produce a series of hydrographs and be
  


 2   able to look at them.  And so this is the
  


 3   qualification of that data.  So these are the
  


 4   gauges that were used throughout the
  


 5   Connecticut River as part of the Connecticut
  


 6   River un-impacted use tool.  And what it has
  


 7   done is it matched up the computed flow from
  


 8   the observed, versus the estimated streamflow,
  


 9   and done a statistical analysis to make sure
  


10   that they were behaving properly.
  


11                  On this plot the closer you get
  


12   to one the more perfect you are, so that these
  


13   are fairly high numbers.  And on these stream
  


14   hydrographs we have three different streams
  


15   that we've compared observed data for predicted
  


16   data for.  The bottom one being Bunnell Brook.
  


17   And you can see that the blue line is the
  


18   estimated streamflow from the program and the
  


19   red line is the observed flow, and that this
  


20   program does work very, very well.
  


21                  There's only a few periods of
  


22   time that there might be some exceedances
  


23   there.  So it is a robust tool.  It has a lot
  


24   of quality control built into it.
  


25                  All right.  And the last topic
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 1   was stream deplete.  So stream deplete is a
  


 2   tool that was built to look at what the
  


 3   potential effects on streamflow might be based
  


 4   on groundwater pumping in the nearby area.  And
  


 5   so what stream deplete does is it looks at the
  


 6   cumulative volume of water being pumped in a
  


 7   well.
  


 8                  So the image on the right is a
  


 9   model of the stream, the blue line, and two
  


10   wells at a distanced location A and B from the
  


11   stream.  And so based on the pumping volume of
  


12   those two wells we can calculate out how much
  


13   of the streamflow would come from those wells
  


14   based on how many days the wells were on.
  


15                  Now this, this program you need
  


16   a lot of input data to be able to do.  You have
  


17   to have a lot of model geometry about the wells
  


18   themselves.  This is not something you could
  


19   say, just run this for the entire state of
  


20   Connecticut.  This would be a well field by
  


21   well field specific application.
  


22                  So that if you used your other
  


23   tools and came up with a point in the river
  


24   where you said, there might be some issues with
  


25   the well possibly drying up the river, then you
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 1   could possibly run stream deplete and look at
  


 2   how many days if this well was pumped at a
  


 3   certain volume for a certain number of days,
  


 4   how much water would come out and what would
  


 5   happen to the streamflow.
  


 6                  So the real-world scenario is on
  


 7   the left.  We have a stream that intersects an
  


 8   aquifer.  The aquifer is supplying water to the
  


 9   stream for this scenario.  And the well is
  


10   located a certain distance away and that well
  


11   is being pumped at a certain rate.  And so this
  


12   is the real-world geometry.
  


13                  What stream deplete does is it
  


14   simplifies that geometry and really only looks
  


15   at that distance D, between the well and the
  


16   stream and it does an approximation for an
  


17   analytical solution to compute the amount of
  


18   water that would have come -- that would have
  


19   gone to the stream over to the well.  Okay?
  


20                  Factors that affect the
  


21   streamflow depletion by wells are the distance
  


22   to the pumping well from the stream, the
  


23   vertical depth that the pumping is occurring
  


24   at.  The type of aquifer, whether it's a
  


25   confined aquifer or a leaky aquifer or an
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 1   unconfined aquifer, the geometry and
  


 2   three-dimensional distribution of the boundary
  


 3   conditions for that aquifer, the depth of
  


 4   penetration of the stream into that aquifer,
  


 5   and then the hydraulic properties of the
  


 6   aquifer system, the stream beds and the stream
  


 7   banks.  How fast does water move through the
  


 8   stream, or through the materials that provide
  


 9   water for the stream?
  


10                  So like I said, this is not
  


11   something you would have a general application
  


12   to just run for the whole state, but it would
  


13   be done on a site-specific operation.
  


14                  There is a tool already built to
  


15   be able to do this.  On the left is the input
  


16   data, so you would provide the distance from --
  


17   the well is from the stream, what the
  


18   transmissivity of the material is, the storage
  


19   coefficient that is in the aquifer, the
  


20   streambed conductance and the pumping rate.
  


21   And then the number of days that you're going
  


22   to pump the well.
  


23                  And so what it does is it
  


24   calculates in the upper curve on the right how
  


25   much of the streamflow, what percent of the
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 1   streamflow it's going to be withdrawing out.
  


 2   And then you can apply that to the hydrograph,
  


 3   which is in the bottom example.
  


 4                  So if you had a small stream and
  


 5   you applied that level of pumping to it, you
  


 6   could see that by day 180 you might start to
  


 7   see some serious drawdown effects from what
  


 8   would have been the natural streamflow.  And at
  


 9   day 180 you can start to dewater a stream.
  


10                  And so it does have a lot of
  


11   utility for specific applications like this and
  


12   can help identify where you might have some
  


13   stressed situations, what would happen under
  


14   different scenarios.
  


15                  Okay.  I know I went through
  


16   that fast.
  


17                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  A lot of
  


18   information there.  Thank you very much.
  


19                  Any questions or follow up?
  


20                  JON MORRISON:  Margaret?
  


21                  MARGARET MINER:  Hi.  Thanks.
  


22   Thank you, USGS.
  


23                  I have two comments.  One, you
  


24   lost your independent lines in the Connecticut
  


25   budget.  There's going to be three USGS lines.
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 1   I think people agree that two were really
  


 2   important and now they've been subsumed into
  


 3   DEEP, which I know is trying to maintain
  


 4   funding.  But I just think it would be so much
  


 5   easier as we have in the past to support your
  


 6   monitoring networks, if we could see it in the
  


 7   budget.
  


 8                  And then my second -- that's
  


 9   sort of a plea.  And my second sort of plea is
  


10   the National Weather Service has just released
  


11   new estimates for precipitation going forward.
  


12   So are you planning -- when you say a two-year
  


13   storm, are you planning to modify that going
  


14   forward using their or some other updated
  


15   precipitation statistics?
  


16                  JON MORRISON:  Yes.  There,
  


17   those statistics are actually independent.  So
  


18   you have the frequency and recurrence interval
  


19   for precipitation events and you have the
  


20   frequency and recurrence interval for runoff
  


21   events.  They're not -- they're linked but
  


22   they're not totally linked.  You know what I
  


23   mean?
  


24                  So with those new statistics we
  


25   will do some runoff analysis and we are
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 1   planning.  We do have a project proposal to
  


 2   actually do -- recompute our streamflow
  


 3   statistics since the last time it was done,
  


 4   because we're only about a third of the way
  


 5   through that period with that increase in
  


 6   precipitation that I showed.
  


 7                  MARGARET MINER:  Okay.  That was
  


 8   my question.  Thank you.
  


 9                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Virginia?
  


10                  JON MORRISON:  You don't get to
  


11   ask any questions, Virginia.
  


12                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  The various
  


13   tools that you've been presenting, do they have
  


14   the capability to run what-if scenarios in the
  


15   future?  What if precipitation were different?
  


16   What if land use had changed?  What if the
  


17   pumping had changed?  Are there those kinds of
  


18   capabilities in using those tools?
  


19                  JON MORRISON:  Yes, they do have
  


20   the ability to run a simulation.  So you can
  


21   put -- you can stress your systems in different
  


22   ways.  You can alter the pumping.  You can
  


23   alter your water use coefficients.  You can
  


24   change the streamflow.  You can manipulate that
  


25   as well, so that you can put in an artificially
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 1   low situation.
  


 2                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  In which of
  


 3   those tools?
  


 4                  JON MORRISON:  So in SYE what
  


 5   you would do is you would use an artificial
  


 6   hydrograph that says you have a lower flow
  


 7   condition.  Okay?  You wouldn't use real
  


 8   streamflow information.  You would use an
  


 9   artificially low streamflow situation, and then
  


10   pair that to it and run the model that way.
  


11   And that could give you what would happen in
  


12   that scenario.
  


13                  So you can use this tool to do
  


14   scenarios.  You can also alter the water use
  


15   data by cranking up some of the coefficients or
  


16   the pumping rates, or the withdrawals to show
  


17   how far you can go before you really stress a
  


18   system.
  


19                  Glenn?
  


20                  GLENN WARNER:  Glenn Warner,
  


21   Connecticut Still Water Resources, professor at
  


22   UConn.
  


23                  But Jon, the flow duration
  


24   curves do not really have a land-use factor in
  


25   them and they actually don't have -- well, they
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 1   have monthly precipitation in some of them, but
  


 2   not for low flow.
  


 3                  So they're very limited as far
  


 4   as the potential land cover, land-use changes
  


 5   as far as I see, as far as changing your
  


 6   actual.  So how do you get a new synthetic
  


 7   hydrograph projected if you have changes in the
  


 8   watershed, or if you have a difference, real
  


 9   differences in precip?
  


10                  In other words, it's not
  


11   responding to precip itself.  You were kind of
  


12   artificially changing that, as I understood
  


13   you.  So how do you address those?
  


14                  JON MORRISON:  So basically you,
  


15   you would have to model that in a system
  


16   outside to get the new hydrograph, the new flow
  


17   distribution curve that you're doing.  And so
  


18   there's a variety of different tools.
  


19                  A precipitation runoff modeling
  


20   system is certainly one that you can use to
  


21   derive a new hydrograph as the input dataset
  


22   that you would run your scenario with.
  


23                  GLENN WARNER:  If I could
  


24   follow-up?  I know New Hampshire is doing this
  


25   PRMS precipitation runoff modeling system for
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 1   both small watersheds and they've done it for
  


 2   all of New England.  And now they're doing it
  


 3   for all of New Hampshire on a very detailed
  


 4   basis.
  


 5                  And they've got some -- I've
  


 6   seen presentations and a report out that
  


 7   they've got some really interesting results to
  


 8   look at climate change, different scenarios and
  


 9   generation, generating new flow duration
  


10   curves.
  


11                  So do you see a need for, say,
  


12   application of PRMS or some other dynamic
  


13   process based on that, rather than a
  


14   statistical one?
  


15                  JON MORRISON:  They're all
  


16   tools.  Everything I've shown you here is a
  


17   tool.  There PRMS system is a tool.  When it
  


18   comes to doing these types of analysis, we can
  


19   use the tools how we need to.
  


20                  PRMS does allow us to do future
  


21   casts using different climate scenarios so we
  


22   can put in low, medium and high-level emission
  


23   scenarios and project was that's going to do to
  


24   our environmental forcing conditions that we
  


25   would use to generate those hydrographs.
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 1                  So we can do those types of
  


 2   scenario generations and we do have models set
  


 3   up in Connecticut for that currently, but those
  


 4   tools can all be used in conjunction with each
  


 5   other.  There, there's no one, one thing that's
  


 6   going to do everything for you, but these tools
  


 7   do work together very well.
  


 8                  SAM GOLD:  So the precipitation
  


 9   trends that you showed in the beginning of the
  


10   presentation, how does Connecticut fare in
  


11   relation to the rest of New England or other
  


12   regions of the country?
  


13                  JON MORRISON:  The step trend
  


14   that I showed I think is consistent for most of
  


15   New England.  I'm not sure about the rest of
  


16   the country.  I think there are differences in
  


17   the West and Midwest.
  


18                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Andrew,
  


19   you had a question?
  


20                  ANDREW LORD:  Yeah, I had a
  


21   question.  It's more of a practical, slash,
  


22   policy question.  It's, do you have the
  


23   information available to evaluate watersheds
  


24   that are critically impaired, moderately
  


25   impaired or not impaired at all so that we can
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 1   make priorities based on that?  And if not,
  


 2   then what do we need to do to get to that?
  


 3                  JON MORRISON:  Right now we
  


 4   don't have any of that information.  We don't
  


 5   have a SSWUDS database.  We don't have the
  


 6   water use database that would allow us to do
  


 7   that.
  


 8                  And that's one of the things
  


 9   we're trying to advocate for with this proposal
  


10   that's going to HUD, is to get and compile that
  


11   information so that we can use it in a
  


12   meaningful way to do that type of analysis.
  


13                  ANDREW LORD:  Okay.
  


14                  DAVID RADKA:  David Radka,
  


15   Connecticut Water.  To follow up on Glenn,
  


16   because we did discuss this yesterday at a
  


17   science and technical meeting, and that's to
  


18   take the unregulated site and you apply that to
  


19   a regulated site and you control for land-use
  


20   coverage, which we would be discussing the --
  


21   certainly on low flow.
  


22                  JON MORRISON:  Uh-huh.
  


23                  DAVID RADKA:  How would you go
  


24   about doing that?  And can you do that using
  


25   some of the tools that you mentioned?
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 1                  JON MORRISON:  Yeah.  So
  


 2   basically what you're going to do is you're
  


 3   going to generate.  You're going to use a tool
  


 4   like PRMS to run a scenario under a bigger
  


 5   buildout condition with more impervious cover.
  


 6                  That's going to generate a
  


 7   hydrograph.  It's going to be a synthetic
  


 8   hydrograph that you're going to then import
  


 9   into the SYE tool and use that for your
  


10   ungauged basin that you're going to compare it
  


11   to.
  


12                  DAVID RADKA:  And just a
  


13   followup.  And the confidence around that is
  


14   what?
  


15                  JON MORRISON:  That, that would
  


16   be, you know, that's kind of a function of the
  


17   watersheds and the calibration data that you
  


18   use.  But the PRMS model has very good
  


19   correlation.  It depends on how much data you
  


20   use and how much you tweak the system to how
  


21   close to reality you can be.
  


22                  You know, if you go to a
  


23   hundred percent impervious cover scenario, is
  


24   going to give you anything, you know,
  


25   reasonable?  And, you know.
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 1                  But I think as you use that tool
  


 2   you can generate confidence intervals about
  


 3   what you're doing.  You could get a confidence
  


 4   interval from the PRMS tool.  And then when you
  


 5   apply it you run it through the SYE program and
  


 6   then compare it to observed and see how well it
  


 7   matches.  And see if it's, you know, does this
  


 8   make sense?
  


 9                  DAVID RADKA:  On stream deplete,
  


10   last time we looked at this, if I recall
  


11   correctly, the issue we had with it was that --
  


12   it was continued pumping scenarios.  So it
  


13   didn't allow for transient simulations.  Is
  


14   that still true?
  


15                  JON MORRISON:  Yes.  So that the
  


16   transient situations, you're going to have to
  


17   compile those manually, you know, for
  


18   individual segments.  I don't think we've run
  


19   that scenario through the tool.  We don't have
  


20   a way to do that in the tools just yet.
  


21                  DAVID RADKA:  Thank you.
  


22                  JON MORRISON:  Yes?
  


23                  ALICEA CHARAMUT:  Alicea
  


24   Charamut from the Connecticut River Water
  


25   Stream Council.
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 1                  For the stream depletion tool,
  


 2   the information that has to be gathered for it
  


 3   what are the resources that have to go into it?
  


 4   Would you consider it cheap and easy?
  


 5   Expensive and easy?  Cheap and difficult?  Or
  


 6   expensive and difficult?  Or all of the above?
  


 7                  JON MORRISON:  It's probably in
  


 8   the middle.  Most of that information should be
  


 9   available from the level A work that was done
  


10   for the well.  It's a production well.  So you
  


11   should have that information available.
  


12                  And then it's just putting into
  


13   the system, running it through and making sure
  


14   that it makes sense, making sure that you've
  


15   defined everything that's in the model to the
  


16   point where it's giving you output that is
  


17   reasonable.
  


18                  MARGARET MINER:  So that would
  


19   only apply in public well fields, public
  


20   drinking water source well fields, not
  


21   watersheds with heavy private use.  Is that
  


22   right?
  


23                  JON MORRISON:  Yeah.  Unless you
  


24   have all that information on the aquifer
  


25   properties, the well construction.  That that's
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 1   the part that could get expensive and
  


 2   complicated fast, to answer Alicea's -- to put
  


 3   it in Alicea's terms, not cheap, not easy.
  


 4                  GLENN WARNER:  Glenn Warner
  


 5   again.  We have a very detailed, nice study on
  


 6   the Pomperaug River using PRMS, coupled with
  


 7   mod-flow from the USGS.  And now I know those
  


 8   two are -- actually won't get combined into
  


 9   what they call GS flow for groundwater surface
  


10   water, but if you were to apply SSWUDS to the
  


11   Pomperaug, what information would you gain?
  


12                  JON MORRISON:  What you would
  


13   gain is the actual water withdrawals and
  


14   returns that come from the system, that are in
  


15   the system that aren't built into the other
  


16   model.
  


17                  GLENN WARNER:  I thought those
  


18   were built into the existing?
  


19                  JON MORRISON:  They're not built
  


20   into PRMS, I don't believe.  Some of the
  


21   groundwater withdrawals might be.
  


22                  GLENN WARNER:  They did
  


23   groundwater withdrawals, I'm sure, because that
  


24   was the part of the mod-flow.
  


25                  JON MORRISON:  Yeah, the surface
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 1   water, any surface water withdrawals would not
  


 2   be.  And I don't know if the mod-flow handles
  


 3   the return flow.
  


 4                  GLENN WARNER:  My understanding
  


 5   is -- Dave Murphy, who did the study and we
  


 6   just started -- they adjusted the streamflow to
  


 7   deal with the diversions from the stream
  


 8   itself.  So I'd have to go ask David about
  


 9   that.
  


10                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  If I may?
  


11   Because they were working in a fairly small
  


12   watershed and working very closely with the
  


13   local folks, they were given the information
  


14   that we're talking about.  They got it from the
  


15   water suppliers.  So they wouldn't have gotten
  


16   anything in that particular study.  They
  


17   wouldn't have gotten additional stuff from
  


18   SSWUDS.
  


19                  But the point of SSWUDS is to
  


20   collect that kind of data statewide so that it
  


21   is available for use in any of these, any of
  


22   these other tools that are used to do the
  


23   analysis.  Is that fair, Jon?
  


24                  JON MORRISON:  Yeah.  Thank you.
  


25                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  For those of
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 1   you who don't realize why we were laughing
  


 2   earlier, I used to be Jon's boss.
  


 3                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Any other
  


 4   questions for Jon?
  


 5                  (No response.)
  


 6                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Excellent,
  


 7   excellent presentation.
  


 8                  Okay.  We already talked about
  


 9   the bond committee update, thanks to David
  


10   LeVasseur.  So we're going to continue on the
  


11   agenda with the policy subcommittee update.
  


12                  Mr. Moore?
  


13                  ROBERT MOORE:  Thank you.
  


14                  We met, the policy committee met
  


15   with quite a few people.  I don't know if
  


16   you -- were you able to get a copy of our
  


17   minutes or draft minutes?
  


18                  Anyway?  I have -- Betsy sent
  


19   them out and I have some more here.  But
  


20   anyway, we met on August 17th and we talked
  


21   about the results of the Steering Committee.
  


22   We talked about a little bit about the SSWUDS
  


23   and we tried to -- and DEP gave us the
  


24   fundamental questions that are being handled in
  


25   the plan, and we discussed those fundamental
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 1   questions, which are here.
  


 2                  But then we try to focus on some
  


 3   basic policy issues.  And the basic policy
  


 4   issues were that, you know, how we're going to
  


 5   deal with this plan.  And we came to three
  


 6   issues or three policy proposals for your
  


 7   consideration, or for the Steering Committee's
  


 8   consideration.
  


 9                  One, that the long-term planning
  


10   horizon for the water plan should be 25 years.
  


11   The document should be kept current and updated
  


12   every five years to benchmark any changes.
  


13   That was the first kind of policy that we kind
  


14   of coalesced around and had consensus on.
  


15                  The second is the water planning
  


16   council is responsible for developing the plan
  


17   and should be responsible for updating the plan
  


18   every five years.  We assume that you're not
  


19   going to go away and that, you know, somebody
  


20   had to be responsible, and since those were the
  


21   people that we suggest that you do that.
  


22                  And finally, the water plan
  


23   should be generally a guidance document.  And I
  


24   include recommendations for necessary changes
  


25   to existing laws and regulation and direction
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 1   where needed.  We had a long discussion about
  


 2   whether or not the plan should be enforceable
  


 3   or portions of it would be enforceable or not
  


 4   enforceable, and came to this conclusion in
  


 5   that committee.
  


 6                  So that there was really more of
  


 7   a recommendation for change and recommendation
  


 8   for action.  It may be stating some facts, but
  


 9   as new issues arose it would be an area where
  


10   that could be looking forward for regulation in
  


11   the future.  But that, that was generally the
  


12   consensus of three so-called policy issues that
  


13   we brought forward.
  


14                  And then we also discussed one
  


15   of the issues that we were having trouble,
  


16   struggled with was, what data is available?
  


17   Not what does it look like, but what is it?
  


18   You know, where's -- what's available from
  


19   health?  What's available?
  


20                  Where is that data going to be
  


21   kept and how are we going to look at it?  And
  


22   how does that, the ability to, you know, if we
  


23   say we have to do certain things in terms of
  


24   policy.  If we don't have the data then the
  


25   policy doesn't mean much anyway.
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 1                  So we wanted to have a
  


 2   discussion on our next meeting, which is
  


 3   scheduled for October 1st at DEP at
  


 4   ten o'clock.  Because basically, kind of, what
  


 5   is available from health and DEP and DPUC and
  


 6   others, that what are those types of
  


 7   information that is available and out there?
  


 8   And how does that affect where we're going?
  


 9                  That's basically the summary of
  


10   what we did at that meeting.  We had several
  


11   people in attendance.  And so I think we had a
  


12   good discussion.  And, you know, trying to move
  


13   forward I committed to coming out of our
  


14   meeting with some kind of policy recommendation
  


15   for the next meeting so that we have some level
  


16   of progress at every meeting and we did it by
  


17   consensus.  We didn't have votes or anything
  


18   like that.  So that's where we are.
  


19                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  We like
  


20   consensus.  Maybe that will be, you know,
  


21   contagious.
  


22                  ROBERT MOORE:  Yeah.  We didn't
  


23   have any votes on anything, but we just had a
  


24   general discussion.  I think we had a really
  


25   in-depth discussion about the enforceability
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 1   issue.  You know, I was being a devil's
  


 2   advocate, I think it might be characterized.
  


 3   But since I have both hats I can do both
  


 4   things.  So that that was kind of the
  


 5   discussion of where we should be on this issue
  


 6   and that was basically where we are.
  


 7                  I have about eight or ten more
  


 8   copies of our minutes.  They're still marked
  


 9   "draft" until our next meeting, but I only have
  


10   about eight copies.
  


11                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Take a
  


12   copy of that and put it right in the
  


13   transcript, the minutes of the meeting.  Thank
  


14   you.
  


15                  (August 17, 2015 State Water
  


16   Plan Subcommittee, draft minutes and questions,
  


17   2 pages, noted and attached.)
  


18                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you
  


19   very much.  Any comments?  It sounds like
  


20   you've had a great first meeting there with
  


21   lots of great recommendations.
  


22                  MICHAEL J. SULLIVAN:  So Bob, on
  


23   those ones that you outline, like the 25-year
  


24   planning horizon, 5-year updates, and so this
  


25   is -- these are not issues that you're really
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 1   trying to revisit.  You've made progress on
  


 2   these and that you're moving onto other issues.
  


 3                  ROBERT MOORE:  Yeah.
  


 4                  MICHAEL J. SULLIVAN:  So the
  


 5   same things like the guidance versus
  


 6   enforceability issues?
  


 7                  ROBERT MOORE:  Yeah, we will
  


 8   move on to -- and some of the issues that are
  


 9   coming up are as a result of some of this data
  


10   today.  How do we, you know, deal with that?
  


11   We have issues that are critical issues that
  


12   were identified, you know, registrations.  What
  


13   do you do when there's not enough water?  You
  


14   know, how do we react to those things?  In
  


15   general, not in specifics.
  


16                  But you know, those are the
  


17   kinds of things we'll be heading into the
  


18   next -- they will get a lot more interesting,
  


19   rather than they were.  Some of those issues
  


20   get really, really complex as we get going.
  


21                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Reaction?
  


22   Comments?
  


23                  ELIN KATZ:  Just one on, we did
  


24   have a lot of debate on the enforceability
  


25   nonenforceability issue.  And I think, at least
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 1   where I landed was, you know, we may end up
  


 2   with recommendations for statutory changes and
  


 3   things like that ultimately seeking to create
  


 4   an enforceable, you know, enforceable parts of
  


 5   it, but it didn't seem like we had the
  


 6   authority to create an enforceable document per
  


 7   se.  But that doesn't mean we weren't -- we
  


 8   were thinking this is just solely advisory.
  


 9                  ROBERT MOORE:  I think we were
  


10   focused on, you know, there are certain things
  


11   that we could head into with climate change
  


12   that nobody has addressed, that by the end of
  


13   this report you might say, well, if X occurs,
  


14   then we should be doing this.
  


15                  And then it would be up to, you
  


16   know, the agencies to take that action.  But it
  


17   was more of, there will be -- there may be
  


18   things as we approach them that ought to be
  


19   fixed.  And especially when you're dealing with
  


20   over allocated regions and things like that,
  


21   there's going to be some issues that come out
  


22   of that will need to be addressed in some
  


23   manner.
  


24                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Margaret?
  


25                  MARGARET MINER:  Yes, I agree
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 1   with Elin.  I think the advisory output was not
  


 2   necessarily the endpoint because we discussed,
  


 3   there is a lot of good advisory opinion out
  


 4   there.  What is this plan going to do that
  


 5   will, in some way, at some point lead to
  


 6   implementation of the recommendations, as
  


 7   opposed to their presentation as
  


 8   recommendations.
  


 9                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  I think
  


10   that that's absolutely correct.  I mean, I
  


11   think when this whole plan is put together
  


12   there very well could be some legislative
  


13   recommendations that come out of the plan in
  


14   terms of enforceability and depending upon what
  


15   we come up with through the groups.
  


16                  I mean, the subgroup's whole
  


17   idea is that groups make the recommendation.
  


18   It comes to the Steering Committee and then
  


19   ultimately to the Water Planning Council before
  


20   we sign off on the plan to present to the
  


21   Legislature.  So I think this is a very good
  


22   beginning.
  


23                  MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  And I think
  


24   the piece where we had a robust discussion, and
  


25   Bob did do a great job of playing devil's
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 1   advocate -- was the concept of, can this
  


 2   document in and of itself mandate things, and
  


 3   then that becomes, you shall do something
  


 4   differently than perhaps today.  But I think we
  


 5   spoke particularly to maybe experience where
  


 6   it's been done within one agency.
  


 7                  This is very different where you
  


 8   have the overlap of different functions and
  


 9   things.  So to direct something by virtue of
  


10   the plan is very different than to, through the
  


11   plan, make recommendations for legislative
  


12   changes.  And that I think that's where we
  


13   ended up, with a consensus that that would be.
  


14                  ROBERT MOORE:  I use the example
  


15   of the solid waste plan for Connecticut where
  


16   it's set up, you know, here XY had to be
  


17   recycled.  X, another volume had to be
  


18   incinerated.  Another volume had to be
  


19   landfill.  And that's a basis for a certificate
  


20   of need that was then turned into law, but the
  


21   plan itself set up the numbers.
  


22                  The enforceability came in
  


23   another argument through a certificate of need
  


24   that the plan itself set up.  Here are our
  


25   numbers that we're looking for, for the goal.
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 1   And I was trying to say, well, we might come up
  


 2   with a, you know, with a certain river basin.
  


 3   The Quinnipiac Basin has always been fully
  


 4   allocated, therefore anything else has to be
  


 5   withdrawn or taken away, or added to in order
  


 6   to put any more waste, or doing withdrawing
  


 7   more water from that basin.
  


 8                  So it could get out with
  


 9   situations like that, and where it's been over
  


10   allocated for waste in the assimilation.  So a
  


11   new water supply may be damaging unless it's
  


12   replaced by taking away more wastewater.  And
  


13   it might set up numbers that would show how to
  


14   do that, but then it would be up to somebody
  


15   else to do that.
  


16                  MICHAEL J. SULLIVAN:  So that's
  


17   why I was asking the question, because I had
  


18   the solid waste management plan in mind,
  


19   because that's right with the numbers.  I mean,
  


20   it also -- we use that to kind of ripple
  


21   through permitting decisions as well.  And so
  


22   that's what I was curious as to whether that
  


23   was the nature of the kind of debate that we
  


24   were having.
  


25                  ROBERT MOORE:  That was what we
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 1   were talking about.  And Maureen is right.  As
  


 2   we say that, you know, that there's so many
  


 3   other agencies involved in that decision, and
  


 4   the solid waste plan was a single entity who
  


 5   was going to regulate it.
  


 6                  SAM GOLD:  Was there discussion
  


 7   about how the water plan could attract other
  


 8   plans, like the state plan of conservation
  


 9   development and other land use plans.
  


10                  ROBERT MOORE:  Yeah, didn't have
  


11   a, you know, a consistency with the State where
  


12   all the other plans had to be evaluated.  We
  


13   didn't establish a policy on it, but our
  


14   discussion was it had to be consistent with the
  


15   plan of conservation and development and the
  


16   water utility, and other state plans.  How did
  


17   we develop into this process?
  


18                  LARRY BINGAMAN:  Yeah, we
  


19   actually felt like we needed to really get a
  


20   better understanding of what that requires and
  


21   what the projections are.  Because I don't
  


22   think anybody around the table really has a
  


23   good feel for that.
  


24                  So what is the State thinking
  


25   about where the development should take place?
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 1   What kind of resources are going to be needed
  


 2   in order to have that happen?  So somehow we
  


 3   need to get a handle on that and we had a
  


 4   rather extensive discussion around that point.
  


 5                  MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  Including
  


 6   other types of plans beyond the plan of C and
  


 7   D.  Are there other development plans or Long
  


 8   Island Sound plans, or other things that need
  


 9   to be considered as we try to put these all
  


10   together?
  


11                  LARRY BINGAMAN:  So somehow as
  


12   we look at this plan that needs to be factored
  


13   into this.  So that's going to take some
  


14   funding.  It's going to take a resource to do
  


15   that.
  


16                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Very good.
  


17   Any further questions?
  


18                  (No response.)
  


19                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you,
  


20   Bob, and thank you to the committee.
  


21                  Virginia?
  


22                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Okay.  Did
  


23   everybody on the Steering Committee get the two
  


24   additional handouts that were here as well as
  


25   the agenda?  One of them is input on water plan
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 1   and planning process.  And the other one is the
  


 2   State Board or Plan Steering Committee, where
  


 3   the backside is all red?
  


 4                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  No.
  


 5                  ROBERT MOORE:  We were too
  


 6   early.
  


 7                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Do we need
  


 8   copies, Virginia?
  


 9                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  No, we've got
  


10   plenty.  They're here.  It's just whether
  


11   people picked them up.
  


12                  ELIZABETH BARTON:  This is Beth
  


13   Barton.  Will they otherwise be available
  


14   again?  Or will they be sent by e-mail?
  


15                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  It can be
  


16   e-mailed.
  


17                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  We'll
  


18   e-mail them.  We'll get them to you.
  


19                  ELIN KATZ:  Will you also e-mail
  


20   the presentation?
  


21                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yes.
  


22                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Okay.  The
  


23   science and technical subcommittee has met
  


24   three times, and we're continuing to meet every
  


25   other Wednesday afternoon.  At the beginning we
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 1   shared skills and interests and concerns in the
  


 2   group.  And one of the handouts that you have
  


 3   has interests on one side and concerns on the
  


 4   other side.
  


 5                  And why I present this to you is
  


 6   I think it's important that the Steering
  


 7   Committee keep these ideas in mind as we go
  


 8   through the process.  And I'm just going to
  


 9   pause for a moment and give you folks an
  


10   opportunity to read through it.
  


11                  Now it was just a small group of
  


12   about -- well, it was a fairly large group of
  


13   folks.  I think these interests and these
  


14   concerns are probably representative of the
  


15   general interests and concerns out there, and
  


16   things that we need to be keeping in mind as we
  


17   go through the process.
  


18                  We also took a look at our
  


19   charge which is the other handout, and made
  


20   some suggestion edits.  It's the same thing on
  


21   both sides.  One has the marked up track
  


22   changes on it and the other one is easier to
  


23   read.
  


24                  A couple of things that I want
  


25   to stress in this.  We want to make sure that
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 1   the Steering Committee understands that we see
  


 2   our charge as identifying what data need to be
  


 3   collected or need to be in hand, and not
  


 4   actually collecting those data.  That would be
  


 5   a much larger effort and would take more time
  


 6   than we have in this plan.  So we wanted to
  


 7   make clear that that was our expectation of
  


 8   what we're being asked to do.
  


 9                  The significant edits that we
  


10   made to this handout was including the idea of
  


11   an appropriate scale.  We had a lot of
  


12   discussion of scale, both temporal and spatial.
  


13   And the group felt -- it was unanimous, that
  


14   the group felt that the scale that we might be
  


15   looking at data could very well be different in
  


16   different parts of the state, both because of
  


17   different geographies and hydrology, and also
  


18   because of different problems.
  


19                  And that the refinement -- the
  


20   fineness of the data collection could be very
  


21   different in an area that had a lot of
  


22   problems, and in an area that didn't.  And one
  


23   of the things we wanted to have explicit
  


24   blessing from this group, that we have the
  


25   prerogative to vary the scale at which we are
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 1   assembling data depending on the issues at
  


 2   hand.
  


 3                  Is that something that you guys
  


 4   are all comfortable with?
  


 5                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Reaction
  


 6   to -- I see Margaret smiling.  Does that mean
  


 7   you're happy with that?
  


 8                  MARGARET MINER:  I'm thinking
  


 9   that's a complicated question to shoot right at
  


10   them -- and get a head nod.  Good work,
  


11   Virginia.
  


12                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  As I've said,
  


13   we put the language into our charge,
  


14   appropriate scale so that it could vary.
  


15                  JOE McGEE:  Oh, hi.  Joe McGee
  


16   joins.
  


17                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Hello Joe.
  


18                  JOE McGEE:  Hey, Jack.  Sorry
  


19   I'm late.
  


20                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  That's
  


21   okay.  Glad you're on.
  


22                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  The other
  


23   significant thing that we changed --
  


24                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Joe, we're
  


25   just getting an update from the science and
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 1   technical committee at this point.
  


 2                  JOE McGEE:  Great.
  


 3                  MICHAEL J. SULLIVAN:  And
  


 4   Virginia, so that that particular issue, is
  


 5   that the change that you're talking about in
  


 6   item two?
  


 7                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Well, it's in
  


 8   couple of places.  In item one there was an
  


 9   addition of an appropriate watershed scale.
  


10   Item two, it has appropriate scales in there,
  


11   also.  So we've put it in a couple of places.
  


12                  The other --
  


13                  MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  And if I
  


14   could just add, I think that's consistent with
  


15   even conversations we had at the policy
  


16   committee, was that the -- even the scale or
  


17   the level of detail or specificity of policies,
  


18   or where we're going, would differ on kind of
  


19   the nature of the problems or circumstances
  


20   that you're involving -- you're involved with.
  


21                  So I think that is consistent
  


22   with conversations we had that you may need
  


23   more data in some cases to get to that level
  


24   and the absolute recommendations may differ at
  


25   the end of today or choices may differ so it
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 1   makes sense.
  


 2                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  And the other
  


 3   significant change that we made in our charge
  


 4   was to add the demand side to the equation and
  


 5   focused primarily on the water availability
  


 6   side.  And we wanted to include the demand on
  


 7   the water resources.
  


 8                  So the details of this, you can
  


 9   certainly read at your leisure.  Those are just
  


10   the two things that -- well, particularly the
  


11   scale issue that we wanted to get out here as
  


12   soon as possible.  Because as we go in we
  


13   didn't want to get too far down the path if we
  


14   didn't know that that was acceptable to vary
  


15   our scales.
  


16                  ROBERT MOORE:  Virginia, the
  


17   first part of your question was, should the
  


18   committee only be evaluating the data, but not
  


19   collecting it.  Right?
  


20                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Right,
  


21   identifying what's needed.
  


22                  ROBERT MOORE:  And I assume that
  


23   that's consistent?
  


24                  MARGARET MINER:  What's needed
  


25   and where it is.
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 1                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  How we might
  


 2   get it, but not actually go about getting it.
  


 3                  MARGARET MINER:  So we are
  


 4   working on where it is.
  


 5                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  We also
  


 6   realized in going through the charge that we
  


 7   needed some clarification on some of the items.
  


 8   And if we can answer these today, fabulous.  If
  


 9   we can't, I understand.
  


10                  One is what the subcommittee's
  


11   role is going to be vis-a-vis the consultant
  


12   who is hired actually to write the plan.  I
  


13   could imagine scenarios across the whole
  


14   spectrum of, oh, the consultant saying, oh,
  


15   great this piece is already done for me.
  


16                  Or saying, wait a minute.
  


17   That's not the way I'd do it.  I'm not going to
  


18   even look at that, and any number of areas in
  


19   between.  So we would appreciate some
  


20   clarification on how you imagine that dance
  


21   will be happening.
  


22                  Also, we wanted to get some
  


23   input into how much authority we had to set
  


24   priorities or make recommendations.  Is this
  


25   something that you're looking to the science
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 1   and technical group to say, we need to do this
  


 2   before we do that?
  


 3                  This is higher priority.  This
  


 4   area is higher priority.  Do we, as a
  


 5   subcommittee, have the authority to be making
  


 6   those priorities?  Or do we just have to
  


 7   recommend something that this group then would
  


 8   decide on?  And you know, there are going to be
  


 9   variations of that.
  


10                  So Maureen is smiling.
  


11                  MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  I'm always
  


12   smiling.
  


13                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  And the third
  


14   thing that we would like some clarification on
  


15   is the term "economic benefits" was used in our
  


16   charge, and we weren't sure exactly what that
  


17   meant.
  


18                  Did that mean economic just in
  


19   the sense of agricultural or industry or power
  


20   facilities?  Or did it mean determining the
  


21   impacts of having or not having ample water to
  


22   develop economically in a particular area in
  


23   the state?
  


24                  So we weren't sure that -- the
  


25   first we're comfortable with.  The second we're
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 1   less comfortable with.  So again, that's very
  


 2   closely related to what some of the policy
  


 3   group might be talking about, but we'd
  


 4   appreciate input from the Steering Committee on
  


 5   those three points.  And I can share it --
  


 6   well, we have them in the transcript, but I can
  


 7   certainly share those with you as well.
  


 8                  And then the large question that
  


 9   I've heard a lot of people ask, what problem is
  


10   the plan attempting to address?  What questions
  


11   are we looking for answers to?  Because to a
  


12   certain extent what data are needed depends on
  


13   what questions are being asked.
  


14                  So personally my feeling is that
  


15   if we're only identifying data sources and
  


16   where we might find them we could go into the
  


17   overkill, because we haven't wasted much time
  


18   or energy.  If we identify some kind of data
  


19   that doesn't get used, well, we just, you know,
  


20   it's on the list.
  


21                  We just strike it off the list,
  


22   which is very different than if we were
  


23   actually collecting it.  So that would be
  


24   helpful to understand what people think the
  


25   problems are that the plan, and therefore the
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 1   data necessary will be addressing.
  


 2                  We have also started taking
  


 3   advantage of some of the expertise in the group
  


 4   and sharing information.  We had a presentation
  


 5   by David Murphy of Milone & MacBroom on the
  


 6   information that goes into the diversion plans.
  


 7   We're going to have a similar presentation of
  


 8   the data that goes in the water supply plans.
  


 9   So that we know where data have been assembled
  


10   and could be rolled into a larger plan.
  


11                  And then we spent some time
  


12   looking at the actual charge, what information
  


13   is needed.  And we have put together a draft
  


14   template of a table, a spreadsheet for
  


15   summarizing the data.  Obviously the data is
  


16   listed in one column, but some of the other
  


17   columns are, why do we need these data?
  


18                  How are they going to be used?
  


19   What is their priority?  Where they from?  Are
  


20   they available?  Are they not available?  Where
  


21   are the gaps?  How much would it cost in very
  


22   round, you know, high, medium and low to get
  


23   that information if it didn't exist?  And
  


24   comments, those types that we're going to try
  


25   to capture that in a fashion that would be very
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 1   useful.
  


 2                  We started the brainstorming
  


 3   activity and came up with a whole long list of
  


 4   things.  And one of the things that came out of
  


 5   that discussion was somebody said, okay.  Well,
  


 6   if the data exists and here's where they exist,
  


 7   but we're not sure that the data have the
  


 8   appropriate level of -- what's the word?  The
  


 9   refinement to actually be useful in this, in
  


10   this process.  So as we fill out the table
  


11   hopefully those kinds of questions, those kinds
  


12   of concerns will pop out of the process.
  


13                  So at this point after starting
  


14   the brainstorming of data necessary, we
  


15   assigned some homework that we would try to
  


16   organize the list of data that we were
  


17   creating.  And we decided to organize it
  


18   following the proposed table of contents for
  


19   the plan that was coming out of the other
  


20   states workgroup.  And that was just a format
  


21   that we wanted to see if that would work just
  


22   to help organize the types of data.
  


23                  And then also some of the
  


24   homework was for people to fill out as many of
  


25   the other columns as they could for whatever
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 1   data they were familiar with.  Some people were
  


 2   going to be more familiar with one type of data
  


 3   than another type of data.  And so as I said,
  


 4   we just got really the first column of what
  


 5   data we were looking at and assigned some
  


 6   homework assignments.
  


 7                  Another piece that we've been
  


 8   talking about is not the straight data, but the
  


 9   tools, the models that might be necessary to
  


10   help inform a water plan, recognizing that
  


11   those tools change over time.  And so I think
  


12   that our first task would be to identify what
  


13   type of model we would need.  And then perhaps,
  


14   say, examples of this type of model are PRMS or
  


15   whatever.
  


16                  But by the time somebody is
  


17   actually going to implement this, those might
  


18   change.  So we're not going to lock anybody
  


19   into, you've got to use these particular
  


20   models, but for what types of things.  So we
  


21   want to make sure that we're covering the
  


22   analytical piece of science and techno group
  


23   and not just the straight data piece.  And
  


24   that's where we're at.
  


25                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  A lot of
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 1   work.  A lot of things to digest.  Any
  


 2   reaction?
  


 3                  ROBERT MOORE:  I think we would
  


 4   all like to see that list of the data.  Then we
  


 5   might help put in some of the blanks on the
  


 6   other side, too.
  


 7                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  In another
  


 8   couple meetings we might be ready to share
  


 9   that.  We pretty much just started that process
  


10   of actually concretely writing things down
  


11   yesterday.  And so we need to live with it a
  


12   lot more.  But certainly it would be both
  


13   beneficial for your policy group, but also some
  


14   of you folks -- all of you folks could be --
  


15   could identify whole areas of things that we've
  


16   forgotten.
  


17                  Sam was at our first meeting,
  


18   and the very first piece of data that got
  


19   thrown out there.  You know, I come from the
  


20   technology side.  It never would have occurred
  


21   to me to say it was, what?  Demographics or
  


22   there was something like that.
  


23                  SAM GOLD:  Population
  


24   projections.
  


25                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Yeah, and
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 1   there's been some concerns expressed with how
  


 2   accurate are those population projections,
  


 3   which every -- all the water supply plans are
  


 4   dependent on.  So there could be other things
  


 5   that --
  


 6                  Oh, and then I should say one of
  


 7   the things that came up yesterday was
  


 8   collecting data of a whole different sort that
  


 9   isn't numbers so much, but areas, for instance,
  


10   of private wells that had been identified as
  


11   having either a contamination problem or a
  


12   whole area of the state.
  


13                  Well drillers now getting
  


14   requests to deepen wells, that those kinds of
  


15   identifying where the problems are could be a
  


16   layer that, overlaid with some of the other
  


17   things, could help set priorities in the
  


18   future, and so to make sure that that ancillary
  


19   kind of data are looked at as a valuable ways
  


20   of informing that whole process and not locking
  


21   ourselves just into numbers.
  


22                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Did you
  


23   want, like, a blessing today in terms of --
  


24                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  If you could
  


25   bless us today, that's fine.
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 1                  ANDREW LORD:  The Pope is in
  


 2   town.
  


 3                  MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  The Pope is
  


 4   around.
  


 5                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  A remote
  


 6   feed for the Pope, I'm sure he'd be glad to --
  


 7                  ROBERT MOORE:  He did ask us to
  


 8   solve climate change.
  


 9                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  That's
  


10   right.  But in terms of you wanted to look at
  


11   the items that you were working on and then
  


12   come up with your own goals.  Is that it?
  


13                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  No, we were
  


14   just -- we were suggesting changes to our
  


15   charge.
  


16                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.
  


17                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  The question
  


18   that I posed to the group is, do you understand
  


19   it?  And are you comfortable with it?  And as
  


20   we had that discussion there were some things
  


21   that people didn't understand and there were
  


22   some things that people weren't comfortable
  


23   with.  And so we've suggested some changes.
  


24                  So we would like you to take the
  


25   time to look at this and then tell us if our
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 1   edits are acceptable.  And as I said, the red
  


 2   is just the track changes and the other side is
  


 3   without the track changes.  It's the same.
  


 4   It's the same thing.
  


 5                  ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  And
  


 6   Virginia, it's your thought that this guidance
  


 7   of what the charge is to the group, that as we
  


 8   get closer to defining what the problem is we
  


 9   want the plan to solve, that this could evolve
  


10   again.
  


11                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Sure.
  


12                  ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  Because I
  


13   wouldn't want us to get so tied to subcommittee
  


14   charges to only find out they're solving a
  


15   different problem than we thought the statewide
  


16   water plan was going to solve.
  


17                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  I feel that
  


18   this whole process is evolving and that we're
  


19   all going to learn as we go and we might find,
  


20   you know, that we, not just my subcommittee,
  


21   but perhaps the whole process needs to take a
  


22   little bit of a different direction, and I
  


23   think that that's healthy.  I would not want us
  


24   to be locked into something if the
  


25   investigations that we do start telling us
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 1   something else.
  


 2                  DAVID LeVASSEUR:  And I agree.
  


 3   And Virginia, you know, that's sort of a good
  


 4   segue into your first question which is how
  


 5   would you see the consultant interacting with
  


 6   various groups.
  


 7                  I mean, I would think it would
  


 8   be absolutely necessary.  That they would be
  


 9   meeting with both workgroups and with the
  


10   Steering Committee on a regular basis, if no
  


11   other reason so that we can make sure that they
  


12   don't drift off course from what we envision as
  


13   being the ultimate goal of the plan.
  


14                  And quite frankly, that was kind
  


15   of the determining factor in me suggesting that
  


16   a function we needed was someone to ride hard
  


17   on them on a daily basis, because I think
  


18   that's above and beyond the project management
  


19   piece we've had before, which has pretty much
  


20   kept us on task, as opposed to a consultant.
  


21                  And so I would hope that
  


22   ultimately the consultant's charge would
  


23   include that level of interplay with both
  


24   workgroups as well as the Steering Committee as
  


25   a whole.
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 1                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Yeah.
  


 2                  LARRY BINGAMAN:  Virginia, can
  


 3   you give us a little bit of a flavor on your
  


 4   debate about economic benefits and where that
  


 5   discussion ranged, what the range of that
  


 6   discussion was?
  


 7                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  It started
  


 8   with a, what's this mean?  And as I said, some
  


 9   people interpreted that as just the commercial
  


10   industrial agricultural side of water use.
  


11   Obviously we have the water suppliers as a big
  


12   water use and that's got an economic component
  


13   to it, but the other, the other sectors where
  


14   there's money associated with water.
  


15                  And then we wondered whether it
  


16   really meant more the broader picture of how
  


17   would water availability in a particular area
  


18   affect the local economy, and whether there
  


19   wasn't enough water.  Would that constrain the
  


20   economic development in that part of the state?
  


21                  And so that's a very different
  


22   interpretation of economic benefits.  So we
  


23   just didn't understand what the word meant and
  


24   it became a question.
  


25                  LARRY BINGAMAN:  Because in the
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 1   bill it speaks to economic development.  It
  


 2   just says, economic development, which you know
  


 3   as you point out, can have all kinds of
  


 4   interpretations.  So did you come to a
  


 5   conclusion on that?  Or is that --
  


 6                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Nobody posed
  


 7   the question.
  


 8                  MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  And economic
  


 9   development benefits are referenced a couple
  


10   times in the bill.  And the other one talks
  


11   about -- and it's almost a sentence, but it's
  


12   worded a little bit differently.  So maybe it's
  


13   looking at what the underlying statute said and
  


14   see if that gives any direction, which
  


15   obviously is fairly subjective as that process
  


16   goes about.
  


17                  But you know, it talks about the
  


18   quantity and qualities available for public
  


19   water supply, health, economic, recreation and
  


20   environmental benefits on an regional scale.
  


21   Blah, blah, blah.
  


22                  So to me, that is the broader
  


23   economic benefits, health benefits, public
  


24   health benefits and whether that carries
  


25   through to the next session when it referred to
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 1   take into account the impacts of the plan,
  


 2   implementation of the plan, the public health,
  


 3   economic, public safety, environmental,
  


 4   ecological.  So makes me think it is a broader
  


 5   analysis than just --
  


 6                  DAVID LeVASSEUR:  I think it has
  


 7   to be broader because, quite frankly, it could
  


 8   have a negative economic development impact in
  


 9   certain regions of the state.
  


10                  If you wanted to introduce a
  


11   level of economic development and the scale
  


12   wasn't there to match and you had to bring in
  


13   infrastructure to that area you could actually
  


14   degrade the natural quality and might have an
  


15   impact on the recreational, on the water
  


16   quality and some of the other aspects.  So I
  


17   really think we've got to look at it in the
  


18   broadest of terms.
  


19                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  And looking
  


20   at it that way, what would you anticipate the
  


21   science and technical committee giving you to
  


22   inform that process?  What type of information?
  


23                  DAVID LeVASSEUR:  I will have to
  


24   chew on that.
  


25                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  We also had a
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 1   brief discussion yesterday about social
  


 2   engineering, which is a science in itself.  How
  


 3   do you get people to change habits?  Which I
  


 4   think if we started talking about conservation,
  


 5   which comes up many times in the bill, a lot of
  


 6   that may be people changing their habits.  How
  


 7   does that work?
  


 8                  And that's something that nobody
  


 9   that was there yesterday felt comfortable
  


10   addressing that, though I know there are people
  


11   doing research in that area.  So that's a
  


12   science.  Does that come under the -- under
  


13   this committee?
  


14                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.
  


15   Margaret and then Sam.
  


16                  MARGARET MINER:  Yes.  Real
  


17   quick.  There's practically no -- there's no
  


18   environmental concern here on this list?
  


19                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  You mentioned
  


20   that.  I'm sorry.
  


21                  MARGARET MINER:  Yeah, I've been
  


22   mentioning it.
  


23                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  I'm sorry.
  


24   Yes.
  


25                  MARGARET MINER:  There are lots
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 1   of environmental concerns, obviously, that this
  


 2   committee wants to address and is addressing,
  


 3   and will address.  And partly it's that I've
  


 4   had difficulty.  The nature conservancy thought
  


 5   they could help us, and then they can only
  


 6   maybe loan us someone for occasional
  


 7   consultation, or a scientist.
  


 8                  Just in the last few days Eileen
  


 9   Fielding at FRWA, and she's offered us -- and
  


10   she actually has a doctorate in fish biology.
  


11   So we are thinking that she, with the people --
  


12   oh, and a lot of people work for state
  


13   agencies.  And I'll say some of our best
  


14   biologists are working for different government
  


15   agencies and can't really, you know, come here.
  


16                  So I hope that will be better,
  


17   but we have a number of environmental concerns.
  


18   It's pretty obvious here, not from hostility,
  


19   but that there just weren't enough voices for
  


20   the fish and the turtles and the blue herons
  


21   and the canoeing -- just weren't there.  So
  


22   that I'm hoping that's something that will be
  


23   added in, and I'm sure it will be.
  


24                  Last point, we talk about what
  


25   data will we get and show you, water supply
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 1   plan data.  Yes, I used to get that and be able
  


 2   to work from it.  I went and checked.  Not only
  


 3   have I old un-redacted plans, but new heavily
  


 4   reacted plans.  But I looked at the work plans,
  


 5   the regional plans which are the old ones.
  


 6                  Most -- much to most of the key
  


 7   data you would need for planning is blacked
  


 8   out.  So I am hoping that -- Virginia has said,
  


 9   well, when we show that we could really need it
  


10   maybe people will change their mind.  Well, I
  


11   think the point is coming up that you have to
  


12   decide.
  


13                  Most of the people in this room
  


14   are the public.  You know, and it is the public
  


15   that cannot see that data.  So it's a critical
  


16   point.  What do we want to do about that?  I
  


17   know what I want to do, but what do you want to
  


18   do?
  


19                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Andrew?
  


20                  ANDREW LORD:  It might be
  


21   simplistic and premature, but I'm sort of
  


22   looking down the road at, you know, what is
  


23   this plan going to look like?  And I think that
  


24   we have to start putting some structure to it.
  


25                  And I'm not saying that people







89


 1   aren't doing good work in evaluating all the
  


 2   issues, but it seems to me that we need to
  


 3   figure out, what the problems are that we need
  


 4   to solve right way?  And what are the problems
  


 5   that we need to serve midterm?  And what are
  


 6   the long-term things?  And I think each of
  


 7   those different situations have different data
  


 8   requirements, different science requirements.
  


 9                  Let's solve the real problems
  


10   first.  So I think that I'm looking forward to
  


11   the actual product and I think we should be
  


12   discussing about, how do we get there?  And you
  


13   know, I think that there really needs to be a
  


14   tiered structure on how we approach this stuff.
  


15   So that that's just my thoughts, for what
  


16   they're worth.
  


17                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  I would
  


18   agree with that.
  


19                  SAM GOLD:  Going back to that
  


20   economic development discussion and the sort of
  


21   lack of clarity as to exactly what's meant.  I
  


22   think it goes back to the policy subcommittee
  


23   as to, what are the priorities for economic
  


24   development in -- from the State's perspective?
  


25                  And should we be pursuing, let's
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 1   say, if there's assessment that finds that
  


 2   Connecticut is a relatively water-rich place,
  


 3   should our economic developments efforts be
  


 4   towards attracting businesses from places like
  


 5   California, which are not water-rich?  And
  


 6   trying to pursue economic development to take
  


 7   advantage of those opportunities?
  


 8                  Or should it be more about
  


 9   policies on what is compatible in different
  


10   parts of our state and what isn't compatible,
  


11   and leaving this general, larger economic
  


12   development strategy and priorities for the
  


13   state to sort of, you know, on its own, and
  


14   just keep this as a much more general level.  I
  


15   guess that's where the direction needs to come
  


16   from, I guess, somewhere else.
  


17                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Well, Joe
  


18   McGee, are you on the line?
  


19                  JOE McGEE:  I am.  I was going
  


20   to interrupt there, if I could say something?
  


21                  You know, the new state
  


22   commission, the permanent commission espoused
  


23   by the Legislature on economic competitiveness
  


24   has just had its first meeting.  I'm on it, and
  


25   in fact, cochairing it.
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 1                  And the critical piece that's
  


 2   come out of this commission I think is aligning
  


 3   state policy with economic growth and
  


 4   competitiveness.  So the question in my mind
  


 5   with water policy, both the supply of water,
  


 6   but also the voiding of water, sewage.  Does it
  


 7   impact economic growth in the state and in what
  


 8   way?
  


 9                  And that's a very broad
  


10   conception of the issue.  And I'm not saying
  


11   that economic growth trumps environmental
  


12   quality, but just what's the impact of state
  


13   water policy on the issue of growing either the
  


14   population of the state or the commercial base
  


15   of the state?  And I think that's a very
  


16   important question.
  


17                  You know, then going back to the
  


18   data issue.  How much water do we have?  How
  


19   water rich are we?  How accessible is it, but
  


20   are there impediments to its use that would
  


21   really slow, either slow population,
  


22   residential growth, or commercial growth?  I
  


23   think it would be good to know that.
  


24                  And we may say, we want to do
  


25   that for a different -- for another reason.
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 1   You know, I mean, there may be reasons in
  


 2   there.  But I think this issue of Connecticut's
  


 3   slow growth, the data again, you know, we're
  


 4   just are really growing very slowly.
  


 5                  And the Legislature has
  


 6   basically said to this new permanent commission
  


 7   on economic competitiveness, we want to look at
  


 8   a growth strategy.  How do we grow the
  


 9   Connecticut economy?  What state policies are
  


10   preventing that from happening?  And that's a
  


11   critical question I think that the water policy
  


12   side also has to address.
  


13                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Sam?
  


14                  JOE McGEE:  And I think just to
  


15   add the conservation issue in.  On water
  


16   conservation, my own view on this is -- we're
  


17   looking in Stamford.  The cost of water here is
  


18   going to increase.  We're going to have to pump
  


19   more of it from Bridgeport into Stamford.  So
  


20   the cost of pumping, piping, all of that will
  


21   grow.
  


22                  And then the question is, for
  


23   instance, on cooling towers, just basic data.
  


24   How much water is being -- pristine water is
  


25   being run through cooling towers in the city of
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 1   Stamford?  That's a really important question.
  


 2   And if that was reduced dramatically would you
  


 3   have to increase the infrastructure to pipe and
  


 4   pump water to Stamford?  I'd like to know the
  


 5   answer to that.  I think that's a really
  


 6   important thing for us to understand.
  


 7                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Excellent
  


 8   points.
  


 9                  Sam?
  


10                  SAM GOLD:  And Joe McGee just
  


11   touched upon the other observation of economic
  


12   development, is that how much does the
  


13   conservation of our aquifers, of our state
  


14   lands, but also the water company lands, add to
  


15   the quality of life to Connecticut that makes
  


16   us economically competitive?  So I think the
  


17   conservation side needs to be considered as
  


18   having economic development value as well.
  


19                  JOE McGEE:  Yeah.  And Jack, let
  


20   me throw a really wild one out, just to be wild
  


21   for a second to see water as a resource, like
  


22   Texas has oil.
  


23                  If we were to supply Suffolk
  


24   County with 50 percent of its water could we do
  


25   that over an extended period of time?  And
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 1   would that be an economic resource to the
  


 2   taxpayers of the State of Connecticut, just
  


 3   like oil is to Texas?
  


 4                  I don't think we answered that
  


 5   question.  I don't know how much.  Do we really
  


 6   know how much water we have?  How would we
  


 7   replenish it?  And could we make that kind of
  


 8   commitment to a water -- to an economy, Suffolk
  


 9   County, Long Island, that has a water problem,
  


10   a water supply, water quality problem?  And
  


11   that may sound like a wild idea, but I think we
  


12   need to know that, because then we know more
  


13   about our own water supply and how we want to
  


14   use it.
  


15                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Margaret.
  


16                  MARGARET MINER:  Hello.  Hi.
  


17   It's Margaret Miner.
  


18                  A quick observation.  I don't
  


19   know how much water we could give away out of
  


20   state, but I'm pretty sure that we would fairly
  


21   quickly reach the point that we could not hold
  


22   onto our current standard for potable water.
  


23                  So -- which is, you know, we
  


24   don't use any of our large rivers.  Our
  


25   groundwater is somewhat compromised in too many
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 1   places.  And so a lot would depend -- I
  


 2   understand what you mean.  Is it the kind of
  


 3   resource we could use like oil and have some
  


 4   revenue?
  


 5                  And so I think we would have to
  


 6   give up something.  We would have to give up
  


 7   some of our standards for upland streams and
  


 8   probably our standard -- I'm looking at Ellen
  


 9   to see if she agrees.  I think it would put at
  


10   risk our standard for potable water if we're
  


11   looking at large-scale water exports.
  


12                  JOE McGEE:  Right.  Now,
  


13   Margaret if that's true then we probably
  


14   wouldn't want to do it.  But where is the data
  


15   on that?
  


16                  ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  And so
  


17   just to -- Joe, I really kind of like your
  


18   creative thinking.  I think that there's a lot
  


19   of -- to me, this is kind of where the heart of
  


20   the water plan should get to.
  


21                  So there's, you know, out of all
  


22   the water supply that our public water
  


23   utilities move throughout the state of
  


24   Connecticut every day, how much of that is
  


25   being used for humans to consume?  And I think
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 1   that's a fairly low percentage.
  


 2                  So if we look at all the other
  


 3   uses -- I've heard vaguely, like, 80 percent of
  


 4   the rest of the water is for other things,
  


 5   industrial use, wastewater generation.  Could
  


 6   we create some opportunities to protect for the
  


 7   public consuming only the highest water
  


 8   quality, when we're actually talking about
  


 9   consuming it, drinking it, bathing in it,
  


10   preparing food in it?
  


11                  But then are there other
  


12   categories of water that that high-quality
  


13   water doesn't need to be used for?  And what is
  


14   the opportunity for Connecticut?
  


15                  MARGARET MINER:  And we want to
  


16   send that bad water to Suffolk County.
  


17                  JOE McGEE:  Right.  But I'm just
  


18   using Suffolk County, you know, it's kind of a
  


19   crazy example, but just to make a point.  But
  


20   the way you just described it, exactly.
  


21                  ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  Right.
  


22                  JOE McGEE:  That then becomes an
  


23   interesting thing to understand about choices
  


24   we can make.
  


25                  ROBERT MOORE:  But we've been
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 1   faced with that issue before, Joe, in terms of
  


 2   whether or not the Connecticut River should
  


 3   supply more water to Boston.  And you know,
  


 4   their general public reaction was no.
  


 5                  And you know, if we were going
  


 6   to look at Suffolk County, you would look at
  


 7   the Connecticut River, but they could also look
  


 8   at the Hudson.  And you know, the Hudson has a
  


 9   little bit more PCBs than the Connecticut.  But
  


10   you know, it's not a, you know, why wouldn't
  


11   they -- New York would tend to look to New
  


12   York, I would think, before they would look to
  


13   Connecticut.  But there's other political
  


14   issues and policy issues.
  


15                  ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  But could we
  


16   look at Long Island Sound for power generation?
  


17                  ROBERT MOORE:  We do.
  


18                  ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  Could we do
  


19   more of that?  I think we don't always know
  


20   when we talk about data and data needs.  We can
  


21   talk about water supply as a big umbrella, but
  


22   we don't really break out where does that water
  


23   supply go.  Who uses it?
  


24                  JOE McGEE:  Yeah.  That's what
  


25   I'm after.  In other words, let's not say we
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 1   sell it to Suffolk.  Let's say we become the
  


 2   water bottling capital of America.
  


 3                  Let me just use another crazy
  


 4   example.  Do we encourage the growth of water
  


 5   bottling and supply?  What would that look
  


 6   like?  Is that something that would be part of
  


 7   an economic development strategy.  Do we want
  


 8   bottling companies that use our water to locate
  


 9   in Connecticut because we have an abundance of
  


10   a natural resources?  I don't know how to
  


11   answer that question right now.
  


12                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Virginia?
  


13                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  If we were to
  


14   move forward with adopting the SSWUDS database
  


15   and if it were used to its fullest extent we
  


16   could get the answers to some of the questions
  


17   that Joe is asking.
  


18                  For example, if a water supplier
  


19   entered into the system, the volume of water
  


20   being sold to the Southington ski area to make
  


21   snow, or to this industry that has a cooling
  


22   tower, then those data could be pulled out of
  


23   the system summed up by basin or however you
  


24   want to do it.
  


25                  And you would have the numbers
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 1   of how much of our water is going to these
  


 2   other uses that might be able to use reclaimed
  


 3   water, or class B water, or something else.  So
  


 4   you would have to fully populate the database,
  


 5   but those answers are in those water use data.
  


 6                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Maureen?
  


 7                  MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  But I think
  


 8   even when you have those answers then you have
  


 9   a whole other layer of questions about how do
  


10   provide for those uses given the infrastructure
  


11   needs and all the other things that are there?
  


12   And is the cost of doing that greater, or does
  


13   it create other problems than we're solving by
  


14   it?
  


15                  And the ability to separate out
  


16   those big ones?  Yeah, you could do it, but day
  


17   to day, do I even know within a facility what
  


18   those people use the water for, what's, quote,
  


19   potable and what's not?  I couldn't even tell
  


20   you that and I don't think we expect our
  


21   customers to tell us that.
  


22                  But I think, well, it always
  


23   sounds like a great idea.  Only use public, you
  


24   know, the potable water, the highest quality
  


25   water is for drinking water purposes.  To
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 1   actually do that is a very challenging -- both
  


 2   to quantify it and then how to implement it, it
  


 3   creates a whole other set of issues.
  


 4                  LARRY BINGAMAN:  You're talking
  


 5   about shipping water.  We actually have a
  


 6   problem in Southeast Connecticut which has
  


 7   annual shortages of water.  And it would take a
  


 8   huge pipeline in order to ship water from the
  


 9   western part of the state to the eastern part
  


10   of the state to satisfy their water needs that
  


11   they have, and have every summer.
  


12                  So we have issues within the
  


13   state that we need to solve that a lot of money
  


14   would have to be dedicated to in order to build
  


15   the pipeline and the infrastructure in order to
  


16   make that happen along the shoreline.  And I
  


17   know the federal government was looking at how
  


18   you steel up the coast of Connecticut and
  


19   provide for some redundancy in water supplies,
  


20   and those funds I think dried up.
  


21                  But those are the kind of issues
  


22   we need to be looking at as well before we
  


23   start thinking about shipping it to -- out of
  


24   state, for instance, because I think we have
  


25   needs inside the state in order to balance that
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 1   supply and demand, which goes back to the
  


 2   problem that we're trying to solve.
  


 3                  I'd also like to comment on
  


 4   Sam's population issue.  We had a consultant
  


 5   work on a water supply plan, and interestingly
  


 6   they had the population increasing out 10, 15
  


 7   years.  And I said, where did that come from?
  


 8   I said, we're not the Florida of the Northeast
  


 9   here.
  


10                  So let's make sure if we're
  


11   looking at population data that we have a
  


12   consultant that really looks at this
  


13   realistically and challenges some of the
  


14   assumptions.  Because the response was, well,
  


15   gee, we got that from some of the government
  


16   agencies here in the state.  Okay.  Fine.
  


17   Let's question it and make sure it makes sense,
  


18   because that's a key component to this planning
  


19   process.
  


20                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  We
  


21   initiated a lot of dialogue and conversation
  


22   here.  Do you want us to take action or do you
  


23   want us to digest what we said today?
  


24                  Because actually I'm going to
  


25   take a five-minute break and give our
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 1   transcriber a little break -- if anybody needs
  


 2   a break.
  


 3                  And then we'll come back and
  


 4   we're going to the stream flow, Chris Bellucci.
  


 5   Chris, you're going to do the streamflow
  


 6   update.  And then we're going to have
  


 7   out-of-state's group update and a state water
  


 8   plan website update and then a couple other
  


 9   things.
  


10                  So why don't we just digest and
  


11   kind of keep under consideration what Virginia
  


12   has proposed today.  And then what we can do,
  


13   if you have any thoughts, if you could get them
  


14   to myself or Gail, and we can get that over to
  


15   you and we can move forward.  But I think we
  


16   have, again both committees did some great work
  


17   already.
  


18                  So let's take a five-minute
  


19   break.
  


20                  (Whereupon, a recess was taken
  


21   from 2:47 p.m. to 3:05 p.m.)
  


22                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.
  


23   Come back to order, please.
  


24                  So the next item on the agenda
  


25   this afternoon is an update on the streamflow
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 1   classification.  And we have Chris Bellucci
  


 2   from DEEP with us.  Thank you for being with
  


 3   us.  Appreciate it.
  


 4                  CHRIS BELLUCCI:  Thanks for
  


 5   having us.  So I am Chris Bellucci.  I work
  


 6   with DEEP and I'm in the water monitoring
  


 7   assessment program at DEEP.  And I was involved
  


 8   with the science and technical workgroup,
  


 9   similar to what you guys have here for the
  


10   development of the streamflow regulations.  So
  


11   I'll talk to you a little bit about that this
  


12   afternoon.
  


13                  So a little bit about what I
  


14   have here on the slides for you, a little bit
  


15   of brief history and background about the
  


16   development of the reg itself.  I'll talk about
  


17   the classes and standard, which is really
  


18   critical, sort of, for moving the regulation
  


19   forward.
  


20                  I'll talk a little bit about the
  


21   process and schedule that we've been going
  


22   through and how we've been working through
  


23   that.  I'll talk a little bit about the release
  


24   rules and what the releases are required
  


25   downstream of reservoirs.  And then kind of put
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 1   our thoughts in how this might relate to what
  


 2   you all are working here on the state water
  


 3   plan.  And then finally if we have time we'll
  


 4   entertain some questions.
  


 5                  So this process really started
  


 6   in 2005 with Public Act 05-142.  It basically
  


 7   directed the then DEP Commissioner to adopt
  


 8   regulations for steamflows that apply to all
  


 9   rivers and streams, be based on the best
  


10   available science, and balance human and
  


11   ecological needs.
  


12                  That process, as I mentioned, it
  


13   started in 2005.  And basically the way it went
  


14   was we had three work groups, a science and
  


15   tech workgroup, a policy workgroup and then,
  


16   sort of, a workgroup that oversaw that.  And it
  


17   took a number of years to sort of work that
  


18   process.
  


19                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Chris, not
  


20   to interrupt you.  I was just was whispering in
  


21   Elin's ear here.  I can remember being at
  


22   the -- this is ten years ago, we're talking
  


23   folks.
  


24                  CHRIS BELLUCCI:  Yeah.
  


25                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  And I can
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 1   remember being at the first meeting in December
  


 2   of 2005 in Gina McCarthy's office, now the EPA
  


 3   administrator.  So you know, we're getting
  


 4   frustrated with this process, but this has also
  


 5   taken a very long time.  So --
  


 6                  CHRIS BELLUCCI:  Yeah, and
  


 7   there's a lot of talk about when it comes to
  


 8   water.  Right?  And it's funny you say that
  


 9   because I had -- I was looking at some of the
  


10   slides that I had and I had a picture of my son
  


11   who was -- I used in one of the graphics and he
  


12   was -- that was a long time ago.  Now he's,
  


13   like, 16.
  


14                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Right.  So
  


15   sorry to interrupt.
  


16                  CHRIS BELLUCCI:  No, that's
  


17   fine.  And actually that's the picture right
  


18   there down in the corner.
  


19                  So -- and really when we talk
  


20   about, you know, how long it takes to kind of
  


21   discuss these things and talk about it, it's
  


22   really all about the balance.  Right?  You
  


23   know, there's lots of different uses of water.
  


24   We all have our heart in this and so our
  


25   discussions become vigorous, shall I say?  We
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 1   have -- water is very important to the state
  


 2   and you know, that's the reason why these
  


 3   things take so long.
  


 4                  But one of the things I wanted
  


 5   to talk about is sort of some of the
  


 6   foundational material that became part of the
  


 7   regulation and how we went about defining
  


 8   important stream flows for Connecticut and what
  


 9   became what's contained in the regulation.  And
  


10   a lot of it goes back to the science that Jon
  


11   gave us a really good overview on earlier this
  


12   afternoon.
  


13                  You know, basically if we didn't
  


14   have that type of information it would have
  


15   been very hard to get to this process, because
  


16   as you'll see here on the bullets that I have,
  


17   the natural hydrograph, you know, that, that
  


18   natural flow, it was an important concept.  And
  


19   we always wanted to strive for what would be
  


20   natural, but we recognize that, you know,
  


21   obviously the more water we use for humans the
  


22   more we alter that hydrograph.  And then as
  


23   that hydrograph gets altered we affect the
  


24   aquatic life in the rivers and streams.
  


25                  And there was also a recognition
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 1   that, you know, this seasonal flow variation
  


 2   that you've seen in some of Jon's slides,
  


 3   that's very important to biological processes
  


 4   and what happens to critters.  So those, those
  


 5   two sort of concepts became a critical part of
  


 6   the development of the reg.
  


 7                  And this is touching upon again
  


 8   some of what Jon showed, and hopefully set me
  


 9   up nicely.  And this is a flow duration curve.
  


10   And it basically shows you that, you know, high
  


11   flows occur on sort of this left-hand part of
  


12   the curve.  And then low flows are down there.
  


13   And that it became, like I said, a really
  


14   important concept.  We wanted to sort of mimic
  


15   that in streams, because that's what occurs
  


16   naturally.
  


17                  And what's really sort of neat
  


18   is that, you know, we could -- if you take a
  


19   location and kind of just observe it through
  


20   pictures you can kind of get a flavor for
  


21   what's going on.  And I'll show you a bunch of
  


22   pictures, and these are all from the same
  


23   location.
  


24                  So you know, that's a picture
  


25   of, obviously, a high flow.  And then we can
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 1   take the same location and kind of look at it
  


 2   under sort of at median or sort of average type
  


 3   flow.  And then you could take that same
  


 4   location and look at under a lower.  Obviously
  


 5   very different, very different to the organisms
  


 6   and very important for a sort of foundational
  


 7   idea in the regulation.
  


 8                  So that kind of brought the
  


 9   working group to the idea of a bio period.  And
  


10   simply what that means is coupled with the
  


11   variation in flow there are these biological
  


12   processes that sort of occur in streams.  And
  


13   this is sort of a schematic of what eventually
  


14   became the bio periods in the reg.
  


15                  And it kind of shows you during
  


16   higher flows we kind of broke it up into
  


17   chunks, into months.  December through March is
  


18   sort of the overwintering period.  And a lot of
  


19   this had to do with -- we coined, sort of, fish
  


20   as the surrogate to the organisms that we
  


21   represented.  So a lot of these terms sort of
  


22   refer to what fish do in streams, but it's sort
  


23   of a surrogate for the aquatic life in general.
  


24                  We know that in the spring and
  


25   in the period March to May, you know, that the
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 1   flows get high.  And that's natural for the
  


 2   flows to get high.  We get snow melt and the
  


 3   flows get naturally high and that's an
  


 4   important process for streams to process.  And
  


 5   then as we sort of head into the summer months
  


 6   we have important biological processes with
  


 7   fish spawning.
  


 8                  Clupeid just refers to a type of
  


 9   fish.  It's the herring.  And then other fish
  


10   that are resident fish and they start to spawn.
  


11   And then we sort of get to sort of crunch time
  


12   in the summer when the flows in the streams get
  


13   low and -- but it's sort of an important time
  


14   because that's when the critters are getting
  


15   big and growing.  And then for some of the fish
  


16   in the fall is an important time.  So you know
  


17   again, recognizing that there's different flows
  


18   and different things that happen that affect
  


19   the organisms in the streams.
  


20                  So that sort of became the
  


21   baseline, if you will, for developing the
  


22   streamflow classes and the standards that go
  


23   with the classes.  So here again, you see the
  


24   natural -- the hydrograph represented on the Y
  


25   axis.  And very similar to sort of conceptually
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 1   up, up in the upper left-hand corner is sort of
  


 2   the natural flow condition.  And as you get
  


 3   down to the lower right you see things get
  


 4   altered as habitat gets altered.
  


 5                  So class one is sort of the
  


 6   natural condition, as natural as we get.  And
  


 7   we kind of try to focus that in simply that's
  


 8   rivers for river fish.  And as we go down you
  


 9   see there's alteration as we start to
  


10   incorporate human uses to the streamflow
  


11   classes.
  


12                  So how do we integrate all this
  


13   information together?  It's sort of the key,
  


14   sort of I think, foundational things that came
  


15   out of it.  That because there is this
  


16   variation in flow and the organisms need
  


17   different things, and human uses vary over
  


18   time, not all streams and rivers in the state
  


19   are the same.
  


20                  So it may seem obvious, but you
  


21   know, it took us a number of years to get down
  


22   to that and kind of all agree on sort that
  


23   important point.  It's not possible to take all
  


24   the rivers back to pristine.  We are sort of
  


25   part of the system and, you know, where we have
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 1   a role in altering it.
  


 2                  You need the variability to
  


 3   incorporate the seasonal flows and patterns and
  


 4   incorporate that with human needs.  And I think
  


 5   the stream needs the variability and obviously
  


 6   we have different demands as humans, that we
  


 7   have different needs at different times of the
  


 8   year.
  


 9                  So what the standards and
  


10   classes do is they sort of define who needs to
  


11   comply and what is needed.  And then it sort of
  


12   has a schedule on when the compliance comes
  


13   into play, and sort of describes that
  


14   variability that's needed through the different
  


15   release rules.
  


16                  I talk a little bit about the
  


17   procedures that we used to go about
  


18   classifying, so now we have the classes one,
  


19   two, three, four.  And the regulation spells
  


20   out the factors that we use to go about and
  


21   classify the streams.  And there's 18 factors,
  


22   and I'll talk a little bit more about that in a
  


23   bit, but basically it's we assembled GIS
  


24   layers.
  


25                  Some of the important ones that
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 1   really affect flow are diversions, dams,
  


 2   impervious cover, and returns flow.  And then
  


 3   there's a bunch of other factors and I'll show
  


 4   that in a bit.  And we build this big GIS, put
  


 5   the proposed streamflow classes up on a map and
  


 6   consult with the State Department of Public
  


 7   Health.
  


 8                  And after doing that we go to a
  


 9   public participation process.  It's A 90-day
  


10   process that's spelled out in the reg, take
  


11   comments and then develop a decision there.
  


12   And then finally that final classification
  


13   becomes adopted by DEEP.
  


14                  A little bit about the factors.
  


15   I mentioned the hydrologic stressors in the
  


16   previous slide, the impervious land covered
  


17   dams, diversions and return flow.  There are
  


18   also what we call, certainty factors, or what I
  


19   refer to as, certainty factors.  They are
  


20   related to public water supply, so downstream
  


21   of existing water supply reservoirs.
  


22                  The way the regulation reads, it
  


23   says they cannot be a class one or a class two,
  


24   as it does for intersection of level A aquifers
  


25   and those proposed public water supply with
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 1   significant investment.  So those are sort of
  


 2   certainty factors because it's really spelled
  


 3   out on the reg on what they can and can't be.
  


 4                  And then there's additional
  


 5   factors that relate to a variety of things,
  


 6   potential water supply needs, planned land use,
  


 7   plants and animals, a bunch of different for
  


 8   fish things for fish.  Wild and scenic areas,
  


 9   reference USGS gauges, and then sort of any
  


10   other additional factors that might be relevant
  


11   to the process.
  


12                  So here's a little snapshot of
  


13   where we are.  You see the Thames, Pawcatuck
  


14   and southeast coastal that has been completed
  


15   and our streamflow classes have been adopted.
  


16   The south-central coast, we're in the process.
  


17   We just got through with our public process for
  


18   that and we are in the process of evaluating
  


19   the comments that we got on that.
  


20                  So we hope to be done with that
  


21   soon, hopefully by the end of the year.  And
  


22   then we'll move on to the other bases, the
  


23   Connecticut Housatonic, Hudson and southwest
  


24   coast.  So we're sort of taking a watershed
  


25   approach to it.
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 1                  A little bit about
  


 2   applicability, what is regulated.  The
  


 3   regulation really speaks to dams that impound
  


 4   or divert water, or stream systems that affects
  


 5   the flow of water in such a system.  And what
  


 6   that means is it's basically we're not talking
  


 7   about groundwater.  It's really streams below
  


 8   dams that impound or divert water.
  


 9                  There are a bunch of exemptions
  


10   that are spelled out in the regulation.  A few
  


11   of them are listed here, or some of the key
  


12   ones are listed here.  Permitted diversions,
  


13   dams regulated by FERC, flood control dams,
  


14   recreational impoundments.  So your everyday
  


15   run of river recreational impoundment is not
  


16   regulated.
  


17                  Dams discharging to tidal
  


18   streams and dams with small watersheds.  You
  


19   know, if it has a very small watershed and
  


20   naturally yields very low water, then it's
  


21   exempt from the regulation.
  


22                  And then there are a bunch of,
  


23   sort of, offramps that are incorporated into
  


24   the regulation such as drought, public water
  


25   supply margin and safety.  Other considerations
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 1   that say, like, if these things happen and it
  


 2   gets really critical we can -- we have other
  


 3   options and decisions to make under the
  


 4   regulation.
  


 5                  And there are provisions also
  


 6   for ultimate releases, variance and
  


 7   site-specific plans if folks choose to go down
  


 8   that route.  And those are very explicitly
  


 9   stated in the reg as to what information is
  


10   needed to sort of go down that route to have a
  


11   variance for a site-specific plan.
  


12                  So this is kind of what the
  


13   release looks like.  Class one is essentially
  


14   free flowing.  A class two release, you have to
  


15   have 75 percent of what the natural inflow is.
  


16   And then class three is where it starts to get
  


17   a little bit more complicated and incorporates
  


18   the ideas that I was talking about earlier of
  


19   different releases during different periods of
  


20   time to sort of match up with the bio period
  


21   and what's going on with the aquatic organisms
  


22   in the stream.
  


23                  So here you'll see different
  


24   releases and the queue just refers to different
  


25   flows on the flow duration curve, what I
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 1   mentioned earlier.  And thanks to our good
  


 2   partners at USGS we have a computer application
  


 3   through thier steam stats website where for any
  


 4   location in the state you can go in and
  


 5   calculate what these queue flows are so people
  


 6   can actually comply with the reg and understand
  


 7   what the release actually is.
  


 8                  And then class four is basically
  


 9   to release the maximum extent practicable and
  


10   it's sort of a site-specific evaluation.
  


11                  So the universe of -- we took a
  


12   look at sort of what's regulated under on the
  


13   regulation and then we kind of evaluated that
  


14   in our databases.  We have 181 reservoirs.
  


15   Some of them are active.  Some of them are
  


16   inactive, and the inactive ones are exempt
  


17   until they become active.
  


18                  And then you, kind of, if you
  


19   follow the left-hand side there's a bunch that
  


20   are exempt under the reg for the reasons, some
  


21   of the reasons I stated earlier.  And then
  


22   there's 23 that have to make that more complex
  


23   class three level bio period type release.  And
  


24   then there's 37 that have to sort of do what
  


25   we're referring to as the minimal rearing and
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 1   growth release.  So that's sort of to the de
  


 2   minimus release.  And the reasons for that are
  


 3   sort of spelled out in the reg.
  


 4                  So some thoughts on how this
  


 5   sort of relates to, you know, what this
  


 6   workgroup is working on, the state water plan.
  


 7   I think when we -- as we go down this road
  


 8   we're developing with GIS and a map with
  


 9   underlying data that identifies, you know,
  


10   streamflow goals that reflect human use and
  


11   ecological goals.  It's sort of the charge of
  


12   what this regulation process was.
  


13                  It integrates existing water
  


14   uses, existing stream conditions and it also
  


15   accounts in a bunch of ways for future areas
  


16   targeted for water supply development.  So
  


17   we're down this road a little bit.
  


18   Approximately 40 percent of the state has been
  


19   classified already.
  


20                  We're well underway to try to,
  


21   you know, our technology is getting a little
  


22   bit better so we're getting a little bit
  


23   quicker at it in the GIS processing of it.  So
  


24   we're hoping to speed it along a little bit, if
  


25   we can.  You know, this provides sort of future
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 1   releases for these streams and with firm
  


 2   planning targets for water suppliers using, you
  


 3   know, these water registrations.
  


 4                  And finally, it also identifies
  


 5   through the classification -- because remember
  


 6   that class ones are some of the highest quality
  


 7   streams and the more naturally flowing ones.
  


 8   That identifies that on the map probably for
  


 9   the first time.  We've never had it on a
  


10   statewide basis where can look at this and say,
  


11   okay, these are the highest quality naturally
  


12   flowing waters.
  


13                  So I wanted to sort of bring in
  


14   this concept.  It's sort of -- this process
  


15   mimics somewhat of the water quality
  


16   classifications, and I know many of you are
  


17   familiar with the water quality classifications
  


18   that we have for the state.  And it breaks it
  


19   up into different categories and in this case
  


20   we use A, AA and B.  And where we can go ahead
  


21   and map the water quality classifications and
  


22   different things you can and can't do to the
  


23   different classes of water quality.
  


24                  And I think that most of us
  


25   would agree that this system has sort of
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 1   brought us a long way in making the water
  


 2   quality better in the state.  It's been used
  


 3   to, I mean, you could think back to how the
  


 4   water was in the sixties and look at it now.
  


 5   And I think everyone would agree that, as a
  


 6   whole, the water quality in the state is much
  


 7   better.
  


 8                  So we can use sort of that
  


 9   parallel and say that we're kind of on a path
  


10   to do that for water quantity.  And we're only
  


11   a portion done with the state of that.  As you
  


12   see, this is what's been done so far and gone
  


13   through the process.  You know, and we will --
  


14   the south-central costal will have another
  


15   chunk over here that will be done.  And then
  


16   we'll have the remaining part of the state
  


17   done.
  


18                  But you know, having seen the
  


19   water quality map you can sort of visualize how
  


20   this might look with water -- with the
  


21   streamflow classifications.  And it seems like
  


22   this is a logical piece of information that you
  


23   could use for your planning and discussions
  


24   here with your groups.
  


25                  So with that, there is a link
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 1   through, or at least a link to the website that
  


 2   has everything you wanted to know about the
  


 3   streamflow process including the regulation
  


 4   development and a lot of the comments that have
  


 5   come in over those number of years.
  


 6                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  A long
  


 7   process.
  


 8                  CHRIS BELLUCCI:  There's a lot
  


 9   of information on there.  And you know, I
  


10   encourage, if you want to find out more about
  


11   it, to go there.  And I would be happy to take
  


12   questions if there are questions.
  


13                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thanks
  


14   Chris.  Excellent overview.  It's been a lot of
  


15   work and you've done a great job.  A lot of
  


16   emotion attached to streamflow as well.
  


17                  Yes?
  


18                  SAM GOLD:  When will the south
  


19   central be completed?  I know you just started
  


20   the process.
  


21                  CHRIS BELLUCCI:  So we are
  


22   almost done.  We are through the process of --
  


23   we headed out for public notice.  We took
  


24   comment.  The comment period is over, so we're
  


25   in the process now of looking at it, evaluating
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 1   the comments and, you know, respond to the
  


 2   comments.  And like we've told people all
  


 3   along, we welcome comments.
  


 4                  You know, the initial
  


 5   classification is largely a GIS exercise, but
  


 6   we need people, you know, out there in the
  


 7   trenches to tell us when we're not right on
  


 8   some of this.  And we have, you know, we get
  


 9   really good comments in and we're willing to
  


10   correct it when we're not, and that's sort of
  


11   what we're doing now.
  


12                  And I was just having a
  


13   conversation with Jon in the back that, you
  


14   know, a couple of things where, you know, the
  


15   GIS is off a little and we've got to go back
  


16   and correct it.  So that's sort of where we're
  


17   at, and hopefully by the end of the year the
  


18   south-central coastal will be done.
  


19                  SAM GOLD:  And just a follow-up
  


20   on that.  Since you have eastern, the eastern
  


21   portion of Connecticut done and you have south
  


22   central done, will the completion of the other
  


23   regions in Connecticut be faster of other
  


24   watersheds?
  


25                  CHRIS BELLUCCI:  I think so.  I







122


 1   mean, I can say that, from a, at least the
  


 2   technology standpoint, we're getting better at
  


 3   it.  We have a really great person working on
  


 4   this, Mary Becker.  She's fantastic at GIS.
  


 5   And as we go through this she's doing all kinds
  


 6   of neat tricks to make this better, a better
  


 7   process and, like, automating a lot of the
  


 8   steps that go.
  


 9                  Because as you've seen, there's
  


10   18 factors.  That's a lot to incorporate into
  


11   sort of a spatial analysis.  And we're getting
  


12   better at it and I think we can probably speed
  


13   it up a little bit.
  


14                  SAM GOLD:  What might be done
  


15   during the time horizon of this planning
  


16   process?  And so south central will be done at
  


17   the end of this year.
  


18                  CHRIS BELLUCCI:  Right.
  


19                  SAM GOLD:  What is up next?
  


20                  CHRIS BELLUCCI:  So I will just
  


21   give you my thoughts.  I think we could
  


22   probably perhaps try to tackle the rest of the
  


23   three basins together.  I'm just saying this
  


24   sort of off the cuff.
  


25                  I guess, I think the technology
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 1   is sort of there that we can do that.  We'll
  


 2   have to have discussions as to, you know, if
  


 3   that's the best thing, you know, workload-wise
  


 4   for the department to do that.  But I think
  


 5   we're getting to the point where we might be
  


 6   able to do that.
  


 7                  So you know, and if we were to
  


 8   do that it would take a little bit longer than
  


 9   if we just did one basin.  But if I had to
  


10   guess, you know, I would say a year and a half,
  


11   maybe two, and then we'd be done within the
  


12   state.
  


13                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Margaret?
  


14                  MARGARET MINER:  By the way,
  


15   it's a fabulously sophisticated map.  It's
  


16   really fun to use.  However, what we like to do
  


17   is to tell local people, here's what DEEP has
  


18   done.  Go out and check it and if you see
  


19   something wrong, right them.
  


20                  Our people, you know, that are
  


21   members or in our network, there was only one
  


22   person I think who really knew the watershed,
  


23   you know, up and down well enough to actually
  


24   verify what was in the map.  And I think she
  


25   had a couple of corrections for you.
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 1                  And I was just talking to Rob.
  


 2   The three areas where I had difficulty and I
  


 3   just didn't know what to tell people is, on key
  


 4   points can you get the exact location?  And
  


 5   that frequently is where a stream either abuts
  


 6   or crosses into either a level A aquifer area,
  


 7   or a proposed well field.
  


 8                  I asked on my own.  I said,
  


 9   well, Tony, who does our mapping, tell me, you
  


10   know, how can I tell our members where they can
  


11   click on and then they can walk out, you know,
  


12   and take a look and see is this right?  So
  


13   that's where he couldn't come up with it.
  


14                  The next verify, you know,
  


15   verifiability problem was some of your factors.
  


16   And I think you really did a good job, but
  


17   factors like impervious surface.  I frequently
  


18   heard this, people say they've got the
  


19   impervious surface wrong for my town.  Not just
  


20   you, many times different groups.  Okay?
  


21                  So they see a certain impervious
  


22   surface thing on your map, a grading.  Where
  


23   can they go?  And I think it might be clear,
  


24   but can you tell people where they can go to
  


25   see where this came from?  And then if they
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 1   feel it's wrong they can speak to clear who,
  


 2   you know, or whoever.
  


 3                  And the third thing where we
  


 4   couldn't verify is, are areas where water
  


 5   companies said they had an interest, maybe had
  


 6   made a significant investment.  So I said, do
  


 7   you have records of what those significant
  


 8   investments were.  Have they bought the land?
  


 9   Have they surveyed it?  Are the talking about a
  


10   lease with the owner or what?  And we couldn't.
  


11   That was another area where verifiability
  


12   didn't go very far.
  


13                  So it's a real problem for us.
  


14   We can't go out and verify much.  We really
  


15   need to be able to tell people what's that last
  


16   layer they can go to and find out what the
  


17   facts are, what documents were used, or what
  


18   other databases or GIS layers were used.
  


19                  So I just have to emphasize it's
  


20   a very interesting map.  You can play with it
  


21   for days, but it's really good.  But I think it
  


22   could be made better so people could verify and
  


23   question and make corrections in their own
  


24   towns, their own little streams, and on their
  


25   own watersheds.
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 1                  CHRIS BELLUCCI:  That's a good
  


 2   point, Margaret.  If you, especially if you
  


 3   have comments like that and as long as
  


 4   technologically we can do it we're more than
  


 5   happy to try to make it better.  I think it's
  


 6   gotten a little better from the last basin.
  


 7                  You know, we're happy to work
  


 8   with you to try to make better for the next
  


 9   basin, especially if you have specific comments
  


10   on things that you might like to see, you know.
  


11   Let's get together and talk about it.
  


12                  MARGARET MINER:  Okay.  Thank
  


13   you.
  


14                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Any
  


15   further questions?
  


16                  (No response.)
  


17                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Great.
  


18   Thank you very much, Chris.  Appreciate you
  


19   being with us.
  


20                  Okay.  Two more items we have,
  


21   just a very brief update on the website.
  


22                  ERIC LINDQUIST:  Yeah, Eric
  


23   Lindquist From OPM.
  


24                  Right now I'm currently in the
  


25   design phase for the website, which will be
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 1   dedicated specifically for the Water Planning
  


 2   Council.  I have a current first draft that
  


 3   actually some of you have seen already.  It's
  


 4   been circulated to one of the workgroups, the
  


 5   state's plan workgroup.
  


 6                  You know, as I continue to
  


 7   refine the design, you know, the main question
  


 8   that I keep wrangling is really what level of
  


 9   information should the website encompass?
  


10   Should it be specifically focused on the water
  


11   planning process?  Or should it go further than
  


12   that?  Should it go to, you know, water
  


13   management and data?
  


14                  So you know, that's something
  


15   that I'm interested in getting feedback on,
  


16   thoughts from anyone who might be interested in
  


17   providing any creative ideas on what we'll see.
  


18   I plan to go ahead and start the buildout phase
  


19   next month.  That would be my goal.
  


20                  When it's launched it will be a
  


21   pretty simplistic website and it will take some
  


22   time to build up the content.  So it will
  


23   probably start with a focus on the water
  


24   planning process and then maybe evolve from
  


25   there, but it's easier to design it right up
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 1   front and change it down the road.  So that's
  


 2   why I'm trying to get a good handle on it now.
  


 3                  So feel free to contact me if
  


 4   you have any creative thoughts or ideas or
  


 5   concerns.  My e-mail is
  


 6   eric.k.lindquist@CT.gov.  You can come see me
  


 7   after the meeting here, but that's where I'm at
  


 8   right now.
  


 9                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you
  


10   very much.  Any questions?
  


11                  Yes, Virginia?
  


12                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Eric, my beef
  


13   with many websites is that they aren't kept up
  


14   to date.  And the easiest way to have an
  


15   up-to-date website is have it be just a series
  


16   of links and have the responsibility for
  


17   updating stuff in the other places.
  


18                  Is that the approach you're
  


19   using?  Or is this something that you're being
  


20   allowed the time to dedicate to make sure that
  


21   it doesn't say, as the website said several
  


22   years ago, maybe two years later the website
  


23   said the drought will be lifted on June 7th,
  


24   you know, of 2012, and it's now 2014?  That
  


25   kind of thing.
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 1                  MARGARET MINER:  You've been
  


 2   reading our website.
  


 3                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yes.
  


 4   Point well taken.
  


 5                  ERIC LINDQUIST:  Yeah.  The way
  


 6   I see it, the website would probably have two
  


 7   different uses.  One will be probably more of
  


 8   an educational and information providing use.
  


 9   The kind of static stuff that stays mostly
  


10   static, needs to be updated occasionally.
  


11                  The other use would be more of a
  


12   coordinating thing and you know, update
  


13   providing service.  You know, a calendar
  


14   service, scheduling meetings, uploading
  


15   materials, minutes, agendas, whatnot.  That
  


16   will be more time consuming.
  


17                  You know, one thought I had to
  


18   go through and I have to talk with management
  


19   about this as far as I'm not sure how much time
  


20   of my schedule can be allotted to it, but one
  


21   possibility is it might be something that an
  


22   intern -- you could grab an intern and they
  


23   could be trained on how to maintain the website
  


24   on behalf of the Water Planning Council.
  


25                  Just an idea, but that's
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 1   something I will have to talk with my
  


 2   management at OPM about down the road on how we
  


 3   want to approach who's going to take on the
  


 4   responsibility for keeping it going.
  


 5                  DAVID LeVASSEUR:  And having
  


 6   said that, Eric and I, we've discussed this
  


 7   internally as we expect there to be a number of
  


 8   links to other sites.  So that those individual
  


 9   sites would have to be maintained by obviously
  


10   their main master server.  So it's a
  


11   combination.  It's going to be a hybrid.
  


12                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Any
  


13   further comments?
  


14                  (No response.)
  


15                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.
  


16   Keep me up to date on that.
  


17                  Yes, Maureen?
  


18                  MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  A couple of
  


19   things.  I think again the advisory group has
  


20   had, you know, had ideas of the outreach and
  


21   stuff.  And to the extent we can coordinate
  


22   with you, maybe if you came to an advisory
  


23   group meeting and used that as a place to
  


24   brainstorm on it, it might be a way to help.
  


25                  And we've done something at
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 1   Connecticut Water where we actually -- people
  


 2   can go in and sign up and you get e-mails, or
  


 3   text alerts, or something like that.  And
  


 4   there's a fair amount behind the scenes which I
  


 5   can't begin to explain, but that may be
  


 6   something that may be level of information
  


 7   outreach that we could add here that would
  


 8   be -- help that longer term.
  


 9                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you
  


10   for that.  Great.
  


11                  Okay.  Other states workgroup
  


12   report.  A lot of time and effort has gone into
  


13   this, I know.
  


14                  MATTHEW PAFFORD:  I will try to
  


15   be brief.  My name is Matt Pafford.  I'm with
  


16   the Office of Policy and Management.  I am
  


17   cochair with the other states plans workgroup.
  


18                  If you recall back at the
  


19   Steering Committee workshop we had submitted,
  


20   our group had submitted a report of basically a
  


21   compilation of the research we had done into
  


22   what other states had done regarding their
  


23   water plans.
  


24                  A topic of conversation, a focus
  


25   of that meeting is what we were calling a model
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 1   table of contents, which was included in our
  


 2   report.  The Steering Committee asked our group
  


 3   to go back and revise the table of contents to
  


 4   include several items that came up that you all
  


 5   felt should be included in that table of
  


 6   contents.  That was distributed by e-mail last
  


 7   week.  I have a couple of paper copies here.  I
  


 8   don't know if anyone needs any.
  


 9                  And so what our group has is
  


10   done is we've taken the original model table of
  


11   contents, we've gone back and added content
  


12   that was identified by the Steering Committee
  


13   at the workshop.  And then we've also
  


14   crosschecked the new document against Public
  


15   Act 14-163 and the elements, the key elements
  


16   that we had identified in our initial report.
  


17                  So we had a lot of discussion
  


18   lately within our own group as far as which
  


19   category this falls into.  Is it here?  Is it
  


20   there?  We feel that we have covered everything
  


21   in this document.  As the planning process
  


22   evolves some of those things may shift into
  


23   different departments.  They may change
  


24   slightly, but I think we've got everything in
  


25   here, but are certainly open to, you know,
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 1   communication as far as what goes where.
  


 2                  But I think at this point that's
  


 3   up to the Steering Committee to take those
  


 4   recommendations and to kind of take this as a
  


 5   starting point.  And as the process evolves
  


 6   fill in any gaps that may be, or alter things
  


 7   that may, you know, may not fit in the coming
  


 8   months.
  


 9                  I just want to take you through
  


10   real quickly this has two main parts to it.
  


11   The first part, which is the actual table of
  


12   contents.  It's a very simplified version, a
  


13   high-level version of what you expect to see.
  


14   When you open the document you look at the
  


15   table of contents.
  


16                  The second section, which we're
  


17   calling appendix A, is the annotated table of
  


18   contents.  What that does is takes the main
  


19   sections and adds what we have determined to be
  


20   some suggested content that could be in there.
  


21   This is not the end-all be-all.  It's not
  


22   intended to be all inclusive.  It's really
  


23   based on the research that we have done and
  


24   said -- and that's based on the sections we've
  


25   identified, the important elements that we've
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 1   identified and the research that we've done.
  


 2   Here's what we think could or should be
  


 3   included in there.
  


 4                  And again, as this process
  


 5   evolves that may change, but we're hoping that
  


 6   this will be a good starting point for the
  


 7   process from here on out.
  


 8                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  This is an
  


 9   incredible amount of work that this group has
  


10   done and I thank you and commend you for it.  I
  


11   mean, you sift through these plans and you were
  


12   given to look over them and I think you came up
  


13   with a great product here.
  


14                  Larry?
  


15                  LARRY BINGAMAN:  I would echo
  


16   that.  I think that's terrific job.  And I was
  


17   just wondering, how this is going to play into
  


18   the consultant that we ultimately retain to
  


19   help us with the project?
  


20                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  I think
  


21   this would be a great outline for that
  


22   consultant.
  


23                  LARRY BINGAMAN:  This would be a
  


24   great outline.  It strikes me as a -- for a
  


25   project.  So here's your RFP.  Tell us what
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 1   it's going to cost.
  


 2                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  This
  


 3   really -- this and some of the information we
  


 4   got out of the workgroups today is going to be
  


 5   really a good foundation for that.
  


 6                  ROBERT MOORE:  I just would say
  


 7   that you did an excellent job on this and the
  


 8   issues are really good.  I think the only thing
  


 9   I saw that was missing was some commitment on
  


10   agricultural uses under economic development,
  


11   or one of those other areas.  But that was kind
  


12   of the only thing I saw that was kind of
  


13   missing from that.  But --
  


14                  MATTHEW PAFFORD:  Yeah, we do
  


15   identify agriculture in 4-B, understanding
  


16   Connecticut's water demands.
  


17                  ROBERT MOORE:  Yeah, but I was
  


18   thinking in terms of the economic development
  


19   and land use in the future, the future part of
  


20   it.  That's all.
  


21                  MATT BAFFERT:  And it certainly
  


22   could be added kind of as the process moves
  


23   along.
  


24                  Any other questions?
  


25                  ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  Just a
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 1   question.  So preparing for change would be
  


 2   technology and consumer behavior.  I'm guessing
  


 3   that includes things like water reuse,
  


 4   recycling, conservation.
  


 5                  MATT BAFFERT:  Yeah.  All of
  


 6   those things can fall under that category, as
  


 7   well as, obviously you know, other categories.
  


 8   There was a lot of overlap in dealing with
  


 9   this.  So they certainly can fall into more
  


10   than one category.
  


11                  ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  Thank you.
  


12                  DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Thank you,
  


13   Matt.  And thank your committee.
  


14                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Matt, and
  


15   thank your committee.  Virginia, you were part
  


16   of this process.
  


17                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  I was part of
  


18   this process with Matt.
  


19                  I wanted to remind the Steering
  


20   Committee that the group, one of the things
  


21   that the group did was develop this, this model
  


22   table of contents.  The major part of what we
  


23   did was going through and identifying key
  


24   elements that needed to be in a water plan and
  


25   using the 19 states that we used as examples.
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 1                  We did a fairly exhaustive look
  


 2   at the different elements and how they were
  


 3   addressed, complete with references to what
  


 4   states have done them.  To me, that is the more
  


 5   important document.  That was distributed via
  


 6   e-mail before the Steering Committee workshop.
  


 7   I don't believe -- it was not available as a
  


 8   handout at that workshop because it's quite
  


 9   humongous.
  


10                  But I would encourage all of us
  


11   to focus on that document because that's where
  


12   you're really going to find the interesting
  


13   details that we as the Steering Committee need
  


14   to assess whether they should be in our water
  


15   plan.  So perhaps we can resend that so that
  


16   it's not lost in a four-months-ago e-mail, and
  


17   have people take a good look at that.  That's
  


18   the meat of the work that we did.
  


19                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Good
  


20   recommendation.
  


21                  Any other questions or comments
  


22   for Matt?
  


23                  (No response.)
  


24                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you
  


25   very much.







138


 1                  Let's have round of applause.
  


 2                  Is there any other business?
  


 3   I've got a couple of things I wanted to bring
  


 4   up, and then I'll open up for comments.  One is
  


 5   that the American Water Resource Association,
  


 6   an interesting -- I got a call from Brenda
  


 7   Bateman who is their chair of their board of
  


 8   directors.  And they're having -- she went to
  


 9   every state's website.  They're having an
  


10   inaugural workshop for state officials.
  


11                  And the purpose of this is for
  


12   officials who are responsible for developing
  


13   state water plans.  And it's going to be held
  


14   in Denver, Colorado, from the 11th to the 13th.
  


15   Unfortunately I have a conflict.
  


16                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Of what
  


17   month?
  


18                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  November
  


19   of this year, November 11th.
  


20                  And -- but our Chairman has
  


21   authorized us to send Jim Voccolina.  Some of
  


22   you know Jim Voccolina is our subject matter
  


23   water expert here at PURA.  And he's going to
  


24   be -- we just signed off on his travel
  


25   authorization.  He's going to be traveling out
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 1   to Denver to represent the State of Connecticut
  


 2   at this.  And this is the first of many,
  


 3   evidently.  So I'm kind of excited about this,
  


 4   because it ties beautifully into obviously what
  


 5   we're doing.  So Jim will be going to that.
  


 6                  The other thing is that Monday
  


 7   and Tuesday of this week I was in Denver,
  


 8   Colorado at the Water Research Foundation,
  


 9   Public Council on Water Research.  I'm on the
  


10   public council.
  


11                  Larry, were you on that ever?
  


12                  LARRY BINGAMAN:  No.
  


13                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  It's the
  


14   science of water and the people are there from
  


15   the top public councils, very similar to this
  


16   Steering Committee in terms of who's there.
  


17   But we talked about -- I told them and they
  


18   were very interested in our water plan.
  


19                  Not unique to Connecticut,
  


20   people debate -- they may say, argue -- but
  


21   debate water from around the United States.
  


22   It's not just us.  It was a huge issue and
  


23   Maryland, Delaware and Washington D.C. over the
  


24   Potomac River ended up going to the Supreme
  


25   Court.
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 1                  But there's a lot of things the
  


 2   foundation -- and we look at the website, the
  


 3   committee chairs -- there's a lot of
  


 4   information that they have done, research upon
  


 5   research upon research.  This is all they do,
  


 6   is research -- is that we can, I think, tap
  


 7   into.
  


 8                  So I'm not going to read it this
  


 9   afternoon, but there was one page here that was
  


10   almost like describing what we're trying to do
  


11   on the Water Planning Council.  So I think it's
  


12   important that we utilize that as much as we
  


13   can.  And I'm actually going to send their
  


14   executive director an outline of what you're
  


15   looking for and see how they might be able to
  


16   assist us.
  


17                  Virginia?
  


18                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Your first
  


19   comment about the conference in November.  When
  


20   earlier this meeting when we were talking about
  


21   the project management schedule, getting a
  


22   project manager on, I'm still not clear what
  


23   would happen at that November meeting.
  


24                  But is there any hope that we
  


25   would have identified project management that
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 1   could attend this conference?  Because I think
  


 2   that would be very valuable, the person to go
  


 3   and information to bring back, in addition to
  


 4   Jim.
  


 5                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  I'm going
  


 6   to defer to my resident --
  


 7                  DAVID LeVASSEUR:  As much as I
  


 8   think we could probably do something like that,
  


 9   I really want that decision about project
  


10   management being to be made at the November
  


11   meeting of this group.
  


12                  I really want to have this group
  


13   to be able to give its input and its blessing
  


14   to whatever course of action we go with.  All
  


15   of the various pieces of what we view as the
  


16   consultant pieces that we need, whether it's
  


17   project management for this group, project
  


18   management for the consultant and the
  


19   consultant process.
  


20                  One of the things that's been
  


21   driven home since we began is we need to be
  


22   open, we need to be transparent and we need to
  


23   have input from everybody.  So I just don't see
  


24   the timing coming together for that, Virginia,
  


25   because I think, quite frankly, that I don't
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 1   want to jeopardize the integrity of the process
  


 2   just to facilitate getting a warm body out
  


 3   there for a couple of weeks after we made the
  


 4   decision.  So --
  


 5                  MARGARET MINER:  Maybe it will
  


 6   be available on streaming or some downloadable
  


 7   thing that we could see.
  


 8                  DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Or it might be
  


 9   available after the fact.
  


10                  MARGARET MINER:  Yeah, that's
  


11   what I mean.
  


12                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  And again,
  


13   as I said in the letter, it's the inaugural so
  


14   there's going to be other meetings.  I think
  


15   this is really kind of looking at what's going
  


16   around, but I think there's definitely -- the
  


17   way I understand from my conversation with
  


18   Brenda -- was this was going to be the first of
  


19   many.  So --
  


20                  Oh, is that the Gene Likens
  


21   letter?  Does anybody want to comment?  Gene
  


22   Likens sent a letter to people.  He was upset
  


23   about the scheduling that -- rescheduling the
  


24   meeting.  He's made some recommendations here
  


25   in the letter.  I was going to have a
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 1   conversation with Gene.
  


 2                  Have you talked to Gene?
  


 3                  MICHAEL J. SULLIVAN:  I have
  


 4   not.
  


 5                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  So when he
  


 6   says, can we identify a Steering Committee
  


 7   Chair?  Well, he's sitting right here.  That's
  


 8   me.  So I'm the Steering Committee Chair, and
  


 9   that was made quite apparent to everybody at
  


10   the retreat in June, that that's the way the
  


11   structure has been set up here.
  


12                  I know you responded.  Have you
  


13   talked to him?  I know you sent an e-mail back
  


14   to him.
  


15                  MARGARET MINER:  I did and I
  


16   will be seeing him, but I haven't gone into any
  


17   detail.  I hope to show him some of the things
  


18   here today that maybe haven't gotten to his
  


19   e-mail.
  


20                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  And I
  


21   would be more than happy to take it to him.
  


22                  MARGARET MINER:  Talk to him.
  


23   Right?
  


24                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yeah,
  


25   absolutely.  I mean, I think it's okay with the
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 1   Steering Committee, the way I'd like to have a
  


 2   conversation with him and give him a followup
  


 3   to today's meeting, and let him know what we've
  


 4   done and where we're going.  And if that's okay
  


 5   with everybody?
  


 6                  MICHAEL J. SULLIVAN:  I'll say
  


 7   something about that.  I mean, I was -- and
  


 8   this is just like a personal observation.  I'm
  


 9   very happy with this meeting today.  I thought
  


10   this was very useful.  And I just want to make
  


11   sure that these kind of meetings, I mean, it
  


12   sounds like we're on a regular schedule now.
  


13                  And I just want to make sure
  


14   that we're doing enough work so that when you
  


15   people invoke the time to come in and meet and
  


16   do these things, that we have a substantive
  


17   discussion about whatever that issue might be.
  


18   And that people have things in advance so that
  


19   they could come in and have a useful,
  


20   productive discussion about whatever it might
  


21   be.
  


22                  And I just want to make sure
  


23   that we're not wasting your time when you, you
  


24   know, you're basically volunteering to do this
  


25   kind of thing.  So I think when I -- I just did
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 1   a quick read on Gene's letter and I think
  


 2   that's part of what I was reading on that.  And
  


 3   I think if this meeting is any indication, I
  


 4   think we're well on our way to addressing some
  


 5   of the things that he was kind of raising.
  


 6   So --
  


 7                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you
  


 8   for that, Mike.
  


 9                  Virginia?
  


10                  VIRGINIA de LIMA:  We only got
  


11   it and I thought he was --
  


12                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  No, I
  


13   appreciate you.  I appreciate you doing that.
  


14                  For the record, I was going to
  


15   say we had 99 percent attendance between people
  


16   here on the phone, except for Gene.  Okay.  So
  


17   Gene couldn't be here today, so that's
  


18   understood.  Okay?
  


19                  MARGARET MINER:  On this comment
  


20   from Gene.  You know, he's very concerned about
  


21   what he sees as an environmental catastrophe
  


22   that we may be heading toward.  And he wants to
  


23   be sure, as I understand it, that we're doing
  


24   things in the most efficient and rapid means
  


25   possible.
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 1                  So I'm sure he does become
  


 2   impatient, but his level of concern is
  


 3   commensurate with that of the Pope, and I think
  


 4   with a lot of the rest of us, that we can't
  


 5   waste time coming up with some answers.
  


 6                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  And you
  


 7   know what?  We would have wasted time if we had
  


 8   the meeting early on this month, quite frankly.
  


 9   And that's why we --
  


10                  MARGARET MINER:  I'm not
  


11   debating that.  But that's his --
  


12                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  That why
  


13   we don't want to drag up here.  Okay.  Let's go
  


14   home and watch the Pope.  Okay?
  


15                  Motion to adjourn?
  


16                  DAVID LeVASSEUR:  So moved.
  


17                  ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  Second.
  


18                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  All those
  


19   in favor?
  


20                  THE COMMITTEE:  Aye.
  


21                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you
  


22   very much for your time.  Appreciate it.
  


23                  (Whereupon, the above
  


24   proceedings were concluded at 3:57 p.m.)
  


25
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� 1                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Not



 2  everyone is here yet, but in the interest of



 3  those that are here I believe that we will



 4  bring this meeting of the Steering Committee to



 5  order.  And I believe everyone knows everyone



 6  here.  A couple of things --



 7                 Lisa, who do we have on the



 8  phone?



 9                 THE CLERK:  We have Beth Barton



10  from Day Pitney and Julie Zimmerman from Yale



11  University.



12                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.



13  Welcome and since we just announced, here we're



14  going to start going around the room and saying



15  who's here from the Council.



16                 I'm Jack Betkoski, Chair of the



17  Council.



18                 ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  Ellen



19  Blaschinski with the Department of Public



20  Health.



21                 DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Dave Levasseur



22  with the Office of Policy and Management.



23                 SAM GOLD:  Sam Gold, River COG.



24                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Virgina de



25  Lima, Steering Committee, subgroup of science
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� 1  and technical.



 2                 ANDREW LORD:  Andrew Lord,



 3  Connection Association of Water Pollution



 4  Control Authorities and the Connecticut Water



 5  Pollution Abatement Association.



 6                 ROBERT MOORE:  Bob Moore with



 7  the Steering Committee, and Chair of the policy



 8  subcommittee.



 9                 LARRY BINGAMAN:  Larry Bingaman



10  with the regional water authority.



11                 MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  Maureen



12  Westbrook with the Connecticut Water Company,



13  and cochair with my partner in crime there,



14  Margaret Miner for the advisory group.



15                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  And just



16  being joined by Margaret Miner and Elin Katz



17  from the Consumer Counsel for the State of



18  Connecticut.



19                 Why don't we -- people in the



20  room just since, starting with -- here



21  introduce yourself, please.



22                 ERIC LINDQUIST:  I'm Eric



23  Lindquist from the Office of Policy and



24  Management.



25                 JON MORRISON:  Jon Morrison,
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� 1  U.S. Geological Survey.



 2                 CORINNE FITTING:  Corinne



 3  Fitting, Connecticut DEEP.



 4                 ROBERT HUST:  Rob Hust,



 5  Connecticut DEEP.



 6                 GLENN WARNER:  Glenn Warner,



 7  Connecticut Still Water Resources.



 8                 DAVID RADKA:  David Radka,



 9  Connecticut Water Company.



10                 NICHOLAS NEELEY:  Nick Neeley,



11  PURA.



12                 GAIL LUCCHINA:  Gail Lucchina,



13  PURA.



14                 JOHN HUDAK:  John Hudak,



15  regional water authority.



16                 ELIZABETH GARA:  Betsy Gara,



17  Connecticut Water Works Association.



18                 LORI VITAGLIANO:  Lori



19  Vitagliano, the regional water authority.



20                 ALICEA CHARAMUT:  Alicea



21  Charamut, Connecticut River Watershed Council.



22                 CHRIS BELLUCCI:  Chris Bellucci,



23  Connecticut DEEP.



24                 MATTHEW PAFFORD:  Matt Pafford,



25  Office of Policy and Management.
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� 1                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Very good.



 2  Welcome to everyone, and I appreciate everybody



 3  being here today.  And we have a very extensive



 4  agenda here this afternoon.



 5                 But before we begin, first of



 6  all I want to apologize for rescheduling this,



 7  the meeting that we had scheduled earlier this



 8  month.  And there was good reason for doing



 9  that -- and actually money.  And our money man



10  is sitting next to me here, and he's going to



11  give a little bit of an explanation of that.



12                 And again, I know once you



13  have -- that you're all very busy people and I



14  know when you get things on your schedule you'd



15  like to keep them as they are, but sometimes



16  there are circumstances beyond our control.



17                 And I'm going to turn it over to



18  Dave LeVasseur to give a little bit of an



19  explanation of how we got the money, where the



20  money is at, and where we're going to go moving



21  forward in terms of utilizing these funds.



22                 DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Well, and also



23  I wanted to add onto Jack's comments.  When he



24  talked about the week before, the September 1st



25  meeting there were a number of balls in the
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� 1  air.  The bond money was one of them.



 2                 We really didn't feel -- we had



 3  a not a lot of committee reports to bring to



 4  the table.  While we had had a preliminary



 5  discussion with Nyquist, we really didn't feel



 6  we had an opportunity to discuss the various



 7  contracting options going forward.  And quite



 8  frankly, when we looked at the agenda we



 9  realized that basically the only real items



10  that would have been on it would have been the



11  two presentations that you're going to see



12  today.



13                 And quite frankly, in view of



14  the fact that we know that our members are



15  extremely busy and have time commitments



16  elsewhere, and a number of them are, quite



17  frankly, traveling from pretty extensive



18  distances to get here, we felt in the interests



19  of time it was better to reschedule until we



20  had some closure to some of those elements.



21  And we could actually have a meeting that had



22  some meaning and some substance to it, as



23  opposed to just viewing a couple of



24  presentations.



25                 So that sort of was the
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� 1  background behind that all.  Since then, of



 2  course, the bond agenda has come out and we now



 3  know that the bond commission has as the first



 4  item, on its agenda next Tuesday, the first



 5  tranche of $500,000 of bond money toward



 6  producing a statewide water plan.  So now that



 7  we've got some money we can actually start



 8  talking about the next steps.



 9                 So our goal is once we make sure



10  that we actually get through the bond



11  commission on Tuesday of next week, is to work



12  internally within OPM to come up with a number



13  of different options around the core functions



14  that we think we're going to need for



15  contracting purposes going forward.



16                 For instance, if you guys focus



17  on my e-mails about the bond money you realize



18  that we've established at least three core



19  functions, which may or may not be done by one



20  or two individuals or entities.  But we figured



21  it was better to knock down the disciplines



22  first, obviously a consultant to actually write



23  the plan.  And we are going to need day-to-day



24  supervision of that consultant to keep them on



25  track.
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� 1                 And then of course, quite



 2  frankly, we, as all of you know, we haven't had



 3  a project manager on board since the first of



 4  September, and that's another critical



 5  component.  And I'm not suggesting at the end



 6  of the day that an entity couldn't do more than



 7  one of those functions.  But quite frankly, we



 8  figured they really called for separate



 9  disciplines.



10                 So our hope is that by the next



11  Steering Committee meeting we'll have a number



12  of different recommend -- a number of different



13  options that we can follow and some specific



14  recommendations for the Steering Committee to



15  endorse us going forward in terms of hiring the



16  appropriate consultants.  So that's sort of



17  where we're headed now.



18                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you,



19  David.



20                 Any questions or comments?



21                 Maureen?



22                 MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  Just when



23  you say by the next Steering Committee, you've



24  got a number of options of how you approach it,



25  or of specific firms or entities to use?
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� 1                 DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Probably types



 2  of entities in the procurement process, because



 3  it's extremely complicated at the state level



 4  and there are a number of different ways we can



 5  proceed.



 6                 So quite frankly, it's so



 7  complicated that it's going to take us a while



 8  to cut through what happens depending upon who



 9  you hire and in what capacity, and for what



10  purpose.  So that's our game plan for the next



11  Steering Committee meeting.



12                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Margaret?



13                 MARGARET MINER:  So what are we



14  deciding today, and what at the next Steering



15  Committee meeting?



16                 DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Well, I don't



17  think we're deciding anything.



18                 MARGARET MINER:  Nothing today?



19                 DAVID LeVASSEUR:  No.



20                 MARGARET MINER:  And will we get



21  as you -- it does seem that having a project



22  manager and a separate person keeping, holding



23  the reins on the -- are guiding the person



24  who's writing.  That's three people.  It does



25  seem excessive.
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� 1                 As you work on it will you keep



 2  the Steering Committee involved in what they



 3  should be seeing and --



 4                 DAVID LeVASSEUR:  The Steering



 5  Committee is going to get to recommend -- what



 6  we've flushed out, the various paths that we



 7  can come to and then our recommendations as to



 8  how to proceed.  So the Steering Committee will



 9  be deciding that at the next Steering Committee



10  meeting.



11                 MARGARET MINER:  But we'll get



12  information well before the meeting.  Am I



13  right?



14                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Oh, yeah.



15  And by the way, Margaret, I'm not sure you



16  described that appropriately in terms of how --



17  we're looking at you might have a project



18  manager.  There might be different paradigms



19  that have got to be set up.  So I mean, we want



20  to come up with the most efficient, effective



21  way of doing this.



22                 You know, Tom Callahan, quite



23  frankly, did a great job to kind of get us off



24  the ground here, but he's kind of in limbo



25  right at UConn.  And we might have more in
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� 1  terms of his availability in November as well,



 2  because there's been a transition over in the



 3  management team there.



 4                 DAVID LeVASSEUR:  They're still



 5  in transition.  So --



 6                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  They're



 7  still in transition there.  So if that had not



 8  happened we might have been in a different



 9  place from a project management standpoint.



10                 MARGARET MINER:  Okay.  So all



11  those contracts are coming up.



12                 The SSWUDS.  I forget -- has



13  that been signed?  Are we going to see that



14  today?  Are we seeing a presentation?



15                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yes.



16                 MARGARET MINER:  And has that



17  been signed or is that still pending?



18                 DAVID LeVASSEUR:  I have no idea



19  who's supposed to sign off on it.



20                 ROBERT HUST:  You're talking



21  about the grant?



22                 MARGARET MINER:  Source water



23  site-specific, et cetera, et cetera.  The



24  SSWUDS program --



25                 MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  The
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� 1  proposal.



 2                 MARGARET MINER:  The proposal.



 3                 MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  The grant



 4  application that's been submitted to --



 5                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Excuse me.



 6  We have been joined by Deputy Commissioner



 7  Michael Sullivan from the Department of Energy



 8  and Environmental Protection who can shed light



 9  on that wonderful subject.  Michael, good



10  afternoon.



11                 MICHAEL J. SULLIVAN:  Good



12  afternoon.



13                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  By the



14  way, this is all transcribed today.  Those of



15  you up here, you don't have to say your name.



16  Those of you in the audience when you talk,



17  help Rob out here and say your name and who



18  you're with -- at least once, right Rob?



19                 THE REPORTER:  Yes, at least



20  once.  It would be helpful.  There's a lot



21  potential speakers in here.



22                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  We've got



23  one of the best transcribers going by the way.



24  He's really good.  So watch what you say today.



25  It's all going to become a matter of record.
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� 1                 MICHAEL J. SULLIVAN:  My name



 2  really is Michael Sullivan.  And Jack was



 3  directing his remarks to me, since I insist on



 4  telling everybody who I am every time I speak.



 5                 We've submitted the application,



 6  Margaret, and as far as I know there's been no



 7  decision on that.  So the application is



 8  pending on the SSWUDS.



 9                 MARGARET MINER:  Okay.  That's



10  what I was wondering.  Thank you.



11                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  And just to



12  clarify, who are you submitting an application



13  to?



14                 MICHAEL J. SULLIVAN:  I believe



15  it's to the Department of Housing, Right?



16                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yeah.



17                 MICHAEL J. SULLIVAN:  Right.



18  The state Department of Housing.



19                 ELIN KATZ:  Margaret, I guess I



20  respectfully disagree.  I think this is an



21  incredibly important project.  We all have



22  other responsibilities.  And jobs in having a



23  team of people, whether it's one or two or



24  three people on such an important document



25  that's going to have a long-standing impact on
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� 1  Connecticut is appropriate.  It doesn't feel



 2  overstaffed to me.



 3                 And I, you know, they always



 4  say, if you want a good product from a



 5  consultant you've got to be a good client and I



 6  think we need a good client, because we need to



 7  be a good client who's managing the process,



 8  which is very difficult to do by committee.  So



 9  I think it's a good plan as you guys have laid



10  out.



11                 MARGARET MINER:  It may be.  I



12  think we all agree we're looking for efficiency



13  and a good plan.



14                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Right.



15  Virginia, do you have something to say?  Okay.



16  You look like you're ready to say something.



17  No?  Okay.



18                 Any other questions or comments



19  on this item -- which is good news.  And when



20  you've been reading what's in the newspaper



21  lately in terms of money in the State of



22  Connecticut, we're in a good spot to be getting



23  this money released next week.



24                 So okay.  We're going to move



25  onto a presentation from the U.S. Geological
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� 1  Survey.  It will give us a little bit of an



 2  overview of water resources.  SSWUDS,



 3  sustainable yield and stream.



 4                 JON MORRISON:  Yeah, it's kind



 5  of a daunting list of things I have to present



 6  on.



 7                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  There's a



 8  lot on your plate today.



 9                 LARRY BINGAMAN:  Will there be



10  copies of these slides available?



11                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Can we get



12  copies of these slides?



13                 JON MORRISON:  Yeah, it's on the



14  computer here.  So if you want to take the



15  presentation afterwards it's already loaded on



16  this computer.  So if there's another way you



17  want me to get you the slides I can do that as



18  well.  E-mail it?



19                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yeah, if



20  you could e-mail it.  Yeah.



21                 Actually Gail, would you give



22  him your e-mail afterwards so we could get it



23  out to the Steering Committee, please.  Thank



24  you.



25                 JON MORRISON:  So with that long
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� 1  list of things that I have to present on, first



 2  of all, my name is Jon Morrison.  I'm with the



 3  U.S. Geological Survey.



 4                 With that long list of things



 5  that I have to present on I'm going to be kind



 6  of brief -- try to be brief since we also have



 7  a very long agenda.



 8                 The first thing I wanted to talk



 9  about is the state of water resources in



10  Connecticut, and in order to do that I think we



11  really need to start with the precipitation



12  data.  Our good friends at the National Weather



13  Service have been keeping precipitation data



14  records since about 1901, at least for



15  Hartford.  And they've had this long record of



16  annual precipitation values up to present.



17                 And if you look at that, that



18  plot, what you can see is that the long-term



19  average that they've calculated out is



20  46.87 inches per year over the period 1901 to



21  2000.  But what's interesting in that plot is



22  that since 1970 to present there seems to be



23  fewer low years than there were in the period



24  prior to that.  So this, there's almost a step



25  trend in increasing precipitation that starts
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� 1  around 1970.



 2                 And sorry for you guys that I'm



 3  standing in your way.



 4                 And so that's kind of an



 5  interesting point that happens to coincide with



 6  the streamflow.  And I'll show you that when we



 7  talk about streamflow in just a minute.



 8                 And what you can see in that,



 9  that plot with the precipitation is that here



10  in the 1960s, the middle 1960s we had the



11  longest drought we've had in the state of



12  Connecticut, the historic drought.  And right



13  after that drought we went into this step trend



14  in 1970 with increasing precipitation.



15                 So the USGS has three data



16  collection networks that we use to assess the



17  water resources of Connecticut.  We have the



18  surface water stream gauging network, which is



19  in the upper left-hand side.  We have our



20  groundwater ambient water level monitoring



21  network, which is in the upper right-hand side.



22  And we have a water quality monitoring network



23  that we operate as well.  And all three of



24  these networks we operate with the Connecticut



25  DEEP as a cooperative agency.  And I'll talk
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� 1  about the funding on some of these networks as



 2  we go through each one.



 3                 So the real-time streamflow



 4  conditions, this is a product of the USGS



 5  that's off our website.  What you can see is we



 6  have a map that shows the distribution of



 7  stream gauges with some color coding that show



 8  what the current conditions of those streams



 9  are.  And those values range from red, which is



10  on the dry side, to black, blue-black which is



11  on the wet side.



12                 We don't see too many



13  blue-blacks on there right now.  Most of the



14  state is in the red, red condition.  There is



15  one blue one, which means that that station has



16  a higher flow than is typical for this time of



17  year.



18                 So being that it's September



19  it's the typical low period in streamflow in



20  Connecticut.  It's not unusual for a lot of our



21  stations to be in this red condition.  When we



22  get into this bright red condition and we get



23  into the 1 percent flow duration, then things



24  get a little bit more interesting.



25                 And right now the USGS data is
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� 1  updated every hour, so that this data continues



 2  to update on the web once an hour with the most



 3  recent data that's available.  And this is as



 4  of yesterday afternoon.



 5                 So if you looked at any one



 6  given site what you can see is the streamflow



 7  record for that site.  The blue line is the



 8  hydrograph of the instantaneous streamflow.



 9  The X axis is the date.  The Y axis is the



10  streamflow.  And this is for a site at Bunnell



11  Brook near Burlington.



12                 And so what you get when you



13  click on one of these sites is you can see just



14  what the streamflow is today, what it's been



15  for the past few days.  It typically comes up



16  with a ten-day plot to let you know what's



17  going on.



18                 The yellow triangles across the



19  plot are the daily mean -- or the median daily



20  flow.  That statistic for this site is based on



21  82 years of record, so each day is a



22  compilation of the 82 September seventeens.  So



23  it's the median value there.  So what you get



24  when you look at that data is, you could say,



25  based on the streamflow we have today we're
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� 1  pretty much lower than we have been most of the



 2  time.



 3                 You can also change the



 4  timescale to look at longer periods of time.



 5  If we go back to basically the beginning of



 6  July we can see that we've had a pretty dry



 7  summer when we look at that plot, but yet we're



 8  still below the median flowline for most of the



 9  summer, July, August and September.  Okay?



10                 The streamflow statistics are



11  extremely important when we begin to look at



12  hydrologic resources in the state of



13  Connecticut.  Okay?  Our streams are really



14  valuable to us for a number of uses.



15                 So this long-term record



16  provides us the ability to do statistics and



17  look at flow durations, annual exceedance



18  probabilities for both high and low flows and



19  know what we can expect for streamflows for



20  certain streams throughout the state of



21  Connecticut.



22                 This is for Bunnell Brook again.



23  This is the period of January 10th, through --



24  January of 2010 through January 2012, basically



25  a two-year period.
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� 1                 And if you look at high flow



 2  statistics in this period of time, what I've



 3  put up is the two-year recurrence interval for



 4  the annual exceedance probability of a two-year



 5  storm or flood, and the ten-year flood.  And



 6  that's the green and the red lines on that



 7  map -- or on that graph.



 8                 So the green horizontal line



 9  across the top is the two-year recurrence



10  interval.  And if you look at this two-year



11  period you see about ten occurrences of the



12  two-year flood in that period of time.  And you



13  can also see that there's about four to --



14  three to four ten-year recurrence intervals in



15  that two-year period of time as well.



16                 So this reflects a fairly wet



17  year, or a couple of wet years.  Okay?  But it



18  does look at how important these statistics



19  are.  Okay?  And the longer we collect data the



20  more valuable those statistics are.



21                 And we begin to look at



22  long-term datasets and we look at inter-decadal



23  and multi-decadal cycles and streamflow and



24  precipitation.  We have to have long periods of



25  records to be able to do that.  Okay?  These
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� 1  are extremely valuable.



 2                 So just because we had those



 3  floods there it doesn't mean that we're going



 4  to have to redo all the statistics -- we



 5  probably should because of that step trend in



 6  1970 that might say we're starting to see



 7  higher flows more frequently.  But it does tell



 8  us that there's certainly an environmental



 9  signal in these years, that these were wet



10  years.  Okay?



11                 This is a plot from 400 sites



12  across the United States, from stream gauges



13  from 400 sites across the United States that



14  was compiled by the USGS.  What this is in the



15  top plot, the A, the maximum, this is



16  departures from average -- or normal, or median



17  of the maximum peak flows.



18                 And what you can see is right



19  around 1970 the bar chart flips and we start to



20  have much more departures for peak flows



21  starting at around 1970.  The middle plot, the



22  B, which is the median flows, also starts to



23  flip over and it's mostly represented by



24  increases in median streamflow.



25                 And then in the bottom in the
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� 1  minimum flows as well we see more increases in



 2  minimum streamflow since 1970, and this



 3  coincides to that step trend that we saw in the



 4  precipitation data.  Okay?



 5                 This is a distribution of



 6  reference gauges that we have around the state



 7  of Connecticut.  Not all of them are active.



 8  Some of them have been discontinued already,



 9  but this gives you what the geographic



10  representation is of most of the stream gauges



11  that we used to do these, these statistics on.



12  And as you can see, the southern counties are



13  fairly underrepresented in that, in that



14  distribution.



15                 One of the vulnerabilities that



16  we have is right now with our long-term



17  streamflow records the number of gauges with 50



18  or plus more years is fairly low.  We're at



19  about 15 gauges that have more than 50 years



20  worth of streamflow record.  Okay?  So this



21  does make the network a little bit vulnerable



22  to looking at long-term changes in streamflow.



23                 Shifting gears now, this is our



24  groundwater network.  This is the distribution



25  of groundwater observation wells that we have
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� 1  throughout the state of Connecticut.  And you



 2  can see that there's also a little bit of



 3  patchiness in that distribution.  The northeast



 4  corner is somewhat underrepresented.



 5                 But this is a network of 74



 6  stream -- or groundwater wells that we have in



 7  the state of Connecticut.  Of them, ten have



 8  continuous recording data.  The rest are -- the



 9  other 64 are measured once a month.



10                 And just to kind of give you a



11  quick overview of the data that we can get out



12  of some of these groundwater wells, on the



13  left, this is one of our longer-term



14  groundwater observation wells, BU-2 in



15  Burlington.  And what you have there is the



16  distribution of the range that the groundwater



17  wells have been observed.



18                 So those colored bars indicate



19  what percent of time the measurements have been



20  in that range during that month.  And what you



21  can see is the little red triangles are the



22  most recent observation.  So in August we were



23  still in the normal range in Burlington for



24  groundwater levels, even though we've had a



25  fairly dry summer.
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� 1                 And that, that illustrates how



 2  there is groundwater storage even though we've



 3  had a precipitation deficit.  We still have



 4  some groundwater storage.  Okay?  It would be



 5  interesting to see what our September



 6  measurement shows since we haven't had any rain



 7  even longer.  So that storage is being used up.



 8                 And on the plot, on the



 9  right-hand side what you can see is the



10  long-term data that goes back to the mid 1940s.



11  And so we have 60 years worth of record for



12  this well.  So we can look at what the annual



13  variation is in water level and we can compare



14  it to long-term periods.



15                 We can compare the groundwater



16  levels to the periods in the sixties when we



17  had those droughts, and we can compare it to



18  the wet years and the dry years.  And so this



19  data is extremely useful in analyzing what the



20  current conditions are.



21                 This is the distribution of our



22  water quality monitoring gauges.  We have 35



23  monitoring sites across the state of



24  Connecticut where we monitor water quality.



25  This network goes back to the 1960s, late 1960s
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� 1  pre Clean Water Act.  It has a wealth of



 2  information that we have been mining to look at



 3  long-term trends in water quality.



 4                 1968, we had seven stations that



 5  were operating that we were collecting water



 6  quality data at.  Currently we have 35 stations



 7  and 28 of those are sampled at least monthly.



 8  The network has had it's ups and downs



 9  throughout the years, but right now it's



10  holding on, doing okay.



11                 So some of the information that



12  can come from this is we can look at long-term



13  trends in total nitrogen.  This is one of the



14  assessments that we've been doing for the Long



15  Island Sound program.  And what you can see is



16  the green line is a smooth line that tells you



17  what the actual concentration is in milligrams



18  per liter of total nitrogen in a variety of



19  different sites around the state.



20                 And so right here, this second



21  plot in, this is the Connecticut River at



22  Thompsonville showing a downward trend in total



23  nitrogen concentrations.



24                 This is the Quinebaug River.



25                 This is the Farmington River
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� 1  which has had a downward trend, but has



 2  flattened out.



 3                 The Naugatuck River has had a



 4  significant downward trend as well.



 5                 But some of our reference basins



 6  like the Salmon River and the Saugatuck River



 7  and Bunnell Brook are starting to show a



 8  different pattern as far as nitrogen.  And we



 9  believe that these are associated with



10  residential development in these, what we call,



11  reference watersheds.  So some of the places



12  that have historically had some of our best



13  water quality are starting to show the effects



14  of residential development.



15                 Here's a plot of that Bunnell



16  Brook data in Burlington.  The dark black line



17  is total nitrogen from atmospheric deposition.



18  And since the mid-nineties there has been a



19  downward trend in atmospheric nitrogen



20  deposition based on the data that the USGS has



21  collected.



22                 However, even though there's a



23  downward trend in total nitrogen from the



24  atmosphere, that red line, which is the flow



25  normalized load of total nitrogen in the
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� 1  stream, is actually showing an upward increase.



 2  And so that upward increase isn't the result of



 3  a wet year or anything like that.  It's



 4  actually the result of probably development



 5  pressures in that watershed.



 6                 The data collection programs are



 7  supported by a number of different agencies.



 8  The stream gauges have a variety of funding



 9  support.  The largest chunks come from the



10  Connecticut DEEP, who we operate most of our



11  networks with cooperatively.  We also get a



12  fair amount of federal funding from the



13  National Streamflow Information Program and the



14  Army Corps, as well as the USGS Cooperative



15  Water Program.



16                 But we have another whole group



17  of funding sources, which is private entities,



18  other state and regional partners, as well as



19  local towns and cities.  The groundwater



20  program is entirely supported by the USGS and



21  the Connecticut DEEP and the water quality



22  program is predominately supported by the USGS



23  and the Connecticut DEEP.  Okay?



24                 Over time these programs have



25  had fairly flat funding.  So that blue line has





                            30

� 1  kind of plateaued, which is the funding that's



 2  come in from DEP and the water quality program.



 3  And the red line shows that the number of



 4  samples have actually decreased fairly



 5  substantially since the early nineties.  They



 6  have kind of plateaued right now as well.  So



 7  these networks are kind of holding their own,



 8  but they do have vulnerabilities for funding.



 9                 USGS also, every five years



10  there's a water use compilation.  The most



11  recent compilation was done for 2010 and this



12  is a compilation of estimated use of water in



13  the United States.  And it's done -- it has



14  breakouts by each state.



15                 Those estimated water use



16  categories are listed here.  There are public



17  supply, self supplied domestic, irrigation,



18  livestock, aquaculture, self supplied



19  industrial, mining and thermal electric power.



20  And so estimates of water use are aggregated



21  for these, for these categories and the USGS



22  has been doing this for the state of



23  Connecticut for some time.



24                 But these are only estimates and



25  they're poor estimates, I would say.  They're
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� 1  not based on real data, because the data is



 2  hard to get at.  We do the best we can.  We use



 3  population.  We use real data when we can find



 4  it, but there's so many gaps in the dataset



 5  that it's very difficult to compile all that



 6  data and feel that it's a real reasonable



 7  estimate right now.  We do the best we can.



 8                 So that brings us to the water



 9  use program, and what most of you really want



10  to hear about probably, which is SSWUDS.  So



11  Site Specific Water Use Data System.  It's part



12  of our national water information system.  It's



13  linked through our site files, so it's all



14  connected to the other networks that I just



15  described.  And SSWUDS stores data on water



16  users, withdrawals, transfers and returns in a



17  geographic information system.



18                 So it has the ability to store



19  monthly and annual withdrawal and return



20  values.  Okay?  Those, those data can be put in



21  those two timeframes and then it can calculate



22  loss and gain throughout various regions.



23                 SSWUDS can be used to do simple



24  modeling.  The output from SSWUDS is a little



25  bit ugly, so it doesn't fit in a nice, pretty
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� 1  PowerPoint slide.  It generates fairly large,



 2  cumbersome spreadsheets.  But those



 3  spreadsheets can be mined using modern computer



 4  programming scripts to get out useful data.



 5                 And what you can do with it is



 6  you can set up models, basically.  And what it



 7  shows in this model is the conveyance.  Water



 8  is extracted at one point, transferred to a



 9  different location.  Multiple sources of water



10  may be extracted from different locations and



11  brought to that point.



12                 That point may go to a



13  distribution system and then come back to a



14  return flow where it's reentered into the



15  stream system.  So these conveyances are



16  tracked in the SSWUDS system so that it can do



17  these mass balance calculations and it can



18  provide that output for the users.  Okay?



19                 Conveyance models can be fairly



20  simple, like the model on the left which has a



21  simple withdrawal point, a use area, some lost



22  to the atmosphere and then a discharge point,



23  which is a fairly linear, simple model.  Or it



24  could be a more complicated model like the one



25  on the right, which shows the public supply and
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� 1  wastewater.  You have withdrawals from multiple



 2  points.



 3                 You have drinking water service



 4  areas that may exchange water.  You have



 5  drinking water use areas that may serve



 6  multiple areas and then have multiple discharge



 7  points.  And it can handle all of that



 8  conveyance transfer based on the input data.



 9  Okay?  So if you have good input data you get



10  good output data with most models.



11                 What did Bach say?  All models



12  are bad.  Some are useful.



13                 So the sustainable yield



14  estimate, or the SYE program is another program



15  that was developed by the USGS that's embedded



16  in some of our stream stats applications



17  throughout the United States.  And so what this



18  does is it goes through a series of processes



19  to calculate a stream hydrograph at an ungauged



20  location.  And the way that it does that is



21  that you select the ungauged location and then



22  you get the catchment characteristics.



23                 And based on those



24  characteristics it computes a regression



25  equation which gives you a flow distribution
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� 1  curve, which is right here.  And then that flow



 2  distribution curve is interpolated to give you



 3  a nice smooth flow duration curve.



 4                 At the same time you select a



 5  donor stream gauge, or reference gauge that is



 6  going to be matched to that ungauged location.



 7  You actually use the real streamflow



 8  information from the time series data.  Then



 9  you back out from that stream gauge, what its



10  flow distribution -- or flow duration curve



11  would be.



12                 You match the flow duration



13  curves and then you're back out with what would



14  actually be the discharge hydrograph from the



15  ungauged location at that point.  And so now



16  you have a hydrograph for your ungauged stream



17  based on a surrogate stream and the statistical



18  probability.  And so that's a very useful tool



19  if you want to start looking at what kind of



20  water you might have at a point in a stream.



21                 This, this is from work done by



22  Stacey Archfield in the USGS for an unaltered



23  stream.  Okay?  So if there's a lot of



24  diversion this does not handle that very well,



25  however you can add that and couple it with the
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� 1  SSWUDS database, or in any other diversion



 2  database, and subtract or add any of those



 3  losses or gains of water based on your water



 4  use information to the hydrograph so that your



 5  hydrograph actually reflects where that water



 6  has gone and how much of that water has gone.



 7  Okay?



 8                 So here is the stream stats



 9  application in the upper picture and what it's



10  showing is that you define your watershed area



11  to a point that you're interested in on the



12  stream segment.  Then you delineate the



13  watershed.



14                 And that based on that watershed



15  delineation it goes through and it computes the



16  basin characteristics.  And then once you have



17  those basin characteristics you can do the



18  regression model to give you the flow duration



19  curve.  Okay?



20                 And it does this all on the fly



21  and it's a pretty cool system when it works.



22  It's being redone right now at the moment.  It



23  had some access issues, so vulnerability.  So



24  the tools are being rebuilt as we speak.  Okay?



25                 So what that does is it allows
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� 1  you to produce a series of hydrographs and be



 2  able to look at them.  And so this is the



 3  qualification of that data.  So these are the



 4  gauges that were used throughout the



 5  Connecticut River as part of the Connecticut



 6  River un-impacted use tool.  And what it has



 7  done is it matched up the computed flow from



 8  the observed, versus the estimated streamflow,



 9  and done a statistical analysis to make sure



10  that they were behaving properly.



11                 On this plot the closer you get



12  to one the more perfect you are, so that these



13  are fairly high numbers.  And on these stream



14  hydrographs we have three different streams



15  that we've compared observed data for predicted



16  data for.  The bottom one being Bunnell Brook.



17  And you can see that the blue line is the



18  estimated streamflow from the program and the



19  red line is the observed flow, and that this



20  program does work very, very well.



21                 There's only a few periods of



22  time that there might be some exceedances



23  there.  So it is a robust tool.  It has a lot



24  of quality control built into it.



25                 All right.  And the last topic
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� 1  was stream deplete.  So stream deplete is a



 2  tool that was built to look at what the



 3  potential effects on streamflow might be based



 4  on groundwater pumping in the nearby area.  And



 5  so what stream deplete does is it looks at the



 6  cumulative volume of water being pumped in a



 7  well.



 8                 So the image on the right is a



 9  model of the stream, the blue line, and two



10  wells at a distanced location A and B from the



11  stream.  And so based on the pumping volume of



12  those two wells we can calculate out how much



13  of the streamflow would come from those wells



14  based on how many days the wells were on.



15                 Now this, this program you need



16  a lot of input data to be able to do.  You have



17  to have a lot of model geometry about the wells



18  themselves.  This is not something you could



19  say, just run this for the entire state of



20  Connecticut.  This would be a well field by



21  well field specific application.



22                 So that if you used your other



23  tools and came up with a point in the river



24  where you said, there might be some issues with



25  the well possibly drying up the river, then you
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� 1  could possibly run stream deplete and look at



 2  how many days if this well was pumped at a



 3  certain volume for a certain number of days,



 4  how much water would come out and what would



 5  happen to the streamflow.



 6                 So the real-world scenario is on



 7  the left.  We have a stream that intersects an



 8  aquifer.  The aquifer is supplying water to the



 9  stream for this scenario.  And the well is



10  located a certain distance away and that well



11  is being pumped at a certain rate.  And so this



12  is the real-world geometry.



13                 What stream deplete does is it



14  simplifies that geometry and really only looks



15  at that distance D, between the well and the



16  stream and it does an approximation for an



17  analytical solution to compute the amount of



18  water that would have come -- that would have



19  gone to the stream over to the well.  Okay?



20                 Factors that affect the



21  streamflow depletion by wells are the distance



22  to the pumping well from the stream, the



23  vertical depth that the pumping is occurring



24  at.  The type of aquifer, whether it's a



25  confined aquifer or a leaky aquifer or an
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� 1  unconfined aquifer, the geometry and



 2  three-dimensional distribution of the boundary



 3  conditions for that aquifer, the depth of



 4  penetration of the stream into that aquifer,



 5  and then the hydraulic properties of the



 6  aquifer system, the stream beds and the stream



 7  banks.  How fast does water move through the



 8  stream, or through the materials that provide



 9  water for the stream?



10                 So like I said, this is not



11  something you would have a general application



12  to just run for the whole state, but it would



13  be done on a site-specific operation.



14                 There is a tool already built to



15  be able to do this.  On the left is the input



16  data, so you would provide the distance from --



17  the well is from the stream, what the



18  transmissivity of the material is, the storage



19  coefficient that is in the aquifer, the



20  streambed conductance and the pumping rate.



21  And then the number of days that you're going



22  to pump the well.



23                 And so what it does is it



24  calculates in the upper curve on the right how



25  much of the streamflow, what percent of the
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� 1  streamflow it's going to be withdrawing out.



 2  And then you can apply that to the hydrograph,



 3  which is in the bottom example.



 4                 So if you had a small stream and



 5  you applied that level of pumping to it, you



 6  could see that by day 180 you might start to



 7  see some serious drawdown effects from what



 8  would have been the natural streamflow.  And at



 9  day 180 you can start to dewater a stream.



10                 And so it does have a lot of



11  utility for specific applications like this and



12  can help identify where you might have some



13  stressed situations, what would happen under



14  different scenarios.



15                 Okay.  I know I went through



16  that fast.



17                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  A lot of



18  information there.  Thank you very much.



19                 Any questions or follow up?



20                 JON MORRISON:  Margaret?



21                 MARGARET MINER:  Hi.  Thanks.



22  Thank you, USGS.



23                 I have two comments.  One, you



24  lost your independent lines in the Connecticut



25  budget.  There's going to be three USGS lines.
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� 1  I think people agree that two were really



 2  important and now they've been subsumed into



 3  DEEP, which I know is trying to maintain



 4  funding.  But I just think it would be so much



 5  easier as we have in the past to support your



 6  monitoring networks, if we could see it in the



 7  budget.



 8                 And then my second -- that's



 9  sort of a plea.  And my second sort of plea is



10  the National Weather Service has just released



11  new estimates for precipitation going forward.



12  So are you planning -- when you say a two-year



13  storm, are you planning to modify that going



14  forward using their or some other updated



15  precipitation statistics?



16                 JON MORRISON:  Yes.  There,



17  those statistics are actually independent.  So



18  you have the frequency and recurrence interval



19  for precipitation events and you have the



20  frequency and recurrence interval for runoff



21  events.  They're not -- they're linked but



22  they're not totally linked.  You know what I



23  mean?



24                 So with those new statistics we



25  will do some runoff analysis and we are
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� 1  planning.  We do have a project proposal to



 2  actually do -- recompute our streamflow



 3  statistics since the last time it was done,



 4  because we're only about a third of the way



 5  through that period with that increase in



 6  precipitation that I showed.



 7                 MARGARET MINER:  Okay.  That was



 8  my question.  Thank you.



 9                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Virginia?



10                 JON MORRISON:  You don't get to



11  ask any questions, Virginia.



12                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  The various



13  tools that you've been presenting, do they have



14  the capability to run what-if scenarios in the



15  future?  What if precipitation were different?



16  What if land use had changed?  What if the



17  pumping had changed?  Are there those kinds of



18  capabilities in using those tools?



19                 JON MORRISON:  Yes, they do have



20  the ability to run a simulation.  So you can



21  put -- you can stress your systems in different



22  ways.  You can alter the pumping.  You can



23  alter your water use coefficients.  You can



24  change the streamflow.  You can manipulate that



25  as well, so that you can put in an artificially
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� 1  low situation.



 2                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  In which of



 3  those tools?



 4                 JON MORRISON:  So in SYE what



 5  you would do is you would use an artificial



 6  hydrograph that says you have a lower flow



 7  condition.  Okay?  You wouldn't use real



 8  streamflow information.  You would use an



 9  artificially low streamflow situation, and then



10  pair that to it and run the model that way.



11  And that could give you what would happen in



12  that scenario.



13                 So you can use this tool to do



14  scenarios.  You can also alter the water use



15  data by cranking up some of the coefficients or



16  the pumping rates, or the withdrawals to show



17  how far you can go before you really stress a



18  system.



19                 Glenn?



20                 GLENN WARNER:  Glenn Warner,



21  Connecticut Still Water Resources, professor at



22  UConn.



23                 But Jon, the flow duration



24  curves do not really have a land-use factor in



25  them and they actually don't have -- well, they
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� 1  have monthly precipitation in some of them, but



 2  not for low flow.



 3                 So they're very limited as far



 4  as the potential land cover, land-use changes



 5  as far as I see, as far as changing your



 6  actual.  So how do you get a new synthetic



 7  hydrograph projected if you have changes in the



 8  watershed, or if you have a difference, real



 9  differences in precip?



10                 In other words, it's not



11  responding to precip itself.  You were kind of



12  artificially changing that, as I understood



13  you.  So how do you address those?



14                 JON MORRISON:  So basically you,



15  you would have to model that in a system



16  outside to get the new hydrograph, the new flow



17  distribution curve that you're doing.  And so



18  there's a variety of different tools.



19                 A precipitation runoff modeling



20  system is certainly one that you can use to



21  derive a new hydrograph as the input dataset



22  that you would run your scenario with.



23                 GLENN WARNER:  If I could



24  follow-up?  I know New Hampshire is doing this



25  PRMS precipitation runoff modeling system for
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� 1  both small watersheds and they've done it for



 2  all of New England.  And now they're doing it



 3  for all of New Hampshire on a very detailed



 4  basis.



 5                 And they've got some -- I've



 6  seen presentations and a report out that



 7  they've got some really interesting results to



 8  look at climate change, different scenarios and



 9  generation, generating new flow duration



10  curves.



11                 So do you see a need for, say,



12  application of PRMS or some other dynamic



13  process based on that, rather than a



14  statistical one?



15                 JON MORRISON:  They're all



16  tools.  Everything I've shown you here is a



17  tool.  There PRMS system is a tool.  When it



18  comes to doing these types of analysis, we can



19  use the tools how we need to.



20                 PRMS does allow us to do future



21  casts using different climate scenarios so we



22  can put in low, medium and high-level emission



23  scenarios and project was that's going to do to



24  our environmental forcing conditions that we



25  would use to generate those hydrographs.
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� 1                 So we can do those types of



 2  scenario generations and we do have models set



 3  up in Connecticut for that currently, but those



 4  tools can all be used in conjunction with each



 5  other.  There, there's no one, one thing that's



 6  going to do everything for you, but these tools



 7  do work together very well.



 8                 SAM GOLD:  So the precipitation



 9  trends that you showed in the beginning of the



10  presentation, how does Connecticut fare in



11  relation to the rest of New England or other



12  regions of the country?



13                 JON MORRISON:  The step trend



14  that I showed I think is consistent for most of



15  New England.  I'm not sure about the rest of



16  the country.  I think there are differences in



17  the West and Midwest.



18                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Andrew,



19  you had a question?



20                 ANDREW LORD:  Yeah, I had a



21  question.  It's more of a practical, slash,



22  policy question.  It's, do you have the



23  information available to evaluate watersheds



24  that are critically impaired, moderately



25  impaired or not impaired at all so that we can
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� 1  make priorities based on that?  And if not,



 2  then what do we need to do to get to that?



 3                 JON MORRISON:  Right now we



 4  don't have any of that information.  We don't



 5  have a SSWUDS database.  We don't have the



 6  water use database that would allow us to do



 7  that.



 8                 And that's one of the things



 9  we're trying to advocate for with this proposal



10  that's going to HUD, is to get and compile that



11  information so that we can use it in a



12  meaningful way to do that type of analysis.



13                 ANDREW LORD:  Okay.



14                 DAVID RADKA:  David Radka,



15  Connecticut Water.  To follow up on Glenn,



16  because we did discuss this yesterday at a



17  science and technical meeting, and that's to



18  take the unregulated site and you apply that to



19  a regulated site and you control for land-use



20  coverage, which we would be discussing the --



21  certainly on low flow.



22                 JON MORRISON:  Uh-huh.



23                 DAVID RADKA:  How would you go



24  about doing that?  And can you do that using



25  some of the tools that you mentioned?
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� 1                 JON MORRISON:  Yeah.  So



 2  basically what you're going to do is you're



 3  going to generate.  You're going to use a tool



 4  like PRMS to run a scenario under a bigger



 5  buildout condition with more impervious cover.



 6                 That's going to generate a



 7  hydrograph.  It's going to be a synthetic



 8  hydrograph that you're going to then import



 9  into the SYE tool and use that for your



10  ungauged basin that you're going to compare it



11  to.



12                 DAVID RADKA:  And just a



13  followup.  And the confidence around that is



14  what?



15                 JON MORRISON:  That, that would



16  be, you know, that's kind of a function of the



17  watersheds and the calibration data that you



18  use.  But the PRMS model has very good



19  correlation.  It depends on how much data you



20  use and how much you tweak the system to how



21  close to reality you can be.



22                 You know, if you go to a



23  hundred percent impervious cover scenario, is



24  going to give you anything, you know,



25  reasonable?  And, you know.
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� 1                 But I think as you use that tool



 2  you can generate confidence intervals about



 3  what you're doing.  You could get a confidence



 4  interval from the PRMS tool.  And then when you



 5  apply it you run it through the SYE program and



 6  then compare it to observed and see how well it



 7  matches.  And see if it's, you know, does this



 8  make sense?



 9                 DAVID RADKA:  On stream deplete,



10  last time we looked at this, if I recall



11  correctly, the issue we had with it was that --



12  it was continued pumping scenarios.  So it



13  didn't allow for transient simulations.  Is



14  that still true?



15                 JON MORRISON:  Yes.  So that the



16  transient situations, you're going to have to



17  compile those manually, you know, for



18  individual segments.  I don't think we've run



19  that scenario through the tool.  We don't have



20  a way to do that in the tools just yet.



21                 DAVID RADKA:  Thank you.



22                 JON MORRISON:  Yes?



23                 ALICEA CHARAMUT:  Alicea



24  Charamut from the Connecticut River Water



25  Stream Council.





                            50

� 1                 For the stream depletion tool,



 2  the information that has to be gathered for it



 3  what are the resources that have to go into it?



 4  Would you consider it cheap and easy?



 5  Expensive and easy?  Cheap and difficult?  Or



 6  expensive and difficult?  Or all of the above?



 7                 JON MORRISON:  It's probably in



 8  the middle.  Most of that information should be



 9  available from the level A work that was done



10  for the well.  It's a production well.  So you



11  should have that information available.



12                 And then it's just putting into



13  the system, running it through and making sure



14  that it makes sense, making sure that you've



15  defined everything that's in the model to the



16  point where it's giving you output that is



17  reasonable.



18                 MARGARET MINER:  So that would



19  only apply in public well fields, public



20  drinking water source well fields, not



21  watersheds with heavy private use.  Is that



22  right?



23                 JON MORRISON:  Yeah.  Unless you



24  have all that information on the aquifer



25  properties, the well construction.  That that's
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� 1  the part that could get expensive and



 2  complicated fast, to answer Alicea's -- to put



 3  it in Alicea's terms, not cheap, not easy.



 4                 GLENN WARNER:  Glenn Warner



 5  again.  We have a very detailed, nice study on



 6  the Pomperaug River using PRMS, coupled with



 7  mod-flow from the USGS.  And now I know those



 8  two are -- actually won't get combined into



 9  what they call GS flow for groundwater surface



10  water, but if you were to apply SSWUDS to the



11  Pomperaug, what information would you gain?



12                 JON MORRISON:  What you would



13  gain is the actual water withdrawals and



14  returns that come from the system, that are in



15  the system that aren't built into the other



16  model.



17                 GLENN WARNER:  I thought those



18  were built into the existing?



19                 JON MORRISON:  They're not built



20  into PRMS, I don't believe.  Some of the



21  groundwater withdrawals might be.



22                 GLENN WARNER:  They did



23  groundwater withdrawals, I'm sure, because that



24  was the part of the mod-flow.



25                 JON MORRISON:  Yeah, the surface
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� 1  water, any surface water withdrawals would not



 2  be.  And I don't know if the mod-flow handles



 3  the return flow.



 4                 GLENN WARNER:  My understanding



 5  is -- Dave Murphy, who did the study and we



 6  just started -- they adjusted the streamflow to



 7  deal with the diversions from the stream



 8  itself.  So I'd have to go ask David about



 9  that.



10                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  If I may?



11  Because they were working in a fairly small



12  watershed and working very closely with the



13  local folks, they were given the information



14  that we're talking about.  They got it from the



15  water suppliers.  So they wouldn't have gotten



16  anything in that particular study.  They



17  wouldn't have gotten additional stuff from



18  SSWUDS.



19                 But the point of SSWUDS is to



20  collect that kind of data statewide so that it



21  is available for use in any of these, any of



22  these other tools that are used to do the



23  analysis.  Is that fair, Jon?



24                 JON MORRISON:  Yeah.  Thank you.



25                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  For those of
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� 1  you who don't realize why we were laughing



 2  earlier, I used to be Jon's boss.



 3                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Any other



 4  questions for Jon?



 5                 (No response.)



 6                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Excellent,



 7  excellent presentation.



 8                 Okay.  We already talked about



 9  the bond committee update, thanks to David



10  LeVasseur.  So we're going to continue on the



11  agenda with the policy subcommittee update.



12                 Mr. Moore?



13                 ROBERT MOORE:  Thank you.



14                 We met, the policy committee met



15  with quite a few people.  I don't know if



16  you -- were you able to get a copy of our



17  minutes or draft minutes?



18                 Anyway?  I have -- Betsy sent



19  them out and I have some more here.  But



20  anyway, we met on August 17th and we talked



21  about the results of the Steering Committee.



22  We talked about a little bit about the SSWUDS



23  and we tried to -- and DEP gave us the



24  fundamental questions that are being handled in



25  the plan, and we discussed those fundamental
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� 1  questions, which are here.



 2                 But then we try to focus on some



 3  basic policy issues.  And the basic policy



 4  issues were that, you know, how we're going to



 5  deal with this plan.  And we came to three



 6  issues or three policy proposals for your



 7  consideration, or for the Steering Committee's



 8  consideration.



 9                 One, that the long-term planning



10  horizon for the water plan should be 25 years.



11  The document should be kept current and updated



12  every five years to benchmark any changes.



13  That was the first kind of policy that we kind



14  of coalesced around and had consensus on.



15                 The second is the water planning



16  council is responsible for developing the plan



17  and should be responsible for updating the plan



18  every five years.  We assume that you're not



19  going to go away and that, you know, somebody



20  had to be responsible, and since those were the



21  people that we suggest that you do that.



22                 And finally, the water plan



23  should be generally a guidance document.  And I



24  include recommendations for necessary changes



25  to existing laws and regulation and direction
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� 1  where needed.  We had a long discussion about



 2  whether or not the plan should be enforceable



 3  or portions of it would be enforceable or not



 4  enforceable, and came to this conclusion in



 5  that committee.



 6                 So that there was really more of



 7  a recommendation for change and recommendation



 8  for action.  It may be stating some facts, but



 9  as new issues arose it would be an area where



10  that could be looking forward for regulation in



11  the future.  But that, that was generally the



12  consensus of three so-called policy issues that



13  we brought forward.



14                 And then we also discussed one



15  of the issues that we were having trouble,



16  struggled with was, what data is available?



17  Not what does it look like, but what is it?



18  You know, where's -- what's available from



19  health?  What's available?



20                 Where is that data going to be



21  kept and how are we going to look at it?  And



22  how does that, the ability to, you know, if we



23  say we have to do certain things in terms of



24  policy.  If we don't have the data then the



25  policy doesn't mean much anyway.
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� 1                 So we wanted to have a



 2  discussion on our next meeting, which is



 3  scheduled for October 1st at DEP at



 4  ten o'clock.  Because basically, kind of, what



 5  is available from health and DEP and DPUC and



 6  others, that what are those types of



 7  information that is available and out there?



 8  And how does that affect where we're going?



 9                 That's basically the summary of



10  what we did at that meeting.  We had several



11  people in attendance.  And so I think we had a



12  good discussion.  And, you know, trying to move



13  forward I committed to coming out of our



14  meeting with some kind of policy recommendation



15  for the next meeting so that we have some level



16  of progress at every meeting and we did it by



17  consensus.  We didn't have votes or anything



18  like that.  So that's where we are.



19                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  We like



20  consensus.  Maybe that will be, you know,



21  contagious.



22                 ROBERT MOORE:  Yeah.  We didn't



23  have any votes on anything, but we just had a



24  general discussion.  I think we had a really



25  in-depth discussion about the enforceability
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� 1  issue.  You know, I was being a devil's



 2  advocate, I think it might be characterized.



 3  But since I have both hats I can do both



 4  things.  So that that was kind of the



 5  discussion of where we should be on this issue



 6  and that was basically where we are.



 7                 I have about eight or ten more



 8  copies of our minutes.  They're still marked



 9  "draft" until our next meeting, but I only have



10  about eight copies.



11                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Take a



12  copy of that and put it right in the



13  transcript, the minutes of the meeting.  Thank



14  you.



15                 (August 17, 2015 State Water



16  Plan Subcommittee, draft minutes and questions,



17  2 pages, noted and attached.)



18                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you



19  very much.  Any comments?  It sounds like



20  you've had a great first meeting there with



21  lots of great recommendations.



22                 MICHAEL J. SULLIVAN:  So Bob, on



23  those ones that you outline, like the 25-year



24  planning horizon, 5-year updates, and so this



25  is -- these are not issues that you're really
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� 1  trying to revisit.  You've made progress on



 2  these and that you're moving onto other issues.



 3                 ROBERT MOORE:  Yeah.



 4                 MICHAEL J. SULLIVAN:  So the



 5  same things like the guidance versus



 6  enforceability issues?



 7                 ROBERT MOORE:  Yeah, we will



 8  move on to -- and some of the issues that are



 9  coming up are as a result of some of this data



10  today.  How do we, you know, deal with that?



11  We have issues that are critical issues that



12  were identified, you know, registrations.  What



13  do you do when there's not enough water?  You



14  know, how do we react to those things?  In



15  general, not in specifics.



16                 But you know, those are the



17  kinds of things we'll be heading into the



18  next -- they will get a lot more interesting,



19  rather than they were.  Some of those issues



20  get really, really complex as we get going.



21                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Reaction?



22  Comments?



23                 ELIN KATZ:  Just one on, we did



24  have a lot of debate on the enforceability



25  nonenforceability issue.  And I think, at least
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� 1  where I landed was, you know, we may end up



 2  with recommendations for statutory changes and



 3  things like that ultimately seeking to create



 4  an enforceable, you know, enforceable parts of



 5  it, but it didn't seem like we had the



 6  authority to create an enforceable document per



 7  se.  But that doesn't mean we weren't -- we



 8  were thinking this is just solely advisory.



 9                 ROBERT MOORE:  I think we were



10  focused on, you know, there are certain things



11  that we could head into with climate change



12  that nobody has addressed, that by the end of



13  this report you might say, well, if X occurs,



14  then we should be doing this.



15                 And then it would be up to, you



16  know, the agencies to take that action.  But it



17  was more of, there will be -- there may be



18  things as we approach them that ought to be



19  fixed.  And especially when you're dealing with



20  over allocated regions and things like that,



21  there's going to be some issues that come out



22  of that will need to be addressed in some



23  manner.



24                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Margaret?



25                 MARGARET MINER:  Yes, I agree
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� 1  with Elin.  I think the advisory output was not



 2  necessarily the endpoint because we discussed,



 3  there is a lot of good advisory opinion out



 4  there.  What is this plan going to do that



 5  will, in some way, at some point lead to



 6  implementation of the recommendations, as



 7  opposed to their presentation as



 8  recommendations.



 9                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  I think



10  that that's absolutely correct.  I mean, I



11  think when this whole plan is put together



12  there very well could be some legislative



13  recommendations that come out of the plan in



14  terms of enforceability and depending upon what



15  we come up with through the groups.



16                 I mean, the subgroup's whole



17  idea is that groups make the recommendation.



18  It comes to the Steering Committee and then



19  ultimately to the Water Planning Council before



20  we sign off on the plan to present to the



21  Legislature.  So I think this is a very good



22  beginning.



23                 MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  And I think



24  the piece where we had a robust discussion, and



25  Bob did do a great job of playing devil's
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� 1  advocate -- was the concept of, can this



 2  document in and of itself mandate things, and



 3  then that becomes, you shall do something



 4  differently than perhaps today.  But I think we



 5  spoke particularly to maybe experience where



 6  it's been done within one agency.



 7                 This is very different where you



 8  have the overlap of different functions and



 9  things.  So to direct something by virtue of



10  the plan is very different than to, through the



11  plan, make recommendations for legislative



12  changes.  And that I think that's where we



13  ended up, with a consensus that that would be.



14                 ROBERT MOORE:  I use the example



15  of the solid waste plan for Connecticut where



16  it's set up, you know, here XY had to be



17  recycled.  X, another volume had to be



18  incinerated.  Another volume had to be



19  landfill.  And that's a basis for a certificate



20  of need that was then turned into law, but the



21  plan itself set up the numbers.



22                 The enforceability came in



23  another argument through a certificate of need



24  that the plan itself set up.  Here are our



25  numbers that we're looking for, for the goal.
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� 1  And I was trying to say, well, we might come up



 2  with a, you know, with a certain river basin.



 3  The Quinnipiac Basin has always been fully



 4  allocated, therefore anything else has to be



 5  withdrawn or taken away, or added to in order



 6  to put any more waste, or doing withdrawing



 7  more water from that basin.



 8                 So it could get out with



 9  situations like that, and where it's been over



10  allocated for waste in the assimilation.  So a



11  new water supply may be damaging unless it's



12  replaced by taking away more wastewater.  And



13  it might set up numbers that would show how to



14  do that, but then it would be up to somebody



15  else to do that.



16                 MICHAEL J. SULLIVAN:  So that's



17  why I was asking the question, because I had



18  the solid waste management plan in mind,



19  because that's right with the numbers.  I mean,



20  it also -- we use that to kind of ripple



21  through permitting decisions as well.  And so



22  that's what I was curious as to whether that



23  was the nature of the kind of debate that we



24  were having.



25                 ROBERT MOORE:  That was what we
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� 1  were talking about.  And Maureen is right.  As



 2  we say that, you know, that there's so many



 3  other agencies involved in that decision, and



 4  the solid waste plan was a single entity who



 5  was going to regulate it.



 6                 SAM GOLD:  Was there discussion



 7  about how the water plan could attract other



 8  plans, like the state plan of conservation



 9  development and other land use plans.



10                 ROBERT MOORE:  Yeah, didn't have



11  a, you know, a consistency with the State where



12  all the other plans had to be evaluated.  We



13  didn't establish a policy on it, but our



14  discussion was it had to be consistent with the



15  plan of conservation and development and the



16  water utility, and other state plans.  How did



17  we develop into this process?



18                 LARRY BINGAMAN:  Yeah, we



19  actually felt like we needed to really get a



20  better understanding of what that requires and



21  what the projections are.  Because I don't



22  think anybody around the table really has a



23  good feel for that.



24                 So what is the State thinking



25  about where the development should take place?
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� 1  What kind of resources are going to be needed



 2  in order to have that happen?  So somehow we



 3  need to get a handle on that and we had a



 4  rather extensive discussion around that point.



 5                 MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  Including



 6  other types of plans beyond the plan of C and



 7  D.  Are there other development plans or Long



 8  Island Sound plans, or other things that need



 9  to be considered as we try to put these all



10  together?



11                 LARRY BINGAMAN:  So somehow as



12  we look at this plan that needs to be factored



13  into this.  So that's going to take some



14  funding.  It's going to take a resource to do



15  that.



16                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Very good.



17  Any further questions?



18                 (No response.)



19                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you,



20  Bob, and thank you to the committee.



21                 Virginia?



22                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Okay.  Did



23  everybody on the Steering Committee get the two



24  additional handouts that were here as well as



25  the agenda?  One of them is input on water plan
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� 1  and planning process.  And the other one is the



 2  State Board or Plan Steering Committee, where



 3  the backside is all red?



 4                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  No.



 5                 ROBERT MOORE:  We were too



 6  early.



 7                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Do we need



 8  copies, Virginia?



 9                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  No, we've got



10  plenty.  They're here.  It's just whether



11  people picked them up.



12                 ELIZABETH BARTON:  This is Beth



13  Barton.  Will they otherwise be available



14  again?  Or will they be sent by e-mail?



15                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  It can be



16  e-mailed.



17                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  We'll



18  e-mail them.  We'll get them to you.



19                 ELIN KATZ:  Will you also e-mail



20  the presentation?



21                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yes.



22                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Okay.  The



23  science and technical subcommittee has met



24  three times, and we're continuing to meet every



25  other Wednesday afternoon.  At the beginning we
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� 1  shared skills and interests and concerns in the



 2  group.  And one of the handouts that you have



 3  has interests on one side and concerns on the



 4  other side.



 5                 And why I present this to you is



 6  I think it's important that the Steering



 7  Committee keep these ideas in mind as we go



 8  through the process.  And I'm just going to



 9  pause for a moment and give you folks an



10  opportunity to read through it.



11                 Now it was just a small group of



12  about -- well, it was a fairly large group of



13  folks.  I think these interests and these



14  concerns are probably representative of the



15  general interests and concerns out there, and



16  things that we need to be keeping in mind as we



17  go through the process.



18                 We also took a look at our



19  charge which is the other handout, and made



20  some suggestion edits.  It's the same thing on



21  both sides.  One has the marked up track



22  changes on it and the other one is easier to



23  read.



24                 A couple of things that I want



25  to stress in this.  We want to make sure that
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� 1  the Steering Committee understands that we see



 2  our charge as identifying what data need to be



 3  collected or need to be in hand, and not



 4  actually collecting those data.  That would be



 5  a much larger effort and would take more time



 6  than we have in this plan.  So we wanted to



 7  make clear that that was our expectation of



 8  what we're being asked to do.



 9                 The significant edits that we



10  made to this handout was including the idea of



11  an appropriate scale.  We had a lot of



12  discussion of scale, both temporal and spatial.



13  And the group felt -- it was unanimous, that



14  the group felt that the scale that we might be



15  looking at data could very well be different in



16  different parts of the state, both because of



17  different geographies and hydrology, and also



18  because of different problems.



19                 And that the refinement -- the



20  fineness of the data collection could be very



21  different in an area that had a lot of



22  problems, and in an area that didn't.  And one



23  of the things we wanted to have explicit



24  blessing from this group, that we have the



25  prerogative to vary the scale at which we are
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� 1  assembling data depending on the issues at



 2  hand.



 3                 Is that something that you guys



 4  are all comfortable with?



 5                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Reaction



 6  to -- I see Margaret smiling.  Does that mean



 7  you're happy with that?



 8                 MARGARET MINER:  I'm thinking



 9  that's a complicated question to shoot right at



10  them -- and get a head nod.  Good work,



11  Virginia.



12                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  As I've said,



13  we put the language into our charge,



14  appropriate scale so that it could vary.



15                 JOE McGEE:  Oh, hi.  Joe McGee



16  joins.



17                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Hello Joe.



18                 JOE McGEE:  Hey, Jack.  Sorry



19  I'm late.



20                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  That's



21  okay.  Glad you're on.



22                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  The other



23  significant thing that we changed --



24                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Joe, we're



25  just getting an update from the science and
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� 1  technical committee at this point.



 2                 JOE McGEE:  Great.



 3                 MICHAEL J. SULLIVAN:  And



 4  Virginia, so that that particular issue, is



 5  that the change that you're talking about in



 6  item two?



 7                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Well, it's in



 8  couple of places.  In item one there was an



 9  addition of an appropriate watershed scale.



10  Item two, it has appropriate scales in there,



11  also.  So we've put it in a couple of places.



12                 The other --



13                 MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  And if I



14  could just add, I think that's consistent with



15  even conversations we had at the policy



16  committee, was that the -- even the scale or



17  the level of detail or specificity of policies,



18  or where we're going, would differ on kind of



19  the nature of the problems or circumstances



20  that you're involving -- you're involved with.



21                 So I think that is consistent



22  with conversations we had that you may need



23  more data in some cases to get to that level



24  and the absolute recommendations may differ at



25  the end of today or choices may differ so it
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� 1  makes sense.



 2                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  And the other



 3  significant change that we made in our charge



 4  was to add the demand side to the equation and



 5  focused primarily on the water availability



 6  side.  And we wanted to include the demand on



 7  the water resources.



 8                 So the details of this, you can



 9  certainly read at your leisure.  Those are just



10  the two things that -- well, particularly the



11  scale issue that we wanted to get out here as



12  soon as possible.  Because as we go in we



13  didn't want to get too far down the path if we



14  didn't know that that was acceptable to vary



15  our scales.



16                 ROBERT MOORE:  Virginia, the



17  first part of your question was, should the



18  committee only be evaluating the data, but not



19  collecting it.  Right?



20                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Right,



21  identifying what's needed.



22                 ROBERT MOORE:  And I assume that



23  that's consistent?



24                 MARGARET MINER:  What's needed



25  and where it is.
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� 1                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  How we might



 2  get it, but not actually go about getting it.



 3                 MARGARET MINER:  So we are



 4  working on where it is.



 5                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  We also



 6  realized in going through the charge that we



 7  needed some clarification on some of the items.



 8  And if we can answer these today, fabulous.  If



 9  we can't, I understand.



10                 One is what the subcommittee's



11  role is going to be vis-a-vis the consultant



12  who is hired actually to write the plan.  I



13  could imagine scenarios across the whole



14  spectrum of, oh, the consultant saying, oh,



15  great this piece is already done for me.



16                 Or saying, wait a minute.



17  That's not the way I'd do it.  I'm not going to



18  even look at that, and any number of areas in



19  between.  So we would appreciate some



20  clarification on how you imagine that dance



21  will be happening.



22                 Also, we wanted to get some



23  input into how much authority we had to set



24  priorities or make recommendations.  Is this



25  something that you're looking to the science
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� 1  and technical group to say, we need to do this



 2  before we do that?



 3                 This is higher priority.  This



 4  area is higher priority.  Do we, as a



 5  subcommittee, have the authority to be making



 6  those priorities?  Or do we just have to



 7  recommend something that this group then would



 8  decide on?  And you know, there are going to be



 9  variations of that.



10                 So Maureen is smiling.



11                 MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  I'm always



12  smiling.



13                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  And the third



14  thing that we would like some clarification on



15  is the term "economic benefits" was used in our



16  charge, and we weren't sure exactly what that



17  meant.



18                 Did that mean economic just in



19  the sense of agricultural or industry or power



20  facilities?  Or did it mean determining the



21  impacts of having or not having ample water to



22  develop economically in a particular area in



23  the state?



24                 So we weren't sure that -- the



25  first we're comfortable with.  The second we're
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� 1  less comfortable with.  So again, that's very



 2  closely related to what some of the policy



 3  group might be talking about, but we'd



 4  appreciate input from the Steering Committee on



 5  those three points.  And I can share it --



 6  well, we have them in the transcript, but I can



 7  certainly share those with you as well.



 8                 And then the large question that



 9  I've heard a lot of people ask, what problem is



10  the plan attempting to address?  What questions



11  are we looking for answers to?  Because to a



12  certain extent what data are needed depends on



13  what questions are being asked.



14                 So personally my feeling is that



15  if we're only identifying data sources and



16  where we might find them we could go into the



17  overkill, because we haven't wasted much time



18  or energy.  If we identify some kind of data



19  that doesn't get used, well, we just, you know,



20  it's on the list.



21                 We just strike it off the list,



22  which is very different than if we were



23  actually collecting it.  So that would be



24  helpful to understand what people think the



25  problems are that the plan, and therefore the
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� 1  data necessary will be addressing.



 2                 We have also started taking



 3  advantage of some of the expertise in the group



 4  and sharing information.  We had a presentation



 5  by David Murphy of Milone & MacBroom on the



 6  information that goes into the diversion plans.



 7  We're going to have a similar presentation of



 8  the data that goes in the water supply plans.



 9  So that we know where data have been assembled



10  and could be rolled into a larger plan.



11                 And then we spent some time



12  looking at the actual charge, what information



13  is needed.  And we have put together a draft



14  template of a table, a spreadsheet for



15  summarizing the data.  Obviously the data is



16  listed in one column, but some of the other



17  columns are, why do we need these data?



18                 How are they going to be used?



19  What is their priority?  Where they from?  Are



20  they available?  Are they not available?  Where



21  are the gaps?  How much would it cost in very



22  round, you know, high, medium and low to get



23  that information if it didn't exist?  And



24  comments, those types that we're going to try



25  to capture that in a fashion that would be very
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� 1  useful.



 2                 We started the brainstorming



 3  activity and came up with a whole long list of



 4  things.  And one of the things that came out of



 5  that discussion was somebody said, okay.  Well,



 6  if the data exists and here's where they exist,



 7  but we're not sure that the data have the



 8  appropriate level of -- what's the word?  The



 9  refinement to actually be useful in this, in



10  this process.  So as we fill out the table



11  hopefully those kinds of questions, those kinds



12  of concerns will pop out of the process.



13                 So at this point after starting



14  the brainstorming of data necessary, we



15  assigned some homework that we would try to



16  organize the list of data that we were



17  creating.  And we decided to organize it



18  following the proposed table of contents for



19  the plan that was coming out of the other



20  states workgroup.  And that was just a format



21  that we wanted to see if that would work just



22  to help organize the types of data.



23                 And then also some of the



24  homework was for people to fill out as many of



25  the other columns as they could for whatever
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� 1  data they were familiar with.  Some people were



 2  going to be more familiar with one type of data



 3  than another type of data.  And so as I said,



 4  we just got really the first column of what



 5  data we were looking at and assigned some



 6  homework assignments.



 7                 Another piece that we've been



 8  talking about is not the straight data, but the



 9  tools, the models that might be necessary to



10  help inform a water plan, recognizing that



11  those tools change over time.  And so I think



12  that our first task would be to identify what



13  type of model we would need.  And then perhaps,



14  say, examples of this type of model are PRMS or



15  whatever.



16                 But by the time somebody is



17  actually going to implement this, those might



18  change.  So we're not going to lock anybody



19  into, you've got to use these particular



20  models, but for what types of things.  So we



21  want to make sure that we're covering the



22  analytical piece of science and techno group



23  and not just the straight data piece.  And



24  that's where we're at.



25                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  A lot of
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� 1  work.  A lot of things to digest.  Any



 2  reaction?



 3                 ROBERT MOORE:  I think we would



 4  all like to see that list of the data.  Then we



 5  might help put in some of the blanks on the



 6  other side, too.



 7                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  In another



 8  couple meetings we might be ready to share



 9  that.  We pretty much just started that process



10  of actually concretely writing things down



11  yesterday.  And so we need to live with it a



12  lot more.  But certainly it would be both



13  beneficial for your policy group, but also some



14  of you folks -- all of you folks could be --



15  could identify whole areas of things that we've



16  forgotten.



17                 Sam was at our first meeting,



18  and the very first piece of data that got



19  thrown out there.  You know, I come from the



20  technology side.  It never would have occurred



21  to me to say it was, what?  Demographics or



22  there was something like that.



23                 SAM GOLD:  Population



24  projections.



25                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Yeah, and
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� 1  there's been some concerns expressed with how



 2  accurate are those population projections,



 3  which every -- all the water supply plans are



 4  dependent on.  So there could be other things



 5  that --



 6                 Oh, and then I should say one of



 7  the things that came up yesterday was



 8  collecting data of a whole different sort that



 9  isn't numbers so much, but areas, for instance,



10  of private wells that had been identified as



11  having either a contamination problem or a



12  whole area of the state.



13                 Well drillers now getting



14  requests to deepen wells, that those kinds of



15  identifying where the problems are could be a



16  layer that, overlaid with some of the other



17  things, could help set priorities in the



18  future, and so to make sure that that ancillary



19  kind of data are looked at as a valuable ways



20  of informing that whole process and not locking



21  ourselves just into numbers.



22                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Did you



23  want, like, a blessing today in terms of --



24                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  If you could



25  bless us today, that's fine.
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� 1                 ANDREW LORD:  The Pope is in



 2  town.



 3                 MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  The Pope is



 4  around.



 5                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  A remote



 6  feed for the Pope, I'm sure he'd be glad to --



 7                 ROBERT MOORE:  He did ask us to



 8  solve climate change.



 9                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  That's



10  right.  But in terms of you wanted to look at



11  the items that you were working on and then



12  come up with your own goals.  Is that it?



13                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  No, we were



14  just -- we were suggesting changes to our



15  charge.



16                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.



17                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  The question



18  that I posed to the group is, do you understand



19  it?  And are you comfortable with it?  And as



20  we had that discussion there were some things



21  that people didn't understand and there were



22  some things that people weren't comfortable



23  with.  And so we've suggested some changes.



24                 So we would like you to take the



25  time to look at this and then tell us if our
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� 1  edits are acceptable.  And as I said, the red



 2  is just the track changes and the other side is



 3  without the track changes.  It's the same.



 4  It's the same thing.



 5                 ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  And



 6  Virginia, it's your thought that this guidance



 7  of what the charge is to the group, that as we



 8  get closer to defining what the problem is we



 9  want the plan to solve, that this could evolve



10  again.



11                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Sure.



12                 ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  Because I



13  wouldn't want us to get so tied to subcommittee



14  charges to only find out they're solving a



15  different problem than we thought the statewide



16  water plan was going to solve.



17                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  I feel that



18  this whole process is evolving and that we're



19  all going to learn as we go and we might find,



20  you know, that we, not just my subcommittee,



21  but perhaps the whole process needs to take a



22  little bit of a different direction, and I



23  think that that's healthy.  I would not want us



24  to be locked into something if the



25  investigations that we do start telling us
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� 1  something else.



 2                 DAVID LeVASSEUR:  And I agree.



 3  And Virginia, you know, that's sort of a good



 4  segue into your first question which is how



 5  would you see the consultant interacting with



 6  various groups.



 7                 I mean, I would think it would



 8  be absolutely necessary.  That they would be



 9  meeting with both workgroups and with the



10  Steering Committee on a regular basis, if no



11  other reason so that we can make sure that they



12  don't drift off course from what we envision as



13  being the ultimate goal of the plan.



14                 And quite frankly, that was kind



15  of the determining factor in me suggesting that



16  a function we needed was someone to ride hard



17  on them on a daily basis, because I think



18  that's above and beyond the project management



19  piece we've had before, which has pretty much



20  kept us on task, as opposed to a consultant.



21                 And so I would hope that



22  ultimately the consultant's charge would



23  include that level of interplay with both



24  workgroups as well as the Steering Committee as



25  a whole.
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� 1                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Yeah.



 2                 LARRY BINGAMAN:  Virginia, can



 3  you give us a little bit of a flavor on your



 4  debate about economic benefits and where that



 5  discussion ranged, what the range of that



 6  discussion was?



 7                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  It started



 8  with a, what's this mean?  And as I said, some



 9  people interpreted that as just the commercial



10  industrial agricultural side of water use.



11  Obviously we have the water suppliers as a big



12  water use and that's got an economic component



13  to it, but the other, the other sectors where



14  there's money associated with water.



15                 And then we wondered whether it



16  really meant more the broader picture of how



17  would water availability in a particular area



18  affect the local economy, and whether there



19  wasn't enough water.  Would that constrain the



20  economic development in that part of the state?



21                 And so that's a very different



22  interpretation of economic benefits.  So we



23  just didn't understand what the word meant and



24  it became a question.



25                 LARRY BINGAMAN:  Because in the
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� 1  bill it speaks to economic development.  It



 2  just says, economic development, which you know



 3  as you point out, can have all kinds of



 4  interpretations.  So did you come to a



 5  conclusion on that?  Or is that --



 6                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Nobody posed



 7  the question.



 8                 MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  And economic



 9  development benefits are referenced a couple



10  times in the bill.  And the other one talks



11  about -- and it's almost a sentence, but it's



12  worded a little bit differently.  So maybe it's



13  looking at what the underlying statute said and



14  see if that gives any direction, which



15  obviously is fairly subjective as that process



16  goes about.



17                 But you know, it talks about the



18  quantity and qualities available for public



19  water supply, health, economic, recreation and



20  environmental benefits on an regional scale.



21  Blah, blah, blah.



22                 So to me, that is the broader



23  economic benefits, health benefits, public



24  health benefits and whether that carries



25  through to the next session when it referred to
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� 1  take into account the impacts of the plan,



 2  implementation of the plan, the public health,



 3  economic, public safety, environmental,



 4  ecological.  So makes me think it is a broader



 5  analysis than just --



 6                 DAVID LeVASSEUR:  I think it has



 7  to be broader because, quite frankly, it could



 8  have a negative economic development impact in



 9  certain regions of the state.



10                 If you wanted to introduce a



11  level of economic development and the scale



12  wasn't there to match and you had to bring in



13  infrastructure to that area you could actually



14  degrade the natural quality and might have an



15  impact on the recreational, on the water



16  quality and some of the other aspects.  So I



17  really think we've got to look at it in the



18  broadest of terms.



19                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  And looking



20  at it that way, what would you anticipate the



21  science and technical committee giving you to



22  inform that process?  What type of information?



23                 DAVID LeVASSEUR:  I will have to



24  chew on that.



25                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  We also had a





                            85

� 1  brief discussion yesterday about social



 2  engineering, which is a science in itself.  How



 3  do you get people to change habits?  Which I



 4  think if we started talking about conservation,



 5  which comes up many times in the bill, a lot of



 6  that may be people changing their habits.  How



 7  does that work?



 8                 And that's something that nobody



 9  that was there yesterday felt comfortable



10  addressing that, though I know there are people



11  doing research in that area.  So that's a



12  science.  Does that come under the -- under



13  this committee?



14                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.



15  Margaret and then Sam.



16                 MARGARET MINER:  Yes.  Real



17  quick.  There's practically no -- there's no



18  environmental concern here on this list?



19                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  You mentioned



20  that.  I'm sorry.



21                 MARGARET MINER:  Yeah, I've been



22  mentioning it.



23                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  I'm sorry.



24  Yes.



25                 MARGARET MINER:  There are lots
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� 1  of environmental concerns, obviously, that this



 2  committee wants to address and is addressing,



 3  and will address.  And partly it's that I've



 4  had difficulty.  The nature conservancy thought



 5  they could help us, and then they can only



 6  maybe loan us someone for occasional



 7  consultation, or a scientist.



 8                 Just in the last few days Eileen



 9  Fielding at FRWA, and she's offered us -- and



10  she actually has a doctorate in fish biology.



11  So we are thinking that she, with the people --



12  oh, and a lot of people work for state



13  agencies.  And I'll say some of our best



14  biologists are working for different government



15  agencies and can't really, you know, come here.



16                 So I hope that will be better,



17  but we have a number of environmental concerns.



18  It's pretty obvious here, not from hostility,



19  but that there just weren't enough voices for



20  the fish and the turtles and the blue herons



21  and the canoeing -- just weren't there.  So



22  that I'm hoping that's something that will be



23  added in, and I'm sure it will be.



24                 Last point, we talk about what



25  data will we get and show you, water supply
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� 1  plan data.  Yes, I used to get that and be able



 2  to work from it.  I went and checked.  Not only



 3  have I old un-redacted plans, but new heavily



 4  reacted plans.  But I looked at the work plans,



 5  the regional plans which are the old ones.



 6                 Most -- much to most of the key



 7  data you would need for planning is blacked



 8  out.  So I am hoping that -- Virginia has said,



 9  well, when we show that we could really need it



10  maybe people will change their mind.  Well, I



11  think the point is coming up that you have to



12  decide.



13                 Most of the people in this room



14  are the public.  You know, and it is the public



15  that cannot see that data.  So it's a critical



16  point.  What do we want to do about that?  I



17  know what I want to do, but what do you want to



18  do?



19                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Andrew?



20                 ANDREW LORD:  It might be



21  simplistic and premature, but I'm sort of



22  looking down the road at, you know, what is



23  this plan going to look like?  And I think that



24  we have to start putting some structure to it.



25                 And I'm not saying that people
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� 1  aren't doing good work in evaluating all the



 2  issues, but it seems to me that we need to



 3  figure out, what the problems are that we need



 4  to solve right way?  And what are the problems



 5  that we need to serve midterm?  And what are



 6  the long-term things?  And I think each of



 7  those different situations have different data



 8  requirements, different science requirements.



 9                 Let's solve the real problems



10  first.  So I think that I'm looking forward to



11  the actual product and I think we should be



12  discussing about, how do we get there?  And you



13  know, I think that there really needs to be a



14  tiered structure on how we approach this stuff.



15  So that that's just my thoughts, for what



16  they're worth.



17                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  I would



18  agree with that.



19                 SAM GOLD:  Going back to that



20  economic development discussion and the sort of



21  lack of clarity as to exactly what's meant.  I



22  think it goes back to the policy subcommittee



23  as to, what are the priorities for economic



24  development in -- from the State's perspective?



25                 And should we be pursuing, let's
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� 1  say, if there's assessment that finds that



 2  Connecticut is a relatively water-rich place,



 3  should our economic developments efforts be



 4  towards attracting businesses from places like



 5  California, which are not water-rich?  And



 6  trying to pursue economic development to take



 7  advantage of those opportunities?



 8                 Or should it be more about



 9  policies on what is compatible in different



10  parts of our state and what isn't compatible,



11  and leaving this general, larger economic



12  development strategy and priorities for the



13  state to sort of, you know, on its own, and



14  just keep this as a much more general level.  I



15  guess that's where the direction needs to come



16  from, I guess, somewhere else.



17                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Well, Joe



18  McGee, are you on the line?



19                 JOE McGEE:  I am.  I was going



20  to interrupt there, if I could say something?



21                 You know, the new state



22  commission, the permanent commission espoused



23  by the Legislature on economic competitiveness



24  has just had its first meeting.  I'm on it, and



25  in fact, cochairing it.
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� 1                 And the critical piece that's



 2  come out of this commission I think is aligning



 3  state policy with economic growth and



 4  competitiveness.  So the question in my mind



 5  with water policy, both the supply of water,



 6  but also the voiding of water, sewage.  Does it



 7  impact economic growth in the state and in what



 8  way?



 9                 And that's a very broad



10  conception of the issue.  And I'm not saying



11  that economic growth trumps environmental



12  quality, but just what's the impact of state



13  water policy on the issue of growing either the



14  population of the state or the commercial base



15  of the state?  And I think that's a very



16  important question.



17                 You know, then going back to the



18  data issue.  How much water do we have?  How



19  water rich are we?  How accessible is it, but



20  are there impediments to its use that would



21  really slow, either slow population,



22  residential growth, or commercial growth?  I



23  think it would be good to know that.



24                 And we may say, we want to do



25  that for a different -- for another reason.
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� 1  You know, I mean, there may be reasons in



 2  there.  But I think this issue of Connecticut's



 3  slow growth, the data again, you know, we're



 4  just are really growing very slowly.



 5                 And the Legislature has



 6  basically said to this new permanent commission



 7  on economic competitiveness, we want to look at



 8  a growth strategy.  How do we grow the



 9  Connecticut economy?  What state policies are



10  preventing that from happening?  And that's a



11  critical question I think that the water policy



12  side also has to address.



13                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Sam?



14                 JOE McGEE:  And I think just to



15  add the conservation issue in.  On water



16  conservation, my own view on this is -- we're



17  looking in Stamford.  The cost of water here is



18  going to increase.  We're going to have to pump



19  more of it from Bridgeport into Stamford.  So



20  the cost of pumping, piping, all of that will



21  grow.



22                 And then the question is, for



23  instance, on cooling towers, just basic data.



24  How much water is being -- pristine water is



25  being run through cooling towers in the city of
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� 1  Stamford?  That's a really important question.



 2  And if that was reduced dramatically would you



 3  have to increase the infrastructure to pipe and



 4  pump water to Stamford?  I'd like to know the



 5  answer to that.  I think that's a really



 6  important thing for us to understand.



 7                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Excellent



 8  points.



 9                 Sam?



10                 SAM GOLD:  And Joe McGee just



11  touched upon the other observation of economic



12  development, is that how much does the



13  conservation of our aquifers, of our state



14  lands, but also the water company lands, add to



15  the quality of life to Connecticut that makes



16  us economically competitive?  So I think the



17  conservation side needs to be considered as



18  having economic development value as well.



19                 JOE McGEE:  Yeah.  And Jack, let



20  me throw a really wild one out, just to be wild



21  for a second to see water as a resource, like



22  Texas has oil.



23                 If we were to supply Suffolk



24  County with 50 percent of its water could we do



25  that over an extended period of time?  And
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� 1  would that be an economic resource to the



 2  taxpayers of the State of Connecticut, just



 3  like oil is to Texas?



 4                 I don't think we answered that



 5  question.  I don't know how much.  Do we really



 6  know how much water we have?  How would we



 7  replenish it?  And could we make that kind of



 8  commitment to a water -- to an economy, Suffolk



 9  County, Long Island, that has a water problem,



10  a water supply, water quality problem?  And



11  that may sound like a wild idea, but I think we



12  need to know that, because then we know more



13  about our own water supply and how we want to



14  use it.



15                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Margaret.



16                 MARGARET MINER:  Hello.  Hi.



17  It's Margaret Miner.



18                 A quick observation.  I don't



19  know how much water we could give away out of



20  state, but I'm pretty sure that we would fairly



21  quickly reach the point that we could not hold



22  onto our current standard for potable water.



23                 So -- which is, you know, we



24  don't use any of our large rivers.  Our



25  groundwater is somewhat compromised in too many
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� 1  places.  And so a lot would depend -- I



 2  understand what you mean.  Is it the kind of



 3  resource we could use like oil and have some



 4  revenue?



 5                 And so I think we would have to



 6  give up something.  We would have to give up



 7  some of our standards for upland streams and



 8  probably our standard -- I'm looking at Ellen



 9  to see if she agrees.  I think it would put at



10  risk our standard for potable water if we're



11  looking at large-scale water exports.



12                 JOE McGEE:  Right.  Now,



13  Margaret if that's true then we probably



14  wouldn't want to do it.  But where is the data



15  on that?



16                 ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  And so



17  just to -- Joe, I really kind of like your



18  creative thinking.  I think that there's a lot



19  of -- to me, this is kind of where the heart of



20  the water plan should get to.



21                 So there's, you know, out of all



22  the water supply that our public water



23  utilities move throughout the state of



24  Connecticut every day, how much of that is



25  being used for humans to consume?  And I think
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� 1  that's a fairly low percentage.



 2                 So if we look at all the other



 3  uses -- I've heard vaguely, like, 80 percent of



 4  the rest of the water is for other things,



 5  industrial use, wastewater generation.  Could



 6  we create some opportunities to protect for the



 7  public consuming only the highest water



 8  quality, when we're actually talking about



 9  consuming it, drinking it, bathing in it,



10  preparing food in it?



11                 But then are there other



12  categories of water that that high-quality



13  water doesn't need to be used for?  And what is



14  the opportunity for Connecticut?



15                 MARGARET MINER:  And we want to



16  send that bad water to Suffolk County.



17                 JOE McGEE:  Right.  But I'm just



18  using Suffolk County, you know, it's kind of a



19  crazy example, but just to make a point.  But



20  the way you just described it, exactly.



21                 ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  Right.



22                 JOE McGEE:  That then becomes an



23  interesting thing to understand about choices



24  we can make.



25                 ROBERT MOORE:  But we've been
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� 1  faced with that issue before, Joe, in terms of



 2  whether or not the Connecticut River should



 3  supply more water to Boston.  And you know,



 4  their general public reaction was no.



 5                 And you know, if we were going



 6  to look at Suffolk County, you would look at



 7  the Connecticut River, but they could also look



 8  at the Hudson.  And you know, the Hudson has a



 9  little bit more PCBs than the Connecticut.  But



10  you know, it's not a, you know, why wouldn't



11  they -- New York would tend to look to New



12  York, I would think, before they would look to



13  Connecticut.  But there's other political



14  issues and policy issues.



15                 ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  But could we



16  look at Long Island Sound for power generation?



17                 ROBERT MOORE:  We do.



18                 ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  Could we do



19  more of that?  I think we don't always know



20  when we talk about data and data needs.  We can



21  talk about water supply as a big umbrella, but



22  we don't really break out where does that water



23  supply go.  Who uses it?



24                 JOE McGEE:  Yeah.  That's what



25  I'm after.  In other words, let's not say we
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� 1  sell it to Suffolk.  Let's say we become the



 2  water bottling capital of America.



 3                 Let me just use another crazy



 4  example.  Do we encourage the growth of water



 5  bottling and supply?  What would that look



 6  like?  Is that something that would be part of



 7  an economic development strategy.  Do we want



 8  bottling companies that use our water to locate



 9  in Connecticut because we have an abundance of



10  a natural resources?  I don't know how to



11  answer that question right now.



12                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Virginia?



13                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  If we were to



14  move forward with adopting the SSWUDS database



15  and if it were used to its fullest extent we



16  could get the answers to some of the questions



17  that Joe is asking.



18                 For example, if a water supplier



19  entered into the system, the volume of water



20  being sold to the Southington ski area to make



21  snow, or to this industry that has a cooling



22  tower, then those data could be pulled out of



23  the system summed up by basin or however you



24  want to do it.



25                 And you would have the numbers
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� 1  of how much of our water is going to these



 2  other uses that might be able to use reclaimed



 3  water, or class B water, or something else.  So



 4  you would have to fully populate the database,



 5  but those answers are in those water use data.



 6                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Maureen?



 7                 MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  But I think



 8  even when you have those answers then you have



 9  a whole other layer of questions about how do



10  provide for those uses given the infrastructure



11  needs and all the other things that are there?



12  And is the cost of doing that greater, or does



13  it create other problems than we're solving by



14  it?



15                 And the ability to separate out



16  those big ones?  Yeah, you could do it, but day



17  to day, do I even know within a facility what



18  those people use the water for, what's, quote,



19  potable and what's not?  I couldn't even tell



20  you that and I don't think we expect our



21  customers to tell us that.



22                 But I think, well, it always



23  sounds like a great idea.  Only use public, you



24  know, the potable water, the highest quality



25  water is for drinking water purposes.  To
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� 1  actually do that is a very challenging -- both



 2  to quantify it and then how to implement it, it



 3  creates a whole other set of issues.



 4                 LARRY BINGAMAN:  You're talking



 5  about shipping water.  We actually have a



 6  problem in Southeast Connecticut which has



 7  annual shortages of water.  And it would take a



 8  huge pipeline in order to ship water from the



 9  western part of the state to the eastern part



10  of the state to satisfy their water needs that



11  they have, and have every summer.



12                 So we have issues within the



13  state that we need to solve that a lot of money



14  would have to be dedicated to in order to build



15  the pipeline and the infrastructure in order to



16  make that happen along the shoreline.  And I



17  know the federal government was looking at how



18  you steel up the coast of Connecticut and



19  provide for some redundancy in water supplies,



20  and those funds I think dried up.



21                 But those are the kind of issues



22  we need to be looking at as well before we



23  start thinking about shipping it to -- out of



24  state, for instance, because I think we have



25  needs inside the state in order to balance that
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� 1  supply and demand, which goes back to the



 2  problem that we're trying to solve.



 3                 I'd also like to comment on



 4  Sam's population issue.  We had a consultant



 5  work on a water supply plan, and interestingly



 6  they had the population increasing out 10, 15



 7  years.  And I said, where did that come from?



 8  I said, we're not the Florida of the Northeast



 9  here.



10                 So let's make sure if we're



11  looking at population data that we have a



12  consultant that really looks at this



13  realistically and challenges some of the



14  assumptions.  Because the response was, well,



15  gee, we got that from some of the government



16  agencies here in the state.  Okay.  Fine.



17  Let's question it and make sure it makes sense,



18  because that's a key component to this planning



19  process.



20                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  We



21  initiated a lot of dialogue and conversation



22  here.  Do you want us to take action or do you



23  want us to digest what we said today?



24                 Because actually I'm going to



25  take a five-minute break and give our
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� 1  transcriber a little break -- if anybody needs



 2  a break.



 3                 And then we'll come back and



 4  we're going to the stream flow, Chris Bellucci.



 5  Chris, you're going to do the streamflow



 6  update.  And then we're going to have



 7  out-of-state's group update and a state water



 8  plan website update and then a couple other



 9  things.



10                 So why don't we just digest and



11  kind of keep under consideration what Virginia



12  has proposed today.  And then what we can do,



13  if you have any thoughts, if you could get them



14  to myself or Gail, and we can get that over to



15  you and we can move forward.  But I think we



16  have, again both committees did some great work



17  already.



18                 So let's take a five-minute



19  break.



20                 (Whereupon, a recess was taken



21  from 2:47 p.m. to 3:05 p.m.)



22                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.



23  Come back to order, please.



24                 So the next item on the agenda



25  this afternoon is an update on the streamflow
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� 1  classification.  And we have Chris Bellucci



 2  from DEEP with us.  Thank you for being with



 3  us.  Appreciate it.



 4                 CHRIS BELLUCCI:  Thanks for



 5  having us.  So I am Chris Bellucci.  I work



 6  with DEEP and I'm in the water monitoring



 7  assessment program at DEEP.  And I was involved



 8  with the science and technical workgroup,



 9  similar to what you guys have here for the



10  development of the streamflow regulations.  So



11  I'll talk to you a little bit about that this



12  afternoon.



13                 So a little bit about what I



14  have here on the slides for you, a little bit



15  of brief history and background about the



16  development of the reg itself.  I'll talk about



17  the classes and standard, which is really



18  critical, sort of, for moving the regulation



19  forward.



20                 I'll talk a little bit about the



21  process and schedule that we've been going



22  through and how we've been working through



23  that.  I'll talk a little bit about the release



24  rules and what the releases are required



25  downstream of reservoirs.  And then kind of put
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� 1  our thoughts in how this might relate to what



 2  you all are working here on the state water



 3  plan.  And then finally if we have time we'll



 4  entertain some questions.



 5                 So this process really started



 6  in 2005 with Public Act 05-142.  It basically



 7  directed the then DEP Commissioner to adopt



 8  regulations for steamflows that apply to all



 9  rivers and streams, be based on the best



10  available science, and balance human and



11  ecological needs.



12                 That process, as I mentioned, it



13  started in 2005.  And basically the way it went



14  was we had three work groups, a science and



15  tech workgroup, a policy workgroup and then,



16  sort of, a workgroup that oversaw that.  And it



17  took a number of years to sort of work that



18  process.



19                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Chris, not



20  to interrupt you.  I was just was whispering in



21  Elin's ear here.  I can remember being at



22  the -- this is ten years ago, we're talking



23  folks.



24                 CHRIS BELLUCCI:  Yeah.



25                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  And I can
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� 1  remember being at the first meeting in December



 2  of 2005 in Gina McCarthy's office, now the EPA



 3  administrator.  So you know, we're getting



 4  frustrated with this process, but this has also



 5  taken a very long time.  So --



 6                 CHRIS BELLUCCI:  Yeah, and



 7  there's a lot of talk about when it comes to



 8  water.  Right?  And it's funny you say that



 9  because I had -- I was looking at some of the



10  slides that I had and I had a picture of my son



11  who was -- I used in one of the graphics and he



12  was -- that was a long time ago.  Now he's,



13  like, 16.



14                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Right.  So



15  sorry to interrupt.



16                 CHRIS BELLUCCI:  No, that's



17  fine.  And actually that's the picture right



18  there down in the corner.



19                 So -- and really when we talk



20  about, you know, how long it takes to kind of



21  discuss these things and talk about it, it's



22  really all about the balance.  Right?  You



23  know, there's lots of different uses of water.



24  We all have our heart in this and so our



25  discussions become vigorous, shall I say?  We





                           105

� 1  have -- water is very important to the state



 2  and you know, that's the reason why these



 3  things take so long.



 4                 But one of the things I wanted



 5  to talk about is sort of some of the



 6  foundational material that became part of the



 7  regulation and how we went about defining



 8  important stream flows for Connecticut and what



 9  became what's contained in the regulation.  And



10  a lot of it goes back to the science that Jon



11  gave us a really good overview on earlier this



12  afternoon.



13                 You know, basically if we didn't



14  have that type of information it would have



15  been very hard to get to this process, because



16  as you'll see here on the bullets that I have,



17  the natural hydrograph, you know, that, that



18  natural flow, it was an important concept.  And



19  we always wanted to strive for what would be



20  natural, but we recognize that, you know,



21  obviously the more water we use for humans the



22  more we alter that hydrograph.  And then as



23  that hydrograph gets altered we affect the



24  aquatic life in the rivers and streams.



25                 And there was also a recognition





                           106

� 1  that, you know, this seasonal flow variation



 2  that you've seen in some of Jon's slides,



 3  that's very important to biological processes



 4  and what happens to critters.  So those, those



 5  two sort of concepts became a critical part of



 6  the development of the reg.



 7                 And this is touching upon again



 8  some of what Jon showed, and hopefully set me



 9  up nicely.  And this is a flow duration curve.



10  And it basically shows you that, you know, high



11  flows occur on sort of this left-hand part of



12  the curve.  And then low flows are down there.



13  And that it became, like I said, a really



14  important concept.  We wanted to sort of mimic



15  that in streams, because that's what occurs



16  naturally.



17                 And what's really sort of neat



18  is that, you know, we could -- if you take a



19  location and kind of just observe it through



20  pictures you can kind of get a flavor for



21  what's going on.  And I'll show you a bunch of



22  pictures, and these are all from the same



23  location.



24                 So you know, that's a picture



25  of, obviously, a high flow.  And then we can
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� 1  take the same location and kind of look at it



 2  under sort of at median or sort of average type



 3  flow.  And then you could take that same



 4  location and look at under a lower.  Obviously



 5  very different, very different to the organisms



 6  and very important for a sort of foundational



 7  idea in the regulation.



 8                 So that kind of brought the



 9  working group to the idea of a bio period.  And



10  simply what that means is coupled with the



11  variation in flow there are these biological



12  processes that sort of occur in streams.  And



13  this is sort of a schematic of what eventually



14  became the bio periods in the reg.



15                 And it kind of shows you during



16  higher flows we kind of broke it up into



17  chunks, into months.  December through March is



18  sort of the overwintering period.  And a lot of



19  this had to do with -- we coined, sort of, fish



20  as the surrogate to the organisms that we



21  represented.  So a lot of these terms sort of



22  refer to what fish do in streams, but it's sort



23  of a surrogate for the aquatic life in general.



24                 We know that in the spring and



25  in the period March to May, you know, that the
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� 1  flows get high.  And that's natural for the



 2  flows to get high.  We get snow melt and the



 3  flows get naturally high and that's an



 4  important process for streams to process.  And



 5  then as we sort of head into the summer months



 6  we have important biological processes with



 7  fish spawning.



 8                 Clupeid just refers to a type of



 9  fish.  It's the herring.  And then other fish



10  that are resident fish and they start to spawn.



11  And then we sort of get to sort of crunch time



12  in the summer when the flows in the streams get



13  low and -- but it's sort of an important time



14  because that's when the critters are getting



15  big and growing.  And then for some of the fish



16  in the fall is an important time.  So you know



17  again, recognizing that there's different flows



18  and different things that happen that affect



19  the organisms in the streams.



20                 So that sort of became the



21  baseline, if you will, for developing the



22  streamflow classes and the standards that go



23  with the classes.  So here again, you see the



24  natural -- the hydrograph represented on the Y



25  axis.  And very similar to sort of conceptually





                           109

� 1  up, up in the upper left-hand corner is sort of



 2  the natural flow condition.  And as you get



 3  down to the lower right you see things get



 4  altered as habitat gets altered.



 5                 So class one is sort of the



 6  natural condition, as natural as we get.  And



 7  we kind of try to focus that in simply that's



 8  rivers for river fish.  And as we go down you



 9  see there's alteration as we start to



10  incorporate human uses to the streamflow



11  classes.



12                 So how do we integrate all this



13  information together?  It's sort of the key,



14  sort of I think, foundational things that came



15  out of it.  That because there is this



16  variation in flow and the organisms need



17  different things, and human uses vary over



18  time, not all streams and rivers in the state



19  are the same.



20                 So it may seem obvious, but you



21  know, it took us a number of years to get down



22  to that and kind of all agree on sort that



23  important point.  It's not possible to take all



24  the rivers back to pristine.  We are sort of



25  part of the system and, you know, where we have
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� 1  a role in altering it.



 2                 You need the variability to



 3  incorporate the seasonal flows and patterns and



 4  incorporate that with human needs.  And I think



 5  the stream needs the variability and obviously



 6  we have different demands as humans, that we



 7  have different needs at different times of the



 8  year.



 9                 So what the standards and



10  classes do is they sort of define who needs to



11  comply and what is needed.  And then it sort of



12  has a schedule on when the compliance comes



13  into play, and sort of describes that



14  variability that's needed through the different



15  release rules.



16                 I talk a little bit about the



17  procedures that we used to go about



18  classifying, so now we have the classes one,



19  two, three, four.  And the regulation spells



20  out the factors that we use to go about and



21  classify the streams.  And there's 18 factors,



22  and I'll talk a little bit more about that in a



23  bit, but basically it's we assembled GIS



24  layers.



25                 Some of the important ones that
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� 1  really affect flow are diversions, dams,



 2  impervious cover, and returns flow.  And then



 3  there's a bunch of other factors and I'll show



 4  that in a bit.  And we build this big GIS, put



 5  the proposed streamflow classes up on a map and



 6  consult with the State Department of Public



 7  Health.



 8                 And after doing that we go to a



 9  public participation process.  It's A 90-day



10  process that's spelled out in the reg, take



11  comments and then develop a decision there.



12  And then finally that final classification



13  becomes adopted by DEEP.



14                 A little bit about the factors.



15  I mentioned the hydrologic stressors in the



16  previous slide, the impervious land covered



17  dams, diversions and return flow.  There are



18  also what we call, certainty factors, or what I



19  refer to as, certainty factors.  They are



20  related to public water supply, so downstream



21  of existing water supply reservoirs.



22                 The way the regulation reads, it



23  says they cannot be a class one or a class two,



24  as it does for intersection of level A aquifers



25  and those proposed public water supply with
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� 1  significant investment.  So those are sort of



 2  certainty factors because it's really spelled



 3  out on the reg on what they can and can't be.



 4                 And then there's additional



 5  factors that relate to a variety of things,



 6  potential water supply needs, planned land use,



 7  plants and animals, a bunch of different for



 8  fish things for fish.  Wild and scenic areas,



 9  reference USGS gauges, and then sort of any



10  other additional factors that might be relevant



11  to the process.



12                 So here's a little snapshot of



13  where we are.  You see the Thames, Pawcatuck



14  and southeast coastal that has been completed



15  and our streamflow classes have been adopted.



16  The south-central coast, we're in the process.



17  We just got through with our public process for



18  that and we are in the process of evaluating



19  the comments that we got on that.



20                 So we hope to be done with that



21  soon, hopefully by the end of the year.  And



22  then we'll move on to the other bases, the



23  Connecticut Housatonic, Hudson and southwest



24  coast.  So we're sort of taking a watershed



25  approach to it.
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� 1                 A little bit about



 2  applicability, what is regulated.  The



 3  regulation really speaks to dams that impound



 4  or divert water, or stream systems that affects



 5  the flow of water in such a system.  And what



 6  that means is it's basically we're not talking



 7  about groundwater.  It's really streams below



 8  dams that impound or divert water.



 9                 There are a bunch of exemptions



10  that are spelled out in the regulation.  A few



11  of them are listed here, or some of the key



12  ones are listed here.  Permitted diversions,



13  dams regulated by FERC, flood control dams,



14  recreational impoundments.  So your everyday



15  run of river recreational impoundment is not



16  regulated.



17                 Dams discharging to tidal



18  streams and dams with small watersheds.  You



19  know, if it has a very small watershed and



20  naturally yields very low water, then it's



21  exempt from the regulation.



22                 And then there are a bunch of,



23  sort of, offramps that are incorporated into



24  the regulation such as drought, public water



25  supply margin and safety.  Other considerations
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� 1  that say, like, if these things happen and it



 2  gets really critical we can -- we have other



 3  options and decisions to make under the



 4  regulation.



 5                 And there are provisions also



 6  for ultimate releases, variance and



 7  site-specific plans if folks choose to go down



 8  that route.  And those are very explicitly



 9  stated in the reg as to what information is



10  needed to sort of go down that route to have a



11  variance for a site-specific plan.



12                 So this is kind of what the



13  release looks like.  Class one is essentially



14  free flowing.  A class two release, you have to



15  have 75 percent of what the natural inflow is.



16  And then class three is where it starts to get



17  a little bit more complicated and incorporates



18  the ideas that I was talking about earlier of



19  different releases during different periods of



20  time to sort of match up with the bio period



21  and what's going on with the aquatic organisms



22  in the stream.



23                 So here you'll see different



24  releases and the queue just refers to different



25  flows on the flow duration curve, what I
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� 1  mentioned earlier.  And thanks to our good



 2  partners at USGS we have a computer application



 3  through thier steam stats website where for any



 4  location in the state you can go in and



 5  calculate what these queue flows are so people



 6  can actually comply with the reg and understand



 7  what the release actually is.



 8                 And then class four is basically



 9  to release the maximum extent practicable and



10  it's sort of a site-specific evaluation.



11                 So the universe of -- we took a



12  look at sort of what's regulated under on the



13  regulation and then we kind of evaluated that



14  in our databases.  We have 181 reservoirs.



15  Some of them are active.  Some of them are



16  inactive, and the inactive ones are exempt



17  until they become active.



18                 And then you, kind of, if you



19  follow the left-hand side there's a bunch that



20  are exempt under the reg for the reasons, some



21  of the reasons I stated earlier.  And then



22  there's 23 that have to make that more complex



23  class three level bio period type release.  And



24  then there's 37 that have to sort of do what



25  we're referring to as the minimal rearing and
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� 1  growth release.  So that's sort of to the de



 2  minimus release.  And the reasons for that are



 3  sort of spelled out in the reg.



 4                 So some thoughts on how this



 5  sort of relates to, you know, what this



 6  workgroup is working on, the state water plan.



 7  I think when we -- as we go down this road



 8  we're developing with GIS and a map with



 9  underlying data that identifies, you know,



10  streamflow goals that reflect human use and



11  ecological goals.  It's sort of the charge of



12  what this regulation process was.



13                 It integrates existing water



14  uses, existing stream conditions and it also



15  accounts in a bunch of ways for future areas



16  targeted for water supply development.  So



17  we're down this road a little bit.



18  Approximately 40 percent of the state has been



19  classified already.



20                 We're well underway to try to,



21  you know, our technology is getting a little



22  bit better so we're getting a little bit



23  quicker at it in the GIS processing of it.  So



24  we're hoping to speed it along a little bit, if



25  we can.  You know, this provides sort of future
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� 1  releases for these streams and with firm



 2  planning targets for water suppliers using, you



 3  know, these water registrations.



 4                 And finally, it also identifies



 5  through the classification -- because remember



 6  that class ones are some of the highest quality



 7  streams and the more naturally flowing ones.



 8  That identifies that on the map probably for



 9  the first time.  We've never had it on a



10  statewide basis where can look at this and say,



11  okay, these are the highest quality naturally



12  flowing waters.



13                 So I wanted to sort of bring in



14  this concept.  It's sort of -- this process



15  mimics somewhat of the water quality



16  classifications, and I know many of you are



17  familiar with the water quality classifications



18  that we have for the state.  And it breaks it



19  up into different categories and in this case



20  we use A, AA and B.  And where we can go ahead



21  and map the water quality classifications and



22  different things you can and can't do to the



23  different classes of water quality.



24                 And I think that most of us



25  would agree that this system has sort of
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� 1  brought us a long way in making the water



 2  quality better in the state.  It's been used



 3  to, I mean, you could think back to how the



 4  water was in the sixties and look at it now.



 5  And I think everyone would agree that, as a



 6  whole, the water quality in the state is much



 7  better.



 8                 So we can use sort of that



 9  parallel and say that we're kind of on a path



10  to do that for water quantity.  And we're only



11  a portion done with the state of that.  As you



12  see, this is what's been done so far and gone



13  through the process.  You know, and we will --



14  the south-central costal will have another



15  chunk over here that will be done.  And then



16  we'll have the remaining part of the state



17  done.



18                 But you know, having seen the



19  water quality map you can sort of visualize how



20  this might look with water -- with the



21  streamflow classifications.  And it seems like



22  this is a logical piece of information that you



23  could use for your planning and discussions



24  here with your groups.



25                 So with that, there is a link
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� 1  through, or at least a link to the website that



 2  has everything you wanted to know about the



 3  streamflow process including the regulation



 4  development and a lot of the comments that have



 5  come in over those number of years.



 6                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  A long



 7  process.



 8                 CHRIS BELLUCCI:  There's a lot



 9  of information on there.  And you know, I



10  encourage, if you want to find out more about



11  it, to go there.  And I would be happy to take



12  questions if there are questions.



13                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thanks



14  Chris.  Excellent overview.  It's been a lot of



15  work and you've done a great job.  A lot of



16  emotion attached to streamflow as well.



17                 Yes?



18                 SAM GOLD:  When will the south



19  central be completed?  I know you just started



20  the process.



21                 CHRIS BELLUCCI:  So we are



22  almost done.  We are through the process of --



23  we headed out for public notice.  We took



24  comment.  The comment period is over, so we're



25  in the process now of looking at it, evaluating
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� 1  the comments and, you know, respond to the



 2  comments.  And like we've told people all



 3  along, we welcome comments.



 4                 You know, the initial



 5  classification is largely a GIS exercise, but



 6  we need people, you know, out there in the



 7  trenches to tell us when we're not right on



 8  some of this.  And we have, you know, we get



 9  really good comments in and we're willing to



10  correct it when we're not, and that's sort of



11  what we're doing now.



12                 And I was just having a



13  conversation with Jon in the back that, you



14  know, a couple of things where, you know, the



15  GIS is off a little and we've got to go back



16  and correct it.  So that's sort of where we're



17  at, and hopefully by the end of the year the



18  south-central coastal will be done.



19                 SAM GOLD:  And just a follow-up



20  on that.  Since you have eastern, the eastern



21  portion of Connecticut done and you have south



22  central done, will the completion of the other



23  regions in Connecticut be faster of other



24  watersheds?



25                 CHRIS BELLUCCI:  I think so.  I
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� 1  mean, I can say that, from a, at least the



 2  technology standpoint, we're getting better at



 3  it.  We have a really great person working on



 4  this, Mary Becker.  She's fantastic at GIS.



 5  And as we go through this she's doing all kinds



 6  of neat tricks to make this better, a better



 7  process and, like, automating a lot of the



 8  steps that go.



 9                 Because as you've seen, there's



10  18 factors.  That's a lot to incorporate into



11  sort of a spatial analysis.  And we're getting



12  better at it and I think we can probably speed



13  it up a little bit.



14                 SAM GOLD:  What might be done



15  during the time horizon of this planning



16  process?  And so south central will be done at



17  the end of this year.



18                 CHRIS BELLUCCI:  Right.



19                 SAM GOLD:  What is up next?



20                 CHRIS BELLUCCI:  So I will just



21  give you my thoughts.  I think we could



22  probably perhaps try to tackle the rest of the



23  three basins together.  I'm just saying this



24  sort of off the cuff.



25                 I guess, I think the technology
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� 1  is sort of there that we can do that.  We'll



 2  have to have discussions as to, you know, if



 3  that's the best thing, you know, workload-wise



 4  for the department to do that.  But I think



 5  we're getting to the point where we might be



 6  able to do that.



 7                 So you know, and if we were to



 8  do that it would take a little bit longer than



 9  if we just did one basin.  But if I had to



10  guess, you know, I would say a year and a half,



11  maybe two, and then we'd be done within the



12  state.



13                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Margaret?



14                 MARGARET MINER:  By the way,



15  it's a fabulously sophisticated map.  It's



16  really fun to use.  However, what we like to do



17  is to tell local people, here's what DEEP has



18  done.  Go out and check it and if you see



19  something wrong, right them.



20                 Our people, you know, that are



21  members or in our network, there was only one



22  person I think who really knew the watershed,



23  you know, up and down well enough to actually



24  verify what was in the map.  And I think she



25  had a couple of corrections for you.
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� 1                 And I was just talking to Rob.



 2  The three areas where I had difficulty and I



 3  just didn't know what to tell people is, on key



 4  points can you get the exact location?  And



 5  that frequently is where a stream either abuts



 6  or crosses into either a level A aquifer area,



 7  or a proposed well field.



 8                 I asked on my own.  I said,



 9  well, Tony, who does our mapping, tell me, you



10  know, how can I tell our members where they can



11  click on and then they can walk out, you know,



12  and take a look and see is this right?  So



13  that's where he couldn't come up with it.



14                 The next verify, you know,



15  verifiability problem was some of your factors.



16  And I think you really did a good job, but



17  factors like impervious surface.  I frequently



18  heard this, people say they've got the



19  impervious surface wrong for my town.  Not just



20  you, many times different groups.  Okay?



21                 So they see a certain impervious



22  surface thing on your map, a grading.  Where



23  can they go?  And I think it might be clear,



24  but can you tell people where they can go to



25  see where this came from?  And then if they
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� 1  feel it's wrong they can speak to clear who,



 2  you know, or whoever.



 3                 And the third thing where we



 4  couldn't verify is, are areas where water



 5  companies said they had an interest, maybe had



 6  made a significant investment.  So I said, do



 7  you have records of what those significant



 8  investments were.  Have they bought the land?



 9  Have they surveyed it?  Are the talking about a



10  lease with the owner or what?  And we couldn't.



11  That was another area where verifiability



12  didn't go very far.



13                 So it's a real problem for us.



14  We can't go out and verify much.  We really



15  need to be able to tell people what's that last



16  layer they can go to and find out what the



17  facts are, what documents were used, or what



18  other databases or GIS layers were used.



19                 So I just have to emphasize it's



20  a very interesting map.  You can play with it



21  for days, but it's really good.  But I think it



22  could be made better so people could verify and



23  question and make corrections in their own



24  towns, their own little streams, and on their



25  own watersheds.
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� 1                 CHRIS BELLUCCI:  That's a good



 2  point, Margaret.  If you, especially if you



 3  have comments like that and as long as



 4  technologically we can do it we're more than



 5  happy to try to make it better.  I think it's



 6  gotten a little better from the last basin.



 7                 You know, we're happy to work



 8  with you to try to make better for the next



 9  basin, especially if you have specific comments



10  on things that you might like to see, you know.



11  Let's get together and talk about it.



12                 MARGARET MINER:  Okay.  Thank



13  you.



14                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Any



15  further questions?



16                 (No response.)



17                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Great.



18  Thank you very much, Chris.  Appreciate you



19  being with us.



20                 Okay.  Two more items we have,



21  just a very brief update on the website.



22                 ERIC LINDQUIST:  Yeah, Eric



23  Lindquist From OPM.



24                 Right now I'm currently in the



25  design phase for the website, which will be
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� 1  dedicated specifically for the Water Planning



 2  Council.  I have a current first draft that



 3  actually some of you have seen already.  It's



 4  been circulated to one of the workgroups, the



 5  state's plan workgroup.



 6                 You know, as I continue to



 7  refine the design, you know, the main question



 8  that I keep wrangling is really what level of



 9  information should the website encompass?



10  Should it be specifically focused on the water



11  planning process?  Or should it go further than



12  that?  Should it go to, you know, water



13  management and data?



14                 So you know, that's something



15  that I'm interested in getting feedback on,



16  thoughts from anyone who might be interested in



17  providing any creative ideas on what we'll see.



18  I plan to go ahead and start the buildout phase



19  next month.  That would be my goal.



20                 When it's launched it will be a



21  pretty simplistic website and it will take some



22  time to build up the content.  So it will



23  probably start with a focus on the water



24  planning process and then maybe evolve from



25  there, but it's easier to design it right up
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� 1  front and change it down the road.  So that's



 2  why I'm trying to get a good handle on it now.



 3                 So feel free to contact me if



 4  you have any creative thoughts or ideas or



 5  concerns.  My e-mail is



 6  eric.k.lindquist@CT.gov.  You can come see me



 7  after the meeting here, but that's where I'm at



 8  right now.



 9                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you



10  very much.  Any questions?



11                 Yes, Virginia?



12                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Eric, my beef



13  with many websites is that they aren't kept up



14  to date.  And the easiest way to have an



15  up-to-date website is have it be just a series



16  of links and have the responsibility for



17  updating stuff in the other places.



18                 Is that the approach you're



19  using?  Or is this something that you're being



20  allowed the time to dedicate to make sure that



21  it doesn't say, as the website said several



22  years ago, maybe two years later the website



23  said the drought will be lifted on June 7th,



24  you know, of 2012, and it's now 2014?  That



25  kind of thing.
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� 1                 MARGARET MINER:  You've been



 2  reading our website.



 3                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yes.



 4  Point well taken.



 5                 ERIC LINDQUIST:  Yeah.  The way



 6  I see it, the website would probably have two



 7  different uses.  One will be probably more of



 8  an educational and information providing use.



 9  The kind of static stuff that stays mostly



10  static, needs to be updated occasionally.



11                 The other use would be more of a



12  coordinating thing and you know, update



13  providing service.  You know, a calendar



14  service, scheduling meetings, uploading



15  materials, minutes, agendas, whatnot.  That



16  will be more time consuming.



17                 You know, one thought I had to



18  go through and I have to talk with management



19  about this as far as I'm not sure how much time



20  of my schedule can be allotted to it, but one



21  possibility is it might be something that an



22  intern -- you could grab an intern and they



23  could be trained on how to maintain the website



24  on behalf of the Water Planning Council.



25                 Just an idea, but that's
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� 1  something I will have to talk with my



 2  management at OPM about down the road on how we



 3  want to approach who's going to take on the



 4  responsibility for keeping it going.



 5                 DAVID LeVASSEUR:  And having



 6  said that, Eric and I, we've discussed this



 7  internally as we expect there to be a number of



 8  links to other sites.  So that those individual



 9  sites would have to be maintained by obviously



10  their main master server.  So it's a



11  combination.  It's going to be a hybrid.



12                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Any



13  further comments?



14                 (No response.)



15                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.



16  Keep me up to date on that.



17                 Yes, Maureen?



18                 MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  A couple of



19  things.  I think again the advisory group has



20  had, you know, had ideas of the outreach and



21  stuff.  And to the extent we can coordinate



22  with you, maybe if you came to an advisory



23  group meeting and used that as a place to



24  brainstorm on it, it might be a way to help.



25                 And we've done something at
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� 1  Connecticut Water where we actually -- people



 2  can go in and sign up and you get e-mails, or



 3  text alerts, or something like that.  And



 4  there's a fair amount behind the scenes which I



 5  can't begin to explain, but that may be



 6  something that may be level of information



 7  outreach that we could add here that would



 8  be -- help that longer term.



 9                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you



10  for that.  Great.



11                 Okay.  Other states workgroup



12  report.  A lot of time and effort has gone into



13  this, I know.



14                 MATTHEW PAFFORD:  I will try to



15  be brief.  My name is Matt Pafford.  I'm with



16  the Office of Policy and Management.  I am



17  cochair with the other states plans workgroup.



18                 If you recall back at the



19  Steering Committee workshop we had submitted,



20  our group had submitted a report of basically a



21  compilation of the research we had done into



22  what other states had done regarding their



23  water plans.



24                 A topic of conversation, a focus



25  of that meeting is what we were calling a model
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� 1  table of contents, which was included in our



 2  report.  The Steering Committee asked our group



 3  to go back and revise the table of contents to



 4  include several items that came up that you all



 5  felt should be included in that table of



 6  contents.  That was distributed by e-mail last



 7  week.  I have a couple of paper copies here.  I



 8  don't know if anyone needs any.



 9                 And so what our group has is



10  done is we've taken the original model table of



11  contents, we've gone back and added content



12  that was identified by the Steering Committee



13  at the workshop.  And then we've also



14  crosschecked the new document against Public



15  Act 14-163 and the elements, the key elements



16  that we had identified in our initial report.



17                 So we had a lot of discussion



18  lately within our own group as far as which



19  category this falls into.  Is it here?  Is it



20  there?  We feel that we have covered everything



21  in this document.  As the planning process



22  evolves some of those things may shift into



23  different departments.  They may change



24  slightly, but I think we've got everything in



25  here, but are certainly open to, you know,
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� 1  communication as far as what goes where.



 2                 But I think at this point that's



 3  up to the Steering Committee to take those



 4  recommendations and to kind of take this as a



 5  starting point.  And as the process evolves



 6  fill in any gaps that may be, or alter things



 7  that may, you know, may not fit in the coming



 8  months.



 9                 I just want to take you through



10  real quickly this has two main parts to it.



11  The first part, which is the actual table of



12  contents.  It's a very simplified version, a



13  high-level version of what you expect to see.



14  When you open the document you look at the



15  table of contents.



16                 The second section, which we're



17  calling appendix A, is the annotated table of



18  contents.  What that does is takes the main



19  sections and adds what we have determined to be



20  some suggested content that could be in there.



21  This is not the end-all be-all.  It's not



22  intended to be all inclusive.  It's really



23  based on the research that we have done and



24  said -- and that's based on the sections we've



25  identified, the important elements that we've
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� 1  identified and the research that we've done.



 2  Here's what we think could or should be



 3  included in there.



 4                 And again, as this process



 5  evolves that may change, but we're hoping that



 6  this will be a good starting point for the



 7  process from here on out.



 8                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  This is an



 9  incredible amount of work that this group has



10  done and I thank you and commend you for it.  I



11  mean, you sift through these plans and you were



12  given to look over them and I think you came up



13  with a great product here.



14                 Larry?



15                 LARRY BINGAMAN:  I would echo



16  that.  I think that's terrific job.  And I was



17  just wondering, how this is going to play into



18  the consultant that we ultimately retain to



19  help us with the project?



20                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  I think



21  this would be a great outline for that



22  consultant.



23                 LARRY BINGAMAN:  This would be a



24  great outline.  It strikes me as a -- for a



25  project.  So here's your RFP.  Tell us what
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� 1  it's going to cost.



 2                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  This



 3  really -- this and some of the information we



 4  got out of the workgroups today is going to be



 5  really a good foundation for that.



 6                 ROBERT MOORE:  I just would say



 7  that you did an excellent job on this and the



 8  issues are really good.  I think the only thing



 9  I saw that was missing was some commitment on



10  agricultural uses under economic development,



11  or one of those other areas.  But that was kind



12  of the only thing I saw that was kind of



13  missing from that.  But --



14                 MATTHEW PAFFORD:  Yeah, we do



15  identify agriculture in 4-B, understanding



16  Connecticut's water demands.



17                 ROBERT MOORE:  Yeah, but I was



18  thinking in terms of the economic development



19  and land use in the future, the future part of



20  it.  That's all.



21                 MATT BAFFERT:  And it certainly



22  could be added kind of as the process moves



23  along.



24                 Any other questions?



25                 ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  Just a
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� 1  question.  So preparing for change would be



 2  technology and consumer behavior.  I'm guessing



 3  that includes things like water reuse,



 4  recycling, conservation.



 5                 MATT BAFFERT:  Yeah.  All of



 6  those things can fall under that category, as



 7  well as, obviously you know, other categories.



 8  There was a lot of overlap in dealing with



 9  this.  So they certainly can fall into more



10  than one category.



11                 ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  Thank you.



12                 DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Thank you,



13  Matt.  And thank your committee.



14                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Matt, and



15  thank your committee.  Virginia, you were part



16  of this process.



17                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  I was part of



18  this process with Matt.



19                 I wanted to remind the Steering



20  Committee that the group, one of the things



21  that the group did was develop this, this model



22  table of contents.  The major part of what we



23  did was going through and identifying key



24  elements that needed to be in a water plan and



25  using the 19 states that we used as examples.
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� 1                 We did a fairly exhaustive look



 2  at the different elements and how they were



 3  addressed, complete with references to what



 4  states have done them.  To me, that is the more



 5  important document.  That was distributed via



 6  e-mail before the Steering Committee workshop.



 7  I don't believe -- it was not available as a



 8  handout at that workshop because it's quite



 9  humongous.



10                 But I would encourage all of us



11  to focus on that document because that's where



12  you're really going to find the interesting



13  details that we as the Steering Committee need



14  to assess whether they should be in our water



15  plan.  So perhaps we can resend that so that



16  it's not lost in a four-months-ago e-mail, and



17  have people take a good look at that.  That's



18  the meat of the work that we did.



19                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Good



20  recommendation.



21                 Any other questions or comments



22  for Matt?



23                 (No response.)



24                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you



25  very much.
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� 1                 Let's have round of applause.



 2                 Is there any other business?



 3  I've got a couple of things I wanted to bring



 4  up, and then I'll open up for comments.  One is



 5  that the American Water Resource Association,



 6  an interesting -- I got a call from Brenda



 7  Bateman who is their chair of their board of



 8  directors.  And they're having -- she went to



 9  every state's website.  They're having an



10  inaugural workshop for state officials.



11                 And the purpose of this is for



12  officials who are responsible for developing



13  state water plans.  And it's going to be held



14  in Denver, Colorado, from the 11th to the 13th.



15  Unfortunately I have a conflict.



16                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Of what



17  month?



18                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  November



19  of this year, November 11th.



20                 And -- but our Chairman has



21  authorized us to send Jim Voccolina.  Some of



22  you know Jim Voccolina is our subject matter



23  water expert here at PURA.  And he's going to



24  be -- we just signed off on his travel



25  authorization.  He's going to be traveling out
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� 1  to Denver to represent the State of Connecticut



 2  at this.  And this is the first of many,



 3  evidently.  So I'm kind of excited about this,



 4  because it ties beautifully into obviously what



 5  we're doing.  So Jim will be going to that.



 6                 The other thing is that Monday



 7  and Tuesday of this week I was in Denver,



 8  Colorado at the Water Research Foundation,



 9  Public Council on Water Research.  I'm on the



10  public council.



11                 Larry, were you on that ever?



12                 LARRY BINGAMAN:  No.



13                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  It's the



14  science of water and the people are there from



15  the top public councils, very similar to this



16  Steering Committee in terms of who's there.



17  But we talked about -- I told them and they



18  were very interested in our water plan.



19                 Not unique to Connecticut,



20  people debate -- they may say, argue -- but



21  debate water from around the United States.



22  It's not just us.  It was a huge issue and



23  Maryland, Delaware and Washington D.C. over the



24  Potomac River ended up going to the Supreme



25  Court.
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� 1                 But there's a lot of things the



 2  foundation -- and we look at the website, the



 3  committee chairs -- there's a lot of



 4  information that they have done, research upon



 5  research upon research.  This is all they do,



 6  is research -- is that we can, I think, tap



 7  into.



 8                 So I'm not going to read it this



 9  afternoon, but there was one page here that was



10  almost like describing what we're trying to do



11  on the Water Planning Council.  So I think it's



12  important that we utilize that as much as we



13  can.  And I'm actually going to send their



14  executive director an outline of what you're



15  looking for and see how they might be able to



16  assist us.



17                 Virginia?



18                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Your first



19  comment about the conference in November.  When



20  earlier this meeting when we were talking about



21  the project management schedule, getting a



22  project manager on, I'm still not clear what



23  would happen at that November meeting.



24                 But is there any hope that we



25  would have identified project management that
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� 1  could attend this conference?  Because I think



 2  that would be very valuable, the person to go



 3  and information to bring back, in addition to



 4  Jim.



 5                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  I'm going



 6  to defer to my resident --



 7                 DAVID LeVASSEUR:  As much as I



 8  think we could probably do something like that,



 9  I really want that decision about project



10  management being to be made at the November



11  meeting of this group.



12                 I really want to have this group



13  to be able to give its input and its blessing



14  to whatever course of action we go with.  All



15  of the various pieces of what we view as the



16  consultant pieces that we need, whether it's



17  project management for this group, project



18  management for the consultant and the



19  consultant process.



20                 One of the things that's been



21  driven home since we began is we need to be



22  open, we need to be transparent and we need to



23  have input from everybody.  So I just don't see



24  the timing coming together for that, Virginia,



25  because I think, quite frankly, that I don't





                           141

� 1  want to jeopardize the integrity of the process



 2  just to facilitate getting a warm body out



 3  there for a couple of weeks after we made the



 4  decision.  So --



 5                 MARGARET MINER:  Maybe it will



 6  be available on streaming or some downloadable



 7  thing that we could see.



 8                 DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Or it might be



 9  available after the fact.



10                 MARGARET MINER:  Yeah, that's



11  what I mean.



12                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  And again,



13  as I said in the letter, it's the inaugural so



14  there's going to be other meetings.  I think



15  this is really kind of looking at what's going



16  around, but I think there's definitely -- the



17  way I understand from my conversation with



18  Brenda -- was this was going to be the first of



19  many.  So --



20                 Oh, is that the Gene Likens



21  letter?  Does anybody want to comment?  Gene



22  Likens sent a letter to people.  He was upset



23  about the scheduling that -- rescheduling the



24  meeting.  He's made some recommendations here



25  in the letter.  I was going to have a
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� 1  conversation with Gene.



 2                 Have you talked to Gene?



 3                 MICHAEL J. SULLIVAN:  I have



 4  not.



 5                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  So when he



 6  says, can we identify a Steering Committee



 7  Chair?  Well, he's sitting right here.  That's



 8  me.  So I'm the Steering Committee Chair, and



 9  that was made quite apparent to everybody at



10  the retreat in June, that that's the way the



11  structure has been set up here.



12                 I know you responded.  Have you



13  talked to him?  I know you sent an e-mail back



14  to him.



15                 MARGARET MINER:  I did and I



16  will be seeing him, but I haven't gone into any



17  detail.  I hope to show him some of the things



18  here today that maybe haven't gotten to his



19  e-mail.



20                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  And I



21  would be more than happy to take it to him.



22                 MARGARET MINER:  Talk to him.



23  Right?



24                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yeah,



25  absolutely.  I mean, I think it's okay with the
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� 1  Steering Committee, the way I'd like to have a



 2  conversation with him and give him a followup



 3  to today's meeting, and let him know what we've



 4  done and where we're going.  And if that's okay



 5  with everybody?



 6                 MICHAEL J. SULLIVAN:  I'll say



 7  something about that.  I mean, I was -- and



 8  this is just like a personal observation.  I'm



 9  very happy with this meeting today.  I thought



10  this was very useful.  And I just want to make



11  sure that these kind of meetings, I mean, it



12  sounds like we're on a regular schedule now.



13                 And I just want to make sure



14  that we're doing enough work so that when you



15  people invoke the time to come in and meet and



16  do these things, that we have a substantive



17  discussion about whatever that issue might be.



18  And that people have things in advance so that



19  they could come in and have a useful,



20  productive discussion about whatever it might



21  be.



22                 And I just want to make sure



23  that we're not wasting your time when you, you



24  know, you're basically volunteering to do this



25  kind of thing.  So I think when I -- I just did
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� 1  a quick read on Gene's letter and I think



 2  that's part of what I was reading on that.  And



 3  I think if this meeting is any indication, I



 4  think we're well on our way to addressing some



 5  of the things that he was kind of raising.



 6  So --



 7                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you



 8  for that, Mike.



 9                 Virginia?



10                 VIRGINIA de LIMA:  We only got



11  it and I thought he was --



12                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  No, I



13  appreciate you.  I appreciate you doing that.



14                 For the record, I was going to



15  say we had 99 percent attendance between people



16  here on the phone, except for Gene.  Okay.  So



17  Gene couldn't be here today, so that's



18  understood.  Okay?



19                 MARGARET MINER:  On this comment



20  from Gene.  You know, he's very concerned about



21  what he sees as an environmental catastrophe



22  that we may be heading toward.  And he wants to



23  be sure, as I understand it, that we're doing



24  things in the most efficient and rapid means



25  possible.
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� 1                 So I'm sure he does become



 2  impatient, but his level of concern is



 3  commensurate with that of the Pope, and I think



 4  with a lot of the rest of us, that we can't



 5  waste time coming up with some answers.



 6                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  And you



 7  know what?  We would have wasted time if we had



 8  the meeting early on this month, quite frankly.



 9  And that's why we --



10                 MARGARET MINER:  I'm not



11  debating that.  But that's his --



12                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  That why



13  we don't want to drag up here.  Okay.  Let's go



14  home and watch the Pope.  Okay?



15                 Motion to adjourn?



16                 DAVID LeVASSEUR:  So moved.



17                 ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  Second.



18                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  All those



19  in favor?



20                 THE COMMITTEE:  Aye.



21                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you



22  very much for your time.  Appreciate it.



23                 (Whereupon, the above



24  proceedings were concluded at 3:57 p.m.)



25
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� 1                   CERTIFICATE



 2
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